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TOWN OF BUCKEYE

December 14, 2004

Ms. Lindy Bauer, Environmental Program Coordinator
Maricopa Association of Governments

302 N. 1* Avenue, Suite 300

Phoenix, AZ 85003

Re: Sundance Water Reclamation Facility
Dear Ms. Bauer:

The Town of Buckeye is responsible for the operation, maintenance, and closure of the Sundance
Water Reclamation Facility located in the Town of Buckeye, Arizona. The estimated cost of the new
facility’s operation and maintenance is $450,000 per year. The Town of Buckeye will collect operation
and maintenance costs from individual users through monthly service fees.

The total estimated closure costs for the Sundance Water Reclamation Facility is $900,000. The Town
of Buckeye is financially capable of meeting this cost. Closure costs will be collected over the life of
the facility through monthly service fees from the individual users. There are no post-closure costs
expected for this facility.

Sincerely,
Town of Buckeye
s /ZLZ//W% for R
Ron Brown
Financial Director

100 North Apache* Buckeye, Arizona 85326+ (623) 386-4691+ FAX (623) 386-7832
Page 1 of 1



TOWN OF BUCKEYE

December 14, 2004

Ms. Brenda Day

Maricopa Association of Governments
302 North 1* Avenue, Suite 300
Phoenix, Arizona 85003

Subject: Sundance MAG 208 AMENDMENT - BUCKEYE, ARIZONA

Dear Ms. Day:

The Town of Buckeye is submitting a 208 Amendment for the Buckeye Planning Area.
In accordance with the MAG 208 Water Quality Management Plan, we are officially
requesting that you initiate the amendment process to consider the service area that the
Sundance Water Reclamation Facility would serve.

We look forward to working with you and appreciate your assistance to facilitate the
MAG approval process for this 208 Amendment.

Sincerely,
Town of Buckeye

Rl

Carroll Reynolds
Town Manager

Cc:  Michael Worlton, RBF Consulting

100 North Apache+ Buckeye, Arizona 85326+ (623) 386-4691+ FAX (623) 386-7832
Page 1 of 1



208 AMENDMENT CHECKLIST

Section 208 Clean Water Act

40 CFR Part 130.6

REQUIREMENT

PROVIDE BRIEF SUMMARY ON HOW REQUIREMENTS ARE ADDRESSED

ADDRESSED ON PAGE:

AUTHORITY

Proposed Designated Management Agency (DMA) shall self-
certify that it has the authorities required by Section 208(c)(2) of
the Clean Water Act to implement the plan for its proposed
planning and service areas. Self-certification shall be in the form
of a legal opinion by the DMA or entity attorney.

MAG is the Designated Planning Agency that has the authority
as required in CWA 208(a)(2)(B). The Town of Buckeye is the
Designated Management Agency for the Buckeye Municipal
Planning Area.

1 (Please refer to
Appendix C of the MAG
208 Water Quality
Management Plan,
October 2002)

20-YEAR NEEDS

Clearly describe the existing wastewater (WWT) treatment
facilities:

- Describe existing WWT facilities.

The Town of Buckeye currently operates the Sundance WWTP,
a 1.2 MGD wastewater treatment plant within the Town of
Buckeye planning area. The Sundance WWTP is currently
planned to have a build out capacity of 3.6 MGD. The proposed
service area is within the Town’s planning area.

- Show WWT certified and service areas for private
utilities and sanitary district boundaries if appropriate.

There are no private utilities or sanitary districts within the
planned area for this facility. The previously approved MAG 208
for Blue Horizons will be deleted since this amendment includes
Blue Horizons.

586

Clearly describe alternatives and the recommended WWT plan:

- Provide POPTAC population estimates (or (COG-
approved estimates only where POPTAC not available) over 20-
_year period.

The Town of Buckeye is projected to grow to 102,223 people by
2024. The service area is projected to include 17,630 residential
units at ultimate build out.

3&4

- Provide wastewater flow estimates over the 20-year
planning period.

Estimated flows range from 2.4 MGD at Phase IB to 8.9 MGD at
ultimate build-out.

- lllustrate the WWT planning and service areas.

The service area for the proposed expansion of the SWWTP is
located within the Town of Buckeye Planning Area. The service
area includes areas bounded by Camelback Road, Perryville
Road, RID Canal, Dean Road, McDowell Road and Tuthill Road.

Appendix A



- Describe the type and capacity of the recommended
WWT plant.

A treatment facility with biological treatment process will provide
BOD removal, nitrification and denitrification, aerobic sludge
digestion, sludge dewatering, and sludge disposal strategy. The
plant will be equipped with odor control, which includes covers
and odor scrubbing equipment. The ultimate capacity of the
facility will be 8.9 MGD.

- Identify water quality problems, consider alternative
control measures, and recommend solution for implementation.

No water quality problems are anticipated. Effluent will be A+
quality. Effluent will meet all limits established by the NPDES
Permit, reuse permit, and recharge permit.

- If private WWT utilities with certified areas are within the
proposed regional service area; define who (municipal or private
utility) serves what area and when. ldentify whose sewer lines
can be approved in what areas and when?

There are no private utilities within the proposed service area.
The Verrado WWTP service area is adjacent to the Sundance
WWTP service area and will not overlap at any time.

- Describe method of effluent disposal and reuse sites (if
appropriate).

Effluent from the SWWTP will be disposed of in two manners: 1)
Direct reuse of reclaimed wastewater for public green areas
including golf courses, 2) Discharge of reclaimed wastewater to
the BID canal and 3) Groundwater Recharge to basins or wells

- If Sanitary Districts are within a proposed planning or
service area, describe who serves the Sanitary Districts and
when.

There are no sanitary districts within the proposed planning or
service areas.

- Describe ownership of land proposed for plant sites and
reuse areas.

The land for the plant is owned by Buckeye Land and Managed
by Buckeye Land Management Inc. Once construction of the
facility is accepted, the Town of Buckeye will obtain full
ownership of the facility.

- Address time frames in the development of the treatment
works.

The project will be divided up into phases. It is anticipated that
the construction of phase 1 expansion will be completed by
2010. Future expansions are anticipated, bringing the ultimate
capacity to 8.9 MGD. Design of these improvements will begin
when 70% of the plant capacity has been reached as calculated
by measured flows from the collection system. Construction will
begin when 80% of the plant capacity has been reached.




- Address financial constraints in the development of the
treatment works.

Financing of the phase | expansions to the SWWTP are
discussed in the original Sundance MAG 208, and will be
provided through BLMI. Phase 2 and 3 expansions will be the
responsibility of the Town of Buckeye. All phase | improvements
will be publicly bid and eligible for reimbursement through one or
more CFDs that BLMI| may choose to implement. It is expected
that other developers will share costs with BLMI for the design
and construction of the Sundance phase | WWTP expansion.
Once the phase | expansions are complete, the plant will be self
supported and the Town will assume financial responsibility for
construction of future phases. The Town of Buckeye will be
responsible for the operation and maintenance of the SWWTP
whether the Town publicly bids the operation and maintenance
services or directly hires qualified and licensed operators. User
fees will be collected by the Town of Buckeye to fund operation
and maintenance over the life of the SWWTP.

- Describe how discharges will comply with EPA municipal
and industrial stormwater discharge regulations (Section 405,
CWA). :

All storm water will be contained onsite and there will be no
offsite storm water discharge.

- Describe how open areas & recreational opportunities
will result from improved water quality and how those will be
used.

The reuse of effluent wili safely enhance the golf course while
minimizing use of groundwater for irrigation.

- Describe potential use of lands associated with
treatment works and increased access to water-based
recreation, if applicable.

Not applicable.

Not applicable.

REGULATIONS

- Describe types of permits needed, including NPDES,
APP and reuse.

Permits required are NPDES, APP, reuse, recharge, air quality,
architectural, building, approval to construct, approval of
construction, sludge disposal, sludge hauling and annual
operating permit from MCESD.

- Describe restrictions on NPDES permits, if needed, for
discharge and sludge disposal.

The quality of the effluent will meet requirements of the Clean
Water Act.

- Provide documentation of communication with ADEQ
Permitting Section 30 to 60 days prior to public hearing regarding
the need for specific permits.

PACE (Pacific Advanced Civil Engineering, Inc.) is working on
securing a significant amendment to the existing Sundance APP
(Aquifer Protection Permit). This amendment will increase the
permitted flow to 2.4 MGD. The permit information was obtained
from the ADEQ website and a copy is included in Appendix C.




- Describe pretreatment requirements and method of
adherence to requirements (Section 208 (b)(2)(D), CWA).

It is not anticipated that the SWWTP will have any industrial
users, therefore no pretreatment will be required. However, in
the future if it is anticipated that the service area will have
industrial users then each prospective industrial user will be
required to be in compliance with all pretreatment requirements
dictated by the Town of Buckeye and all federal pretreatment
requirements as provided in 40 CFR Part 403 and enforced by
Arizona Department of Environmental Quality. The ability for
prospective industrial users to comply with both federal and local
regulations will be evaluated on a case-by-case basis.

- Identify, if appropriate, specific pollutants that will be
produced from excavations and procedures that will protect
ground and surface water quality (Section 208(b)(2)(K) and
Section 304, CWA).

Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) will be
provided.

- Describe alternatives and recommendation in the
disposition of sludge generated. (Section 405 CWA)

Sludge will be dewatered and either disposed of at an approved
landfill or applied to approved agricultural land. Sludge hauler
and sludge disposal agreements will be obtained. Sludge will be
of such a quality that it may be used for agricultural proposes.

- Define any non-point issues related to the proposed
facility and outline procedures to control them.

Not applicable.

Not applicable.

- Describe process to handle all mining runoff, orphan
sites and underground pollutants, if applicable.

Not applicable.

Not applicable.

- If mining related, define where collection of pollutants
has occurred, and what procedures are going to be initiated to
contain contaminated areas.

Not applicable.

Not applicable.

- If mining related, define what specialized procedures will
be initiated for orphan sites, if applicable.

Not applicable.

Not applicable.

CONSTRUCTION

Define construction priorities and time schedule‘s for initiation
and completion.

The project will be divided up into phases. It is anticipated that
the construction of phase 1 expansion will be completed by
2010. Construction of phase Il expansion is not estimated to
begin until 2013. Future expansions are anticipated, bringing the
ultimate capacity to 8.9 MGD. Design of these improvements
will begin when 70% of the plant capacity has been reached as
calculated by measured flows from the collection system.
Construction will begin when 80% of the plant capacity has been
reached.




Identify agencies who will construct, operate and maintain the
facilities and otherwise carry out the plan.

The Northeast Buckeye Developers will bid the design and
expansion of the SWWTP. Construction will be accomplished
under the resultant contract from this bidding process. The
winning bidder will be responsible for the construction of the
facility. The timing of construction of each phase will be
dependent upon the increases in population and the resultant
wastewater flows. In general, design of each new phase must
begin when 70% of the plant capacity has been reached.
Construction of each phase must begin when 80% of the plant
capacity has been reached. The Town will take ownership of
the plant after the completion of each new phase. BLMI is in the
process of contracting for another 1.2 MGD expansion of the
SWWTP. BLMI also has an agreement in place for a third 1.2
MGD expansion. The town of Buckeye will be responsible for
the construction.

Identify construction activity-related sources of pollution and set
forth procedures and methods to control, to the extent feasible,
such sources.

Pollutants associated with construction activities are anticipated
to be limited to solid waste, inert materials, and residual
construction materials all of which will be properly disposed of
after construction activities are complete.

FINANCING AND OTHER MEASURES NECESSARY TO
CARRY OUT THE PLAN

- if plan proposes to take over certificated private utility,
describe how, when and financing will be managed.

Not applicable.

Not applicable.

- Describe any significant measure necessary to carry out
the plan, e.g., institutional, financial, economic, etc.

The phasing of the expansion will depend upon the demand
placed by commercial and residential developments.




- Describe proposed methods(s) of community financing.

Financing of the phase | expansions to the SWWTP are
discussed in the original Sundance MAG 208, and will be
provided through BLMI. Phase 2 and 3 expansions will be the
responsibifity of the Town of Buckeye. All phase | improvements
will be publicly bid and eligible for reimbursement through one or
more CFDs that BLMI may choose to implement. It is expected
that other developers will share costs with BLMI for the design
and construction of the Sundance phase 1| WWTP expansion.
Once the phase | expansions are complete, the plant will be self
supported and the Town will assume financial responsibility for
construction of future phases. The Town of Buckeye will be
responsible for the operation and maintenance of the SWWTP
whether the Town publicly bids the operation and maintenance
services or directly hires qualified and licensed operators. User
fees will be collected by the Town of Buckeye to fund operation
and maintenance over the life of the SWWTP.

- Provide financial information to assure DMA has
financial capability to operate and maintain wastewater system
over its useful life.

The Northeast Buckeye Developers, led by Pulte Homes, The
Town of Buckeye and Buckeye Land Management have the
financial capacity to operate the facility.

Appendix B

- Provide a timeline outlining period of time necessary for
carrying out plan implementation.

It is anticipated that the construction of the phase | expansion will
be compieted by 2010. Construction of phase Il expansion is not
estimated to begin until 2013. The additional phases will be
completed as dictated by growth in the area. Based on existing
growth patterns, ultimate build out is anticipated to occur in 2022.

- Provide financial information indicating the method and
measures necessary to achieve project financing.
(Section 201 CWA or Section 604 may apply.)

See financial statements in Appendix B.

Appendix B

IMPLEMENTABILITY

Describe impacts and implementability of Plan:

- Describe impacts on existing wastewater (WW) facilities,
e.g., Sanitary district, infrastructure/facilities and certificated
areas.

The Town of Buckeye currently operates the Sundance WWTP,
a 1.2 MGD wastewater treatment plant within the Town of
Buckeye planning area. The Sundance WWTP is currently
planned to have a build out capacity of 3.6 MGD. The proposed
service area is within the Town's planning area.

- Describe how and when existing package plants will be
connected to a regional system.

Not applicable.

Not applicable.

- Describe the impact on communities and businesses
affected by the plan.

There will be no impacts on communities or businesses
anticipated.

vi
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- If a municipal wastewater (WWT) system is proposed,
describe how WWT service will be provided until the municipal
system is completed: i.e. will package plants and septic systems
be allowed and under what circumstances. (Interim services)

Service already provided by the Sundance Wastewater

Treatment Plant.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

- Submit copy of mailing list used to notify the public of the
public hearing on the 208 amendment. (40 CFR, Chapter 1,
Part 25.5)

All public notifications will be satisfied through MAG.

notifications will be made if required by the Town.

Additional

10

- List location where documents are available for review
at least 30 days before public hearing.

All public notifications will be satisfied through MAG.

notifications will be made if required by the Town.

Additional

10

- Submit copy of the public notice of the public hearing as
well as an official affidavit of publication from the area
newspaper. Clearly show the announcement appeared in the
newspaper at least 45 days before the hearing.

All public notifications will be satisfied through MAG.

notifications will be made if required by the Town.

Additional

10

- Submit affidavit of publication for official newspaper
publication.

All public notifications will be satisfied through MAG.

notifications will be made if required by the Town.

Additional

10

- Submit responsiveness summary for public hearing.

All public notifications will be satisfied through MAG.

notifications will be made if required by the Town.

Additional

10

Vi



1.0 Executive Summary

The Maricopa Association of Governments (MAG) is the Designated Planning Agency
with the authority, required by Section 208 (a)(2)(B) of the Clean Water Act, to amend
the Water Quality Plan for the Maricopa County Planning Area. The Town of Buckeye
is requesting an amendment to the MAG 208 Water Quality Management Plan (MAG
208 Plan) for the Sundance Wastewater Treatment Plant (SWWTP), which is currently
identified for a 3.6 MGD treatment capacity. This amendment calls for an expansion of
the SWWTP, with a total of 8.9 MGD treatment capacity, and effluent reuse at
proposed open areas, discharge to the Buckeye Irrigation District (BID) Canal or
groundwater recharge. The service area for this plant is located within the Buckeye
Planning Area (see Exhibit A — Sundance WWTP Amendment). This amendment

includes Blue Horizons and, therefore, rescinds the previously approved MAG 208 for
Blue Horizons.

Expansion of the SWWTP will be financed by a group of developers led by Pulte
Homes (North East Buckeye Developers). These developers will bid and finance the
work to complete the SWWTP. Once construction is complete, the Town of Buckeye
will own the facility. The Town may publicly bid the operation and maintenance
services or directly hire qualified and licensed operators. Sources of wastewater will
be domestic and commercial. No pretreatment will be provided.

This Clean Water Act (CWA) 208 Amendment application contains the required
information on the proposed construction and operation of the SWWTP. The volumes
treated and discharged will increase over time as the capacity of the plant is increased.
Future expansions are anticipated, bringing the ultimate capacity to 8.9 MGD. Design
of these improvements will begin when 70% of the plant capacity has been reached as
calculated by measured flows from the collection system. Construction will begin
when 80% of the plant capacity has been reached.

The CWA Section 208 Checklist on the preceding pages provides a summary of the

amendment application requirements and the proposed improvements addressing
these issues.

JN-45102159 1 RBF Consuiting



2.0

3.0
3.1

3.2

3.2.1

3.2.2

Authority

MAG is the Designated Planning Agency with the authority required by Section 208
(a)(2)(B) of the Clean Water Act to amend the Water Quality Plan for the Maricopa
County Planning Area. MAG has authority to implement the plan for the proposed
planning and services areas as outlined in this application.

The proposed facility is to be located within the planning area for the Town of Buckeye.

20-Year Needs
Description of the Existing Sundance Wastewater Treatment Plant (SWWTP)

The Town of Buckeye currently operates the 1.2 MGD SWWTP Facility. The SWWTP
is located east of Dean Road and north of the RID canal. Expansion of this facility to
3.6 MGD is outlined in the 2001 MAG 208 Plan Amendment. The SWWTP is
proposed to serve the portion of the study area located north of the RID canal to
Camelback Road. The existing service area and the proposed service area are shown
in Exhibit A — Sundance WWTP Amendment. A 15-inch sewer trunk line is within one
mile of the proposed service area. (See Exhibit A — Sundance WWTP Amendment).

Description of the Proposed Wastewater Treatment Plant
Site Location and Property Ownership

The proposed location of the SWWTP expansion is within the southwest quarter of
Section 13 in Township 1 North, Range 3 West of the Gila and Salt River Base and
Meridian, Town of Buckeye, Maricopa County, Arizona (see Buckeye Planning Area
Map, Appendix A). The service area includes areas bounded by Camelback Road on
the North, RID Canal on the South, Perryville Road on the East and Dean Road on the
West. The facility location and service area are located within the Buckeye Planning
Area.

Town of Buckeye East Buckeye Wastewater Master Plan, May 2004, prepared by RBF
Consulting, indicates expansions to the existing collection system and Wastewater
treatment facilities. The proposed SWWTP is discussed in detail in the East Buckeye
Wastewater Master Plan. This plan contains wastewater flow rates that are not
approved by MCESD.

Currently, the property is owned by Buckeye Land LLC. Once construction of each
phase is complete and accepted by the Town of Buckeye, the SWWTP and property
will be owned by the Town of Buckeye.

Topographic Conditions

The existing ground within the proposed SWWTP service area slopes generally to the
southeast at an approximate slope of 0.0081 ft/ft. The proposed service area consists
of rural residential, planned residential, commercial centers, general commerce and
designated land uses.

The following major roadways intersect the proposed service area: [-10, Camelback

JN-45102159 2 RBF Consulting



3.23

3.24

Road, Indian School Road, Thomas Road, McDowell Road, Van Buren Street, Yuma
Road, Dean Road, Airport Road, Tuthill road, Jack Rabbit Trail & Perryville Road.
According to the FEMA map number 04013C2045 G, the SWWTP is not in a
floodplain. It is located in the Zone X flood area which is the area of 500-year flood;
area of 100-year flood with average depths of less than 1 foot or with drainage area
less than 1 square mile; and area protected by levees from 100-year flood. A flood
area map showing the SWWTP site is included in Appendix A.

Population Estimates and Flow Projections

The Department of Economic Security (DES) Population Statistics Unit prepares
official population estimates and projections for the State of Arizona. The DES
projects the population of Buckeye for the 20-year planning period to reach 102,223. It
is anticipated that the SWWTP will accommodate a portion of this population.

The proposed SWWTP will have a service area as shown in the Buckeye Planning
Area Map in Appendix A. The existing SWWTP was proposed to serve a total of 3.6
MGD or 10,286 dwelling units. The proposed expansion of the SWWTP service area
would serve an additional 15,161 equivalent dwelling units. The total number of
equivalent dwelling units projected to be served by the SWWTP is 25,446 equivalent
dwelling units.

The flow projections were based on land use maps, planned and proposed
development information and existing development and parcels maps. The land use
categories within the SWWTP service area consist of commercial center, general
commerce, planned community, planned residential, rural residential and special use.
The allowable land use densities were established by the Town staff and are described
in Table 3.1 Land Use Densities. A distribution of the population projections for the
SWWTP service area is shown in Exhibit B in Appendix A.

Table 3.1 Land Use Densities

Land Use Density

Planned community | 4 du/ac

Planned Residential | 4 du/ac

Rural Residential 1 du/ac

A more detailed description of the population projections is provided in the East
Buckeye Wastewater Master Plan prepared by RBF Consulting, which is attached in
Appendix C.

Estimated Wastewater Flow

The projected wastewater flows from the expanded SWWTP service area are
summarized in Table 3.2. In addition to these flows, The SWWTP will also receive a
minimal amount of flow from the arsenic treatment facility at the Sundance-Sonora
water storage tank. Exhibit B shows the flow summary and the land use and

developments for the proposed service area. '

JN-45102159 3 RBF Consulting



Table 3.2 Flow Summary for the area serviced by the proposed SWWTP

_—r Equivalent Dwelling Flow Average Daily Flow
Description Units (gallunit/day) (gpd)
Future DU 12,607 325 4,097,275
Existing DU 720 325 234,000
Rancho Sonora 476 325 154,700
Subtotal 13,803 4,485,975
Outside Parcels
Future DU 2,919 325 948,675
Outside Parcels
Existing DU 908 325 295,100
Subtotal 3,827 1,243,775
Sundance Build out
Design Capacity 3,600,000
Sundance build out
capacity 9,054 325
Excess Sundance
Capacity* -400,307
Total 17,630 8,929,443

* This is because the number of lots approved was less than the projected number of lots.

3.2.5

3.2.51

JN-45102159 4

WWTP Description

The first phase of the Sundance WWTP consists of a Sequential Batch Reactor (SBR)
system, with average flow capacity of 1.2 MGD. Further phasing will be determined by
growth within the service area for the SWWTP. Phases 1B and 1C will also consist of
a SBR system. The existing facilities will be upgraded in phase 2. In phase 3 an
additional 1.7 MGD Modified Ludzack Ettinger (MLE) expansion will be added. The
capacity, at full build-out, of the WWTP will be 8.9 MGD, based on sizing requirements
per Maricopa County where total residential EDUs are multiplied by 325 gallons per
unit per day. The proposed treatment process will provide BOD removal, nitrification
and denitrification, aerobic or anaerobic sludge digestion, sludge dewatering, and
sludge disposal strategy. Since bidding for the design and construction of the SWWTP
has not yet begun, specific design parameters have not yet been determined. Details
of the treatment process are therefore not included in this report. The construction
plan will be reviewed and approved by Maricopa County Environmental Services
Department (MCESD) and the Town of Buckeye prior to construction. This will include
a start-up plan for the facility.

Effluent Disposal and Quality Requirements

Effluent from the SWWTP is currently being reused at the Sundance golf course. This
effluent is stored in a lake and is pumped to the golf course for irrigation purposes. A
20-inch low-pressure effluent line with a capacity of 7.6 MGD is currently being
constructed to carry effluent from the SWWTP to the Buckeye Irrigation District (BID)
Canal. The effluent line will be pressurized to meet the current demand of 8.9 MGD.
Other alternatives for effluent disposal may include: 1) direct reuse for irrigation of
green areas, 2) Discharge into the BID Canal, and 3) Groundwater Recharge. Such a
strategy helps to conserve water resources available to the Town of Buckeye.

RBF Consulting



3.2.5.2

3.3

Effluent may be reused on local golf courses. This would require a distribution system
including pumping, transmission and storage. All reclaimed water to be directly reused
will comply with the Reclaimed Wastewater Reuse Permit, AAC Title 18 Chapter 9
Article 7 and will qualify as Class A+ Reclaimed Water as provided by AAC Title 18
Chapter 9 Article 3. Direct reuse will provide numerous recreational opportunities and
aesthetic enhancements without the need for groundwater pumping to irrigate these
improvements. The cost to initiate and maintain a reclaimed water distribution
program can be offset by the implementation of hook-up fees and usage rates to
private entities.

Another potential effluent management strategy is to recharge the groundwater
aquifer. An alternative to direct reuse may be needed because the demand for
reclaimed water fluctuates throughout the year. The effect of a recharge basin is to
retard the rate of draw down in the aquifers being pumped. Change in draw down can
be minimized as wells increasingly pump more recharged water rather than native
groundwater. All reclaimed water to be recharged will comply with the Reclaimed
Wastewater Recharge Permit, AAC Title 18 Chapter 9 Article 7 and will qualify as
Class A+ Reclaimed Water as provided in AAC Title 18 Chapter 9 Chapter 3.

Effluent from the SWWTP may also be discharged to the BID canal. An agreement
has been made between the Town of Buckeye and the Buckeye Water Conservation &
Drainage District (BWCDD) to discharge the effluent from the SWWTP to the BID
canal. A copy of the agreement can be found in Appendix C. This reclaimed water will
be utilized for irrigation purposes. The effluent utilized in this manner will comply with
AAC Title 18 Chapter 9 Open Access Guidelines, A+ quality reclaimed water
guidelines, NPDES Permit, and the Reclaimed Wastewater Reuse Permit. Effluent
reuse will be the primary disposal method. Discharge will only occur if suitable
recharge and reuse areas cannot be found.

Several options for effluent disposal have been described with the intention to
emphasize the benefits of direct reuse and recharge. However, the feasibility of
groundwater recharge as an option for effluent disposal is a function of soil
characteristics and underlying geology of the area. lIssues such as water logging and
possible adverse impacts control the viability of using recharge basins to dispose of
the effluent. The effluent from the Sundance WWTP will be reused for public green
areas including golf courses, and any excess effluent will be discharged to the BID
canal. Such alternatives may be necessary if reclaimed effluent supply exceeds
demand.

Storm Water Discharge

Storm water discharges associated with the SWWTP are not anticipated. The facility
will retain onsite all storm water runoff generated by storms up to and including the
100-year, 2-hour storm. Therefore there will be no storm water discharges from the
SWWTP up to and including the 100-year, 2-hour event.

Sanitary Districts, Private Utilities, and WWTP Service Areas
The location of the SWWTP and its service area are shown on the Buckeye Planning

Area Map included in Appendix A. There are no existing wastewater treatment
facilities, sanitary districts, or certified service areas that would be impacted by the
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3.4

3.5

WWTP or discharge. The Verrado WWTP service area is adjacent to the Sundance
WWTP service area, but the service areas will not overlap at any time (see Appendix
A, Exhibit A). This amendment inciudes Blue Horizons and, therefore, rescinds the
previously approved MAG 208 for Blue Horizons.

Summary of Alternatives

In order to accommodate anticipated growth within the proposed service area, the
Town of Buckeye must find some method for treatment of wastewater and the
subsequent disposal of the reclaimed wastewater. Due to the location and capacity of
the existing SWWTP, the only viable option is expansion of the facility.

The Town would like to have as many possibilities for effluent disposal as possible.
Each of the following alternatives may be used alone or in combination with other
alternatives.

The proposed alternatives are as follows:

- Reuse of reclaimed wastewater for public green areas including golf courses.
. Discharge of reclaimed wastewater to the BID canal.

« Groundwater Recharge to basins or wells.

Permitting Requirements

The required permits from ADEQ and ADWR will be obtained in the Town of Buckeye’s name.
The Sundance WWTP will require the following permits or approvals:

Table 3.3: Listing of Regulatory Reviews, Plans, Approvals, Permits and Certifications

Requirement Regulatory Agency

Approval to Construct Maricopa County Environmental Services Department
Annual Operating Permit Maricopa County Environmental Services Department
Approval of Construction Maricopa County Environmental Services Department
*Aquifer Protection Permit Arizona Department of Environmental Quality
Reclaimed Wastewater Recharge Permit | Arizona Department of Water Resources

*Reclaimed Wastewater Reuse Permit Arizona Department of Environmental Quality

*Arizona Pollutant Discharge Elimination Arizona Department of Environmental Quality
System (AZPDES) Permit

*Sludge Disposal Agreement Arizona Department of Environmental Quality
Air Quality Permit Maricopa County Air Quality Department (MCAQD)
208 Amendment Town of Buckeye, MAG Water Quality Advisory

Committee, MAG Management Committee, MAG Regional
Council, State WQMWG, ADEQ, EPA

Grading Permit Town of Buckeye
Architectural Approval Town of Buckeye, Pulte Homes.
Building Permit Town of Buckeye

* The existing SWWTP has received permits for 3.6 MGD capacity. The SWWTP design
consultant for future expansion will secure approval for additional capacity.

3.6

Pretreatment Requirements

it is not anticipated that the SWWTP will have any industrial users, therefore no
pretreatment will be required. However, in future if it is anticipated that the service area
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3.7

4.0
4.1

4.2

4.3

will have industrial users then each prospective industrial user will be required to be in
compliance with all pretreatment requirements dictated by the Town of Buckeye and all
federal pretreatment requirements as provided in 40 CFR Part 403 and enforced by
Arizona Department of Environmental Quality. The ability for prospective industrial
users fo comply with both federal and local regulations will be evaluated on a case-by-
case basis.

Sludge Management

Class B sludge is currently being generated at the SWWTP. This sludge is currently
land applied at Arlington Farms, north of the Gila River. It is anticipated that this sludge
will include arsenic flocs once the arsenic treatment facility is installed at the Sundance-
Sonora storage tank. This arsenic floc may also be pumped and hauled to a landfill
since it meets Class B sludge standards. Sludge produced from the expanded facility
will also be class B sludge, and may be used for agricultural purposes. There is not an
end user for this product at this time; however, the options for sludge disposal will
remain open. The sludge may also be delivered to a landfill for disposal.

Construction, Operation, and Maintenance
Construction Responsibility

The existing 1.2 MGD plant was financed by BLMI. The Northeast Buckeye Developers
will bid the design and expansion of the SWWTP. Construction will be accomplished
under the resultant contract from this bidding process. The winning bidder will be
responsible for the construction of the facility. The timing of construction of each phase
will be dependent upon the increases in population and the resultant wastewater flows.
In general, design of each new phase must begin when 70% of the plant capacity has
been reached. Construction of each phase must begin when 80% of the plant capacity
has been reached. The Town will take ownership of the plant after the completion of
each new phase. BLMI is in the process of contracting for another 1.2 MGD expansion
of the SWWTP. BLMI also has an agreement in place for a third 1.2 MGD expansion.
The town of Buckeye will be responsible for the construction.

Operation and Maintenance Responsibility

The Town of Buckeye will be responsible for the operation and maintenance of the
facility. The Town may publicly bid the operation and maintenance services or directly
hire qualified and licensed operators.

Sources of Construction Pollution

Construction of the SWWTP expansion will not be a pollution intensive activity.
Anticipated pollutants may include dust from construction activities, construction-related
solid waste, and inert material. New construction will be conducted under an Air Quality
Permit from MCAQD as well as the AZPDES storm water general permit, and will
comply with the provisions of the permit. Any wastes generated during construction will
be properly managed and disposed of at an appropriate facility. Measures will be taken
during construction activities to prevent the potential pollution of storm water runoff.
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5.1

5.2

53

Financing
Financing Plan

The May 7" 2001 MAG 208 Amendment for the SWWTP calls for a build out capacity of
3.6 MGD. Financing of the phase | expansions to the SWWTP are discussed in the
original Sundance MAG 208, and will be provided through BLMI.

Phase 2 and 3 expansions will be the responsibility of the Town of Buckeye. All phase |
improvements will be publicly bid and eligible for reimbursement through one or more
CFDs that BLM! may choose to implement.

Financing Capacity to Construct

It is expected that other developers will share costs with BLMI for the design and
construction of the Sundance phase | WWTP expansion. Due to existing plant
operations, the Town may decide to manage construction to reduce problems with
disruption. Upon completion of each phase, ownership of the plant will be transferred to
the Town of Buckeye. The Town of Buckeye will provide funding for the build out of the
SWWTP. A group of developers have acquired land necessary to fully construct the
SWWTP to 8.9 MGD. A summary of the proposed financial responsibility is outlined in
Table 5.2.

Table 5.2: Proposed financial responsibility

Proposed Capacity (MGD) Financial Responsibility
3.6 Per Approved 208
Amendment
5.3 Town of Buckeye

Financing Capacity to Operate

The Town of Buckeye will be responsible for the operation and maintenance of the
SWWTP whether the Town publicly bids the operation and maintenance services or
directly hires qualified and licensed operators. User fees will be collected by the Town of
Buckeye to fund operation and maintenance over the life of the SWWTP. Once the
phase | expansions are complete, the plant will be self supported and the Town will
assume financial responsibility for construction of future phases. It is anticipated that the
construction of the phase | expansion will be completed by 2010. Construction of phase
Il expansion is not estimated to begin until 2013. The December 14, 2004 letter from the
Buckeye Financial Director to MAG regarding Town of Buckeye financial capability for
the plant is included at the front of this document.
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6.0 Impacts and Implementation

6.1 Implementation Plan

This application identifies an additional service area for the SWWTP. Table 6.1
summarizes the phasing for plant expansion, capacity and the total plant capacity for

each phase.

Table 6.1 Phasing Plan.

Phase Capacity | Total Plant Capacity
1A (Existing) 1.2 1.2
1B 1.2 24
1C 1.2 3.6
2 3.6 7.2
3 1.7 8.9

The design of each additional phase must begin when 70% of the plant capacity has
been reached. Construction of each phase must begin when 80% of the plant capacity

has been reached. Ultimate capacity of the SWWTP will be 8.9 MGD.

6.2 Impacts of the Proposed Plan

The implementation of the SWWTP is not anticipated to have any impact on adjacent
municipalities, existing service areas, sanitary districts, communities, or businesses.
The discharge, reuse, or recharge is not anticipated to increase a noticeable insect
population or odor.,

JN-45102159
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7.0 Public Participation

MAG is responsible, with the cooperation with the Town of Buckeye, for ensuring that
the required public participation requirements are followed as outlined in 40 CFR 25.
The following are minimum requirements:

JN-45102159

Submittal of a mailing list used to notify the public of the public hearing.

Listing of locations where documents are available for review at least 30 days
prior to the public hearing.

Publication of public notice of the public hearing with information on time, date,
subject, and location of public hearing at least 45 days prior to the public hearing.

Submittal of an affidavit of publication for official newspaper publication.

Submittal of a responsiveness summary for public hearing.
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' - @ Pulte Homes

@DelWebb . o

For more than 50 years, Pulte Homes has
been helping individuals, couples and fami-
lies build a better life. Today, the Company’s
operations span more than 40 markets
throughout the United States. Through its
Del Webb brand, the Company is the coun-
try’s leading builder of Active Adult com-
munities. In building more than 370,000

Pulte Homes

COMPANY PROFILE

homes in its history, Pulte Homes has been
honored as “America’s Best Builder,” and
named Builder of the Year 2002. Providing
excellent customer service and offering a
wide variety of loan products, Pulte Mortgage
LLC, Pulte Homes’ national mortgage com-
pany, meets the financing needs of Pulte
Homes’ customers throughout the country.

Whether it’s a first-time buyer or a growing
family, Pulte Homes’ commitment to quality
is reflected in the way it builds homes,
demonstrated in the way it treats customers
and evident in the 11,000 employees who
provide customers with exceptional value
and a buying experience that exceeds their
expectations.
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PUuLTE HOMES SHAREHOLDERS,

Letter to

CUSTOMERS, ASSOCIATES AND BUSINESS PARTNERS:

_'tour, vrsrtmg Pulte oﬂices across the’ country.

: Spendmg time wrth t.he talented people who
e run our busmess glves us tremendous conlfi-:

: ,dence for its contlnued success The intelli-
i : gerice, energy and passron these mdlvrduals

‘bring t to: the busmess every day are among
- ,Pulte 'S greatest compet1t1ve strengths

| “Atpoints durmg the past year, we conducted o
“the modemFday'eduivalent of a whistle ‘stop

Income from
Continuing Operations

Dollars in Millions

$625

$454

$301

$17g8 $189

99 ‘00 ‘01 ‘02 'Q3

The purpose of these v1srts was to” ensure

7a11gnment throughout the orgamzatlon
___w1th the four key busmess 1n1t1at1ves we
~have established. to drlve 1mproved operating

_'-',,r‘and_ financial; performance. market “share .

expansion through segmentatlon, opera— )

'_'tronal excellence, people development and
financial d1sc1plme We’ll: provrde detalls o
about these initiatives ina rmnute, but.for

now, understand t.hat they are enablmg Pulte
Homes to.get brgger and more 1mportantly,

better asa company

1o terms of geting bigger, 2003 consali-
.~dated rt'e_\'/_enu'e_S :..indlfeased B percei_l:t___to_-'a
record $9.0 billion. .In' térms ‘of getting,bet-

ter, income- from. continuing’ opérations was

2004, ea_rmn_gs ‘per share fro_m continuing

operations for 2003 increased 36 percent to - -
1.7$4:91, while book value per share increased
22 percent to $27.55: For the year, our
feturn on equ1ty surged more than 200:basis :

points to 21 percent The growing strength

of our operatlons enabled us'to; ra1se ther &
d1v1dend rate by 150 percent to’ $0 20 per
- share armually s

The b1ggest driver of performance was our: :

domestlc homebu1ldmg operatlons where
settlement and land sale revenues for the year

mcreased 21 percerit to $8.7 billion., Domestlc o
closings for the year gained 13 percenttoa .

[owe ]

“and entitle’. our large land posmon as an

=record 32,693 homes, whrle we ended 2003”.".'_
'_ with a record backlog of 13, 952 homes val- S
gH ued at$4.1 brlhon ' '

- ..We also ended 2003 w1th a land plpelme of

257, 000 lots under control : (47. percent 5

owned 53 percent optroned and pendmg),-f g
which i 1s vrtal given: the scarcity of t.h1s keyi
) resource It cannot be. overstated that the.’ "

supply ‘of’ land in. th1s counh’y is becommg f

'.mcreasmgly constramed In market afterr_r,
- market, ‘the’ land'entrtlement process has
$617. million, as compared to $445 mllllon . i
in 2002 Adjustmg for the two- fo' 'one stock )
split we 1mplemented effectlve January 2,.

-3: become S0 resmc' _e as'to severely lrmrt the o
3 -supply-of land upon wh1ch new homes can ';
"be bullt Obv10usly, for a homebu1lder there:. ;. -
-Zisno more critical resou.rce than land, whrch JiE
s’ why we view::our ab111ty to control

: 1mportant competltlve advantage

Lots Under Control

300,000 -
250,000 [ Lots Optioned
and Pending
200,000 W Lots Owned
150,000 J
100,000 +

50,000

0
99 00 ‘01 ‘02 'Q3




enods of strong or weaker demand’ ﬂu;,

enced by MOTtgag rates, employment and : ‘

Sales by Buyer Group

Active Adult
Second Move Up

First Move Up

eturns rema

0 ne
y’ First Time

the short ru.n, but :
B a company ’s. abll'

strateg1c altematlves wrth regard t

Intematl onal operatrons

; ...'and opportumty is ! :
make Pulte Homes even better, and lrkely_ 5

‘_brgger, in 2004 and beyond. As E
i _explam, achrevmg better peratm 1 rform-':_

ance requrres successful 1mplementat10n of
our: four key busmess 1mt1at_1ves_. &

[ three ]

‘Al of the Webb com
-__at the: trme of the merger ac 1eved record

0 1i I : 'f and/or pretax earmngs. We also a.nnounced
-words since the ple isnot gettmg blgger, we 10 new. Webb-branded communities that -

*Have to fmd ways of grabbmg a larger slrce _ g

covered a lot. of ground in the 30 months

srnce completlng t.he merg wrth Del Webb

ies. opérating

'f'performance in 2003 in terms of umt sales g

helped dnve record actrve adult sales :
er 20 new Webb- S

i branded commumtres cou d be a ounced i

in 2004 mcludmg new' marke penetra-

, ‘ - trons in Colorads; Connecticit, Mrchlgan,. R
-are'_the only nat10na1 burlder ervmg all = : :

New Jersey and Vrrgrma




Overall, 2003 was a tremendous year with a lot to be proud of, but

it’s pa'st'. Our challenge and opportunity is to build on that success to make Pulte Homes even

vbette’rv;' and likely bigger, in 2004 and beyond. ;

At approximately 30 million people, active

- adults comprise the largest customer group
in the country today. They also represent the
fastest growing segment, forecast to reach
almost 80 million people by the year 2020.
More affluent than any’ demographic group
in history. ncti\fe'ad‘uvlts are an incredibly sta-
ble Buyer sroup, with 50 percent purchasing
“homes for cash, Like a champion stu‘fef, the
Webb brand is set to ride the active adult
wave for. years to come.

Beyoﬁd ouyr. segmentation model, we main-
tain another critical edge in the market share
battle—quality, Reaping the benefits of a
journey 'beg‘un over 4. decade ago, Pulte
Homes ranked first in 12 of the 20 markets
where our cuistomers were surveyed in the
1.D. Power and Associates 2003 Customer
Satisfaction Study. History. is very clear on
this point: better quality attracts customers,
supports premium pricing and redices future
_service costs and risks,

Unique to our industry, we are also discover-
ing that our reputation for quality and cus-
tomer satisfaction facilitates access to and
entitlement ~ of - critical land positions.
Through success in delivering an wiimatched
customer experience, our goal is to build a
brand that rivals recognized quality leaders
such as Lexus, Ritz Carlton and FedEx.
We will take this a step further. As the
industry leader, we have an obligation to
raise the bar on quality and to deliver an out-
standing home and home buying experietice.
After all, our customers are trusting us with
what is likely the largest single purchase of
their lifetime.

As we deliver more homes. we need to drive
more of every revenue dollar to our bottom
tine, which is what our second initiative,
Operational Excellence, is all about. Over
the past five years. pretax margins in our
domestic homebuilding operations have
expanded by 300 basis points through a
combination of higher prices, improved
product mix and operational efficiencies.




12 of our divisions ranked highest in customer satisfaction in the J.D. Power and Associates 2003 New
Home Builder Customer Satisfaction Study. The divisions ranking highest in their respective markets
were Dallas/Fort Worth (tie), Houston, Las Vegas, Minneapolis/St. Paul, San Francisco Bay Area, Phoenix,

Raleigh/Durham, Sacramento (tie), Southern California (tie), Tampa (tie), Tucson and Palm Beach.

Although dlfﬁcult to quant1fy, we est1mate_ ’ _across the country, mclud1ng parts of i .wh1ch is why People Development_ 01

_-there may be’ 200 to 300_basis points: of _'Southem Cal1fom1a “where we ‘took 50
'add1tlonal pretax- margm to be captured by ' :--days out of the bulldmg cycle Ongomg
: be1ng smarter in’ how wé run the busmess . _._implementatron of the D1Vosta system fur-

From how our houses are desrgned and burlt ;: ) ther reduced that’ constructlon tlme by an _
to advanced supply cham management and a__' addmonal ﬂve days, takmg our bulld t1mes . :
greater focus on: overhead leverage we can'. to 50 days

' t fth t : '
_take costs outof the s em. In January 2004 Pulte announced a Jo1nt o

s G - venture w1th Pratte Develo ment to rov1de
Under the ba.nner of’ operat1onal excellence, ; P P .
:__matenal and labor for concrete foundatlons o
we are also advancmg 4 number of i 1nnova- S :
L and ﬂatwork underground plumbmg,
t1ve bulld1ng practlces to strengthen our i
N : o framlng and trlm for'our houses built
leadershlp po mon 1n the mdustry ; g

_:: Jiin An ona and Nevada The venture pro-_:'-_
*In 2004 Pulte Home Sc1ences (PHS) Wlll vides opportunmes to capture addltlonal_
open its ﬂrst commercral productlon plant : -.'margm and to, reduce cycle tlmes, _whlle
located in Manassas, V1rg1n1a Through - lowermg €osts’ through érihanced value'““" '::
efﬁclent manufacturmg of concrete base-, engmeenng, manufacturer-dlrect purchas-.'_ o

ment wall sectlons floor decks structural - : jmg, better schedulmg and greater reg10nal i
msulated panels (SIPs) and steel stud interior -~ operatmg leverage ;
walls, PHS can erect an enclosed shell of a L o R
home in as httle as ﬁve days The goals of o .Through the development of more 1nnovat1ve o
PHS are to dehver a better quahty home, o
faster and at comparable or reduced costs i

_rbmldmg processes, we are takmg a leader-
'-shlp role m advancmg bulldmg scren ¢ with i
- the ultunate goals of dellvermg hlgher quahty :

o d better financial results.
. In 1998 we acqmred D1Vosta ‘and Company, o ._.homes and.oee nancla _reS‘f :

“-a Florida-based  build that_deli T
a Flonida-based: bl or .that, delivers Weare: oﬁenaskedwhatls themostpres'sing_

- to tmdltlonal bulldmg practlces

tched quality;. dustry-leading
unma ehed quailty with a industry cacng issue we face to which we answer people

-'The ablllty to attract h1re and retain the’ best" :

o le s il Pultes st o rtumty i '.D1sc1plme All of our employees under
eﬁ' cient bulldxng to other Pulte markets o P p po y gn:a ppo ’ ,":'_'stand that

_ 47-day build cycle. We are now exportmg
DiVosta’s. best practrces on schedullng and '

ve wr_ll continué the conservatr_v

[fivz ]



William J. Pulte

operatmg, _ﬁnanc1al and réporting practlces

that have been a part of Pulte’s 5 core values

for the past 53 years. From our commltment
toa strong balance sheet to our stnngent

pro_]ect-underwntlng criteria, we understand '
-““that there are no short cuts to ach1ev1ng o
- long term success

It is, however, much more than Just s1gmng_
quarterly cert:ﬁcatlons wrth confidence;’ it’s
‘about a cultu.r_e that _encourages honesty and
‘integrity in all business practices. Reflective

", of this cultu.re, in 2003 our. cor]:lorate gover- b

nance ‘score, as calculated by Inst1tutlonal

Shareholder Servrces ranked hrgher than 95:

y percent of compames 1n the S&P.500. These

__-_'scores are based on a number of factors,r 2

.mcludlng a Board of D1rectors witha maJonty

of iridependent outside members prov1d1ng'= -

for outside directors to meet,regularly with-

g e

WILLIAM J. PULTE . -
: Founder tmd Chairman of the Board- -

i proudly post on our corporate webs1te 'at
o WWW. pulte com :

”Blll and I speakmg on behalf of the Board . to. fing
”"of D1rectors -and the ent1re management N “ing:our
very senously
'Asamanagement team, itis our respon51b1hty o
] hkely to rise’ than decllne in the commg b
’ quarters From such a low start1ng pornt,
however, we belleve that

“50 or even l00 bas1s p01n

. housing demand, especlally in llght of t_h_e

Richard J. Dugas, Jr.

out _ma_nagement present, and for pub_licly - supply conshalnts .thatrex1st in many markets
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PARTI
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Pulte Homes, Inc,

Pulte Homes, Inc. is a publicly held holding company whose subsidiaries engage in the homebuilding and financial
services businesses. Our assets consist principally of the capital stock of our subsidiaries, cash and investments. Our income
primarily consists of dividends from our subsidiaries and interest on investments. Our direct subsidiaries include Pulte
Diversified Companies, Inc., Del Webb Corporation (Del Webb) and other subsidiaries engaged in the homebuilding
business. Pulte Diversified Companies, Inc.’s operating subsidiaries include Pulte Home Corporation, Pulte International
Corporation (International) and other subsidiaries engaged in the homebuilding business. Pulte Diversified Companies,
Inc.’s non-operating thrift subsidiary, First Heights Bank, fsb (First Heights), is classified as a discontinued operation {see
Note 4 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements). We also have a mortgage banking company, Pulte Mortgage LLC
(Pulte Mortgage), which is a subsidiary of Pulte Home Corporation.

We have two reportable business segments, Homebuilding and Financial Services, and one non-operating segment,
Corporate., The Homebuilding segment consists of the following two business units:

e Domestic Homebuilding, our core business, is engaged in the acquisition and development of land principally- for
residential purposes within the continental United States and the construction of housing on such land targeted for
the first-time, first and second move-up, and active adult home buyers.

o International Homebuilding is primarily engaged in the acquisition and development of land principally for
residential purposes, and the construction of housing on such land in Mexico, Puerto Rico and Argentina,

The Financial Services segment consists principally of mortgage banking and title operations conducted through Pulte
Mortgage and other subsidiaries.

Corporate is a non-operating segment that supports the operations of our subsidiaries by acting as the internal source of
financing, developing and implementing strategic initiatives centered on new business development and operating

efficiencies, and providing the administrative support associated with being a publicly traded entity listed on the New York
Stock Exchange.

Financial information, including revenue, pre-tax income and total assets of each of our business segments is included in
Note 2 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



Homebuilding Operations

Years Ended December 31,
($000°s omitted)
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
Homebuilding settlement revenues:
DOMESHC 1.rvveveerreeeerereeeeseressrarieeseseenserees $ 8,482,341 $ 6,991,614 $ 5,145,526 $ 4,083,816 $ 3,655,775
International.........cccveveverenrmrasirnssarensenns 228,137 196.074 35,169 27.159 21,941
TOtal ..ccvvniirisnarencrersarssesacrsnnaares $ 8710478 § 7,187,688 $ 5180605 § 4110975 § 3677716
Homebuilding settlement units:
DOMESHC «coveveionasarssrsencsasnamnierarsanesnns 32,693 28,903 22,915 19,799 19,569
International........ccceervvvvmrevrerensecrressnns 7,120 6.525 221 264 262
TOtAl oot rennsearnansanees 39,813 35428 23,136 20,063 19,831

Note: Homebuilding settiement revenues of affiliates, not included in the table above, for the years ended December 31, 2003 through
1999 were 832,511, 840,723, 8180,621, 3148,798, and $162,926, respectively. Homebuilding unit settlements of affiliates, not

included in the table above, for the years ended December 31, 2003 through 1999 were 149, 1,022, 7,258, 7,718, and 6,791,
respectively.

Settlements (home sales) and net new orders (orders for homes net of cancellations) in any year are strongly influenced
by local, regional and national market economic conditions. Backlog (homes that have been ordered but not completed and
sold} at any period is strongly influenced by local, regional and national market economic conditions.

Domestic Homebuilding

We build a wide variety of homes, including single family detached units, townhouses, condominiums and duplexes,
with varying prices, models, options and lot sizes. Since 1990, we have more than quadrupled our annual unit closings, unit

orders and unit backlog levels. Including 2003 settlements of nearly 33,000 homes, we have closed more than 370,000
homes since our inception.

On July 31, 2001, we merged with Del Webb in a tax-free stock-for-stock transaction. Del Webb was primarily a
homebuilder with operations in seven states. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2001, Del Webb reported net income of
$91.2 million on revenues of $1.9 billion and 7,038 unit settlements. Backlog reported at June 30, 2001, was 3,682 units
valued at approximately $994 million. This merger expanded and supported our leadership position. In particular, we
believe the merger strengthened our position among active adult (55 and better) homebuyers, added important strategic land
positions, provided operational savings from economies of scale, bolstered our purchasing leverage, and enhanced our
overall competitive position. In accordance with our operational strategy, we will continue to evaluate available strategic
acquisition opportunities that are consistent with our long-range goals.

As of December 31, 2003, our Domestic Homebuilding operations offered homes for sale in 535 communities at sales
prices ranging from $80,000 to $2,300,000. Sales prices of homes currently offered for sale in 75% of our communities fall
within the 1ange of $100,000 to $350,000 with a 2003 average unit selling price of $259,000. Sales of single-family
detached homes, as a percentage of total unit sales, were 83% in 2003, 86% in 2002, and 82% in 2001. Our Domestic
Homebuilding operations are geographically diverse and, as a result, better insulate us from demand changes in individual
markets. As of December 31, 2003, our Domestic Homebuilding business operated in 44 markets spanning 27 states.

As of December 31, 2003, our Domestic Homebuilding operations had 13,952 units in backlog valued at approximately
$4.1 biltion.

International Homebuilding

Our International Homebuilding operations are principally conducted through subsidiaries of International in Mexico,
Puerto Rico and Argentina. International Homebuilding product offerings focus on the demand of first-time buyers and
middle-to-upper income consummer groups. Effective January 1, 2002, International reorganized its structure within Mexico
to create a single company, Pulte Mexico S. de R.L. de C.V,, which ranks as one of the largest builders in the country. Prior
to the reorganization, these operations were conducted primarily through five joint ventures throughout Mexico. Under the
new ownership structure, which combines the largest of these entities, we own 63.8% of Pulte Mexico S. de R.L. de C.V. and
have consolidated Pulte Mexico S. de R.L. de C.V. into our financial statements.

We are currently in the process of evaluating various long-term strategic alternatives with regard to our Intemational
operations.



Homebuilding Operations (continued)

Land acquisition and development

We select locations for development of homebuilding communities after completing extensive market research, enabling
us to match the location and product offering with our targeted consumer group. We consider factors such as proximity to
developed areas, population and job growth patterns and, if applicable, estimated development costs. We historically have
managed the risk of controlling our land positions through use of option contracts and outright acquisition. We typically
control land with the intent to complete sales of housing units within 24 to 36 months from the date of opening a comnmunity,
except in the case of certain active adult developments and our Del Webb operations for which the completion of community
build out requires a longer time period due to typically larger project sizes. As a result, land is generally purchased after it is
properly zoned and developed or is ready for development. In addition, we dispose of owned land not required in the
business through sales to appropriate end users. Where we develop land, we engage directly in many phases of the
development process, including land and site planning, obtaining environmental and other regulatory approvals, as well as
constructing roads, sewers, water and drainage facilities and other amenities. We use our staff and the services of
independent engineers and consultants for land development activities. Land development work is performed primarily by
independent contractors and local government authorities who construct sewer and water systems in some areas. At

December 31, 2003, we controlled approximately 257,000 lots, of which 120,000 were owned and 137,000 were under
option agreements.

Sales and marketing

We are dedicated to improving the quality and value of our domestic homes through innovative proprietary architectural
and community designs and state-of-the-art customer marketing techniques. Analyzing various qualitative and quantitative
data obtained through extensive market research, we segment our potential customers into well-defined buyer profiles.
Segmentation analysis provides a method for understanding the business opportunities and risks across the full spectrum of
consumer groups in each market. Once the demands of potential buyers are understood, we link our home design and
community development efforts to the specific lifestyle of each targeted consumer group.

To meet the demands of our various domestic customers, we have established a solid design expertise for a wide array of
product lines. We believe that we are an innovator in the design of our homes and we view design capacity as an integral
aspect of our marketing strategy. Our in-house architectural services teams and management, supplemented by outside
consultants, are successful in creating distinctive design features, both in exterior facades and interior options and features.
In certain markets our strategy is to offer “the complete house” in which all features shown in the home are included in the
sales price. Standard features typically offered include vaulted ceilings, appliances, and a variety of available flooring and
carpet. -

Typically, our domestic sales teams, together with outside sales brokers, are responsible for guiding the customer
through the sales process. We are commitied to industry-leading customer service through a variety of quality initiatives,
including the customer care program, which ensures that homeowners are comfortable at every stage of the building process.
Using a seven-step, interactive process, homeowners are kept informed during their homebuilding and home owning
experience. The steps include (1) a pre-construction meeting with the superintendent; (2) pre-dry wall frame walk; (3)
quality assurance inspection; (4) first homeowner orientation; (5) 30-day follow-up after the close of the home; (6) three-
month follow-up; and (7) an 11-month quality list after the close of the home. Fully firnished and landscaped model homes
are used to showcase our homes and their distinctive design features. We have great success with the first-time buyer in the
low to moderate price range; in such cases, financing under United States Government-insured and guaranteed programs is
often used and is facilitated through our mortgage company. We also enjoy strong sales to the move-up buyer and, in cerfain
markets, offer semi-custom homes in higher price ranges.

As a result of the Del Webb merger, we are better able to address the needs of active adults, the fastest growing
homebuying segment. With destination communities offering highly amenitized products such as golf courses, recreational
centers and educational classes, the active adult buyer has many options to maintain an active lifestyle.



Homebuilding Operations (continued)

Sales and marketing (continued)

In 2003, our Dallas, Houston, Las Vegas, Minneapolis/St. Paul, San Francisco Bay Area, Phoenix, Raleigh/Durham,
Sacramento, Southern Califomia, Tampa, Tucson, and Palm Beach markets were recognized for ranking the highest in their
markets in a national customer satisfaction study. The survey of twenty-one U. S. markets noted customer service and home
readiness as the two factors that most heavily influenced the customer’s overall level of satisfaction. We ranked third or
better in seventeen of the twenty-one markets surveyed. Building on this quality foundation is our brand development
program with our “Three I's on Quality” (Involvement, Integrity, and Innovation) platform. Developing the Pulte Homes
brand and leveraging the strength of the “DiVosta,” “Del Webb” and “Sun City” tradenames helps to distinguish our
communities from the competition, and can often be rewarded with the advantages of additional sales pace, choice
community locations, and reduced overall customer acquisition costs.

In addition, our Homeowner for Life™ strategy and philosophy has increased our business from those who have
previously owned a Pulte home or have been referred by a Pulte homeowner by ensuring a positive home buying and home
owning experience. We introduce our homes to prospective buyers through a variety of media advertising, illustrated
brochures, Internet listings and link placements, and other advertising displays. In addition, our websites, www.pulte.com,
www.delwebb.com, and www.divosta.com provide tools to help users find a home that meets their needs, investigate
financing alternatives, communicate moving plans, maintain a home, learn more about us and communicate directly with us.
Approximately three million potential customers visited our websites during 2003.

Our international sales and marketing efforts focus on the identification of underserved market demand, particularly in
Argentina and Puerto Rico, with strong emphasis on quality initiatives and customer service. In Mexico, where our product
is focused largely on social interest housing, sales and marketing efforts target areas experiencing population and
employment (industrialization) growth.

Construction

The construction process for our domestic homes begins with the in-house design of the homes we sell. The building
phase is conducted under the supervision of our on-site construction superintendents. The construction work is usually
performed by independent contractors under contracts that, in many instances, cover both labor and materials on a fixed-
price basis. We believe that Pulte Preferred Partnerships (P°), an extension of our quality assurance program, continues to
establish new standards for contractor relations. Using a selective process, we have teamed up with what we believe are
premier contractors and suppliers to improve all aspects of the land development and house construction processes.

We maintain efficient construction operations by using standard materials and components from a variety of sources
and, when possible, by building on contiguous lots. To minimize the effects of changes in construction costs, the contracting
and purchasing of building supplies and materials generally is negotiated at or near the time when related sales contracts are
signed. In addition, we leverage our size by actively negotiating our materials needs on a national or regional basis to
minimize production component cost. We are also working to establish a more integrated system that can effectively link
suppliers, contractors and the production schedule through various strategic business partnerships and e-business initiatives.

Housing in Mexico and Puerto Rico consists primarily of reinforced poured concrete, concrete and ceramic block
and/or brick construction with flat roofs and public water, electric and sanitary system connections. Qur housing product in
Argentina is designed and constructed in a similar fashion to our domestic product but is customized for lacal preferences.
Building materials, supplies and components are sourced locally and the construction work is performed by general
contractors and/or independent contractors, which in many cases include both labor and materials,

We cannot determine the extent to which necessary building materials will be available at reasonable prices in the

future and have, on occasion, experienced shortages of skilled labor in certain trades and of building materials in some
markets.



Homebuilding Operations (continued)

Competition and other factors

Our dedication to customer satisfaction is evidenced by our consumer and value-based brand approach to product
development, and is something that we believe distinguishes us in the homebuilding industry and contributes to our long-
term. competitive advantage. The housing industry in the United States, however, is highly competitive, In each of our
market areas, there are numerous homebuilders with which we compete. We also compete with the resales of existing house
inventory. Any provider of housing units, for-sale or to rent, including apartment builders, may be considered a competitor.
Conversion of apartments to condominiums further provides certain segments of the population an alternative to traditional
housing, as does manufactured housing. We compete primarily on the basis of price, reputation, design, location and quality
of our homes. The housing industry is affected by a number of economic and other factors including; (1) significant national
and world events, which impact consumer confidence; (2) changes in interest rates; (3) changes in other costs associated with
home ownership, such as property taxes and energy costs; (4) various demographic factors; (5) changes in federal income tax
laws; (6) changes in government mortgage financing programs, and (7) availability of sufficient mortgage capacity. In
addition to these factors, our business and operations could be affected by shifts in demand for new homes.

Our operations are subject to building, environmental and other regulations of various federal, state, local and foreign
goveming authorities. For our homes to qualify for Federa! Housing Administration (FHA) or Veterans Administration
(VA) mortgages, we must satisfy valuation standards and site, material and construction requirements of those agencies. Our
compliance with federal, state, local and foreign laws relating to protection of the environment has had, to date, no material
effect upon capital expenditures, earnings or competitive position. More stringent requirements could be imposed in the
future on homebuilders and developers, thereby increasing the cost of compliance.

Financial Services Operations

‘We conduct our financial services business, which includes mortgage and title operations, through Pulte Mortgage and
other subsidiaries.

Mortgage banking

Our mortgage bank arranges financing through the origination of mortgage loans primarily for the benefit of our
domestic homebuyers, but also services the general public. We also engage in the sale of such loans and the related servicing
rights, We are a lender approved by the FHA and VA and are a seller/servicer approved by Government National Mortgage
Association (GNMA), Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA), Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation
(FHLMC) and other investors. In our conventional mortgage lending activities we follow underwriting guidelines
established by FNMA and FHLMC.

Our mortgage underwriting, processing and closing functions are centralized in Denver, Colorado using a mortgage
operations center (MOC) concept. We also use a centralized telephone loan officer concept where loan officers are centrally
located at a mortgage application center (MAC) in Denver, Qur sales representatives, who are the mortgage customers’ main
contact, forward the loan applications to a MAC loan counselor who calls the customer to complete the loan application and
then forwards it to the MOC for processing, We believe both the MOC and the MAC improve the speed and efficiency of
our mortgage operations, thereby improving our profitability and allowing us to focus on creating attractive mortgage
financing opportunities for our customers.

In originating mortgage loans, we initially use our own funds and borrowings made available to us through various
credit arrangements. Subsequently, we sell such mortgage loans and mortgage-backed securities to outside investors.

Our capture rate for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001 was approximately 83%, 78%, and 74%,
respectively. Qur capture rate represents loan originations from our homebuilding business as a percent of total loan
opportunities, excluding cash settlements, from our homebuilding business. During the years ended December 31, 2003,
2002 and 2001, we originated mortgage loans for approximately 73%, 68% and 67%, respectively, of the homes we sold
domestically. Such originations represented 83%, 85% and 81%, respectively, of our originations.

We sell our servicing rights on a flow basis through fixed price servicing sales contracts to reduce the risks inherent in
servicing loans. This strategy results in owning the servicing rights for only a short period of time, generally less than four
months after the loan is originated, which substantially reduces the risk of impairment with respect to the fair value of these
reported -assets. The-servicing sales contracts provide for the reimbursement of payments made when loans prepay within
specified periods of time, usually 90 days after sale or securitization.




Financial Services Operations (continued)

Mortgage banking (continued)

. The mortgage industry in the United States is highly competitive, We compete with other mortgage companies and
financial institutions to provide attractive mortgage financing to both our homebuyers and to the general public. The Internet
is"also an important resource for homebuyers in obtaining financing as a number of companies provide online approval for
their customers. These Internet-based mortgage companies may also be considered competitors.

In originating and servicing mortgage loans, we are subject to rules and regulations of the FHIA, VA, GNMA, FNMA
and FHIL.MC. In addition to being affected by changes in these programs, our mortgage banking business is also affected by
several of the same factors that impact our homebuilding business.

Discontinued operations

During the first quarter of 1994, we adopted a plan of disposal for First Heights and announced our strategy to exit the
thrift industry and increase our focus on housing and related mortgage banking. First Heights sold all but one of its 32 bank

branches and related deposits to two unrelated purchasers. The sale was substantially completed during the fourth quarter of
1994, '

Although in 1994, we expected to complete the plan of disposal within a reasonable period of time, contractual
disputes with the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) prevented the prepayment of the Federal Savings and Loan
Insurance Corporation Resolution Fund (FRF) notes, thereby precluding us from completing the disposal in accordance with
our original plan. To provide liquidity for the sale, First Heights liquidated its investrment portfolios and its single-family
residential loan portfolio and, as provided in the Assistance Agreement, entered into a Liquidity Assistance Note (LAN) with
the FDIC acting in its capacity as manager of the FRF notes. The LAN was collateralized by the FRF notes. The LAN and
FRF notes matured in September 1998; however, payment of these obligations was withheld by both parties pending
resolution of all open matters with the FDIC, As discussed in Item 3, we settled the litigation with the FDIC in October
2001, and as part of that settlement all obligations under the LAN and FRF notes were extinguished.

First Heights® day-to-day activities are principaily devoted to supporting residual regulatory compliance matters and
the litigation with the United States government, discussed in Item 3, and are not reflective of the active operations of the
former thrift, such as maintaining traditional transaction accounts (e.g., checking and savings accounts) or making loans.
Accordingly, such operations are presented as discontinued.

Corporate

Corporate is a non-operating segment that is comprised primarily of Pulte Homes, Inc. and Pulte Diversified
Companies, Inc., both of which are holding companies. The primary purpose of Corporate is to support the operations of our
subsidiaries by acting as the internal source of financing, developing and implementing strategic initiatives centered around
new business development and operating efficiencies. Business development activities include the pursuit of additional
domestic and international opportunities as well as the development of innovative building components and processes.
Corporate also includes the activities associated with supporting a publicly traded entity listed on the New York Stock
Exchange.

Corporate assets include equity investments in its subsidiaries, short-term financial instruments and affiliate advances.
Liabilities include senior and subordinated debt and income taxes. Corporate revenues consist primarily of investment
earnings of excess funds, while its expenses include costs associated with supporting a publicly traded company and its
subsidiaries’ operations, and investigating strategic initiatives.

Organization/Employees

All subsidiaries and operating units operate independently with respect to daily operations. Homebuilding real estate
purchases and other significant homebuilding, mortgage banking, financing activities and similar operating decisions must be
approved by the business unit and/or corporate senior management.

At December 31, 2003, we employed approximately 10,800 persons. Our employees are not represented by any union,
Contracted work, however, may be performed by union contractors. Homebuilding and mortgage banking management
personnel are paid performance bonuses and incentive compensation. Performance bonuses are based on individual
performance while incentive compensation is based on the performance of the applicable business unit or subsidiary. Our
corporate management personuel are paid incentive compensation based on our overall performance. Each subsidiary is
given autonomy regarding employment of personnel, although our senior corporate management acts in an advisory capacity
in the employment of subsidiary officers. We consider our employee and contractor relations to be satisfactory.



ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our homebuilding and corporate headquarters are located at 100 Bloomfield Hills Parkway, Suite 300, Bloomfield
Hills, Michigan 48304, where we lease 63,740 square feet of office space. We also lease 37,004 square feet of office space
at 15333 N. Pima Rd., Suite 300/340/345, Scottsdale, Arizona 85250 and 41,208 square feet of office space at 1230 West
Washington Street, Tempe, Arizona 85281 for certain corporate and business services. Pulte Mortgage’s offices are located
at 7475 South Joliet Street, Englewood, Colorado 80112 and 99 Inverness Drive East, Englewood, Colorado 80112. We
lease approximately 61,436 square feet and 32,000 square feet, respectively, of office space at these locations. Our
homebuilding markets and mortgage branch operations generaily lease office space for their day-to-day operations. First

Heights® administrative office is located in 918 square feet of leased space at 2010 North Loop West, Suite 220, Houston,
Texas 77018.

Because of the nature of our homebuilding operations, significant-amounts of property are held as inventory in the
ordinary course of our homebuilding business. Such properties are not included in response to this Item.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are involved in various litigation incidental to our continuing business operations. We believe that none of this
litigation will have a material adverse impact on our results of operations, our financial position or our cash flows.

First Heights-related litigation

We were a party to three lawsuits relating to First Heights’ 1988 acquisition from the Federal Savings and Loan
Insurance Corporation (FSLIC) and First Heights’ ownership of five failed Texas thrifts. The first lawsuit (the District Court
Case) was filed on July 7, 1995, in the United States District Court, Eastern District of Michigan, by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC) against Pulte Homes, Inc., Pulte Diversified Companies, Inc. and First Heights (collectively,
the Pulte Parties). The second lawsuit (the Court of Federal Claims Case) was filed on December 26, 1996, in the United
States Court of Federal Claims (Washington, D.C.} by the Pulte Parties against the United States. The third lawsuit was filed
by First Heights on January 10, 2000, in the United States District Court, Eastern District of Michigan against the FDIC
regarding the amounts, including interest, the FDIC was obligated to pay First Helghts on two promissory notes which had
been executed by the FDIC's predecessor, the FSLIC.

In the District Court Case, the FDIC, as successor to the FSLIC, sought a declaration of rights and other relief related
to the Assistance Agreement entered into between First Heights and the FSLIC, The FDIC and the Pulte Parties disagreed
about the proper interpretation of provisions in the Assistance Agreement which provide for sharing of certain tax benefits
achieved in connection with First Heights' 1988 acquisition and ownership of the five failed Texas thrifts. The District Court
Case also included certain other claims relating to the foregoing, including claims resulting from our amendment and First
Heights® amendment of a tax sharing and allocation agreement between us and First Heights. The Pulte Parties disputed the
FDIC’s claims and filed an answer and a counterclaim, seeking, among other things, a declaration that the FDIC had
breached the Assistance Agreement in numerous respects, On December 24, 1996, the Pulte Parties voluntarily dismissed

without prejudice certain of their claims in the District Court Case and, on December 26, 1996, initiated the Court of Federal
Claims Case.

In October 2001, the FDIC and the Pulte Parties settled the District Court Case, the related appeal to the Sixth Circuit
Court of Appeals and the third lawsuit. As part of this settlement (the Setilement), the First Heights Assistance Agreement
was terminated, except that certain tax benefit sharing provisions will continue in effect, and the warants issued by First
Heights to the FDIC were extinguished. We do not believe that the claims in the Court of Federal Claims Case are in any
way prejudiced by the Settlement.

In the Court of Federal Claims Case, the Pulte Parties assert breaches of contract on the part of the United States in
connection with the enactment of Section 13224 of the Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1993 (OBRA). That
provision repealed portions of the tax benefits that the Pulte Parties claim they were entitled to under the contract to acquire
the failed Texas thrifts. The Pulte Parties also assert other claims concerning the contract, including that the United States
(through the FDIC as receiver) improperly attempted to amend the failed thrifts’ pre-acquisition tax returns and that this
attempt was made in an effort to deprive the Pulte Parties of tax benefits for which they had contracted.

On August 17, 2001, the United States Court of Federal Claims ruled that the United States government is liable to the
Pulte Parties for breach of contract by enacting Section 13224 of OBRA. In September 2003, the United States Court of
Federal Claims issued final judgment that the Pulte Parties have been damaged by approximately $48.7 million as a result of
the United States government’s breach of contract with them. The United States government and the Pulte Parties filed
Notices of Appeal with the United States Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit in October 2003. Accordingly, any gain
related to this litigation will be recognized only upon final resolution.
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ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

This Item is not applicable.
ITEM 4A. EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Set forth below is certain information with respect to our executive officers.

Year Became
Name Age Position An Officer
William J, Pulte 71 Chairman of the Board 1956
Richard J. Dugas, Jr. 38 President and Chief Executive Officer 2002
Steven C. Petruska 45 Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer 2004
Roger A, Cregg 47 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 1997
Leo J. Taylor 45 Executive Vice President, Human Resources 2003
John R. Stoller 55 Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary 1950
Vincent J. Frees 33 Vice President and Controller 1995
Gregory M. Nelson 48 Vice President and Assistant Secretary 1993
Bruce E. Robinson 42 Vice President and Treasurer 1998

The following is a brief account of the business experience of each officer during the past five years:

Mr. Pulte was appointed Chairman of the Board in December 2001. He has also served as Chairman of the Executive
Committee of the Board of Directors since January 1999,

Mr. Dugas was appointed President and Chief Executive Officer in July 2003. Prior to that date, he served as
Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer. He was appointed Chief Operating Officer in May 2002 and
Executive Vice President in December 2002, Since 1994, he has served in a variety of management positions. Most

recently, be was Coastal Region President with responsibility for our Georgia, North Carolina, South Carolina, and
Tennessee operations.

Mr. Petruska was appointed Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer in January 2004. Since joining our

company in 1984, he has held a number of management positions. Most recently, he was the President for both the Arizona
Area and Nevada Area operations.

Mr. Cregg was appointed Executive Vice President in May 2003 and was named Chief Financial Officer effective
January 1998.

Mr. Taylor was appointed Executive Vice President, Human Resources, in May 2003. Prior to that date, he was Vice
President of Human Resources and Sales Development since 1997.

M. Stoller was appointed Senior Vice President in September 1999. Prior to that date, he served as Vice President and
General Counsel since October 1990.

M. Frees has been Vice President and Controller since May 1995.
Mr. Nelson has been Vice President since August 1993.

Mr. Robinson was appointed Treasurer in July 1998 and was named Vice President and Treasurer effective January
1999.

There is no family relationship between any of the officers. Each officer serves at the pleasure of the Board of
Directors.
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PARTII

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS

Our common shares are listed on the New York Stock Exchange (Symbol: PHM). The table below, which has been
adjusted to retroactively reflect our two-for-one stock split announced December 11, 2003 and effected January 2, 2004, sets
forth, for the quarterly periods indicated, the range of high and low closing prices and cash dividends declared per share.

2003 2002
Declared Declared
High Low Dividends High Low  Dividends
Ist Quarter $26.59 $22.73 $.02 $27.22 $20.99 $.02
2nd Quarter 35,99 24.66 02 29.47 23.00 .02
3rd Quarter 34.88 28.98 02 28.97 2041 .02
4th Quarter 49.42 33.73 .05 24.85 18.30 02

AtDecember 31, 2003, there were 1,527 shareholders of record.
ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Set forth below is selected consolidated financial data for each of the past five fiscal years. The selected financial data
should be read in conjunction with Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

and our Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto included elsewhere in this report.

Years Ended December 31,

($000°s omitted)
2003 2002 2001¢a) 20900 1999
OPERATING DATA:
Homebuilding:
REVENUES ... ccrerreeveeeseereerarersreseenones $ 8929798 § 7363989 § 5309829 § 4195675 $ 3.711,196

Income before inCOME 1aXES....oerrrverencn. $.1,002.361 $ 724067 $ 512291 $ 386604 § 311,668

Financial Services:

REVENUES..cuviiiriameseritiane s o carsisneaes $ 115847 § 106628 §_ 77222 § _ 50660 3 54,279
Income before Income taxes. ....courseeemerernernns § 68846 § 66723 § 36948 §_ 24788 § 25721
Corporate:

REVENUES.......rveeeererrerrerssarrssastseeseessisssnsenss 3 3281 3 1202 § 2210 § 633 $ 2,748
Loss before income taxes.........ccvimvinreeenronns $ (75351) $__(61968) $ __(57452) § (56296) $§ _(50,984)
Consolidated resulits:

REVENUES...cucucerrrreraeesrmtirerensrrnsssnsssraseasasssnsnes $ 9048926 § 7471819 § 5389261 § 4246977 § 3768223

Income from continuing operations before

income taxes $ 995656 $ 728,822 & 491,787 § 355,096 3 286,405

INCOME tAXES ....cnrmerercnrecsraenecnernsesevaenressesnaes 378,334 284221 189,362 136.712 108,118
Income from continuing operations............. 617,322 444,601 302,425 218,384 178,287
Income (loss) from discontinued operations 7312 9.044 (1,032) (29.871) (122)
NEt INCOIME. ..ovecneerrerrensronrsrrnesessensrrrsarsseserse $_ 624634 § 453645 § 301393 § 188513 $ 178,165

(@) Del Webb operations were merged effective July 31, 2001.
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Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001¢a) 2000 1999
PER SHARE DATA (5):
Earnings per share - basic:
Income from continuing operations......... 3 505 % 368 § 3.08 3 264 3 2.06
Income (loss} from discontinued
operations ...... 06 07 (.01) (.36) -
Net income......... w 3 511 § 375 3 307 8 228 § 2.06
Weighted-average common shares
outstanding (000’s omitted) ................ 122162 __ 120906 98,196 82620 ___ 86492
Earnings per share - assuming dilution:
Income from continuing operations......... $ 491 % 360 3 300 § 259 % 2.03
Income (loss) from discontinued
operations .................. . 06 07 (.01) (.35 -
Net 0COME 1.vvurrresrreesssmsessieesmserssssssessees $ 497 § 367 $ 299 3 224 § 203
Weighted-average common shares
outstanding and effect of dilutive
securities (000°s omitted)......cocevrvureeses 25730 __ 123492 _ 100646 ____ 84292 ___ 87646
Shareholders’ equity.......ccccocooeeecrmirncennee.. $ 2755 $ 2258 $ 1922 3 1501 § 12,64
Cash dividends declared ...........cecccnrneeee. 3 11 8 08 3 08 § D8 3 08

(a) Del Webb operations were merged effective July 31, 2001.

(6) All share and per share amounts have been restated to retroactively reflect the two-for-one stock split announced on December 11,
2003 and effected January 2, 2004

December 31,
($000°s omitted)
, 2003 2002 _ 2001 2000 1999
BALANCE SHEET DATA:
House and land inventories ........cocoeervverrens $ 5528410 $ 4,293,597 § 3,833,763 $ 1,896,856 $ 1,822,060
Total assets.......... vetrareeastseasas 8,063,352 6,872,087 5,710,893 2,886,483 2,487,351
Senior notes and subordinated notes..........., 2,150,972 1,913,268 1,722,864 666,296 508,690
Shareholders’ eqUILY ...coveseereerrerresemsernsrsessens 3,448,123 2,760,426 2,276,665 1,247,931 1,093,319
Years Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
OTHER DATA:
Domestic Homebuilding:
Total markets, at year-end .......cc.cccccecvenree 44 44 43 41 41
Total active communities, at year-end..... 535 460 440 396 388
Total settlements - UNitS......cerneeesecnreceenine 32,693 28,903 22915 19,799 19,569
Total net new orders - Units (@) ...co.cererenne 34,989 30,830 22,163 19,844 19,367
Backlog units, at year-end ......cceecrernrecnaene 13,952 10,605 8,678 5477 5,432
Average unit selling price ..........ecccouvceneae $ 259,000 § 242,000 $ 225000 $ 206,000 $ 187,000
Gross profit margin %
from home sales (B) ......ccouerrverronreesransses 20.6% 19.4% 19.1% 18.0% 17.0%
Homebuilding settlement units (c):
DOMESHC. ..o cvereeanrereesasessseenmssnrsesens 32,693 28,903 22915 19,799 19,569
International...........ocovmeuereranecnsaneananenss _ 7,120 6,525 221 264 262
Total ..ot cererrarmerervensnensereseres 39,813 35428 23,136 20,063 19,831

(a) Total net new orders-units for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 200!, do not include 1,05! units and 3,933 units,
respectively, of acquired backlog.

(b) Domestic homebuilding interest expense, which represents the amortization of capitalized interest, has been reclassified ta hone
cost of sales.

(¢) Homebuilding unit settlements of affiliates, not included in the table above, for the years ended December 31, 2003 through 1999
were [49, 1,022, 7,258, 7,718, and 6,791, respectively.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

Overview

A summary of our operating results by business segment for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001 is as
follows ($000’s omitted, except per share data):

Years Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001

Pre-tax income (loss):

Homebuilding ......c..cccoveemmmrenrcrerrccrsenriinnsssnscineessnnnnn. $1,002,161 $ 724,067 § 512,291

Financial SErvices .......cceecremmeersreesmrerriseseermesssseersssersens 68,846 66,723 36,948

L6100 310> ¢:1 (TR " (75.351) {61.968) (57.452)
Income from continuing operations beforc income taxes .. 995,656 728,822 491,787
INCOIME tAXES .irenserrcisessarisesssnaissnsissesmsssseass smasesssssnssassassnsessses 378,334 284221 189,362
Income from continuing Operations........ueweercrsessareersnsens 617,322 444,601 302,425
Income (loss) from discontinued operations............coccereenses 7.312 9,044 {1,032)
Net INCOME. ... cucrrerirersirmassacressessorssssrsassasssssssossissesssssssossssassns $ 624634 3 _453645 § 301393
Per share data - assuming dilution:

Income from continuing Operations .......e..eeeeverreseress 3 491 3 360 § 3.00

Income (loss) from discontinued operations . .07 (.01)

NELIICOMIE ..eccvorecrmrenrecrrerresecrsasesanssnassosssssssssasesssessenss . b 367 .3 2.99

A comparison of pre-tax income (loss), for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001 is as follows:

¢ Continued strong demand for new housing, the addition and expansion of the Del Webb branded communities,
coupled with our ability to effectively manage selling price and pace through our unique segmentation strategy
drove pre-tax income of our homebuilding business segment to increase 38% in 2003 and 41% in 2002, Domestic
average unit selling price increased by 7% in 2003 and 8% in 2002. Additionally, domestic gross margin
percentages from home sales were up 120 basis points in 2003 principally as a result of product price increases and
market and product mix shifts. Compared to 2001, our 2002 domestic gross margin percentages were up 30 basis
points principally as a result of purchase accounting adjustments recorded in 2001.

¢ Pre-tax income of our financial services business segment increased 3% in 2003 and 81% in 2002. The increase in
2003 was primarily driven by an increase in loan originations and a higher capture rate tempered by a less favorable
interest rate environment during the last half of the year. The 2002 increase was a result of increased volume, a

favorable interest rate environment, effective leverage of overhead costs and the addition of Del Webb mortgage
operations.

o Pre-tax loss of our non-operating corporate segment increased 22% in 2003 to $75.4 million principally from higher
compensation-related costs. The pre-tax loss in 2002 increased 8% as a result of higher interest costs, related to an
increase in debt levels to support the growth of the business.

During the third quarter of 2003 and 2002, we recorded non-cash, after-tax gains of $7.9 million and $10.0 million,

respectively, related to the favorable resolution of certain tax matters relating to our thrift operation, which we discontinued
in 1994,
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Homebuilding

Our Homebuilding segment consists of the following operations:

move-up, and acfive adult homebuyers,

¢ International Homebuilding - We conduct our International Homebuilding operations through subsidiaries of Pulte
International Corporation (International) in Mexico, Puerto Rico and Argentina, International Homebuilding
product offerings focus on the demand of first-time buyers and middle-to-upper income consumer groups. We are
corrently in the process of evaluating various long-term strategic alternatives with regard to our International

operations.

Domestic Homebuilding - We conduct our Domestic Homebuilding operations in 44 markets located throughout 27
states. Domestic Homebuilding offers a broad product line to meet the needs of the first-time, first and second

Certain operating data relating to our homebuilding operations are as follows ($000’s omitted):

Years Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
Homebuilding settiement revenues:
Domestic $ 8482341 $ 6991614 § 5,145526
International ........ceriireerersessmsinnsscnseseseminimmsmsssmnimsnesenes 228.137 196,074 35,169
TOtal vrrrssns $ 8710478 § 7.87688 _ 85180605
Homebuilding settlement units:
Domestic ... 32,693 28,903 22,915
International 7,120 6,525 221
Tl ..cveteercrecnmremrrcrersansrenersesimsrtrssersaststtssrsssares 39,813 35,428 23,136

Note: Homebuilding revenues of affiliates, not included in the table above, for the years ended December 31, 2003 through
2001 were 832,511, $40,723, and $180,621, respectively. Homebuilding unit settlements of affiliates, not included in
the table above, for the years ended December 31, 2003 through 2001 were 149, 1,022, and 7,258, respectively.

Domestic Homebuilding

The Domestic Homebuilding operations represent our core business. We conduct our operations in 44 markets,

located throughout 27 states, presented geographically as follows:

2003.

Northeast: Connecticut, Delaware, Maryland, Massachusetts, New Hampshire, New Jersey,
New York, Rhode Island, Pennsylvania, Virginia

Southeast: Florida, Georgia, North Carolina, South Carolina, Tennessee

Midwest: Tllinois, Indiana, Kansas, Michigan, Minnesota, Ohio

Central: Colorado, Texas, New Mexico

West: Arizona, California, Nevada

The greater Phoenix market accounted for 11% of Domestic Homebuilding settlement revenues, 12% of settlement
units and 14% of net new orders in 2003. The Las Vegas market accounted for 10% of net new orders in 2003. For the year
ended December 31, 2002, the greater Phoenix market accounted for 10% of Domestic Homebuilding settlement revenues,
11% of settlement units and 11% of net new orders. No other individual markets represented more than 10% of total
Domestic Homebuilding settlement revenues, settlement units or net new orders during the three years ended December 31,
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Homebuilding (continued)

Domestic Homebuilding (continued)

The following table presents selected unit information for our Domestic Homebuilding operations:

Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
Unit settlements:
NOIREASE ....cosererereennmrarsresseseersemrsresrerersessaresesasnsns 2,692 2,440 2,014
SOUNEASE ... et crreemreserseeresrsearasersaorsaronarstosne 8,234 8,271 8,126
MIGWESL.....coeeercreercrcernerereressressssessessassesmesssmmrasssssess 4,936 4,458 3,288
Central....... eebetsesnm sttt senanasaran s s snenans 5,283 4,588 3,982
WS et rsesrasrrasrerseosssnssssasearanns . 11.548 9.146 5.505
—-320603 __ 28003 __ 22915
Net new orders - units (a):
NOITHEASE .....veerrireresireesssirisesiessensomsverescarssasssossnsssses 3,098 2,738 1,905
SOUtheast ........ccverrecrenrarreserresssessanses 9,021 8,651 8,111
MIGWESL.....covveeranemreersreosesessaressrosrosrotssasarsssasmsssnssssass 4736 4,684 3,515
CEnTaL ......ccrerereccrrareesrensisrmsisssessasessnaasersssmseasenonsises 5,125 4,590 3,817
West....ceenravrecnns rerertr ettt aanasesraees 13.009 10.167 4,815
——34980 __ 30830 __22.163
Net new orders - dollars ($000°s omitted) (a)................. $9,555.000 37,731,000 $4.855,000
Backlog at December 31 - units:
Northeast 1,535 1,129 831
Southeast 3,726 2,939 2,559
MIAWeSL.....orenversssernenses 1,401 1,601 1,375
Central........ccrveciercerinnsriaismssiotsosirssrrssissssssssansarsores 1,156 905 903
WESL . torereercrernerseronsmsansssinsssssassssoasssssnsesnssnssaseene S 6.134 4.031 3,010
13952 __ 10605 ___8.678
Backlog at December 31 - dollars ($000's omitted)....... $4,147.000 $2,857,000 32,118,000

(a) Net new orders for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2001, do not include 1,051 units and 3,953

units, respectively, of acquired backlog and related dollars.

Unit settlements in 2003 reached a record high, increasing 13% to 32,693 units. The increase in 2003 can be attributed
to continued strong demand for new housing and an increase in the active communities to 535 from 460. Unit settlements in
2002 increased 26% to 28,903 units, principally from the inclusion of a full year of Del Webb operations combined with
strong sales in the Midwest. The average selling price for our homes increased from $225,000 in 2001 to $242,000 in 2002
and to $259,000 in the current year. Changes in average selling price reflect a number of factors, including price increases,
the mix of product closed during a period and the number of options purchased by customers. Both 2003 and 2002 benefited

from increased product prices and improved product mix.

Ending backlog, which represents orders for homes that have not yet closed, climbed 32% to 13,952 homes. The
dollar value of our ending backlog was up 45% to $4.1 billion at December 31, 2003. Unit and dollar backlog at December
31, 2002, increased 22% and 35%, respectively, to 10,605 homes valued at $2.9 billion. Overall, strong demand supported
by a favorable interest rate environment and an increase in the number of active commmunities drove increased order activity

and record levels of backlog,.
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Homebuilding (continued)

Domestic Homebuilding (continued)

The following table presents a summary of pre-tax income for our Domestic Homebuilding operations (3000’s
omitted):

Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
Home sale revenue (settlements)........o.creeenerersrernees $ 8482341 $ 6,991,614 $ 5,145,526
Land sale revenue . . 219,320 176,301 129,134
Home cost of sales*................. . (6,731,834) (5,638,162) (4,163,065)
Land cost 0f Sales.......cc.cevvmerrermmsmsesareererssrsasessorsaserses (153,415) (123,306) (97,941)
Selling, general and administrative expenses ........... (820,951) (664,469) (482,128)
Other income (expense), net 3,361 (22.968) (16,851)
Pre-tax INCOME ...vverueeicornimsveisonsannsinrensansasssisosanssasens $ 998822 § 7i9.010 3 514675
Average sales PriCe.......ummiimissamssmressssnsessrisessars g 259 % 242 § 225

* Domestic homebuilding interest expense, which represents the amortization of capitalized interest, has been
reclassified to home cost of sales.

Gross profit margins from home sales in 2003 increased 120 basis points over 2002 to 20.6%. Gross profit margins in
2002 increased 30 basis points to 19.4%. Factors that contributed to this favorable trend include strong customer demand,
positive home pricing, the benefits of leverage-buy purchasing activities and effective production and inventory

management. In addition, 2001 gross profit margins were negatively impacted 20 basis points as a result of purchase
accounting adjustments.

Land sales increased in each of the prior three years, demonstrating our competency in purchasing, developing and
entitling certain land positions for sale primarily to other homebuilders, as well as to retail and commercial establishments.
Revenues and their related gains/losses may vary significantly between periods, depending on the timing of such sales. We
continue to rationalize certain existing land positions to ensure the most effective use of invested capital. Included in other
assets is approximately $251.2 million in land held for disposition as of December 31, 2003, as compared to $218.8 million
in the prior year.

For the year ended December 31, 2003, selling, general and administrative expenses, as a percentage of home
settlernent revenues, increased 20 basis points to 9.7% after increasing 10 basis points to 9.5% in 2002. The increase in 2003
is principally attributable to costs associated with the realignment of our field operations and organizations to meet the
challenge and opportunity for future growth. Higher startup costs for new communities and increased compensation related
costs partially offset by a reduction in costs associated with the Del Webb operations contributed to the change in 2002.

Other income (expense), net totaled income of $3.4 million in 2003 compared to expense of $23.0 million in 2002.
This favorable change was principally a result of equity earnings from two Nevada-based joint ventures, totaling $28.5
million, related to the sale of commercial and residential properties. Other expense, net of $16.9 million in 2001 benefited
from income from certain non-operating investments totaling $4.2 million.

At December 31, 2003 and 2002, our Domestic Homebuilding operations controlled approximately 256,900 and
176,800 lots, espectively. Approximately 120,400 and 84,300 lots were owned, and approximately 66,000 and 43,800 lots
were under option agreements approved for purchase at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively, In addition, there were
approximately 70,500 lots under option agreements at December 31, 2003, pending approval, that are under review and
evaluation for future use by our Domestic Homebuilding operations. This compared to 48,700 lots at December 31, 2002.

The total purchase price applicable to approved land under option for use by our homebuilding operations at future
dates approximated $2.6 billion at December 31, 2003. In addition, total purchase price applicable to land under option
pending approval was valued at $2.1 billion at December 31, 2003. Land option agreements, which may be cancelled at our

discretion, may extend over several years and are secured by deposits totaling $99.0 million, which are generally non-
refundable. :
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Homebuilding (continued)

International Homebuilding

Our International Homebuilding operations are primarily conducted through subsidiaries of International in Mexico,
Puerto Rico and Argentina. Effective January 1, 2002, we reorganized the structure of our operations within Mexico to
create a single company, Pulte Mexico S. de R.L. de C.V., which ranks as one of the largest builders in the country. Prior to
the reorganization, these operations were conducted primarily through five joint ventures throughout Mexico. Under the new
ownership structure, which combines the largest of these entities, we own 63.8% of Pulte Mexico S. de R.L. de C.V. and
have consolidated Puite Mexico S. de R.L. de C.V. into our financial statements. Results for 2002 include joint venture

operations for one month and operations as a consolidated entity for eleven months, as the operations in Mexico report on a
one-month lag.

We are currently in the process of evaluating various long-term strategic alternatives with regard to our International
operations.

The following table presents selected financial data for our International Homebuilding operations for the years ended
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 ($000’s omitted):

——Years Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
REVEIUES......cccvtrenmmnsnrsareireemassrassasssassessnsnssrsnses § 228,137 § 196,074 § 35,169
C08t OF SAlES....creereceraserrevaremsereossrraenseneronnne (183,271) (157,056) (30,937
Selling, general and administrative expense...... (42,126) (35,029) (11,820)
Other income (EXpense), Net .......ccmrerecrreeresiosees (1,485) (1,610) 66
Minority interest coiressesesrsasnrsetsbsnets (1,382) (1,801) -
Equity in income of joint ventures.......cc.eeccereens 3.466 4.479 5,138
Pre-tax income (10SS)......ccecueeeeerucereressansecsecsasnns $§_ 3330 § 5057 § (2384
Unit settlements: ... ...cccevvseeerrersosrncersisrsssasensesseses - 7120 6,525 221

Note: Homebuilding unit settlements of affiliates, not included in the table above, for the years ended
December 31, 2003, 2002, and 200! were 149, 1,022, and 7,258, respectively.

International revenues and unit settiements for 2003 benefited from a full year of results from our operations in Mexico
as well as increased sales in both Argentina and Puerto Rico. Our Mexico operations had revenues of $172.3 million and
unit settlements of 6,777 for the year ended December 31, 2003. Increased revenues and settlements in 2002 were due to
consolidation of the operations in Mexico for eleven months of 2002, a full year of closings in Argentina, which recorded its
first closing in June of 2001, partially offset by a decline in Puerto Rico. Our operations in Mexico contributed revenues of
$158.1 million and unit settlements of 6,271 units in 2002.

Gross profit margins from home sales declined 20 basis points to 19.7% in 2003 compared to 2002, as favorable
product and geographic mix shifts in Mexico were offset by less favorable product mix shifts in Puerto Rico and unfavorable
sales pace in Argentina. The consolidation of Mexico had a positive effect on 2002 gross margins, increasing to 19.9% from
12.0% in 2001.

Selling, general and administrative expenses as a percent of revenue increased by 60 basis points to 18.5% in 2003
from 17.9% in 2002. This increase was driven by additional costs incurred reorganizing our operations in Mexico in an
effort to enhance future profitability, Aggressive marketing efforts in Argentina, coupled with limited reorganization costs
and a stronger peso, also contributed to the increase.

Our operations in Argentina and Mexico are affected by fluctuations in currency rates for those countries. Transaction
gains and losses for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, classified as other income (expense), net, were not
significant. For the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, we recorded a foreign currency translation gain of $1.9
million and a loss of $12.8 million, respectively, for Argentina and a translation loss of $5.9 million and a gain of $8.6
million for Mexico, as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income on the balance sheet. At December 31,

2003, our investment in Argentina and Mexico, net of accumulated foreign currency translation adjustments, approximated
$13.2 million and $65.8 million, respectively.
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Financial Services

We conduct our financial services business, which includes mortgage and title operations, through Pulte Mortgage and
other subsidiaries.

We sell our servicing rights on a flow basis through fixed price servicing sales contracts. Due to the short period of
time the servicing rights are held, generally less than four months, we do not amortize the servicing asset. Since the servicing
rights are recorded based on the value in the servicing sales contracts, there are no impairment issues related to these assets.

We also originate mortgage loans using our own funds or borrowings made available through various credit arrangements,
and then sell such mortgage loans to outside investors.

The following table presents mortgage origination data for our Financial Services operations:

Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
Total originations:
LOAIS. ..o ciarrinrisissensninssssesssinnisersassnsnsissssones 28.655 23,074 19,018
Principal ($000's on‘utted) ............................... $4989,500 $3,771.000 $2.937,100
Originations for Pulte customers
LOANS ccucvirertinsiseiessesecnsrenranerastsarstsensissnssssensasees 23,864 19,537 15,402
Principal ($000’s omitted)....c...cervnsmrererersonses $4,179,100  $3,176,500  $2,385,500

Mortgage origination unit and principal volume for the year ended December 31, 2003, increased 24% and 32%,
respectively, over 2002. This growth can be attributed to an increase in the capture rate of 510 basis points to 82.7%
combined with the volume increases experienced in our Homebuilding business and an increase in average loan size. Our
capture rate represents loan originations from our homebuilding business as a percent of total loan opportunities, excluding
cash settlements, from our homebuilding business. Mortgage origination principal volurne in 2002 increased 28% over 2001,
due to an increase in the capture rate of 390 basis points to 77.6% and the inclusion of Del Webb mortgage operations for a
full year. Origination unit volume increased 21% due to the same factors. Our home buying customers continue to account
for the majority of total loan production representing 83% of total Pulte Mortgage unit production for 2003, compared with
85% in 2002 and 81% in 2001. Refinancings represented 8% of total loan production in 2003 and 2002, and 10% during
2001. At December 31, 2003, loan application backlog increased 57% to $2.2 billion as compared to $1.4 billion and $0.8
billion at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Pre-tax income for the year ended December 31, 2003, increased 3% to $68.8 million, as a result of increased volume,
partially offset by the impact of a less favorable interest rate environment for selling loans during the last six months of the
year and an increase in training, systems, and facilities costs incurred in anticipation of the projected growth of the business.
Gains from the sale of mortgages increased $2.0 million, or 3%, from the same period in 2002. As compared with 2002, net
interest income increased $3.8 million to $15.1 million during 2003 due to increased production. Income from our title
operations was $13.5 million in 2003, an increase of 11% over 2002.

Pre-tax income for the year ended December 31, 2002, increased 81% to $66.7 million, as a result of increased
volume, a favorable interest rate environment, effective leverage of overhead costs and the inclusion of Del Webb mortgage
operations for a full year. Gains from the sale of mortgages increased $20.4 million, or 49%, from the same period in 2001.
As compared with 2001, net interest income increased $6.3 million to $11.3 million during 2002 due to increased production

and a steeper yield curve as a result of the drop in interest rates during 2002. Title income grew 42% contributing $12.2
million to pre-tax income for the year.

We hedge portions of our forecasted cash flow from sales of closed mortgage loans with derivative financial
instruments. For the year ended December 31, 2003, we did not recognize any net gains or losses related to an ineffective
portion of the hedging instrument. We also did not recognize any gains or losses during 2003, for cash flow hedges that were
discontinued because it is probable that the original forecasted transaction will not occur. At December 31, 2003, we expect
to reclassify $0.2 million, net of taxes, of net losses on derivative instruments fiom accumulated other comprehensive income
to earnings during the next twelve months from sales of closed mortgage loans.
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Corporate

?orporate is a non-operating segment that supports the operations of our subsidiaries by acting as the internal source of
financing, developing and implementing strategic initiatives centered on new business development and operating
efficiencies, and providing the necessary administrative support associated with being a publicly traded entity listed on the

New York Stock Exchange. As a result, the corporate segment’s operating results will vary from year to year as these
strategic initiatives evolve,

The following table presents this segment’s results of operations ($000°s omitted):

Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
Net interest EXPense.....cooeremrmrrermeemsesoserssesaneassonsen $ 39364 § 38214 § 34,261
Other corporate expenses, NEt .......corerrreesrsessarennss 35,987 23754 __ 23,191
Loss before income taxes .......oaemmeesesirennaraseserens $§ 75351 3 61968 $ 57452

Interest expense, net of interest capitalized into inventory, increased 3% to $39.4 million in 2003 and 12% to $38.2
million in 2002. This trend is a result of an increase in debt levels necessary to support our growth. Interest incurred for the
years ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001, excluding interest incurred by our financial services operations, was
approximately $179.0 million, $162.5 million and $116.9 million, respectively.

Other corporate expense, net in 2003 increased $12.2 million principally as a resnlt of higher compensation-related
costs. Over the two-year period ended December 31, 2002, other corporate expenses, net were relatively flat, as higher
compensation-related costs were offset by income from the sale and adjustment to fair value of various non-operating parcels
of commercial land held for sale.

Interest capitalized into inventory is charged to home cost of sales based on the cyclical timing of our unit settlements,
over a period that approximates the average life cycle of our communities. Interest in inventory, has increased primarily as a
result of higher levels of indebtedness and the addition of the Del Webb properties, which have a longer life cycle.
Information related to Corporate interest capitalized into inventory is as follows ($000’s omitted):

Years Ended December 31
2003 2002 2001
Interest in inventory at beginning of year .......cvu.e. $ 142984 $ 68,595 § 24202
Interest Capitalized ...omvceemirsirorcorsasessessissmnennsarsssssses 136,308 123,086 80,399

Interest expensed
Interest in inventory at end of year

(78.708) __ (48.697) __(36,006)
$ 200584 § 142984 § 68505

Discontinued Operations

During the third quarter of 2003 and 2002, we recorded non-cash, after-tax gains of $7.9 million and $10.0 million,
respectively, related to the favorable resolution of certain tax matters relating to our thrift operation, First Heights Bank, fsb
(First Heights), which we discontinued in 1994.

In September 2003, the United States Court of Federal Claims issued final judgment that Pulte Homes, Iuc., Pulte
Diversified Companies, Inc. and First Heights (collectively, the Pulte Parties) had been damaged by approximately $48.7
million as a result of the United States government’s breach of confract with them. The final judgment follows the Court’s
August 17, 2001 ruling that the United States breached the contract related to the Pulte Parties” 1988 acquisition of five
savings and loan associations by enacting Section 13224 of the Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1993. The United
States government and the Pulte Parties filed Notices of Appeal with the United States Court of Appeals for the Federal
Circuit in October 2003. Accordingly, any gain related to this litigation will be recognized only upon final resolution.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our net cash used in operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2003 totaled $301.8 million. The increase in
net income was offset by significant investments in land necessary to support the continued growth of the business. Net cash
used in investing activities was $34.1 million for 2003. Net cash provided by ﬁnancmg activities for the year ended
December 31, 2003, was $128.9 million, reflecting proceeds from the $300 million senior notes issued in February and the

$400 million senior notes issued in May and proceeds from employee stock option exercises, offset by the repayment of debt,
dividends pa1d and stock repurchases.

Our net cash provided by operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2002, was $148.8 million. The increase
in net income was aided by the realization of certain tax benefits and an increase in accrued liabilities, while inventories
continued to build to support the growth of the business. Net cash provided by investing activities was $21.5 million for
2002. Net cash provided by financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2002, was $374.0 million, reflecting
proceeds from the $300 million senior notes issued in June 2002, proceeds from borrowings under our various credit

facilities and proceeds from employee stock option exercises, offset by the repayment of debt, dividends paid and stock
repurchases.

We finance our homebuilding land acquisitions, development and construction activities from internally generated
funds and existing credit agreements. Effective October 1, 2003, we replaced our $570 million revolving credit facility with
an $850 million facility that includes the capacity to issue letters of credit up to $500 million. This new credit facility expires
October 1, 2008. -We had no borrowings under our unsecured revolving credit facility at December 31, 2003.

Pulte Mortgage provides mortgage financing for many of our home sales and uses its own funds and borrowings made
available pursuant to various committed and uncommitted credit amrangements. Pulte Mortgage has committed credit
arrangements of $860 million comprised of a $310 million bank revolving credit facility and a $550 million annual asset-
backed commercial paper program.  There were approximately $479.3 million of borrowings outstanding under existing
Pulte Mortgage arrangements at December 31, 2003. Mortgage loans originated by Pulte Mortgage are subsequently sold to
outside investors. We anticipate that there will be adequate mortgage financing available for purchasers of our homes.

In February 2003, we sold $300 million of 6.25% unsecured senior notes, due 2013. Proceeds from this issuance were
used to retire our $175 million 9.5% senior noies that matured on April 1, 2003 and redeem the remaining outstanding
principal balance of approximately $155 million of Del Webb’s $200 million 9.375% senior subordinated notes due 2009
that were called for redemption in March at a price equal to 104.688% of the principal amount.

In May 2003, we sold $400 million of 6.375% unsecured senior notes, due 2033. Proceeds from this issuance were
used for general corporate purposes and to retire our $100 million 7% senior notes that matured on December 15, 2003.

In December 2003, we increased our dividend 150% to $.05 per share from $.02 per share.

Pursuant to our $100 million share repurchase program, we repurchased 790,800 common shares at an aggregate cost
of approximately $18.2 million during 2003 and 200,000 common shares for approximately $4.3 million in 2002. At
December 31, 2003, we had remaining authorization to purchase common stock aggregating $77.5 million.

Our income tax liability and related effective tax rate are affected by a2 number of factors. In 2003, our effective tax
rate was 38.0% compared to 39.0% in 2002 and 38.5% in 2001. The reduction in the effective tax rate for 2003 is principally
due to a lower expected effective state income tax rate for 2003 and the shareholders’ approval of our new Senior
Management Annual Incentive Plan, which will allow for full tax deductibility of Plan payments under Section 162(m) of the
Internal Revenue Service Code. We anticipate that our effective tax rate for 2004 will be approximately 38%.

At December 31, 2003, we had cash and equivalents of $404.1 million, $2.1 billion of unsecured senior notes and

$77.3 million of unsecured senior subordinated notes. Other financing includes limited recourse collateralized financing
totaling $83.3 million,

Sources of our working capital at December 31, 2003, include cash and equivalents, our $850 million committed
unsecured revolving credit facility and Pulte Mortgage’s $860 million revolving credit facilities. Our debt-to-total
capitalization, excluding our collateralized debt, was 38.4% as of December 31, 2003, and 33.6% net of cash and
equivalents. We expect to maintain our net debt-to-total capitalization at or below the 40% level.

In January 2004, we sold $500 million of 5.25% senior notes, due 2014. Proceeds from the sale will be used to retire

the Del Webb 10.25% subordinated debentures called for redemption and for general corporate purposes including continued
investment in our business.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources (continued)
Inflation

We, and the homebuilding industry in general, may be adversely affected during periods of high inflation because of
higher land and construction costs. Inflation also increases our financing, labor and material costs. In addition, higher
mortgage interest rates significantly affect the affordability of permanent mortgage financing to prospective homebuyers.
We attempt to pass to our customers any increases in our costs through increased sales prices. To date, inflation has not had

a material adverse effect on our results of operations. However, there is no assurance that inflation will not have a material
adverse impact on our future results of operations.

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

The following table summarizes our payments under contractual obligations as of December 31, 2003:

Payments Due by Period
($000°s omitted)

Total 2004 2005-2006 2007-2008 After 2008

Contractual obligations:
Long-term debt (@).....ceerrerremseseasecresrsrreses $4,394,051 § 346,369 $ 403,778 § 269,652 33,374,252
Capital lease obligations ........c.ecerveeerveveras - - - - -
Operating lease obligations........cceueeeesenes 126,403 32,590 44,057 26,355 23,401
Purchase obligations............ceeriecctrnsansas - - - - -
Other long-term liabilities (5).....cccverrnees 91,223 32,849 50.808 5.314 2,254
Total contractual obligations..........eweeeereures $4611677 § 411,808 3§ 498641 § 301321 $3,399.907

(a) Represents our senior notes and subordinated notes and related interest payments

(b) Represents our limited recourse collateralized financing arrangements and related interest payments

The following table summarizes our other commercial commitments as of December 31, 2003:

Amount of Commitment Expiration by Period

($000°s omitted)
Total 2004 _ 20052006 2007-2008 After 2008
Other commercial commitments:
Guarantor revolving credit facilities @)... $ 850,000 $ -3 - § 850,000 % -
Non-guarantor revolving credit facilities. 860,000 - 860,000 - -
Other credit facilities ........coorereeerssereesnnene 3,000 3,000 - - -
Standby letters of credit (B) ...ocrveinencrcasens 57.844 56.890 954 - -

................. $1770844 § 59890 $ 860,954 § _850.000 § -

(@) Includes capacity to issue up to $500 million in standby letters of credit of which §157.4 million was outstanding at
December 31, 2003.

(b) Excludes standby letters of credit issued under the Guarantor revolving credit facilities.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We use standby letters of credit and performance bonds to guarantee our performance under various contracts,
principally in connection with the development of our projects. The expiration dates of the letter of credit contracts coincide
with the expected completion date of the related projects. If the obligations related to a project are ongoing, annual
extensions of the letters of credit are typically granted on a year-to-year basis. At December 31, 2003, we had outstanding
letters of credit of $215.2 million. Performance bonds do not have stated expiration dates; rather, we are released from the
bonds as the contractual performance is completed. These bonds, which approximated $1.2 billion at December 31, 2003,

are typically outstanding over a period that approximates 3-5 years. We do not believe that we will be required to draw upon
any such letters of credit or performance bonds.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements (continued)

In the ordinary course of business, we enter into land option or option type agreements in order to procure land for the
construction of houses in the future. At December 31, 2003, these agreements totaled approximately $4.7 billion. Pursuant
to these land option agreements, we provide a deposit to the seller as consideration for the right to purchase land at different
times in the future, usually at predetermined prices. If the entity holding the land under option is a variable interest entity,

our deposit represents a variable interest in that entity. At December 31, 2003, we consolidated certain variable interest
entities with assets totaling $73.3 million.

We currently do not have any non-consolidated special purpose entity arrangements.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The accompanying consolidated financial statements were prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States. When more than one accounting principle, or the method of its application, is generally
accepted, we select the principle or method that is appropriate in our specific circumstances (see Note 1 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements). Application of these accounting principles requires us to make estimates about the
future resolution of existing uncertainties; as a result, actual results could differ from these estimates. In preparing these
financial statements, we have made our best estimates and judgments of the amounts and disclosures included in the financial
staternents, giving due regard to materiality. The development and selection of the following critical accounting policies and
estimates have been discussed with the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors,

Revenue recognition

Homebuilding ~ Homebuilding revenues are recorded when the sales of homes are completed and ownership has
transferred to the customer. Unfunded settlements are deposits in transit on homes for which the sale was completed. We do
not engage in arrangements whereby we have ongoing relationships with our homebuyers that require us to repurchase our
homes or provide homebuyers with the right of return.

Financial Services ~ Mortgage servicing fees represent fees eamed for servicing loans for various investors. Servicing
fees are based on a contractual percentage of the outstanding principal balance and are credited to income when the related
mortgage payments are received. Loan origination fees, commitment fees and certain direct loan origination costs are
deferred as an adjustment to the cost of the related mortgage loan until such loan is sold. Gains and losses from sales of

mortgage loans are recognized when the loans are sold. Interest income is accrued from the date a mortgage loan is
originated until the loan is sold.

[nventory valuation

Our finished inventories are stated at the lower of accumulated costs or net realizable value. Included in inventories
are all direct development costs. Inventories under development or held for development are stated at accumulated cost,
unless they are determined to be impaired, in which case these inventories are measured at fair value. If actual market
conditions are less favorable than those projected by management, additional inventory adjustments may be required.

We capitalize interest cost into homebuilding inventories. Interest capitalized each quarter is identified as a separate
layer in our capitalized interest balance sheet pool. Each layer of capitalized interest is amortized over a period that
approximates the average life of communities under development. Interest expense is allocated to the quarters over the
amortization period based on the historical relationship of unit settlements in a quarter compared to annual unit settlements.
This period increased in 2001, due to the addition of the Del Webb properties, which have a longer life cycle, and could
change in the future as the mix of cornmunities change.

Sold units are expensed on a specific identification basis. Under the specific identification basis, cost of sales includes
the construction cost of the home, an average lot cost by project based on land acquisition and development costs, and
closing costs and commissions. Construction cost of the home includes amounts paid through the closing date of the home,
plus an accrual for costs incurred but not yet paid, based on an analysis of budgeted construction cost. This accrual is
reviewed for accuracy based on actual payments made after closing compared to the amount accrued, and adjustments are
made if needed. Total project land acquisition and development costs are based on an analysis of budgeted costs compared
to actual costs incurred to date and estimates to complete. Adjustments to estimated total project land acquisition and
development costs for the project affect the amount of future lots costed.
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates (continued)

Residential mortgage loans available-for-sale

Residential mortgage loans available-for-sale are stated at the lower of aggregate cost or market value. Gains and
losses from sales of mortgage loans are recognized when the loans are sold. We hedge our residential mortgage loans

available-for-sale. Gains and losses from closed commitments and futures contracts are matched against the related gains
and losses on the sale of mortgage loans.

Goodwill and intangible assets

We have identified significant intangible assets and generated significant goodwill, most recently as a result of the Del
Webb merger in 2001. Intangible assets, primarily trademarks and tradenames, were valued using proven valuation
procedures and are amortized over their estimated useful life. Goodwill is subject to annual impairment testing. The
carrying value and ultimate realization of these assets is dependent upon estimates of future earnings and benefits that we
expect to generate from their use. If our expectations of future results and cash flows decrease significantly, intangible assets
and goodwill may be impaired and the resulting charge to operations may be material. If we determine that the carrying
value of intangible assets, long-lived assets and goodwill may not be recoverable based upon the existence of one or more
indicators of impairment, we measure impairment based on one of three methods. For assets related to ongoing operations,
we use a projected undiscounted cash flow method to determine if impairment exists and then measure impairment using
discounted cash flows. For assets to be disposed of, we assess the fair value of the asset based on current market conditions
for similar assets. For goodwill, we assess fair value by measuring discounted cash flows of our reporting units and measure
impairment as the difference between the resulting implied fair value of goodwill and the recorded book value.

The estimates of useful lives and expected cash flows require us to make significant judgments regarding future
periods that are subject to some factors outside of our control. Changes in these estimates could result in significant revisions
to the carrying value of these assets and material charges to the results of operations.

Allowance for warranties

Home purchasers are provided with warranties against certain building defects. The specific terms and conditions of
those warranties vary geographically. Most warranties cover different aspects of the home’s construction and operating
systems for a period of up to ten years, We estimate the costs to be incurred under these warranties and record 2 liability in
the amount of such costs at the time product revenue is recognized. Factors that affect our warranty liability include the
number of homes sold, historical and anticipated rates of warmranty claims, and cost per claim. We periodically assess the
adequacy of recorded warranty liabilities and adjust the amounts as necessary. Although we have not made significant
adjustments to the accrual in the past, actual warranty cost in the future could differ from our current estimate.

Stock-based compensation

We currently have several stock-based employee compensation plans. Effective January 1, 2003 we adopted the
preferable fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.” We sclected the
prospective method of adoption as permitted by SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition
and Disclosure.” Under the prospective method, we will recognize compensation expense based on the fair value provisions
of SFAS No. 123 for all new stock option grants effective January 1, 2003. Grants made prior to January 1, 2003 will
continue to be accounted for under the recognition and measurement principles of APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for
Stock Issued to Employees,” and related Interpretations. With the exception of certain variable stock option grants, no stock-
based employee compensation cost is reflected in net income for grants made prior to January 1, 2003, as all options granted
under those plans had an exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying common stock on the date of the grant.

We use the Black-Scholes option-pricing model to determine the fair value of each option grant. The Black-Scholes
model includes assurnptions regarding dividend yields, expected volatility, risk-free interest rates ard expected lives. These
assurnptions reflect management’s best estimates, but these items involve inherent uncertainties based on market conditions
generally outside of our control. As a result, if other assummptions had been used, stock-based compensation expense could
have been materially impacted. Furthermore, if management uses different assumptions in future periods, stock-based
compensation expense could be materially impacted in future periods.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are subject to interest rate risk on our rate-sensitive financing to the extent long-term rates decline. The following
tables set forth, as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, our rate-sensitive financing obligations, principal cash flows by
scheduled maturity, weighted-average interest rates and estimated fair market value ($000°s omitted).

As of December 31, 2003 for the
Years ended December 31,

There- Fair
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 _after Total Value
Rate sensitive liabilities:
Fixed interest rate debt:
. Senior notes and
subordinated notes.............. $ 185,503 $ 125000 § - $ -3 - $1,848,563 $2,159,066 $ 2,387,945
Average interest rate............ 9.12% 7.0% - - - 7.29% 7.45% -

Limited recourse

collateralized financing....... $ 29259 § 33,85 $ 13267 § 2367 $ 2354% 21438 83,255 % 83,255
Average interest rate............ 2.52% 6.00% 3.50% 5.09% 5.24% 4.78% 431% -

As of December 31, 2002 for the
Years ended December 31,

There- Fair
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 after Total Value
Rate sensitive liabilities:
Fixed interest rate debt:
Senior notes and
subordinated notes .............. $275,000 $ 112,000 $ 125000 $ - 3 - 51,395,976 $1,907,976 § 2,006,173
Average interest rate............ 8.59% 8.38% 73% - - 8.46% 8.23% -

Limited recourse

collateralized financing....... § 59563 § 41528 § 31,131 § 9,128 § 1,350% 2,826 3 145526 § 145,526
Average interest rate............ 5.27% 5.53% 6.12% 2.16% 4.00% 4.00% 5.30% -

Pulte Mortgage, operating as a mortgage banker, is also subject to interest rate risk. Interest rate risk begins when we
commit to lend money to a customer at agreed-upon terms (i.e., commit to lend at a certain interest rate for a certain period of
time). The interest rate risk continues through the loan closing and until the loan is sold to an investor. During 2003 and
2002, this period of interest rate exposure averaged approximately 60 days. In periods of rising interest rates, the length of

exposure will generally increase due to customers locking in an interest rate sooner as opposed to letting the interest rate
float.

We minimize interest rate risk by (i) financing the loans via a variable rate borrowing agreement tied to the Federal
Funds rate and (ii) hedging our loan commitments and closed loans through derivative financial instruments. These financial
instruments include cash forward placement contracts on mortgage-backed securities, whole loan investor commitments,
options on treasury future contracts and options on cash forward placement contracts on mortgage-backed securities. We do
not use any derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.

Hypothetical changes in the fair values of our financial instruments arising from immediate parallel shifts in long-term
mortgage rates of plus 50, 100 and 150 basis points would not be material to our financial results. ’

Our aggregate net investments exposed to foreign currency exchange rate risk include our operations in Mexico which
approximated $65.8 million, our mortgage banking joint venture investment in Mexico which approximated $17.5 million
and our operations in Argentina which approximated $13.2 million.
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SPECIAL NOTES CONCERNING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

As a cautionary note, except for the historical information contained herein, certain matters discussed in Item 7.,
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and Item 7A., Quantitative and
Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk, are “forward-looking” statements within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Such forward-looking statements involve known risks, uncertainties and other factors that
may cause our actual results, performance or achievements to be materially different from our future results, performance or
achievements expressed or implied by the forward-looking statermnents. Such factors include, among other things, (1) general
economic and business conditions; (2) interest rate changes and the availability of mortgage financing; (3) the relative
stability of debt and equity markets; (4) competition; (5) the availability and cost of land and other raw materials used in our
homebuilding operations; (6} the availability and cost of insurance covering risks associated with our business; (7) shortages
and the cost of labor; (8) weather related slowdowns; (9) slow growth initiatives and/or local building moratoria; (10)
governmental regulation, including the interpretation of tax, labor and environmental laws; (11) changes in consumer
confidence and preferences; (12) required accounting changes; (13) terrorist acts and other acts of war; and (14) other factors .
over which we have little or no control.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

PULTE HOMES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2003 and 2002
{$000’s omitted, except share data)
ASSETS
2003
Cash and eqUIVAIENLS ......e.euiseeemmseierasemcnsrieriosassienimesssseseesenssrersassessasassatss $ 404,092
Unfunded SEMHEMENLS ........c.crerverervurmuenssriensioirssssasiemseremsrsseesesmessesssenes 122,300
House and Iand inVENtOTY.........ccccoercermrrnreermssiernirisarsneserssssissssssesarsessens 5,528,410
Land, not owned, under option agrEements ......c.ovvevrerevnrnressarensemsesssonsoenss 73,256
Residential mortgage loans available-for-sale........coeeerrererecerunn. 541,126
GOOAWILL ...t ctssasteretescenssssnssaesssissnssss senessatssssssensessrsmsansens 307,693
Intangible assets, Tet....coueeriirmeerscircresesessmsensnssseressssrarsssasesssmsnesssensassees 143,704
OHhEr ASSELS ...vvevenrncrerirensirserninsianssessmssresismssssst srsssssssssrsarsssssnssasersssssssnsrss 942,771
Deferred income tax asset -
$_8.063.352

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Liabilities:
Accounts payable, including book overdrafts of $222,681 and
$181,812 in 2003 and 2002, respectively $ 452,648
CUStOMNET EBPOSILS...seesesrerrocssorsessrnesirsissmssnssiraressiassssssssssasssasesasarsssaens 372,507

Accrued and other Habilities ......ccoceerrrrmrerneernreessnessseesesessenssesersenn 1,072,550
Collateralized short-terin debt, recourse solely to applicable

non-guarantor subsidiary assets 479,287
INCOME tAXES ...ooveeeeeericrnenseisrronanesarrssecencanns 79,391
Deferred income tax Hability .......ccovevueiesnesnsimsmeeiasnesisenssisesssisesesens 7,874
Senior notes and subordinated NOtes ........cceccesrereesuneneres 2150972

Total Habilities........ccvecrerssmsicsscnsssinsssoreosssormasaresisrsessssassssasssisessasess 4615229

Shareholders’ Equity:

Preferred stock, $.01 par value; 50,000,000 shares authorized,

TONE SSUEA ....vvererercreecrrersnesassarsorsesessasesrersassassessesarsssaneasasssnsrssasson -
Common stock, $.01 par value; 400,000,000 shares authorized,

125,152,816 and 122,249,872 shares issued and outstanding

in 2003 and 2002, reSPectiVEly ....iciiissimssinnnsorenismsnsessonsiesens 1,252
Additional paid-in Capifal.......cccocorererrercncmsserecscaremermoressersssmsmesasessaseas 1,015,991
Uneamed COMPENSAton .........eeiuriereimsessrsssisscsscsmmssmssssosessassesssesssanes (656)
Accumulated other comprehensive 10ss. ....coreiiicecnenisrenserennsesoenens (39,142)
Retained arnings..........coueeeersscsesmssassasscssssersnsorasseasassessosasssssosassassaass 2.470.678

Total shareholders’ EqQUILY ......coveccereeeeneesrrrsrarenesroresssescarescssscnsrerens 3448123

2 8,063352

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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2002

$ 613,168
60,641
4,293,597

600,339
307,693
151,954
832,952

11,743

$ 6,872,087

§ 376,653
265,817
906,293

559,621
90,009

1,913,268
4,111,661

1,222
932,551

(9,866)

(35,371)
1.871.890

—2.760.426
$ 6872,087



PULTE HOMES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
For the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001
{000°s omitted, except per share data)

2003 2002 2001
Revenues: )
HOMEDBUIIAING ....cverurree e cetrieeetiesse e e e s et ssessseeman s seraessesseans $8,929,798 $7,363,989 $5,309,829
Financial Services.................. 115,847 106,628 77,222
COTPOTALE......coruerrrerserrsrrensnssrrssessrssmsassesressesstssastsssessssessasessaseroressassessens 3,281 1,202 2,210
TOtal TEVETUES ....ovveeunseeercinensinssarsrresissessssaeasesaessisase 9.048.926 _7.471.819 _5.389.261
Expenses:

Homebuilding, principaily cost of sales 7,960,148 6,646,666 4,806,812

Financial SErvICeS .....cccoerermrnrireeriereemerensessmsrosrenns 53,253 45,579 44,546

COTPOTALE, TIEL.....covurucrereneseaianresransessasserrsssssasssnsassasssssssrsesassnsesaraneassns _78.632 63.170 59.662

Total EXPENSES ....criirirerresimsrsrrereasmirssesmemsemsessstrensrosssssrcns 8,092,033 _6.755415 _4.911,020
Other income:

EQUILY INCOMIE .....ee cencereeesrremerneersrasersssssrasmressrssasssssssssonsesseasensresases 38,763 12.418 13.546
Income from continuing operations before income taxes ....uewecserisirnes 995,656 728,822 491,787
INCOITIE TAKES 1rerverecerceranenssesorerassesecnmmsrsssesnesstssssesrsonsrsisssseressrenmssssassssnsaras 378334 284.221 189.362
Income from continUINgG OPETAtIONS «.vevvurerrrssessersarsresesserersoressmsrrsasssssassanse 617,322 444,601 302,425
Income (loss) from discontinued OPerations........cceeruereerresemsercerercorueces 7312 9.044 (1.032)
INELIDCOTIIC ...ccv et cen et e srnn st sosesnae s ssasstanassassossassasassensssans $ 624634 § 453645 § 301393
Per share data:

Basic:
Income from continuing OPerations......c....ccoerernemreseasesescressrasasases 3 505 § 368 % 3.08
Income (loss) from discontinued Operations ..........eecssenroresssucases .06 07 (.01)
NEL IICOITIE ..evvveeverenmseersinnssssesrosenencsesssssssssrasssrmsesssssssrsssarasrasssssissnes 3 511§ 375 ¢ 3.07
Assuming dilution:
Income from continuing OPErations........cccvumcrrsesssasiesiserarersranns 5 491 3§ 360 3 3.00
Income (loss) from discontinued OpPerations ...........c.evcecssesisranenns 06 07 (.01)
NEE INCOMMIE uvecveerereereresessnesisareresssesessasssesnessissssssresssssssrensasssassessasnss 3 497 $ 367 § 2.99
Cash dividends declared........c.cecoueresrermmcrerariesssesrnsinsissassasossrsssessssns 3 d1 8 08 § 08
Number of shares used in calculation:
Basic:
Weighted-average common shares outstanding .....ooveeversererences 122,162 120,906 98,196
Assuming dilution:
Effect of dilutive securities - stock options and restricted
SEOCK BIATIS ..cvvvrerererserarensanensarnoserasaristsassesonarsassvssasemescarsasnaseee 3,568 2.586 2450
Adjusted weighted-average common shares
and effect of dilUVE SECUTItIES. emurumreereemrrerenreseesssserssessasares 125730 123492 __ 100,646

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

PULTE HOMES, INC.

For the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001

{3000°s omnitted, except per share data)

Accumulated
Additional Other
Common Paid-in Unearned Comprehensive Retained
Stock Capital Compensation Income (Loss) Earnings Total
Shareholders’ Equity, December 31,2000......... 832 109,177 - 185 1,137,737 1,247,931
Common stock issued and stock options
exchanged in merger 336 729,051 - - - 729,387
Stock option exercise, including tax benefit
of $4,982 14 18,505 - - - 18,519
Restricted stock award 2 5,556 (5,558) - - -
Restricted stock award amortization..........aevmeees - - 1,699 - - 1,699
Cash dividends declared - 3.08 per share ............... - - - - (8,110) (8,110)
Comprehensive income:
Net income - - - - 301,393 301,393
Change in fair value of derivatives, net of
income taxes 0f 3371 ....veceerreeervecrsunraonsearsonrane - - - (592) - (592)
Foreign currency translation adjustments........... - - - (13,562) - (13.562)
Total comprehensive inCome .....cvccsccsssrsicseces 287.239
Shareholders® Equity, December 31, 2001 ......... 1,184 862,289 (3,859) (13,969) 1,431,020 2,276,665
Stock option exercise, including tax benefit
of $20,651 34 55,667 - - - 55,701
Restricted stock award 6 11,313 (11,319) - - -
Restricted stock award amortization..........eaeeeee - - 5312 - - 5312
Cash dividends declared - $.08 per share ............... - - - - 9,773) (9,773)
Stock repurchases. 2} (1,793) - - (3,002) 4,797)
Stock based compensation .....ucsseanisemess - 5,075 - - - 5,075
Comprehensive income:
Net income - - - - 453,645 453,645
Change in fair value of derivatives, net of
income taxes of $807.....ccovreencererncrresssserersans - - - (1,288) - (1.288)
Foreign currency translation adjustments - - - (20,114) - {2014)
Total comprehensive income .......cowes.. .. 432243
Shareholders’ Equity, December 31, 2002......... 1,222 932,551 (9,866) (35,371) 1,871,890 2,760,426
Stock option exercise, including lax benefit........... .
of $28,742 32 68,203 - - - 68,235
Restricted stock award 6 (6} - - - -
Restricted stock award amortization.......eeeecssens - - 9,210 - - 9,210
Cash dividends declared - $.11 per share - - - - (13,612) (13,612)
Stock repurchases @) (6,062) - - (12,234) (18,304)
Stock based COMPENSAHON....csrcreeiensarsirarsseerscronseens - 21,305 - - - 21,305
Comprehensive income:
Net income - - - - 624,634 624,634
Change in fair value of derivatives, net of
income taxes of $(1,055) ..c.cervrerivrrrvraseresrsnens - - - 1,682 - 1,682
Foreign currency translation adjustments .......... - - - (5,453) - . (5453)
Total comprehensive income 620.863
Sharcholders® Equity, December 31,2003 ......... g 125 § 1015991 3 (656) § (39.142) § 2470678 3 3448123

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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PULTE HOMES, INC,
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001

(5000°s omitted)

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income......

..........................................

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash flows
provided by (used in) operating activities:

Amortization and depreciation
Stock-based compensation expense

Deferred income taxes

...................................................

Other, net

Increase (decrease) in cash, excluding effects of acquired

entities, due to:
Inventories ........

Income faxes .....ceorervnre

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Cash paid for acquisitions, net o

Proceeds from the sale of fixed assets

Capital expenditures ..........ecoveuie
10351 75 1T AU

Net cash provided by (used in) inve

f cash acquired

...................................................

......................................................

StINE aCHVItES ... cueecerrecreaceesenreane

Cash flows from financing activities:

Payment of senior notes and subordinated notes

Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of borrowings
Issuance of coramon stock.........
Stock repurchases .........oceesveenens
Dividends paid .......ccoounsiseerenncene

Net cash provided by financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and equivalents

Net increase (decrease) in cash and

Cash and equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and equivalents at end of year

...................................................

...................................................
......................................................
.............................................

CqQUIVAIEIS 1ecveonerarareeererersserssennans

-------------------------------------------

......................................................

Supplemental Cash Flow Information:

Non-cash investing and financing activities:
Issuance of common stock and exchange of stock options

I INCIECL «..ovvviverereennranenonsesanssesasmensressassssansassnsnsstostansannans
Cash paid during the year for:
Interest, net of amount capitalized .........cccecurcvemvervcrniniieccsenenns
INCOme taXes.....oovimerneicernrmncrcneerireceserenns

2003 2002 2001
$ 624,634 $ 453,645 § 301,393
40,160 39,251 32,384
30,515 10,387 314
19,617 39,235 (8,176)
(4,183) (9,754) (15)
(1,414294)  (516,179)  (646,590)
59,213 (164,878)  (157,325)
(19,413) 24,990 25,286
343,779 196,852 1,371
18.124 75245 44,671
(301.848) 148,794 (406.687)
- . 11,644
5,023 45,198 18,115
(39,120) (23,700) (30,196)
) - 1285
(34.097) 21.498 848
(457,511)  (107,576)  (363,391)
696,965 578,317 980,306
(118,168)  (117,256)  (325.714)
39,493 34,597 13,537
(18,304) (4,344) -
(13.612) (9.773) (8.110)
128.863  __373.965 __ 296,628
(1,994) (3,233) (2,630)
(209,076) 541,024 (111,841)
613.168 72,144 183,985
$ 404002 3 613168 § 72,144
h) - 3 - § 728387
$_4283 3 48268 § 31364
$ 337590 3 _165.570 § _137.684

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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1.

PULTE HOMES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Basis of presentation and significant accounting policies

Basis of presentation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Pulte Hornes, Inc. and all of its direct and indirect
subsidiaries (the Company). The direct subsidiaries of Pulte Homes, Inc. include Pulte Diversified Companies, Inc,,
Del Webb Corporation (Del Webb) and other subsidiaries that are engaged in the homebuilding business. Pulte
Diversified Companies, Inc.'s operating subsidiaries include Puite Home Corporation, Pulte International Corporation
(International) and other subsidiaries that are engaged in the homebuilding business. Pulte Diversified Companies,
Inc.’s non-operating thrift subsidiary, First Heights Bank, fsb (First Heights), is classified as a discontinued operation
(See Note 4). The Company also has a mortgage banking company, Pulte Mortgage LLC (Pulte Mortgage), whichis a
subsidiary of Pulte Home Corporation.

Effective January 1, 2002, the Company reorganized the structure of its operations within Mexico to create a
single company, Pulte Mexico S. de R.L. de C.V. Under the new ownership structure, the Company’s operations in
Mexico, which were primarily conducted through joint ventures, have been combined into Pulte Mexico S. de R.L. de
C.V. and are 63.8% owned by International. Results for 2002 include joint venture operations for one month and
operations as a consolidated entity for eleven months, as the operations in Mexico report on a one-month lag.

Certain amounts previously reported in the 2002 financial statements and notes thereto were reclassified to
conform to the 2003 presentation. In addition, ali share and per share amounts have been restated to reflect the
Company’s two-for-one stock split announced December 11, 2003 and effected January 2, 2004,

Significant accounting pelicies

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial
statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Foreign currency

The financial statements of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries in Argentina and Mexico are measured using the
local currency as the functional currency. Assets and liabilities of these subsidiaries are translated at exchange rates as
of the balance sheet date. Revenues and expenses are translated at average exchange rates in effect during the year.
The resulting cumulative franslation adjustments have been recorded in other comprehensive income. Realized foreign
currency transaction gains and losses are included in the Consolidated Statement of Operations. Realized foreign
currency transaction losses were $0.4 million, $0.7 million, and $0.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2003,
2002 and 2001, respectively.

Cash and equivalents

For purposes of the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, commercial paper and time deposns with a maturity
of three months or less when acquired are classified as cash equivalents.
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PULTE HOMES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Basis of presentation and significant accounting policies (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)

Goodwill

On January 1, 2002, Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets,” became effective. In accordance with SFAS No. 142, the Company does not record amortization
expense related to goodwill but reviews it annually for impairment. The following table sets forth reported net income
and earnings per share, as adjusted to exclude goodwill amortization:

Year Ended December 31, 2001
(3000°s omitted, except per share data)
As Reported As Adiusted

Income from continuing OPELAONS ..uuveirsresreersecsrerssersasrrens 3 302425 §$ 306,587
...... § 301393 § 305,555

Net iNCOME ....ivcnrernrnrererasrsnsacssisenes
Per share data:
Basic:
Income from continuing operations ............eeereeesens 3 308 § 312
Net INCOME iuiviivriemrmrrrrererr e rrrrsvesrerererensssserarsesnonses b 307 % 3.11
Diluted:
Income from continuing operations ...........isemeceses 3 300 $ 305
Net income......occrvveensrvrenres - 3 299 3 3,04

At December 31, 2003, the majority of goodwill, which represents the cost of acquired companies in excess of the
fair value of the net assets at the acquisition date, resulted from the acquisition of Del Webb in 2001. All goodwill
relates to the Homebuilding segment, except for $0.7 million which relates to the Financial Services segment. In
accordance with SFAS No. 142, annually and when events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount
may not be recoverable, management evaluates the recoverability of goodwill by comparing the carrying value of the
Company’s reporting units to their fair value. Fair value is determined based on discounted future cash flows. The
Company performed its annual impairment test during the fourth quarter 2003 and determined there to be no
impairment of goodwill. There has been no change in the carrying amount of goodwill for the years ended December
31, 2003 and 2002.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets consist primarily of trademarks and tradenames acquired in connection with the 2001 acquisition
of Del Webb, These intangible assets were valued at the acquisition date utilizing proven valuation procedures and are
being amortized on a straight-line basis over a 20-year life. The acquired cost and accumulated amortization of the
Company’s intangible assets is $163.5 million and $19.8 million, respectively, at December 31, 2003. Amortization
expense for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001 was $8.3 million, $8.2 million, and $3.4 million,
respectively, and is expected to be approximately $8.3 million in each of the next 5 years.

In accordance with SFAS No. 144, intangible assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate the carrying amount may not be recoverable. If impairment indicators exist, an assessment of
undiscounted future cash flows for the assets related to these intangibles is evaluated accordmgly If the results of the
analysis indicate impairment, the assets are adjusted to fair market value.
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PULTE HOMES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Basis of presentation and significant accounting policies (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)

Fixed Assets and Depreciation

Fixed assets are recorded at cost. Maintenance and repair costs are charged to earnings as incurred. Depreciation
is computed principally by the straight-line method based upon estimated useful lives as follows: Vehicles, three to
five years, model and office furniture, two to five years, and equipment, three to ten years. Fixed assets are included in
Other Assets and totaled $92.4 million net of accumulated depreciation of $88.8 million at December 31, 2003 and
$76.1 million net of $74.3 million at December 31, 2002. Total depreciation expense for the years ended December
31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 was $31.9 million, $31.1 million, and $30.1 million, respectively.

Investments in unconsolidated entities

The Company participates in a number of joint ventures with independent third parties in which the Company has
less than a controlling interest. These joint ventures purchase, develop and/or sell land and homes in the United States,
Mexico and Puerto Rico. The Company recognizes its share of profits from the sale of lots and homes to other buyers.
Profits from lots the Company purchases from the joint ventures are not recognized, but instead are deferred umtil
which time the related homes are sold. At December 31, 2003, the Company had approximately $51.9 million
invested in these joint ventures. In the event management of the joint ventures determines that an additional capital
infusion is required, the Company would need to contribute its pro rata portion of those capital needs in order not to
dilute its ownership in the joint venture. The Company has not guaranteed any of the outstanding debt of the joint
ventures at Décember 31, 2003, which approximated $121.4 million.

The Company also owns 22.2% of the capital stock of a mortgage banking company in Mexico. At December 31,
2003, the Company’s investment in this entity was approximately $17.5 million. The Company does not have any
purchase or investment commitments to this entity. Furthermore, the Company has not guaranteed any of the
indebtedness of this entity, which approximated $1.3 billion at December 31, 2003.

These investments are accounted for under the equity method.

Advertising cost

The Company expenses advertising costs as incurred. For the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001,
the Company incurred advertising costs of approximately $80.6 million, $78.2 million and $56.8 million, respectively.

Employee benefits

The Company maintains three defined contribution plans that cover substantially all of the Company’s employees.
Company contributions to the plans are expensed as paid. The total Company contributions pursuant to the plans were
approximately $9.5 million, $7.0 million and $3.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing income available to common shareholders (the numerator) by
the weighted-average number of common shares, adjusted for nonvested shares of restricted stock (the denominator)
for the period. Computing diluted earnings per share is similar to basic eamnings per share, except that the denominator
is increased to include the dilutive effects of options and restricted stock grants. Any options that have an exercise
price greater than the average market price are excluded from the diluted earnings per share calculation. For the years
ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, 78,316, 267,272 and 1,795,500, respectively, of the outstanding stock
options were excluded from this calculation.
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PULTE HOMES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Basis of presentation and significant accounting poficies (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Fair values of financial instruments

Carrying amounts for financial derivative instruments reported in the balance sheet approximate fair value as the
amounts reported are based on current market prices. The estimated fair values of financial instruments were
determined by management using available market information and appropriate valuation methodologies.
Considerable judgment is necessary to interpret the market data and develop the estirated fair value. Accordingly, the
estimates presented are not necessarily indicative of the amounts the Company could realize on disposition of the
financial instruments. The use of different market assumptions and/or estirnation methodologies may have a material
effect on the estimated fair value amounts.

' The carrying amounts of cash and equivalents approximate their fair values due to their short-term nature.

The fair value of residential mortgage loans available-for-sale is estimated using the quoted market prices for
securities backed by similar loans. Fair value exceeded cost by approximately $6.3 million and $7.8 million at
December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

The carrying amounts reported in the balance sheet for derivative instruments approximate fair value as the
amounts reported are based on current market prices. At December 31, 2003, derivative assets, included in other
assets, in the balance sheet, totaled $2.7 million and derivative liabilities, included in accrued and other liabilities,
totaled $3.9 million.

The fair values of subordinated debentures and senior notes are based on quoted market prices, when available. If
quoted market prices are not available, fair values are based on quoted market prices of similar issues.

Disclosures about the fair value of financial instruments are based on pertinent information available to
management as of December 31, 2003. Although management is not aware of any factors that would significantly
affect the reasonableness of the fair value amounts, such amounts were not comprehensively revalued for purposes of

these financial statements since that date and current estimates of fair value may differ significantly from the amounts
presented herein.

Stock-based compensation

The Company currently has several stock-based employee compensation plans. Effective January 1, 2003, the
Company adopted the preferable fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees.” The Company selected the prospective method of adoption as permitted by SFAS No. 148, “Accounting
for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure.” Under the prospective method, the Company will
recognize compensation expense based on the fair value provisions of SFAS No. 123 for all new stock option grants
effective January 1, 2003. Grants made prior to January 1, 2003 will continue to be accounted for under the recognition
and measurement principles of APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and related
Interpretations. With the exception of certain variable stock option grants, no stock-based employee compensation cost
is reflected in net income for grants made prior to January 1, 2003, as all options granted in those years had an exercise
price equal to the market value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant.
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1.

PULTE HOMES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Basis of presentation and significant accounting policies (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)

Stock-based compensation {continued)

The following table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share if the company had applied the fair
value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” to all stock-based
employee compensation. The fair value of each opiion grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions used for grants in 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively: weighted-average dividend yields of .44%, .32% and .39%, expected volatility of 35.3%, 34.9% and

34.8%, weighted-average risk-free interest rates of 3.57%, 3.45% and 4.94%, and weighted-average expected lives of
6.76 years, 6.82 years and 6.97 years.

Years Ended December 31,
(8000°s omitted, except per share data)

2003 2002 2001

Net income, as rePOMted ........vcewueecersermerrersersmmsssescoresrrssssssrmssesasss $ 624,634 $ 453,645 3 301,393
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense included

in reported net income, net of related tax effects .....cvverrenne 8,972 3,096 -
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense

determined under fair value based method for all awards,

net of related tax effects.......ccovevrneerurirersensnnessessscsnrnenessses (11.456) {11.986) (14.324)
Pro forma net INCOIME .......cveeeeeeerereceestsesemennesensere s esentsnassrsisevorss $ 622,150 § 444755 3§ 287,069
Earnings per share: '

Basic-as IEPOMEd. .ocuccurmsicrrerssisnsessearessnssassssersussessacsasaisesessases 3 511 § 375 3 307

Basic-pro forma. eetrsteseeenareraasiastras b 509 § 368 $ 293

Diluted-as reported.........oumiimimmemesimmmsssmes 3 497 § 367 $ 2.99

Diluted-pro forma ........c.ecvversireenssrrssressescosesssorsorsionns . 0§ 495 § 360 $ 2.85

The company also recorded compensation expense for restricted stock awards, net of related tax effects, of $9.9
million, $3.2 million, and $1.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. These

amounts have been excluded from the reconciliation above as they would have no impact on pro forma net income as
presented.

New accounting pronouncements

In November of 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 45, "Guarantor's Accounting and Disclosure
Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others", an interpretation of FASB
Statements No. 5, 57, and 107 and rescission of FASB Interpretation No. 34. This interpretation elaborates on the
disclosures to be made by a guarantor in its interim and annual financial statements about its obligations under certain
guarantees that it has issued. It also clarifies that a guarantor is required to recognize, at the inception of a guarantee, a
liability for the fair value of the obligation undertaken in issuing the guarantee. The initial recognition and initial
measurement provisions are applicable on a prospective basis to guarantees issued or modified after December 31,
2002 and the disclosure provisions were effective for the year ended December 31, 2002. The adoption of this

interpretation did not have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated results of operations, financial condition,
or cash flows.

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with
Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity.” This statement establishes standards for the classification and
measurement of certain financial instruments with characteristics of both liabilities and equity. With the exception of
certain measurement criteria deferred indefinitely by the FASB, SFAS No. 150 is effective for financial instruments
entered into or modified after May 31, 2003 and otherwise is effective at the beginning of the first interim period
beginning after June 15, 2003. The implementation of SFAS No. 150 is not expected to have a material impact on the
Company'’s results of operations, financial condition, or cash flows.
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PULTE HOMES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Basis of presentation and significant accounting policies (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Homebuilding

t

Inventories

Finished inventories are stated at the lower of accumulated cost or net realizable value. Inventories under
development or held for development are stated at accumulated cost, unless certain facts indicate such cost would not

be recovered from the cash flows generated by future disposition. In this instance, such inventories are measured at
fair value.

Sold units are expensed on a specific identification basis. Under the specific identification basis, cost of sales
includes the construction cost of the home, an average lot cost by project based on land acquisition and development
costs, and closing costs and commissions. Construction cost of the home includes amounts paid through the closing
date of the home, plus an accrual for costs incurred but not yet paid, based on an analysis of budgeted construction
cost. This accrual is reviewed for accuracy based on actual payments made afier closing compared to the amount
accrued, and adjustments are made if needed. Total project land acquisition and development costs are based on an
apalysis of budgeted costs compared to actual costs incurred to date and estimates to complete. Adjustments to
estimated total project land acquisition and development costs for the project affect the amount of furture lots costed.

The Company capitalizes interest cost into homebuilding inventories. Each layer of capitalized interest is
amortized over a perjod that approximates the average life of communities under development. Interest expense is
allocated over the period based on the cyclical timing of unit settlements. The Company capitalized interest in the
amount of $136.3 million, $123.1 million and $80.4 million and expensed to home cost of sales $78.7 million, $48.7
million and $36.0 million in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Major components of the Company’s inventory at December 31, 2003 and 2002 were:

2003 2002
Homes under conStruCton........vcuumiserersesensesess $2,124222 $ 1,697,348
Land under development 2,876,256 2,243,478
Land held for future development........cuornniee 527.932 352,711

TOtal ...t cee e e reene e aesae e e enees $ 5528410 § 4,293,597

Land, not owned, under option agreements

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46 (FIN 46), “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.”
Until this interpretation was issued, a company generally included another entity in its consolidated financial
statements only if it controlled the entity through voting interests. FIN 46 requires a variable interest entity to be
consolidated by a company if that company is subject to a majority of the expected losses from the variable interest
entity’s activities or is entitled to receive a majority of the entity’s expected residual returns. FIN 46 applied
immediately to all variable interest entities created after January 31, 2003 and is effective no later than the first interim
period ending after December 31, 2003 for variable interest entities created prior to February 1, 2003.

In the ordinary course of business, the Company enters into land option agreements in order to procure land for
the construction of houses in the future. Pursuant to these land option agreernents, the Company will provide a deposit
to the seller as consideration for the right to purchase land at different times in the future, usually at predetermined
prices. Under FIN 46, if the entity holding the land under option is a variable interest entity, the Company’s deposit

represents a variable interest in that entity. The Company does not guarantee the obligations or performance of the
variable interest entity.

In applying the provisions of FIN 46, the Company evaluated all post-January 31, 2003 land option agreements
and determined that the Company was subject to a majority of the expected losses or entitled to receive a majority of
the expected residual returns under a limited number of these agreements. As the primary beneficiary under these
agreements, the Company is required to consolidate the fair value of the variable interest entity. At December 31,
2003, the Company classified $73.3 million as Land, Not Owned, Under Option Agreements on the balance sheet,
representing the fair value of land under contract including deposits. The corresponding liability has been classified as
Accounts Payable, Accrued and Other Liabilities on the balance sheet. The adoption of FIN 46 has had no impact on
the Company’s results of operations or cash flows.
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PULTE HOMES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Basis of presentation and significant accounting policies (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)

Homebuilding (continued)

Land, not owned, under option agreements (continued)

The Company is in the process of evaluating its land option agreements and other agreements entered into prior to
February 1, 2003, Depending on the terms and conditions of these agreements, the, Company may be required to
consolidate other variable interest entities. This evaluation will be completed by March 31, 2004.

Land held for sale

At December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Company had approximately $251.2 million and $226.1 million of land held
for sale classified as other assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheets related to the Company’s Homebuﬂdmg segment.
Land held for sale is recorded at the lower of cost or fair value less costs to sell.

Allowance for warranties

Home purchasers are provided with warranties against certain building defects. The specific terms and conditions
of those warranties vary geographically. Most warranties cover different aspects of the home’s construction and
operating systems for a period of up to ten years. The Company estimates the costs to be incurred under these
warranties and records a liability in the amount of such costs at the time product revenue is recognized. Factors that
affect the Company’s warranty liability include the number of homes sold, historical and anticipated rates of warranty

claims, and cost per claim. The Company periodically assesses the adequacy of its recorded warranty liabilities and
adjusts the amounts as necessary.

Changes to the Company’s allowance for warranties for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, are as
follows ($000’s omitted):

2003 2002
TAOUATY L..ooeereccvnnreissrenssnscererersansassoecassesene $ 51973 § 40866
Warranty reserves provided.......coceeeriieieecenns 84,669 70,966
Payments and other adjustments.........ovccureerren (74.426) (59.859)
December 31 ......ccovrevireimsserenensemsennenesieens 3 62216 § 51973

Revenues

" Homebuilding revenues are recorded when the sales of homes are completed and ownership has transferred to the
customer. Unfunded settlements are deposits in transit on homes for which the sale was completed.

Start-up costs

Costs and expenses associated with entry into new homebuilding markets and opening new communities in
existing rarkets are expensed when incurred.

Financial Services

Morigage servicing rights

The Company allacates the cost of mortgage loans originated and purchased between the mortgage loans and the
right to service those mortgage loans, based on relative fair value, on the date the loan is sold.

The Company sells its servicing rights on a flow basis through fixed price servicing sales contracts. Due to the short
period of time the servicing rights are held, generally less than four months, the Company does not amortize the
servicing asset, Furthermore, there are no impairment issues since the servicing rights are recorded based on the value
in the servicing sales contracts. The servicing sales contracts provide for the reimbursement of payments made when
loans prepay within specified periods of time, usually 90 days after sale or securitization. The Company establishes
reserves for this liability, included in accrued and other liabilities, at the time the sale is recorded. During 2003, 2002
and 2001, total servicing rights recognized were $36.7 million, $35.7 million, and $36.2 million, respectively, which
are reflected in net gains from the sale of mortgages.
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PULTE HOMES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Basis of presentation and significant accounting policies (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial Services (continued)

Residential mortgage loans available-for-sale

Residential mortgagé loans available-for-sale are stated at the lower of aggregate cost or market value.
Unamortized net mortgage discounts totaled $1.6 million and $1.5 million at December 31, 2003 and 2002,
tespectively. These discounts are not amortized as interest revenue during the period the loans are held for sale.

Gains and losses from sales of mortgage loans are recognized when the loans are sold. The Company hedges its
residential mortgage loans available-for-sale. Gains and losses from closed commitments and futures contracts are
matched against the related gains and losses on the sale of mortgage loans. During 2003, 2002 and 2001, zet gains
from the sale of mortgages were $64.4 million, $62.4 million and $41.9 million, respectively, which have been
included in Financial Services revenue.

Interest income on mortgage loans
Interest income is accrued from the date a mortgage loan is originated until the loan is sold.
Mortgage servicing, origination and commitment fees

Mortgage servicing fees represent fees earned for servicing loans for various investors. Servicing fees are based
on a confractual percentage of the outstanding principal balance and are credited to income when related mortgage
payments are received. Loan origination fees, commitment fees and certain direct loan origination costs are deferred
as an adjustment to the cost of the related mortgage loan until such loan is sold.

Derivative instruments and hedging activities

The Company recognizes all of its derivative instruments as either assets or liabilities in the balance sheet at fair
value. The accounting for changes in the fair value (i.e., gains or losses) of a derivative instrument depends on whether
it has been designated and qualifies as part of a hedging relationship and further, on the type of hedging relationship.
For those derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as hedging instruments, a company must designate the
hedging instrument, based upon the exposure being hedged, as either a fair value hedge or a cash flow hedge.

For derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as a fair value hedge (i.e., hedging the exposure to
changes in the fair value of an asset or a liability or an identified portion thereof that is attributable to a particular risk),
the gain or loss on the derivative instrument as well as the offsetting loss or gain on the hedged item attributable to the
hedged risk are recognized in current earnings during the period of the change in fair values. For derivative
instruments that are designated and qualify as a cash flow hedge (i.e., hedging the exposure to variability in expected
future cash flows that is attributable to a particular risk), the effective portion of the gain or loss on the derivative
instrurnent is reported as a component of other comprehensive income and reclassified into earnings in the same period
or periods during which the hedged transaction affects earnings. For derivative instruments not designated as hedging

instruments, the gain or loss is recognized in current earnings during the period of change. The Company currently
uses only cash flow hedges.

Market risks arise from movements in interest rates and cancelled or modified commitments to lend. In order to
reduce these risks, the Company uses derivative financial instruments. These financial instruments include cash
forward placement contracts on mortgage-backed securities, whole loan investor commitments, options on treasury
futures contracts, and options on cash forward placement contracts on mortgage-backed securities. The Company does
not use any derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. When the Company commits to lend to the borrower
(interest rate is locked to the borrower), the Company enters into one of the aforementioned derivative financial
instruments. The change in the value of the loan commitment and the derivative financial instrument is recognized in
current earnings during the period of change. At December 31, 2003, commitments by Pulte Mortgage to originate
mortgage loans totaled $201.5 million at interest rates prevailing at the date of commitment.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Basis of presentation and significant accounting policies (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial Services (continued)

Derivative instruments and hedging activities (continued)

Cash forward placement contracts on mortgage-back securities are commitments to either purchase or sell a
specified financial instrument at a specified future date for a specified price and may be settled in cash by offseiting the
" position, or through the delivery of the financial instrument. Options on treasury futures contracts and options on
mortgage-backed securities grant the purchaser, for a premium payment, the right to either purchase or sell a specified
treasury futures contract or a specified mortgage-backed security, respectively, for a specified price within a specified
_ period of time or on a specified date from or to the writer of the option.

Mandatory cash forward contracts on mortgage-backed securities are the predominant derivative financial
instruments used to minimize the market risk during the period from when the Company extends an interest rate lock
to a loan applicant until the time the loan is sold to an investor. Whole loan investor commitments are obligations of
the investor to buy loans at a specified price within a specified time period. At December 31, 2003, Pulte Mortgage
had unexpired cash forward contracts and whole loan investor commitments of $668.8 million. Options on cash
forward contracts on mortgage-backed securities are used in the same manner as mandatory cash forward contracts, but
provide protection from interest rates rising, while still allowing an opportunity for profit if interest rates fall. Options
on the treasury futures contracts are used as cross hedges on various loan product types and to protect the Company in
a volatile interest rate environment from unexpected increases, cancellations or modifications in lending commitments.

Since the Company can terminate a loan comiitment if the borrower does not comply with the terms of the
contract, and some loan commitments may expire without being drawn upon, these commitments do not necessarily
represent future cash requirements of Pulte Mortgage. The Company evaluates the creditworthiness of these
transactions through its normal credit policies.

The Company hedges portions of its forecasted cash flow from sales of closed mortgage loans with derivative
financial instruments. During the year ended December 31, 2003, the Company did not recognize any net gains or
losses related to an ineffective portion of the hedging instrument. In addition, the Company did not recognize any net
gains or losses during the year ended December 31, 2003, for cash flow hedges that were discontinued because the

_forecasted transaction did not occur. At December 31, 2003, the Company expects to reclassify $0.2 million net of
taxes, of net losses on derivative instruments from accumulated other comprehensive income to earnings during the
next twelve months from sales of closed mortgage loans.
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PULTE HOMES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Segment information

The Company’s operations are classified into two reportable segments, Homebuilding and Financial Services and
one non-operating segment, Corporate.

The Company’s Homebuilding segment consists of the following operations:

. . Domestic Homebuilding, the Company’s core business, is engaged in the acquisition and development of
land primarily for residential purposes within the continental United States and the construction of housing
on such land targeted for the first-time, first and second move-up, and active adult home buyers.

J International Homebuilding is primarily engaged in the acquisition and development of land principally
~ for residential purposes, and the construction of housing on such land in Mexico, Puerto Rico and

Argentina,

The Company’s Financial Services segment consists principally of mortgage banking and title operations
conducted through Pulte Mortgage and other Company subsidiaries.

Corporate is a non-operating segment that supports the operations of the Company’s subsidiaries by acting as the
intemal source of financing, developing and implementing strategic initiatives centered on new business development
and operating efficiencies, and providing the necessary administrative functions to support the Company as a publicly
traded entity listed on the New York Stock Exchange.
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PULTE HOMES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2.  Segment information (continued)

Revenues:
Homebuilding

Financial Services
Corporate '

Total revenues

Cost of sales (a):
Homebuilding ....

Selling, general and administrative:
Homebuilding.....
Financial Services.....
Corporate ..

Total selling, general and administrative ......

Interest (a):
Financial Services
Corporate

Total interest .....

Other (income}) expense, net:
Homebuilding .........
Corporate .......

Total other expense, net

Total costs and expenses

Equity income:
Homebuilding
Financial Services.......cceoemeeereneereans

Total equity income.

Income (loss) before income taxes:
Homebuilding ........couiveriemsesnisssemsosranensesserecssensnes
Financial Services
Corporate

................................................

Total income before income taxes......ccvewennes

Operating Data by Segment (3000°s omitted)

Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
$8,929,798  $7,363989  $5,309,829
115,847 106,628 77,222
3.281 1,202 2210
9,048.926 7.471.819 5.389.261
7,068,520 5.918.524 4291943
863,077 699,498 493948
45,867 38,826 35,467
45235 29417 15.443
954,179 767.741 544,858
7,386 6,753 9,079
42645 39416 36471
50,031 46.169 45,550
28,551 28,644 20,921
(9.248) (5.663) 7.748
19,303 220981 28,669
8,092,033 6.755.415 4.911.020
32,511 6,744 9,274
6.252 5,674 4272
38,763 12,418 13.546
1,002,161 724,067 512,291
68,846 66,723 36,948
(75.351) (61.968) (57.452)

§ 995656  § 728822 @ § 491787

(a) Homebuilding interest expense, which represents the amortization of capitalized interest, of $78.7 million, $48.7
million, and $36.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively, have been
reclassified to cost of sales. The reclassifications had no impact on reported net earnings.

40



PULTE HOMES, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2.  Segment information (continued)

Supplemental Operating Data by Geographic Region

(5000°s omitted)
Years Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
Revenues:
Domestic United States $38,820,789 $7,275,745 $5,354,092
International..... 228.137 196.074 35.169
Total revenues.. 9.048.926 7.471.819 5.389.261
Cost of sales (a):
Domestic United States........coeuresmersneromenserevessens 6,885,249 5,761,468 4,261,006
International 183,271 157,056 30937
Total COSt OF SALES ....cvverrererrreircrenrrermreriresenanns 7,068,520 5.918.524 4,291,943
Selling, general and administrative:
Domestic United States........cconrennes 912,639 734,408 534,315
International 41,540 33.333 10.543
Total selling, general and administrative........ 954.179 767,741 544,858
Interest (a):
Domestic United States .....cococvrveeee. 50.031 46,169 45.550
Other (income) expense, net:
Domestic United StateS.......uerererenreesesrsmssvossoseas 16,436 19,570 28,689
1317575 072110031 -1 OO 2.867 3411 (20)
Total other €Xpense, NEt.......o.cereveimareresenisens 19,303 22,981 28.669
Total costs and expenses...........crevvereerrencenes 8.092.033 6.755.415 4.911.020
Equity income:
Domestic United States 35,297 3,897 5,676
International........ceccvverinivesrecerssinisienesenrences 3.466 8,521 7,870
Total equity in income of joint ventures......... 38,763 12418 _ 13546
Income before INCOME tAXES ......cvrererrrrecrrarsmesnnerensans § 995656 $ 728,822 $ 491,787

(a) Homebuilding interest expense, which represents the amortization of capitalized interest, of 378.7 million, $48.7
million, and $36.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 200!, respectively, have been
reclassified to cost of sales. The reclassifications had no impact on reported net earnings.

At December 31, 2003:
INVENLOTY cruerevissinessrcrernnnsaseorassaarcas
Total assets ...coreervvrrercenrireeressrereenens
At December 31, 2002:
Inventory.......
Total assets ....

At December 31, 2003:
INVENtOrY....coreirerusassecsesesassarensessensaane
Total assets
At December 31, 2002:
IRVENIOLY ..ccvseerirarsananrsannassonssnsenses
Total assets

Asset Data by Segment (3000’s omitted)

Financial
Homebuilding Services Corporate Total
$ 5,601,666 $ - $ - $ 5601666
7,305,447 584,976 172,929 $ 8063352
$ 4293597 S - s - § 4203507
6,075,734 714,274 82,079 $ 6872087

Supplemental Asset Data by Geographic Region ($000’s omitted)
Domestic

United States International Total
3 5,427,716 3 173,950 $ 5601666
7,834,374 228,978 $ 8063352
$ 4,143,827 $ 149,770 § 4203597
6,690,284 181,803 3 _ 6872087
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PULTE HOMES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Del Webb merger

On July 31, 2001, the Company merged with Del Webb Corporation in a tax-free stock-for-stock transaction,
Under the terms of the merger agreement, each outstanding share of Del Webb common stock was exchanged for
approximately 0.894 shares of newly issued Company stock. Approximately 16.8 million shares were issued to Del
Webb shareholders. Del Webb was primarily a homebuilder with operations in seven states. For the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2001, Del Webb reported net income of $91.2 million on revenues of $1.9 billion and 7,038 unit settlements.
Backlog reported at June 30, 2001, was 3,682 units valued at approximately $994 million.

This merger expanded and supported the Company’s leadership position. In particular, the Company believes the
merger strengthened its position among active adult homebuyers, added important strategic land positions, provided

operational savings from economies of scale, bolstered purchasing leverage, and enhanced overall competitive
position.

The merger was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. Approximately 16.8 million shares were
issued and assigned an approximate accounting value of $42.74 per share based on the average closing price of the

Company’s stock for the five trading days ended July 26, 2001. The components of the purchase price and aflocation
are as folows ($000’s omitted):

Consideration and merger costs;

Stock issued to Del Webb StoCKROIELS .......c.coeeecererrieererernseenersesesressssserserssssens $ 720,111

Cash paid to Del Webb stock option and restricted stockholders.....veermuresens 29,498

Fair value of stock options exchanged..........cooceueeierereeeerensvensesvmsnenescmrmessesseeecneens 9,276

Cash paid for certain change-in-control and consulting anangements ............... 52,709

Other tTANSACHON COSIS vuvvvrvirrereriosssassisessoissssessasesssrorsasnersessssaresessonssesamaseansssesarasans _ 22389

Total purchase price ¥ 833,983

Purchase price allocation:

INVEOLOTY «eevrereerrrerrenrensensesessrasesassasmsesssnnes weesrrerssnesene $ 1,522,797

Other assetS...cunereersensareresesassorons ieevemearesersre s searvaranans 387,301

Trademarks and tradenammes ........owomirmmiermenescnesimicissssassasissssrsrsaisenssans 163,000

Accounts payable and other emeteemeeeesrersnsastasasassasarsasentsesnsseasasrerns (494,029)

Unsecured ShOrt-tern DOITOWINES .....cv.cueremecessrrrssenserassorsssreressresisrsssarsaassaseses {300,000)

Subordinated TOLES ....ucsieusisssissesemrmaresasaovssesemsestonsnseses (729.096) 549,973
GOOAWILL....coecrcnrrionecsrensisiennsrssisossasesmissersronsisssssissrsessrssorsrenssesasersssessasensasess 3 284010

This goodwill, which is not deductible for tax purposes, was allocated solely to the homebuilding segment.
Trademarks and tradenames are being amortized on a straight-line basis over a period of 20 years.

Del Webb operations have been included in the consolidated results since July 31, 2001. The following table
presents a summary of the unaudited pro forma operating results for the Company assuming that the merger with Del
Webb occurred on January 1, 2001.

Year Ended
December 31, 2001

{Unaudited)

Revenues ($000’s omitted) ......cocercreresracsencsassonsasesssenss $_6,494795
Income from continuing operations ($000’s omitted).... $ 336856

Basic earnings per Share......ceiiisesrsesessssrssssessmissnes § 573
Diluted earnings per share...........vneiieecrecseimesnesensiones 3 5.62
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Del Webb merger {continued)

The pro forma information presented does not purport to be indicative of the results of operations that would have
actually been reported had the merger occurred on January 1, 2001. For the purposes of the above pro-forma
information presented and in accordance with Staternent of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets,” goodwill is not amortized for transactions occurring subsequent to June 30, 2001, As such,
operations presented do not include amortization of the goodwill recognized in the Del Webb merger.

Discontinued operations

In September 1988, substantially all of the assets, business operations and certain liabilities of five Texas-based
insolvent thrifts were acquired by First Heights. Assistance with each acquisition was provided by the Federal Savings
and Loan Insurance Corporation (FSLIC) pursuant to an Assistant Agreement.

During the first quarter of 1994, the Company adopted a plan of disposal for First Heights and announced its
strategy to exit the thrift industry and increase its focus on housing and related mortgage banking, First Heights sold
all but one of its 32 bank branches and related deposits to two unrelated purchasers, The sale was substantially

completed during the fourth quarter of 1994, although the Company held brokered deposits which were not liquidated
until 1998.

Although the Company in 1994, expected to complete the plan of disposal within a reasonable period of time,
contractual disputes with the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) precluded the Company from cornpleting
the disposal in accordance with its original plan. As discussed in Note 11, the Company settled its litigation with the
FDIC in October 2001.

_ First Heights’ day-to-day activities have been principally devoted to supporting residual regulatory compliance
matters and the litigation with the United States government, discussed in Note 11, and are not reflective of the active
operations of the former thrift, such as maintaining traditional transaction accounts {e.g., checking and savings
accounts) or making loans. Accordingly, such operations are being presented as discontinued.

Revenues of discontinued operations were $6,000, $17,000 and $29,000 for the years ended December 31, 2003,
2002 and 2001, respectively. For the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, discontinued thrift operations
reported after-tax gains of $7.3 million and $9.0 million and an after-tax loss of $1.0 million, respectively. The after-
tax gains for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 include approximately $7.9 million and $10.0 million,

. respectively, of income related to the recognition of income tax benefits resulting from the favorable resolution of

certain tax matters.
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Other financing arrangements

Corporate/Homebuilding

Effective October 1, 2003, Pulte Homes, Inc. replaced its $570 million revolving credit facility with an $350
million facility that includes the capacity to issue letters of credit up to $500 million. Borrowing availability on this
line is reduced by the amount of letters of credit outstanding. This new credit facility expires October 1, 2008. The
bank credit agreement contains restrictive covenants, the most restrictive of which requires the Company not to exceed
a debt-to-total capitalization ratio as defined in the agreement of 50%. The following is a summary of aggregate
borrowing information related to this facility ($000’s omitted):

2003 2002 2001
Available credit lines at year-end $ 850,000 $ 570,000 $ 560,000
Unused credit lines at year-end .........cvou.u. ‘ $ 693,000 § 570,000 $ 450,000
Maximum amount outstanding at the end of any month............ $ - $ 245,000 $ 334,000
Average monthly indebtedness .......ccceieiieseennsmssesssessnsenssesssreres $§ 2000 % 92000 $ 72,000
Range of interest rates during the year 2.08to 2.56t0 2.65to
' 4.25% 4.75% 6.81%
Weighted-average rate at year-end 2.22% 2.78% 3.79%

In addition, the Company’s operating entity in Argentina entered into a $3 million revolving credit facility in
October 2002 to provide an additional financial resource to support the operations. Pulte Homes, Inc. has guaranteed
the credit facility. There was $2 million outstanding under this facility at December 31, 2003.

At December 31, 2003, other financing included limited recourse collateralized financing arrangements totaling
$83.3 million. These financing arrangements have maturities ranging primarily from one to four years, a weighted
average interest rate of 4.31%, are generally collateralized by certain land positions and have no recourse to any other
assets. These arrangements have been classified as accrued and other liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Financial Services

Notes payable to banks (collateralized short-term debt) are secured by residential mortgage loans available-for-
sale. The carrying amounts of such borrowings approximate fair value.

During 2003, Pulte Mortgage replaced and expanded its $175 million revoiving credit facility with a $310 million
facility and replaced its $325 million asset-backed commercial paper program with a $550 million program. The
revolving credit facility expires in March 2005 and the asset-backed commercial paper program can be extended to
August 2005. During the three years ended December 31, 2003, Pulte Mortgage provided compensating balances, in
the form of escrows and other custodial funds, in order to further reduce interest rates. The bank credit agreements
contain restrictive covenants, the most restrictive of which requires Pulte Mortgage to maintain a minimum tangible
net worth of $30 million.

The following is aggregate borrowing information ($000’s omitted):

2003 2002 2001

Available credit lines at year-end.........ccccceereromenorsenssessssssensuinens $ 860,000 $ 600,000 § 450,000
Unused credit lines at Year-end ..........cevsreeeesseesrimesessmssrasmssresesses $ 381,000 §$ 41,000 $ 40,000
Maximum amount outstanding at the end of any month............ $ 483,000 $ 559,000 $ 410,000
Average monthly indebtedness .... 3 391,000 $ 290,000 $ 219,000
Range of interest rates during the year.............oscceinsiveciiniorn 0.45 to 045+t 0.45 to

231% 2.75% 9.13%
Weighted-average rate at year-end........coceeseesersecrenees 1.59% 1.91% 2.35%




PULTE HOMES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Senior notes and subordinated notes

The Company’s senior notes and subordinated notes at book value are summarized as follows ($000’s omitted):

At December 31,
2003 2002
9.5% unsecured senior notes, issued by Puite Homes, Inc. due 2003, not
redeemable prior to maturity, guaranteed on a senior basis by Pulte Homes, Inc.
and certain of its 100% owned subsidiaries. See Note 12........ocveceerervmsireerorsrsrerens $ - 3 174934

7% unsecured senior notes, issued by Pulte Homes, Inc. due 2003, not
redeemable prior to maturity, guaranteed on a senior basis by Pulte Homes, Inc.
and certain of its 100% owned subsidiaries. See Note 12........ccoimeimrcciomssnstronssnesens - 99,960

9.375% senior subordinated notes, issued by Del Webb Corporation,
called March 2003 for redemption in May 2003, guaranteed by Pulte
Homes, Inc. and certain of its 100% owned subsidiaries. See Note 12

10.25% senior subordinated notes, issued by Del Webb Corporation,
called December 2003 for redemption in February 2004, guaranteed by Puite
Homes, Inc. and certain: of its 100% owned subsidiaries. See Note 12.................. 77,283 98,461

- 162,205

8.375% unsecured senior notes, issued by Pulte Homes, Inc. due 2004, not

redeemable prior to maturity, guaranteed on a senior basis by Pulte Homes, Inc
and certain of its 100% owned subsidiaries. See Note 12.....cccvreerenrevnens . 111,983 111,949

7.3% unsecured senior notes, issued by Pulte Homes, Inc. due 2005, not
redeemable prior to maturity, guaranteed on a senior basis by Pulte Homes, Inc.
and certain of its 100% owned subsidiaries. See Note 12......oeirmmcensesacasiessiscsassrans 124,981 124,970

8.125% unsecured senior notes, issued by Pulte Homes, Inc. due 2011, not
redeemable prior to maturity, guaranteed on a senior basis by Pulte Homnes, Inc.
and certain of its 100% owned subsidiaries. See Note 12........ccoeereeevnemervincmreriararns 199,127 199,005

7.875% unsecured senior notes, issued by Pulte Homes, Inc. due 2011,
callable prior to maturity, guaranteed on a senior basis by Pulte Homes, Inc.
and certain of its 100% owned subsidiaries. See Note 12......ccceciemecicenrevemncnsonnaas 495,117 494,671

6.25% unsecured senior notes, issued by Pulte Homes, Inc. due 2013,
callable prior to maturity, guaranteed on a senior basis by Pulte Homes, Inc.
and certain of its 100% owned subsidiaries. See Note 12 297,390 -

7.625% unsecured senior notes, issued by Pulte Homes, Inc. due 2017, not
redeermable prior to maturity, guaranteed on a senior basis by Pulte Homes, Inc.
and certain of its 100% owned subsidiaries. See NoOte 12, ...cvcciierreireineriansesensianes 148,505 148,396

7.875% unsecured senior notes, issued by Pulte Homes, Inc. due 2032,
callable prior to maturity, guaranteed on a senior basis by Pulte Homes, Inc.
and certain of its 100% owned subsidiaries. See Note 12......ccceceeircemiererncinnenee 298,760 298,717

6.375% unsecured senior notes, issued by Pulte Homes, Inc. due 2033,
callable prior to maturity, guaranteed on a senior basis by Pulte Homes, Inc.
and certain of its 100% owned subsidiaries. See note 12......cevevrvermerrverersascenases 397.826 -

$2,150972  $1.913.268
Estimated fAIr VAIUEC ........cceeeseneemienrsnireniesirenseseanissssses sestssssssrsems sossssssnt sessssssssssssnsssssossos $2387945 $2.006,173

Total senior note and subordinated note principal maturities during the five years after 2003 are as follows: 2004 -
$186 million; 2005 - $125 million; 2006 - $0; 2007 - $0; 2008 - $0 and thereafter $1.8 billion.

In January 2004, the Company sold $500 million of 5.25% unsecured senior notes, callable prior to maturity and
guaranteed by Pulte Homes, Inc. and certain of its 100% owned subsidiaries. The notes are due 2014.
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PULTE HOMES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Shareholders’ equity

In October 2002, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of $100 million of Pulte Homes,
Inc. common stock in open-market transactions or otherwise. Pursuant to this authorization, 790,800 common shares
were repurchased at an aggregate cost of approximately $18.2 million in 2003 and 200,000 shares for approximately
$4.3 million in 2002. At December 31, 2003, the Company had remaining anthorization to purchase common stock
aggregating $77.5 million.

On December 11, 2003 the Company announced a two-for-one stock split effected in the form of a 100 percent

stock dividend. The distribution was made on January 2, 2004. All share and per share amounts have been restated to
retroactively reflect the stock split.

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)

The accurnulated balances related to each component of other comprehensive income (loss) are as follows ($000°s
omitted):

December 31,
2003 2002
Foreign currency translation adjustments:
Argenting.....cveceremceccrecseecreensesssens 3 (24982) § (26.876)
Mexico ..... (13,962) (6,615)
Change in fair value of derivatives, net of income taxes
of $122 in 2003 and $1,204 in 2002 .......ccevrursrerrensurenns (198) (1.880)

3 (39]142) § _(35371)

Stock compensation plans and management incentive compensation

The Company has fixed stock option plans for both employees (the “Employee' Plans”) and for nonemployee
directors (the “Director Plan™); information related to the active plans is as follows:

Shares

Plan Name Authorized
Employee Plans

Pulte Homes, Inc. 2002 Stock Incentive Plan - 6,000,000
Pulte Corporation 2000 Stock Incentive Plan for Key Employees......... 5,000,000
Pulte Corporation 1995 Stock Incentive Plan for Key Employees......... 8,000,000
Pulte Corporation 1994 Stock Incentive Plan for Key Employees......... 4,000,000
Director Plan

2000 Stock Plan for Nonemployee DIrectors.......cuueeesecsmrorsesanesursessons 500,000

As of December 31, 2003, 2,917,350 stock options remain available for grant under the Employee Plans and
206,000 stock options remain available for grant under the Director Plan.

The Employee Plans primarily provide for the grant of options (both non-qualified options and incentive stock
options as defined in each respective plan), stock appreciation rights and restricted stock to key employees of the
Company or its subsidiaries (as determined by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors) for periods not
exceeding ten years. Options granted under the Employee Plans vest incrementally in periods ranging from six months
to five years. Under the Director Plan, nonemployee directors are entitled to an annual distribution of 1,800 shares of
common stock and options to purchase an additional 8,000 shares. All options granted are non-qualified, vest

immediately and are exercisable on the date of grant. Options granted under the Director Plan are exercisable for ten
years from the grant date.
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8. Stock compensation plans and management incentive compensation (continued)

A summary of the status of the Company’s stock options for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 is
presented below (000’s omitted except per share data):

2003 2002 2001
Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average Average
Per Share Per Share Per Share
Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price
Outstanding, beginnin '
of Year...cueenecrervrrcmercarenes 12,288 $ 17 13,078 $ 14 10,716 $ 12
Granted........ceneirneeearorscronsanne 2,001 43 2,780 23 3,866 19
Exercised.......cccerenresrerensracons (3,135) (12) (3,454) ® (1,356) 10
Forfeited ........ourerermensecsereonrons (377) (22) (116) (20) _(148) iz
Outstanding, end of year........ 10777 $. 23 12,288 $ 17 13,078 3 14
Options exercisable at
year-end.....cceeenrerrenesnenes 4718 $ 17 9,640 $ 14 6,676 $ 10
‘Weighted-average per share
fair value of options
granted during the year ...... $17.59 59.68 $11.63

The following table summarizes information about fixed stock options outstanding at December 31, 2003:

Options Qutstanding . Options Exercisable
Number Weighted- Weighted- Number Weighted-
Range of Outstanding at  Average Average Exercisable at Average
Per Share December 31  Remaining Per Share December 31 Per Share
Exercise Prices  (000’s omitfed) ConfractLife Exercise Price (000°s omitted) Exercise Price
$ 0.00to 12.99 1,685 4.5 510 1,682 $ 10
§ 13.00 to 20.00 1,610 59 $ 17 755 316
$20.01 to 31.00 5,491 7.6 $ 22 2,201 $22
$ 31.01 to 44.00 1,991 9.9 $ 43 80 $33

Exclusive of the Employee Plans and Director Plan above, the Company awarded 544,354, 482,482 and 315,922
shares of restricted stock to certain key employees during 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively. In connection with the
restricted stock awards, which cliff vest at the end of three years, the Company recorded compensation expense of $16.0
million, $5.3 million and $1.7 million during 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively.
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9, Income taxes

The Company’s net deferred tax asset (liability) is as follows ($000°s omitted):

At December 31,
2003 2002
Deferred tax liabilities:
Capitalized items, principally real estate basis differences,
deducted fOr taX, DL .....cecerrerververmermremsanrersrestsesrorssssssnsssaseas $ (89,949) % (95,732)
Trademarks and tradenames (54.456) (59.067)
144.405 (154.799)
Deferred tax assets:
Non-deductible reserves and other..........ccourveennee.c. . 104,491 . 129,621
Adjustments to the fair value of acquired senior
SUDOrdinated NOLES ......eevreererarcererserenserssnseseaseeens 4,106 7,495
State and other net operating loss carryforwards.......cooourervercvene 19,936 18,935
State and other credit carryforwards . 10,779 11,952
139.312 168.003
Asset valuation allowance..........ocovverenns (2,781) (1.461)
Net deferred tax asset (liability)......ccreruersersemsscessorens . § (874 3 11,743

The state net operating losses of $62.7 million expire in years 2013 through 2023. International net operating losses
of $48,007 will expire in years 2006 through 2013, Net operating losses are generally available to offset the Company’s
taxable income in future years. State and other credit carryforwards include a state credit voucher of $10.8 million that
is expected to be realized by the Company no later than 2006. Realization of the net deferred tax asset, in certain
jurisdictions, is dependent on future reversals of existing taxable temporary differences and adequate future taxable
income. Although realization is not assured, management believes that, except for the valuation allowance stated, it is
more likely than not that the net deferred tax asset will be realized.

Components of current and deferred income tax expense {benefit) for continuing operations are as follows (3000’s

omitted):

_Current  Deferred  _ Total

Year ended December 31, 2003
Federal $ 334737 $ 15067 $ 349,804
State and other 23,980 4.550 28.530
$ 358717 § 19617 § 378334

Year ended December 31, 2002
Federal . $ 221,178 $§ 36,545 $ 257,723
State and other..... 23.808 2.690 26,498
$ 244986 § 30235 3 28422)

Year ended December 31, 2001
Federal ......cvuicrerereiererencmmencncesusssssorsastossasesenens $ 179428 $§ (7879) $ 171,549
State and other.......c.ceervvnnane 18.110 (297) 17.813

$ 197,538 3 _(8.176) $ 189362

The following table reconciles the statutory federal income tax rate to the effective income tax rate for continuing

operations:;
2003 2002 2001
Income taxes at federal StatULOLY TAtE. .. vcreersicenssersnssessesrossnssaosens 35.00% 35.00% 35.00%
Effect of state and local income taxes, net of federal tax ............. 2.04 320 3.09
Settlement of state taxX issues and Other ..o ermerrirercerssesasesssnsaras .96 .80 41
EfTECHVE TaLE .cu.eoeeirsieecnccvrnerrssnsrsnsesmsssamsecsenserssssereasseamssersastosssossss 3800% 39.00% 38.50%
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Leases

The Company leases certain property and equipment under non-cancelable leases. Office and equipment leases are
generally for terms of three to five years and generally provide renewal options for terms of up to an additional three
years. Model home leases are generally for shorter terms approximating one year with renewal options on a month-to-
month basis. In most cases, management expects that in the normal course of business, leases that expire will be
renewed or replaced by other leases. The future minimum lease payments required under operating leases that have
initial or remaining non-cancelable terms in excess of one year are as follows ($000’s omitted):

Years Ending December 31,

2004 b 32,590
2005 25,682
2006... 18,375
2007 coneerrenrererssrsrsssaesssssssssassnsssansrasersen 14,903
2008.. 11,452
After 2008 23.401
Total minimum lease payments .......... $ 126403

Net rental expense for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 was $49.6 million, $48.8 million and

$36.5 million, respectively. Certain leases contain purchase options and generally provide that the Company shall pay
for insurance, taxes and maintenance.

Commitments and contingencies

In the normal course of business, the Company acquires rights under options or option-type agreements to purchase
Iand to be used in homebuilding operations at future dates. The total purchase price applicable to land under option that
has been approved for purchase approximated $2.6 billion and $1.5 billion at December 31, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. The total purchase price applicable to land under option that has not been approved for purchase
approximated $2.1 billion and $982 million at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

At December 31, 2003, the Company, in the normal course of business, had outstanding letters of credit and
performance bonds of $1.4 billion.

The Company could be required to repurchase loans sold to investors that have not been underwritten in accordance
with the investor guidelines (defective loans). The Company, in the normal course of business, indemnifies investors for
defective loans that they have purchased. As of December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Company had been notified of $8.6
million and $8.8 million of defective loans, respectively. The Company assesses the risk of loss on these
indemnifications and establishes reserves for themn. At December 31, 2003 and 2002, reserves for indemnification on
defective loans are reflected in accrued and other liabilities and amounted to $0.3 million.

The Company is involved in various litigation incidental to its continning business operations. Management does
not believe that this litigation will have a material adverse impact on the results of operations, financial position or cash
flows of the Company.

First Heights-related litigation

Pulte Homes, Inc. was a party to three lawsuits relating to First Heights’ 1988 acquisition from the Federal Savings
and Loan Insurance Corporation (FSLIC) and First Heights® ownership of five failed Texas thrifts. The first lawsuit (the
District Court Case) was filed on July 7, 1995, in the United States District Court, Eastem District of Michigan, by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) against Pulte Homes, Inc., Pulte Diversified Companies, Inc. and First
Heights (collectively, the Pulte Parties). The second lawsuit (the Court of Federal Claims Case) was filed on December
26, 1996, in the United States Court of Federal Claims (Washington, D.C.) by the Pulte Parties against the United States.
The third Jawsuit was filed by First Heights on January 10, 2000, in the United States District Court, Eastern District of
Michigan against the FDIC regarding the amounts, including interest, the FDIC was obligated to pay First Heights on
two promissory notes which had been executed by the FDIC’s predecessor, the FSLIC.
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11. Commitments and contingencies (continued)

12.

First Heights-related litigation (continued)

In the District Court Case, the FDIC, as successor to the FSLIC, sought a declaration of rights and other relief
related to the Assistance Agreement entered into between First Heights and the FSLIC. The FDIC and the Pulte Parties
disagreed about the proper interpretation of provisions in the Assistance Agreement which provide for sharing of certain
tax benefits achieved in connection with First Heights’ 1988 acquisition and ownership of the five failed Texas thrifts.
The District Court Case also included certain other claims relating to the foregoing, including claims resulting from the
Company’s and First Heights’ amendment of a tax sharing and allocation agreement between the Company and First
Heights. The Pulte Parties disputed the FDIC’s claims and filed an answer and a counterclaim seeking, among other
things, a declaration that the FDIC had breached the Assistance Agreement in numerous respects. On December 24,
1996, the Pulte Parties voluntarily dismissed without prejudice certain of their claims in the District Court Case and, on
December 26, 1996, initiated the Court of Federal Claims Case.

In October 2001, the FDIC and the Pulte Parties settled the District Court Case, the related appeal to the Sixth
Circuit Court of Appeals and the third lawsuit. As part of this settlement (the Settlement), the First Heights Assistance
Agreement was terminated, except that certain tax benefit sharing provisions will continue in effect, and the warrants
issued by First Heights to the FDIC were extinguished. The Company does not believe that the claims in the Court of
Federal Claims Case are in any way prejudiced by the Settlement.

In the Court of Federal Claims Case, the Pulte Parties assert breaches of contract on the part of the United States in
connection with the enactiment of Section 13224 of the Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1993 (OBRA). That
provision repealed portions of the tax benefits that the Pulte Parties claim they were entitled to under the contract to
acquire the failed Texas thrifts. The Pulte Parties also assert other claims concerning the contract, including that the
United States (through the FDIC as receiver) improperly attempted to amend the failed thrifts’ pre-acquisition tax
returns and that this attempt was made in an effort to deprive the Pulte Parties of tax benefits for which they had
contracted.

On August 17, 2001, the United States Court of Federal Claims ruled that the United States government is liable to

- the Pulte Parties for breach of contract by enacting Section 13224 of OBRA. In September 2003, the United States

Court of Federal Claims issued final judgment that the Pulte Parties had been damaged by approximately $48.7 million
as a result of the United States government’s breach of contract with them. The United States government and the Pulte
Parties filed Notices of Appeal with the United States Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit in October 2003.
Accordingly, any gain related to this litigation will be recognized only upon final resoluticn.

Supplemental Guarantor information

Pulte Homes, Inc. has the following outstanding senior note obligations at December 31, 2003: (1) $115 million,

. 8.375%, due 2004, (2) $125 million, 7.3%, due 2005, (3) $150 million, 7.625%, due 2017, (4) $200 million, 8.125%,

due 2011, (5) $500 miltion, 7.875%, due 2011, (6) $300 million, 7.875%, due 2032, (7) $300 million, 6.25%, due 2013,
and (8) $400 million, 6.375%, due 2033. Such obligations to pay principal, premium, if any, and interest are guaranteed
jointly and severally on a senior basis by Pulte Homes, Inc.’s 100%-owned Domestic Homebuilding subsidiaries
(collectively, the Guarantors). The Company has outstanding $74 million, senior subordinated notes due 2010, which
the Company called and will redeem at a price equal to 105.125% in February 2004. Such obligations to pay principal,
premium, if applicable, and interest are guaranteed jointly and severally on a senior subordinated basis by the
Guarantors. Such guarantees are full and unconditional.

Supplemental consolidating financial information of the Company, specifically including such information for the
Guarantors, is presented below. Investments in subsidiaries are presented using the equity method of accounting.
Separate financial statements of the Guarantors are not provided as the consolidating financial information contained
herein provides a more meaningful disclosure to allow investors to determine the nature of the assets held by the
operations of the combined groups.
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-12. Supplemental Guarantor information (continued)

CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31, 2003
($000°s omitted)
Unconsolidated
Pulte Guarantor Non-Guarantor Eliminating Consolidated
Homes, Ine. Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Pulte Homes, Inc.

ASSETS

Cash and equivalents $ 2949 $ 305356 § 95,787 8§ - § 404,092
Unfunded settlements........ccocooveeerecveenannenenes - 140,431 (18,131) - 122,300
House and land inventories..........coceevvemruanee - 5,354,460 173,950 - 5,528,410
Land, not owned, under option agreements. - 73,256 - - 73,256
Residential mortgage loans available-for-

SALE currrirressiietarne e seasessosssasnsonansrassesens - - 541,126 - 541,126
Land held for sale.......occcvvenrennecneereercoresnsnens - 251,237 - - 251,237
GOOAWILL....rrrrecriemcansseresmmerasesessasesananresnes - 306,993 700 - 307,693
Intangible assets.....ccccoerrmeereresmecennens - 143,704 - - 143,704
Other assets........ccocveemeereererceenenans - 81,145 501,052 109,337 - 691,534
Investment in SUDSIAIArIEs ...e.ueeeeverenereererenne 6,618.888 74738 ___ 1352274 _(8.045900) _ = -

$ 6702982 3$7,151.227 3 2255043 $(8,045900) § _8.063.352
LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Liabilities:
Accounts payable, accrued and other
liabilities......o.eeereeecereecns $ 149,572 §$1,547,241 § 200,892 § - 8§ 1,897,705

Collateralized short-term debt, recourse
solely to applicable non-guarantor

SUbSIAIAry aSSEtS...iureerseriaseesesmreresrsrsnrasnnss - - 479,287 - 479,287
INCOME tAXES . .vvererirerirrenerineriranniesenssernrensnsnnes 79,391 - - - 79,391
Deferred income tax liability .......ocecervvvennncn- (8,799) - 16,673 - 7,874
Senior notes and subordinated notes............ 2,073,689 77,283 - - 2,150,972
Advances (receivable) payable - subsidiaries 961,006 (1,124.437) 163.431 - -

Total Habilities ..........oevernmcronserssrsasiaes 3,254 859 500,087 860,283 - 4.615.229
Shareholders’ Equity:
Comnmon StOCK.......uvcmirmrersssireorerianensasrens 1,252 - 7,823 (7,823) 1,252
Additional paid-in capital...........ccceceerceurenee 1,015,991 5,381,553 1,170,349  (6,551,902) 1,015,991
Unearned compensation..........eeerssssssisorses {656) - - - {656)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss ...... (39,142) (2,706) (39,142) 41,848 (39,142)
Retained €amings ...coveusresrsersssesressasssssmsseans 2.470.678 1,272,293 255,730 _ {1.528.023) 2.470.678

Total shareholders’ equity ........oeerureee 3,448,123 _6,651.140 1,394,760 _ (8.045.500) 3.448.123

$ 6702982 §$7.151,227 § 2,255,043 §(8,045900) $ 8,063,352
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12. Supplemental Guarantor information (continued)

CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31, 2002
(5000’s omitted)
Unconsolidated
Pulte Guarantor Non-Guarantor Eliminating Consolidated
Homes, Inc. Subsidiaries Substdiaries Entries Pulte Homes, Inc.

ASSETS

Cash and equivalents ..........cc.unne. 3 - 8 541,095 § 72,073 §$ - § 613,168
Unfunded settlements oo eeveriesssnevoreersnns - 66,203 (5,562) - 60,641
House and land inventories .........oceereeneneees - 4,143,827 149,770 - 4,293,597
Residential mortgage loans available-for-

Sl ..ot s st easaseae s - - 600,339 - 600,339
Land held for sale ........ouaveerenrererrnes - 226,054 - - 226,054
GoodWill .....coiiiriceiresarintinas i rensemrsirsaneans - 306,993 700 - 307,693
Intangible assets... e reecmsreeiseserissssnnes - 151,954 - - 151,954
Other assets..........eeee.... 54,295 457,805 94,798 - 606,398
Deferred income taxes.....ceermueressserescasssrses 27,784 - (16,041) - 11,743
Investment in subsidiaries .......oeeerrerecrearens 3.553,786 93,710 1,809.031 _(5.456.527) -

$ 3635865 $5987.641 3§ 2705108 §$(5456,527) § _6,872.087
LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Liabilities:
Accounts payable, accrued and other

BADIHEES 1vvesreneomcencaonnessamsinsesmasensessasessens $ 125941 $1,281,648 § 141,174 § - § 1,548,763
Collateralized short-term debt, recourse

solely to applicable non-guarantor :

SubSIdiary asSeLs.....cccvecureerersencormsrsnrersens - - 559,621 - 559,621
INCOME tAXES vovcuiureerenmreneerrersmssereererereossanenns 90,009 - - - 90,009
Senior notes and subordinated notes............ 1,652,602 260,666 - - 1,913,268
Advances (receivable) payable - subsidiaries __ {993.113) 768,997 224,116 - -

Total liabilities ........ceererecreersrsrsescssarens 875,439 2,311,311 924911 - 4,111,661
Shareholders’ Equity:
CormmoOn StOCK.. e eerecenseesnsmnseessrssesassenseenns 1,222 40,656 52,195 (92,851) 1,222
Additional paid-in capital ...........coessererrencns 932,551 1,977,009 720,923  (2,697,932) 932,551
Uneamed cOmpensation ..........cecesseericereres (9,866) - - - (9,866)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss...... (35,371) - (35,371) 35,371 (35,371)
Retained €arnings........ccevreceneueeerececeresatmocsose 1,871.890 1.658,665 1,042,450 _ (2,701.115) 1.871.890
Total shareholders’ equity....o.icrreeeses 2760426 _3.676.330 1,780,197 _(5.456.527) ___2.760426
$ 3635865 $5987.641 3 2705108 $(5456,527) 3§ 6872087
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12. Supplemental Guarantor information (continued)

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

For the year ended December 31, 2003
(3000°s omitted)

Revenues:
Homebuilding
Financial Services

Total TEVENUES .....ev.vvcrerreerersersersnsens
Expenses:
Homebuilding:
L0/ ) 1 (O
Selling, general and administrative
and other eXpense...........cveresmrerarenens
Financial Services, principally interest ...,
Corporate, net

Total eXPEnses........cceremranrsrerserercneres
Other Income:
Equity ICOME.. ...ccrcecerreerrarraransaseenranseresres
Income (loss) from continuing operations
before income taxes and equity in
income of subsidiaries .........coosiicrerncerunns.
Income taxes (benefit).......coereirnreirransennees

Income (loss) from continuing operations
before equity in income of
subsidiaries

Income from discontinued operations..........

Income (loss) before equity in net income
OF SubSIIATIES ...vovrerrcneircnirrrsensescssseneessinse

Equity in net income of subsidiaries:
Continuing Operations .........ceceeeueeesreens
Discontinued operations ...........cuveeeeereenee

Net income

Unconsolidated

Puite Guarantor Non-Guarantor Eliminating  Consolidated
Homes, Inc.  Subsidiaries _Subsidiaries Entries Pulte Homes, Inc.
3 - 38,701,661 § 228,137 ¥ - § 8,929,798

- 16,491 99,356 - 115,847

42 2,602 637 - 3.281

42 8,720,754 328,130 - 9.048.926

- 6,885,249 183,271 - 7,068,520

10,910 829,871 50,847 - 891,628

- 4,851 48,402 - 53,253
83,637 (4.816) _(189) - 78.632
94,547 7,715,155 282,331 - 8.092.033
- 30913 7.850 - 38.763
(94,505) 1,036,512 53,649 - 995,656
(38.465) 396.090 20,709 - 378,334
(56,040) 640,422 32,940 - 617,322
7312 - - - 7312
(48.728) 640.422 32,940 - 624.634
673,362 34,481 231,826 (939,669) -
673.362 34481 231,826 (939.669) -

$ 624634 3 674903 §.264766 3 _(939.669) § __624.634
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12. Supplemental Guarantor information (continued)

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
For the year ended December 31, 2002

($000°s omitted)
Unconsolidated
Pulte Guarantor Non-Guarantor Eliminating  Consolidated
. _Homes, Inc.  Subsidiaries _Subsidiaries Entries Pulte Homes, Inc.
Revenues:
Homebuilding.......coveerrccererecesearernrnceevonene 3 - 37,167,915 - % 196,074 $ - $ 7,363,989
Financial SErvices ......ccvommvraereresserecssense - 15,004 91,624 - 106,628
COMPOLALE. ...t eeerreem et reeveranacreseareersrasseeans 164 1,038 - - 1.202
Total TeVenUes......ocerrrrenrmreernersennans 164 7.183.957 287,698 - 7471819
Expenses:
Homebuilding:
- Cost 0f SalES....cceeorvcrccrarsrerresrarreransannnns - 5,761,468 157,056 - 5,918,524
Selling, general and administrative
and other EXPense ......veecroresnerrenenes 8,661 682,737 36,744 - 728,142
Financial Services, principally interest.... - 4,445 41,134 - 45,579
Corporate, Net......ceermererecremrcemserensrirsessns 63,036 281 (147) - 63.170
Total eXpenses ......cweenusniresassesons 71697 _6.448.931 234787 - 6.755415
Other Income:
Equity INCOME.. ..ccnerecercesreasremsesessramsaresans - 3.897 8521 - 12,418
Income (loss) from continuing operations
before income taxes and equity in
mcome Of SUbSIAIATIES ....vccvrreerrrreesernerrenee {71,533) 738,923 61,432 - 728,822
Income taxes (benefit) .......ccureviccrsararannenneee {28,302y _ 288,111 __ 24412 - 284221
Income (loss) from continuing operations
before equity in income of
SUBSIdIATIES ....oiseseremsroreenransnmemeroresrsansassoens (43,231) 450,812 37,020 - 444,601
Income from discontinued operations........ 9.042 - 2 - 9.044
Income (loss) before equity in net income
Of SUbSIdIaries.....ccvereereenrcenerenceerererssvareares __(34.189) __450.812 37,022 - 453,645
Equity in net income of subsidiaries:
Continuing Operations.........ccoceseereseresrerens 487,832 33,310 297,229 (818,371) -
Discontinued Operations .........e....ousveerusees 2 - - 2) -
487.834 33310 297.229 {818.373) -
Nt iNCOME. ...ucrverervererrensresessemmensnrsane $ 453645 $ 484,122 § 334251 § (818373) §__ 453645
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12. Supplemental Guarantor information (continued)

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
For the year ended December 31, 2001

(3000°s omitted)
— Unconsolidated
Pulte Guarantor Non-Guaraator Eliminating  Consolidated
Homes, Inc.  Subsidiaries _Subsidiaries Entries Pulte Homes, Inc.
Revenues:
Homebuilding .......cocoeememeerneernrsnreresreanes $ - $5274,660 § 35169 § - 8§ 5,309,829
Financial ServiCes . renrereresserccsssares - 10,073 67,149 - 77,222
COTPOALE ...crenreiarearearinannaernmnonnenss 189 2,021 - - 2210
Total revenues .......o.occeveeeeeeeerevennanne 189 5,286,754 102318 - §.389.261
Expenses:
Homebuilding:
COSt OF SALES weererrrerrccrrsrecererceensrenenans - 4,261,006 30,937 - 4,291,943
Selling, general and administrative
and other expense...........coccovereverireae 2,873 501,519 10,477 - 514,869
Financial Services, principally interest.... - 2,996 41,550 - 44,546
Corporate, Det....vuenrecrerneereresescenerassenns 51.940 9.280 (1.558) - 59.662
Total EXPENSES .eveerrrearsceerarasieessnsseres 54.813 4,774,801 81.406 - 4911.020
Other Income:
EqUity INCOME ....ccovrecieritrerensernirnenessserensens - 5,676 7.870 - 13.546
Income (loss) from continuing operations
before income taxes and equity in
income of subsidiaries .........cccscererenrccrenens (54,624) 517,629 28,782 - 491,787
Income taxes (benefit) ......coivinmuerirvereererenne {26.779) 199,369 16,772 - 189.362
Income (loss) from continuing operations
before equity in income of
subsidiaries........ovuermrnercsreccreoreronee “ (27,845) 318,260 12,010 - 302,425
Income {loss) from discontinued operations 87 - (1,119) - (1,032)
Income (loss) before equity in net income
of subsidiaries .......ccovceeevvecererer e (27.758) 318260 10.891 - 301393
Equity in net income (loss) of subsidiaries:
Continuing operations ..........ccceveeereesenes 330,270 16,599 253,898 (600,767) -
Discontinued operations...........coeerereereeens (1,119) - - 1,119 -
329,151 16,599 253,898 (599.648) -
NEt INCOME ..ovvomevrecreececrnrenmecsseneesensens $§ 301393 3§ 334859 3 264789 §$_(599648) §__ 301393
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12. Supplemental Guarantor information (continued)

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended December 31, 2003

(3000°s omitted)
— Unconsolidated
Pulte Guaraantor Non-Guarantor Eliminating Consolidated
Homes, Inc,  Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Pulte Homes, Inc.

Cash flows from operating activities:
- Nt IICOME .oevreeerecrsanressesesnasranraarsassrresenss $ 624,634 $674903 $ 264,766 $(939,669) $ 624,634
- Adjustments to reconcile net income
" to net cash flows provided by (used in)

operating activities:
Equity in income of subsidiaries .. (673,362) (34,481) (231,826) 939,669 -
Amortization and depreciation..... - 36,410 3,750 - 40,160
Stock-based compensation
EXPENSE vvurerraeriosesrorsessassecsorsosnes 30,515 - - - 30,515
Deferred income taxes........ccereveee 18,985 - 632 - 19,617
Other, net... 1,150 (2,912) (2,421) - (4,183)
Increase (decrease) in cash due to;
INVENtOries.....convarerrrerreremasencenss - (1,377,875) (36,419) - (1,414,294)
Residential mortgage loans
available-for-sale.......cccceu..... - ~ 59,213 - 59,213
Other aSSets ....c.cvureerereevreesersanne (26,850) 13,306 (5,869) - (19,413)
Accounts payable, accrued
and other liabilities............... 18,222 260,790 64,767 - 343,779
TRCOME tAXES .cvrvrererensoncerssaserenss (145.718) 162.014 1,828 - 18,124
Net cash provided by (used in) operating
ACHVIHES ..everaeerereerrarsssseseasarercascssssssasessas (152.424)  (267.845) 118421 - (301,848)
Dividends received from subsidiaries ..... 1,107,549 16,000 1,069,503  (2,193,052) -
Investment in subsidiaries (3,497,651) (1,910) - 3,499,561 -
Advances from affiliates...........ccoeceererenas 106,461 - - (106,461) -
Proceeds from sale of fixed assgts........... - 5,023 - - 5,023
Capital expendifires.......c..ocomserrereasesessons - (28.405) (10.715) - (39,120)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing
BCHVILES 1uivsrarsceceersssssserssresnmsossarassorsessaaces (2,283.641) (9,292 _1,058.,788 1,200,048 (34.097)
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PULTE HOMES, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

12. Supplemental Guarantor information (continued)

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Payment of senior notes and

subordinated notes

Proceeds from borrowings

Capital contributions from parent
Advances (to) from affiliates

Dividends paid
Net cash provided by (used in) financing

ACHVIHES c.eeveeerrisirrersnarenrersssessesssnsnessensons

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash
and cash equivalents

Net increase (decrease) in cash and

EQUIVAIENLS ...vevererenrenersrassmseianeararsaeasncaens
Cash and equivalents at beginning of year ..

Cash and equivalents at end of year

Repayment of borrowings .......cu.vevencene

Issuance of common StOCK ........ceevereriine
Stock repurchases «....oeeesecereerecceceneone

........................................

For the year ended December 31, 2003

($000°s-omitted)
Unconsolidated
Puite Guarantor Non-Guaranter Eliminating Consolidated
Homes, Inc.  Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Pulte Homes, In¢.
$(275,000) $(182,511) b $ - $ (457,511)
. 694,937 - - 696,965
. - (35,230) (82,938) - (118,168)
. - 3,472,607 26,954 (3,499,561) -
. 2,011,500 (2,105,919) (12,042) 106,461 -
. 39,493 - - - 39,493
- (18,304) - - - (18,304)
.. (13.612) (1.107,549) (1.085,503) 2,193,052 {13.612)
. 2,439.014 41.398 (1.151.501) (1.200.048) 128.863
- - - (1,994) - {1,994)
. 2,949 (235,739) 23,714 - (209,076)
- 541,095 72.073 - 613,168
- $_2949 $305356 3 95787 § = $£.404,09
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PULTE HOMES, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

12. Supplemental Guarantor information (continued)

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended December 31, 2602

($000°s omitted)
Unconsolidated
Pulte Guarantor Non-Guarantor Eliminating Consolidated
Homes. Inc.  Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Pulte Homes, Inc.
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income § 453645 $484,122 § 334,251  $(818,373) § 453,645
Adjustments to reconcile net income :
to net cash flows provided by (used in)
operating activities:
Equity in income of subsidiaries .. (487,834) (33,310) (297,229) 818,373 -
Amortization and depreciation .... - 36,542 2,709 - 39,251
Stock based compensation
EXPEISE......ccruurerenrrmer 10,387 - - - 10,387
Deferred income taxes........coevuv.. 39,235 - - - 39,235
Other, net. 1,042 (3,410) (7,386) - (9,754)
Increase (decrease) in cash due to: -
Inventories - (465,051) (51,128) - (516,179)
Residential mortgage loans
available-for-sale................... - - (164,878) - (164,878)
Other assets ......coovieriecaserencseanes (926) 39,254 (13,338) - 24,990
Accounts payable, accrued
and other liabilities .......c..ccee. (6,359) 157,754 45,457 - 196,852
INCOME tAXES .evveeerrocersasnsaensescons {52.405) 122421 5229 - 75,245
Net cash provided by (used in) operating
ACHVIHES .evemeererrerarane (43.215) 338,322 (146,313) - 148.794
Dividends received from subsidiaries ..... 232,000 23,500 - (255,500) -
Investment in subsidiaries............ eeeeaeannes (1,228,780) (1,331) - 1,230,111 -
Advances (to) from affiliates...........c.c.... 1,844,046 248,458 33,946  (2,126,450) -
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets........... - 45,502 (304) - 45,198
Capital expenditures............icerereureearnreser - (18.863) (4.837) - (23.,760)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing
ACHVILIES wrevserressmssarsnnmseasessmarncersemansassensrases 847,266 297,266 28805  (1,151,839) 21,498
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PULTE HOMES, INC,

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

12. Supplemental Guarantor information (continued)

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
For the year ended December 31, 2002

Cash flows from financing activities:
Payment of senior notes and
subordinated NOLES .....cuevererereeraseassacses
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of borrowings ....c.eccanns
Capital contributions from parent
Advances (to) from affiliates
Issuance of common stock ...uceeceseereneens
Stock TEPULCHASES woevuevererrerrenseresasrcaranensans
Dividends paid

....................

.........................................

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash
and cash equivalents...........couecrrereneen

Net increase (decrease) in cash and
equivalents .....c.ereeeceonnnens
Cash and equivalents at beginning of year ..

Cash and equivalents at end of year

(3000°s omitted)
Unconsolidated
Pulte . Guarantor Non-Guarantor Eliminating Consolidated
Homes, Inc.  Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Pulte Homes, Inc.

$ (1,437) $(106,139) 3 - $ - % (107,576)
298,707 132,599 147,011 - 578,317
(110,000) - (7,256) - (117,256)

- 1,196,038 34,073 (1,230,111) -
(1,027,422) (1,118,634) 19,606 2,126,450 -
34,597 - - - 34,597
(4,344) - - - (4,344)
(9.773) (232.000) (23.500) 255,500 (9.773)

(819.672) (128.136) 169,934 1,151.839 373.965
. - (3,233) - (3,233)

(15,621) 507,452 49,193 - 541,024
15.621 33.643 22.880 - 72,144

§ - 3541005 § 72073 §_ . & 613168
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PULTE HOMES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

12. Supplemental Guarantor information (continued)

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended December 31, 2001

(5000°s omitted)
Unconsolidated
Puite Guarantor Non-Guarantor Eliminating  Consolidated
Homes, Inc,  Subsidiaries _ Subsidiaries Entries Pulte Homes, Inc.
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net INCOIMNE ...orvurrenmreravsesrcerrsrrerersesrassosaes $ 301,393 $334859 § 264,789  $(599,648) $ 301,393
"Adjustroents to reconcile net income
to net cash flows used in
operating activities:
Equity in income of subsidiaries .. (329,151) (16,599) (253,898) 599,648 -
Amortization and depreciation .... - 31,026 1,358 - 32,384
Stock based compensation
EXPEDSE 1evesraercrsrrrssssessrassensesuronsas 1,699 (1,385) - - 314
Deferred income taxes......ccceene. (8,176) - - - (8,176)
Other, net eretessernacsaanessasasenees 746 173 (934) - (15)
Increase (decrease) in cash due to:
INVENtOrIES. ..cveueeerenrcresasasesesrons - (622,835) (23,755) - (646,590)
Residential mortgage loans
available-for-sale.......cc.ococrunee - - (157,325) - (157,325)
Other aSSets .....cocoeeeearmmerarosrenran (12,233) 74,203 (36,684) - 25,286
Accounts payable, accrued
and other liabilities .......ocsvesee 7,354 (25,864) 19,881 - 1,371
INCOMIE tAXES vvvererrrrrecermacersvses (26.594) 67.523 3,742 - 44,671
Net cash used in operating activities........... (64,962) (158,899) (182.826) - (406.687)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash
E:Tule LIV (=T S (10,963) 22,607 - - 11,644
Dividends received from subsidiaries ..... 200,000 1,000 200,000 (401,000) -
Investment in subsidiaries..........c...covenruene (24,250) (994) - 25,244 -
Advances to affiliates.......cccouerercerrcercrccns (899,170) (915,963) (34,590) 1,849,723 -
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets........... - 18,115 - - 18,115
Capital expenditures.........cocevevereesrensssasses - (27,091) (3,105) - (30,196)
Other, NEL...iiieiiccecere e rereeaerersesssenars - - 1.285 - 1285
Net cash provided by (used in) investing
ACHVIIES ..veverrerrreroncrersassroceeserrcserassesessrsen (734.383) (902.326) 163.590 1,473,967 848
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PULTE HOMES, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

12. Supplemental Guarantor information (continued)

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
For the year ended December 31, 2001

(5000°s omitted)
Unconsolidated
Pulte Guarantor Non-Guarantor Eliminating Consolidated
Homes, Inc.  Subsidiaries __Subsidiaries Entries Pulte Homes, Inc;
Cash flows from financing activities:
Payment of senior notes and
subordinated BOES ..cvcueermrcecrrmrencesreres h] - 5(3356,391) § (70000 $ - § (363,391)
Proceeds from borrowings........ccccovesveurense 804,248 797 175,261 - 980,306
Repayment of bomrowings ........c.ecveerereenee - (320,167) (5,547) - (325,714)
Capital contributions from parent ............ - 24,250 994 (25,244) -
Advances from affiliates.......cccoeeremerseenne. 5,291 1,812,519 31,913 (1,849,723) -
Issuance of common stock ........cceruernenee 13,537 - - - 13,537
Dividends paid.....ccccceermrarsenssrmsescorsonnenns (8,110 (200.000) (201.000) 401,000 (8,110)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing
ACHVIHES ...eeveruereneracrenrenscrrmsrserasssisrsensansaas .814.966 961,008 (5379) (1.473.967) . 296.628
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and
cash equivalents reereessensoteranes - - {2,630) - (2,630)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and
EQUIVAIENLS ..o reeceraerceoreersssnansnesensisesnanens 15,621 (100,217) (27,245) - (111,841)
Cash and equivalents at beginning of year .. - 133,860 50.125 - 183.985
Cash and equivalents at end of year............. $ 15621 3 33.643 3 22880 §_ - 3 72,144
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REPORT OF MANAGEMENT

We, the management of Pulte Homes, Inc., are responsible for
the integrity and objectivity of the accompanying consolidated
financial statements and related information. The statements
were prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States, and, as such, include
amounts that are based on our best judgments and estimates.

We maintain a system of internal accounting and disclosure
controls designed to provide reasonable assurance that assets
are safeguarded and that transactions and events are recorded
properly and that accounting records may be relied upon for
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements and
other financial information. While the Company is organized
on the principle of decentralized management, appropriate
control measures are also evidenced by well-defined
organizational responsibiliies, management selection,
development and evaluation processes, communication
techniques, financial planning and reporting systems and
formalized procedures. In addition, internal auditors monitor
the operation of our internal control system and report
findings and recommendations to management and the Audit
Committee, and corrective actions are taken to remedy
deficiencies if and when they are identified.

Emst & Young LLP, independent auditors, is engaged to audit
our consolidated financial statements. Emst & Young LLP
maintains an understanding of our internal controls and
conducts such tests and other auditing procedures considered
necessary in the circumstances to express their opinion on our
consolidated financial statements in the report that follows.

Our Audit Committee of the Board of Directors is composed
solely of independent directors with the financial knowledge
and experience to provide oversight We review internal
control matters and key accounting and financial reporting
issues with the Audit Committee on a regular basis. In
addition, the independent auditors, management and internal
auditors regularly meet in private sessions with our Audit
Committee to discuss the results of their work including
observations on the adequacy of internal financial controls, the
quality of financial reporting, confirm that they are properly
discharging their responsibilities and other relevant matters.

We are committed to providing timely, accurate and
understandable information to our shareholders.

Richard J. D\jgas, Jr.
President and
Chief Executive Officer

Yoirt] L.

Vincent $Trees
Vice President and
Controller

Roger A. Cregg
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Pulte Homes, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets of Pulte Homes, Inc. as of December 31, 2003 and
2002, and the related consolidated staterents of operations,
shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2003. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. 'We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Pulte Homes, Inc. at
December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the consolidated results
of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2003, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Company changed in 2003 its method of
accounting for stock options and in 2002 its method of
accounting for goodwill.

St + MLLP

Detroit, Michigan
January 23, 2004



PULTE HOMES, INC.,
UNAUDITED QUARTERLY INFORMATION
(000°s omitted, except per share data)

st 2nd 3rd 4th
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Total
2003
Homebuilding: .
REVENUES. .. ueverirerenseesrssrissnionecesesmasrassssssonsarssseonse $1,523,439 $1,925,711 32,373,364 $3,107,284  $8,929,798
Income before income taxes.......ccocveveuerrercerennn 137,412 198,021 263,885 402,843 1,002,161
Financial Services:
REVEDUES....ovrniriiimiesecrerasrasesesrmasnsssssenssssassssnans $ 27596 $ 31,774 § 25851 $§ 30,626 $§ 115847
Income before income taxes...........ccereemsrverererenee 17,116 20,858 13,381 17,491 68,846
Corporate:
REVEMUES...ouvurreeecereirrenessnsarsassasrasessanssasarssersenseans $ 1555 § 700 3% 588 § 438 $ 3,281 .
Loss before income taXes .......ccecrnerneenrenssresnensens (15,369) (22,046) (17,601) (20,335) (75,351)
Consolidated results:
REVEMUES.c.cvmirsicseemessesansrsssersssonsormareansessassersraraess $1,552,590 $1,958,185 $2,399,803 $3,138,348  $9,048,926
Income from continuing operations
before INCOME taXeS ..ererrererinsstanseerarsasecercsans 139,159 196,833 259,665 399,999 995,656
INCOME TAXES vcvcnrrsitscremcoereesrensranenarmersesencarases 52,858 74,833 98,630 152,013 378,334
Income from continuing operations............cccee.. 86,301 122,000 161,035 247,986 617,322
Income (loss) from discontinued operations....... (164) (283) 7,851 (92) 7,312
INEL INCOME. 11 orecremerresreracsssrssireseoseessesesseasessessonss $ 86,137 § 121,717 $ 168,886 3 247894 § 624,634
Per share data (a):
Basic:
Income from continuing operations ............ $ 71 3 100 § 132 § 201 § 5.05
Income (loss) from discontinued operations - - .06 - .06
NEt IICOME ...vvrerrermrreccnmesirsracssaresserseceronss $ 71 8 100 § 138 % 201 8§ 5.11
Weighted-average common
shares outstanding..........ceeeemrceereensacsrirecranes 121,426 121,506 122,248 123,444 122,162
Assuming dilution:
Income from continuing operations ............ $ 70 8 98 8 128 $ 195 % 491
Income (loss) from discontinued operations - - .06 - .06
NEt INCOME c.ocrevreseniensencasrssrerorersarossescronses 3 69 5 97 3 134 % 194 § 4.97
Adjusted weighted-average common
shares and effect of dilutive securities......... 124,078 124,994 125,777 127,463 125,730

(a) All share and per share amounts have been restaied to retroactively reflect the two-for-one stock split announced on December 11,
2003 and effected January 2, 2004.
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2002
Homebuilding:
Revenues. .,

PULTE HOMES, INC.
UNAUDITED QUARTERLY INFORMATION
(000’s omitted, except per share data)

1st 2nd 3rd
Quarter Ouarter Quarter

Income before income taxes

$1,355,605 $1,661,670 $1,831,317
115,334 146,522 180,180

Financial Services:
Revenues . $ 23024 $ 23842 $ 27836
Income before INCOME TAXES....ceeerrerrereosesiorsesess 12,254 16,162 19,168
Corporate:
Revenues ¥ 112§ 51 § 353
Loss before income taxes ......cocoecricsersennensecnees (15,054) (14,462) (13,254)
Consolidated results:
Revenues $1,378,741 $1,685,563 $1,859,506
Income from continuing operations
before income taxes 112,534 148,222 186,094
Income taxes 43,894 57,814 72,585
Income from continuing operations ..........eceweuee 68,640 90,408 113,509
Income (loss) from discontinued operations....... (528) (205) 9,937
Net income $ 63112 § 90203 3§ 123,446
Per share data (a):
Basic:
Income from continuing operations............. 3 S7 8 as s 93
Income (loss) from discontinued operations - - .08
Net income 3 57 3 a5 3 1.02
Weighted-average common
shares outstanding 119,726 121,001 121,584
Assuming dilution:
Income from continuing operations............ 3 56 § 72 3 92
Income (loss) from discontinued operations - - .08
Net INCOME «.voirerranncstscrearesssossesnrantorsesmmstorerses 3 55 08 a2 3 1.00

Adjusted weighted-average common
shares and effect of dilutive securities......... 122,944 124,718 123,900

4th
Quarter

$2,515,397
282,031

$ 31,926
19,139

$ 686
(19,198)
$2,548,009
281,972
109,928
172,044

(160)
$ 171,884

8 1.42
$ 1.4i.

121,552
:3 1.39

3 1.39

123,649

Total

$7,363,989
724,067

$ 106,628
66,723

$ 1202
(61,968)

$7,471,819

728,822
284,221
444,601

9,044

$ 453,645

$ 3.68
.07
$ 3.75

120,906
$ 3.0

07
$ 367

123,492

(a) All share and per share amounts have been restated (o retroactively reflect the two-for-one stock split announced on December 11,

2003 and effected January 2, 2004.



ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

This Item is not applicable.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Management, including our President & Chief Executive Officer and Executive Vice President & Chief Financial
Officer, evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31,
2003. Based upon, and as of the date of that evaluation, our President & Chief Executive Officer and Executive Vice
President & Chief Financial Officer concluded that the disclosure confrols and procedures were effective, in all material
respects, to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports we file and submit under the Exchange Act is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported as and when required.

There has been no change in our internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended December 31, 2003
that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

PART III
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Information required by this Item with respect to our executive officers is set forth in Item 4A. Information required
* by this Item with respect to members of our Board of Directors is contained in the Proxy Statement for the 2004 Annual
Meeting of Shareholders (2004 Proxy Statement) under the caption *“Election of Directors™ and under the caption “Board of
Directors” incorporated herein by this reference. Information required by this Item with respect to compliance with Section
16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is contained in the 2004 Proxy Staterment under the caption “Section 16(a)
Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance,” incorporated herein by this reference. Information required by this Item with
respect to our code of ethics is contained in the 2004 Proxy Statement under the caption “Code of Ethics / Business Practices
Policy,” incorporated herein by this reference.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information required by this Item is contained in the 2004 Proxy Statement under the caption “Compensation of
Named Executive Officers” incorporated herein by this reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The following table provides information as of December 31, 2003, with respect to our shares of common stock that
may be issued under our existing equity compensation plans:

Number of Common Shares
Remaining Available for
Number of Common Future Issuance Under Equity
Shares to be Issued Weighted-Average Compensation Shares
Upon Exercise of Exercise Price of (excluding Common Shares
Outstanding Options Quitstanding Options Reflected in Column (a))
Plan Category (a) (b) {c)
Equity compensation plans
approved by stockholders 10,776,764 $23.38 3,123,350
Equity compensation plans not
approved by stockholders - - -
Total 10,776,764 $2338 3.123350

All other Information required by this Item is contained in the 2004 Proxy Statement under the caption “Beneficial
Ownership of Significant Shareholders,” under the caption “Election of Directors™ and under the caption “Board of
Directors,” incorporated herein by this reference.
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ITEM13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

Information required by this Item is contained in the 2004 Proxy Statement under the caption “Compensation of
Named Executive Officers” incorporated herein by this reference.

ITEM 14, PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

Information required by this Item is contained in the 2004 Proxy Statement under the captions “Approval Policies

for Services Provided by the Independent Auditors” and *Other Important Committee Activities” incorporated herein by
reference.

PARTIV
ITEM 15, EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K
The following documents are filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
(a) Financial Statements and Schedules

(1) Financial Statements Page Herein

Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2003 and 2002............ 26
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended
December 31, 2003, 2002 2nd 2001 ......c.ceereriersenearsensenmonsemsermonsssessrsrsssasssasssssasassssssssrssses 27

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity for the

. years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 .......ccccrvemmmeeemerasemrereesssensiessssneaseossssanes 28
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the

years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 .......cococemmsnuinemmssenienassesisessssesssines 29
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements ........cccevceccriencnesanninsenesessrssarsssosisansessssorsossassssares 30

All schedules are omitted since the required information is not present, is not present in amounts sufficient to require
submission of the schedule or because the required information is included in the financial statements or notes thereto.

(2) Exhibits
Exhibit Number and Description

(2) and (a) Plan and Agreesment of merger dated as of April 30, 2001, among Del Webb Corporation, Puite
(10) Corporation and Pulte Acquisition Corporation. {Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to our
Registration Statement on Form S-4, Registration No, 33-62518).

€)) (a) Articles of Incorporatior, as amended, of Pulte Homes, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1
to our Registration Statement on Form S-4, Registration No. 33-62518).

®) By-laws, as amended, of Pulte Homes, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3(b) to our Annual
Report on 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002).

() (a) Senior Note Indenture dated as of December 31, 1993, among Pulte Corporation, certain of its
subsidiaries, as Guarantors, and NationsBank of Georgia, National Association, as Trustee, including
Form of Senior Guarantee, covering Pulte Corporation’s 8.375% unsecured senior notes due 2004
(112,000,000 aggregate principal amount outstanding). (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to
our Registration Statement on Form S-3, Registration No. 33-71742).

®) Senior Note Indenture dated as of October 24, 1995, among Pulte Corporation, ceriain of its
subsidiaries, as Guarantors, and The First National Bank of Chicago, as Trustee, covering Pulte
Corporation’s 7.3% unsecured senior notes due 2005 ($125,000,000 aggregate principal amount
outstanding) and 7.625% unsecured senior notes due 2017 ($150,000,000 aggregate principal amount

outstanding). (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit (¢) 1 to our Current Report on Form
8-K dated October 20, 1995).
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Indenture Supplement dated as of August 27, 1997, among Pulte Corporation, Bank One Trust

Company, National Association (as successor Trustee to The First National Bank of Chicago), and

certain subsidiaries of Pulte Corporation. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to our Current
Report on Form 8-K dated October 6, 1997).

Indenture Supplement dated August 27, 1997, among Pulte Corporation, The Bank of New York (as
successor Trustee to NationsBank of Georgia, National Association), Pulte Home Corporation and

‘certain subsidiaries of Pulte Corporation. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to our Current
Report on Form 8-K dated October 6, 1997).

Indenture Supplement dated as of March 20, 1998, among Pulte Corporation, Bank One Trust
Company, National Association (as successor Trustee to The First National Bank of Chicago), and
certain subsidiaries of Pulte Corporation. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to our Cwurent
Report on Form 8-K dated March 24, 1998).

Indenture Supplement dated as of March 20, 1998, among Pulte Corporation, The Bank of New York
(as successor Trustee to NationsBank of Georgia, National Association), Pulte Home Corporation and

certain subsidiaries of Pulte Corporation. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to our Current

Report on Form 8-K dated March 24, 1998).

Indenture Supplement dated January 31, 1999, among Pulte Corporation, Bank One Trust Company,
National Association (as successor Trustee to The First National Bank of Chicago), and certain
subsidiaries of Pulte Corporation, (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to our Current Report on
Form 8-K dated March 3, 1999).

Indenture Supplement dated January 31, 1999, among Pulte Corporation, The Bank of New York (as
successor Trustee to NationsBank of Georgia, National Association), Pulte Home Corporation and
certain subsidiaries of Pulte Corporation. {Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to our Current
Report on Form 8-K dated March 3, 1999).

Indenture Supplement dated April 3, 2000, among Pulte Homes, Inc., Bank One Trust Company,
National Association (as successor Trustee to The First National Bank of Chicago), and certain
subsidiaries of Pulte Homes, Inc. (Filed herewith)

Indenture Supplemént dated February 21, 2001, among Pulte Homes, Inc., Bank One Trust Company,
National Association (as successor Trustee to The First National Bank of Chicago), and certain
subsidiaries of Pulte Homes, Inc. (Filed herewith)

Indenture Supplement dated July 31, 2001, among Pulte Homes, Inc., the Bank of New York and
certain subsidiaries of Pulte Homes, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.13 to our
Registration Statement on Form S-4, Registration No. 33-70786).

Indenture Supplement dated August 6, 2001, among Pulte Homes, Inc., Bank One Trust Company,
National Association (as successor Trustee to The First National Bank of Chicago), and certain
subsidiaries of Pulte Homes, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.8 to our Registration
Staterment on Form S-4, Registration No. 33-70786).

Indenture Supplement dated June 12, 2002, among Pulte Homes, Inc., Bank One Trust Company,
National Association (as successor Trustee to The First National Bank of Chicago), and certain
subsidiaries of Pulte Homes, Inc. (Filed herewith)

Indenture Supplement dated February 3, 2003, among Pulte Homes, Inc., Bank One Trust Company,
National Association (as successor Trustee to The First National Bank of Chicago), and certain
subsidiaries of Pulte Homes, Inc. (Filed herewith)

Indenture Supplement dated May 22, 2003, among Pulte Homes, Inc., Bank One Trust Company,
National Association (as successor Trustee to The First National Bank of Chicago), and certain
subsidiaries of Pulte Homes, Inc. (Filed herewith)
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Indenture Supplement dated January 16, 2004, among Pulte Homes, Inc., J.P. Morgaﬁ Trust

- Company, National Association (as successor Trustee to0 Bank One Trust Company, National

Association, which was successor Trustee to The First National Bank of Chicago), and certain
subsidiaries of Pulte Homes, Inc. (Filed herewith)

Registration Rights Agreement dated August 6, 2001, among Pulte Homes, Inc. and Solomon Smith
Barney, Inc. as the Initial Purchaser Representative. (Incorporated by reference to Exhlblt 423 to our
Registration Statement on Form S—4, Registration No. 33-70786).

Form of Pulte Homes, Inc. Guarantee Agreement. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.32 to our
Registration Statement on Form S-3, Registration No. 333-86806).

1990 Stock Incentive Plan for Key Employees (Filed with the Proxy Statement dated April 3, 1990

and as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-8, Registration No. 33-40102).

1994 Stock Incentive Plan for Key Employees (Incorporated by reference to our Proxy Statement

dated March 31, 1994, and an exhibit to our Registration Statement on Form S-8, Registration No. 33-
98944).

1995 Stock Incentive Plan for Key Employees. (Incorporated by reference fo our Proxy Staterment
dated March 31, 1995, and an exhibit o our Registration Statement on Form S-8, Registration No. 33-
99218).

1997 Stock Plan for Nonemployee Directors. (Incorporated by reference to our Proxy Statement
dated March 27, 1998 and as Exhibit 4.3 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-8,
Registration No. 33-51019).

Credit Agreement among Pulte Homes, Inc. as Borrower, the Lenders Identified Herein, and Bank
One, NA, as Administrative Agent, dated as of October 1, 2003. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003).

Intercreditor and Subordination Agreement, dated October 1, 2003, among Asset Seven Corp., Pulte
Realty Corporation, certain subsidiaries of Pulte Homes, Inc., Bank One, NA, as Administrative
Agent, and Bank One Trust Company, National Association, as Trustee. (Filed herewith)

Long Term Incentive Plan. (Incorporated by reference to our Proxy Statement dated March 31, 2000).
Employment Separation Agreement and Release of all Liability, dated May 11, 2001, between Pulte
Corporation and Robert K. Burgess. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to our Registration
Statement on Form S-4, Registration No, 33-62518).

Pulte Corporation 2000 Stock Plan for Nonemployee Directors. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
4.3 to our Registration Statement on Form S-8, Registration No, 33-66286).

Pulte Corporation 2000 Incentive Plan for Key Employees. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3
to our Registration Statement on Form S-8, Registration' No. 33-66284).

Pulte Homes, Inc. 2002 Stock Incentive Plan. (Incorporated by reference to our Proxy Statement
dated April 15, 2002).

Del Webb Corporation Director Stock Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 43 to our
Registration Statement on Form S-8, Registration No. 33-66322).

Del Webb Corporation 1993 Executive Long-Term Incentive Plan. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.7 to our Registration Statement on Form S-8, Registration No. 33-66322).

Del Webb Corporation 1995 Director Stock Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to our
Registration Statement on Form S-8, Registration No. 33-66322).
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Del Webb Corporation 1995 Executive Long-Term Incentive Plan. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.8 to our Registration Staternent on Form S-8, Registration No. 33-66322).

Employment Separation Agreement and Release of Liability, dated January 17, 2003, between Pulte
Homes, Inc. and Michael A. O’Brien. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3(b) to our Annuail
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002).

Employment Separation Agreement and Release of All Liability, dated as of May 13, 2003, between
Pulte Homes, Inc, and Mark J. O'Brien. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 to our Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003).

Master Repurchase Agreement, dated as of December 22, 2000, between Pulte Mortgage Corparation
and Pulte Funding, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-
Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003).

Amended and Restated Addendum to Master Repurchase Agreement, dated as of August 23, 2002,
between Pulte Mortgage Corporation and Pulte Funding, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003).

Amended and Restated Loan Agreement, dated as of August 23, 2002, by and among Pulte Funding,
Inc., Atlantic Asset Securitization Corp., Jupiter Securitization Corporation, Credit Lyonnais New
York Branch, Bank One, NA (Main Office Chicago), Lloyds TSB Bank PLC and Pulte Mortgage
Corporation. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended September 30, 2003).

Amended and Restated Collateral Agency Agreement, dated as of August 23, 2002, by and among
Pulte Funding, Inc., Credit Lyonnais New York Branch and LaSalle Bank National Association.

" (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended

September 30, 2003).

Onmibus Amendment, dated as of December 31, 2002, by and among Pulte Funding, Inc., Pulte
Mortgage Corporation, Pulte Hores, Inc., Aflantic Asset Securitization Corp., Credit Lyonoais New
York Branch, Lloyds TSB Bank PLC, Bank One, NA (Main Office Chicago), Jupiter Securitization
Corporation and LaSalle Bank National Association. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 to our
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003).

Second Omnibus Amendment, dated as of August 25, 2003, by and among Pulte Funding, Inc., Pulte
Mortgage Corporation, Credit Lyonoais New York Branch, Atlantic Asset Securitization Corp., Bank
One, NA (Main Office Chicago), Jupiter Securitization Corporation, Lloyds TSB Bank PLC and
LaSalle Bank National Association. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 to our Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003).

Third Ommibus Amendment, dated as of September 30, 2003, by and among Pulte Funding, Inc.,
Pulte Mortgage LLC, Atlantic Asset Securitization Corp., Credit Lyonnais New York Branch, Lloyds
TSB Bank PLC, Bank One, NA (Main Office Chicago), Jupiter Securitization Corporation and
LaSalle Bank National Association. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 to our Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003).

Fourth Amended and Restated Revolving Credit Agreement, dated as of March 31, 2003, among
Pulte Mortgage LLC, as the Borrower, the banks identified on the signature pages hereof, as the
Lenders, and Bank One, NA, as administrative agent for the Lenders. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003).

First Amendment to Credit Agreement, made as of July 31, 2003, by and among Pulte Mortgage
LLC, as the Borrower, Bank One, NA, as the Increasing Lender, and Bank One, NA, as Agent.

(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2003).
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Second Amendment to Credit Agreement, made as of October 6, 2003, by and among Pulte Mortgage
LLC, as the Borrower, Bank One, NA, as the Agent, and Bank One, NA, Bank of America, N.A. and
Credit Lyonnais New York Branch, as the Supplemental Lenders. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003).

Third Amendment to Credit Agreement, made as of October 27, 2003, by and among Pulte Mortgage
LLC, as the Borrower, Bank One, NA, as the Agent and Washington Mutual Bank, FA and National
City Bank of Kentucky, as the Supplemental Lenders. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 to our
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003).

Third Amended and Restated Security and Collateral Agency Agreement, dated as of March 31,
2003, by and among Pulte Mortgage LLC, Bank One, NA and LaSalle Bank National Association.

(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2003 ).

Fourth Amendment to Credit Agreement, made as of November 7, 2003, by and among Pulte
Mortgage LLC, as the Borrower, Bank One, NA, as the Agent and LaSalle Bank National
Association, as Supplemental Lender. (Filed herewith)

Subsidiaries of the Registrant. (Filed herewith)
Consent of Independent Auditors. (Filed herewith)

Rule 13a-14(a) Céﬁﬁcaﬁon by Richard J. Dugas, Jr., President and Chief Executive Officer (Filed
herewith)

Rule 13a-14(a) Certification by Roger A. Cregg, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer (Filed herewith)

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act 02002 (Filed herewith)

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (Filed herewith)

Settlement and Termination Agreement, dated October 12, 2001, between Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation, as Manager of the FSLIC Resolution Fund; First Heights Bank, a Federal Savings Bank;
Pulte Diversified Companies, Inc.; and Pulte Homes, Inc, f/k/a Pulte Corporation, (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 99(a) to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2001).

(b) Reports on Form 8-K

On November 20, 2003, we filed a Current Report on Form 8-K, which included a press release dated the same day,

announcing the redemption of Del Webb Corporation Senior Subordinated Debentures.

On December 15, 2003, we filed a Current Report on Form 8-K, which included a press release dated the same day,

announcing the Board’s approval of a two-for-one stock split.

On January 9, 2004, we filed a Current Report on Form 8-K, which included a press release dated the same day,

announcing net new home orders for the three months and the year ended December 31, 2003.

On January 28, 2004, we furnished a Current Report on Form 8-K, reporting the information required by Item 12 in

connection with our press release dated January 28, 2004, announcing our earnings for the year ended December 31, 2003.
No financial statements were filed, although we furnished the financial information included in the press release with the

Form 8-K.
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SIGNATURES

Pursvant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

PULTE HOMES, INC.

(Registrant) -
February 27, 2004 for AC g 7//«0404 JM -
- Roger A. Cregg Vinfent J. Frees
Executive Vice President Vice President and Controller
and Chief Financial Officer {Principal Accoumting Officer)
(Principal Financial Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capabilities and on the dates indicated: '

Signature Title Date
' M& * Chairman of the Board of Directors February 27, 2004
MM President, Chief Executive Officer Febrary 27, 2004
Richard } Dughs/Jr. and Member of the Board of Directors
(Principal Executive Officer)-
Member of Board of Directors February 27, 2004
D Anderson
N &U— Member of Board of Directors February 27, 2004
Debra KellffEnnis
M /4 %’W\/ Member of Board of Directors February 27, 2004
David N n
. 4) y Member of Board of Directors February 27, 2004
W. I}Eznicek , :
Member of Board of Directors February 27, 2004
Michael E. Rossi
W Member of Board of Directors February 27, 2004
~ AlanE. Sc% _
m Member of Board of Directors February 27, 2004
- Fra&is']. Sebm
% MO Member of Board of Directors February 27, 2004
{/ o3 Shea
W’ liam. B //""'% Member of Board of Directors February 27, 2004
William B. Smith
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EXHIBIT 21
PULTE HOMES, INC.

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT
At December 31, 2003

Pulte Homes, Inc. (the Company) owns 100% of the capital stock of Pulte Diversified Companies, Inc., Pulte Financial
Companies, Inc. (PFCI), Raduor Homes, Inc., Pulte.com, Inc., PH1 Corporation, and Pulte Realty Holdings, Inc., Inc.,
all Michigan corporations, North American Builders Indemnity Compauny, a Colorado corporation, Marquette Title
Insurance Company, a Vermont corporation, RN Acquisition 2 Corp., a Nevada corporation, Del Webb Corporation
(Del Webb), a Delaware corporation and 100% of PB Venture L.L.C., Pulte Land Company, LLC, Puilte Michigan
Services, LLC, Pulte Homes of Michigan, LLC and Pulte Homes of Ohio, LLC, all Michigan limited liability
companies. The Company is a member of the following corporation and limited liability companies:

Entity Name Place of Formation Percentage Ownership
Grayhaven Estates Limited, L.L.C. Michigan 99%
City Homes Development L.L.C. Michigan 50%
. Shorepointe Village Homes, L.L.C. Michigan 82.5%
Contractors Insurance Company of North
America, Inc., 2 Risk Retention Group Hawaii 01%

Pulte Diversified Companies, Inc. owns 100% of the capital stock of Pulte International Corporation, Pulte Home
Corporation (PHC) and American Title of the Palm Beaches Corporation, all Michigan corporations, First Heights
Bank, a federal savings bank and PH3 Corporation, a Delaware corporation.

Pulte International Corporation owns 100% of the capital stock of Pulte International-Mexico, Inc., Pulte International
Caribbean Corp., Pulte Chile Corporation, Pulte SA Corporation, Pulte Argentina Corporation and Pulte SRL
Corporation, all Michigan corporations, PIMI Holdings LLC, a Michigan limited liability company and 99% of Pulte
International Mexico Limited Partnership, a Michigan limited partnership. Pulte SRL Corporation and Pulte Argentina
Corporation each own 50% of Pulte S.R.L., an Argentine limited partnership. PIMI Holdings LLC owns 1% of Pulte
International Mexico Limited Partnership, a Michigan limited partnership. Pulte International Mexico Limited
Partnership owns 100% of Pulte SRL Holdings, LLC, a Michigan limited liability company.

Pulte International-Mexico, Inc. and PHC own 99.99% and .01%, respectively, of the capital stock of Controladora
PHC, S.A. de C.V. (Controladora), a Mexican corporation and Puite International-Mexico, Inc. owns 3.3% of Pulte
Mexico Division Norte, S. de R.L. de C.V., also a Mexican corporation. Pulte International-Mexico, Inc. owns .1% of
Nantar S. de R.L. de C.V,, .01% of Pulte Bajio Construcciones S. de R.L. de C.V. and .01% of Pulte Mexico Division
Centro Sur S. de R.L. de C.V., 1% of Pulte Internacional Mexico S. de R.L. de C.V., all Mexican limited liability
companies. Controladora owns 99.9% of Nantar, S. de R.L. de C.V., a Mexican limited liability company, 63.8% of
Pulte Mexico S. de R.L. de C.V. (Pulte Mexico), and 99% of Pulte Internacional Mexico S. de R.L. de C.V,, both
Mexican limited liability companies, 25% of Residencial Riviera, S.A. de C.V., a Mexican corporation, and 25% of
Ciudad Riviera, S.A. de C.V., a Mexican corporation. Pulte Mexico owns 99.99% of Pulte Mexico Division Centro
Sur S. de R.L. de C.V. and 99.99% of Puite Bajio Construcciones S. de R.L. de C.V., both Mexican limited liability
companies, and 96.7% of Pulte Mexico Division Norte, S. de R.L. de C.V., a Mexican corporation.

Pulte International Caribbean Corp. owns 100% of the capital stock of Pulte International Building Corporation, a
Michigan corporation. Pulte International Building Corporation owns 50% of Desarrolladores Urbanos (Canovanas)
SE, 50% of Mayaguez Partners, S.E., and 50% of Andrea’s Court, S.E., all Puerto Rican general partnerships.

Pulte Chile Corporation owns 99% and Pulte SA Corporation owns 1% of Pulte de Chile Limitada, a Chilean limited
partnership. Pulte Chile Corporation owns 99.9% and Puite SA Corporation owns .1% of Residencias del Norte
Limitada, a Chilean limited liability company.

PH5 Corporation owns 100% of the capital stock of DiVosta Homes Holdings, LLC a Delaware limited liability
company and 99% of DiVosta Homes, LP, 2 Delaware limited partnership. DiVosta Home Holdings, LLC owns 1% of
DiVosta Homes, L.P., a Delaware limited liability company.
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PULTE HOMES, INC.
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT (continued)

DiVosta Homes, L.P. owns 100% of the capital stock of Abacoa Homes, Inc., DiVosta Homes Marketing, Inc., Florida
Building Products, Inc., Florida Club Homes, Inc., Hammock Reserve Development Company, Island Walk
Development Company, RiverWalk of the Palm Beaches Development Company, Inc., DiVosta Building Corporation,
Village Walk Development Company, Inc., Island Walk Realty, Inc. and DiVosta Home Sales, Inc., all Florida
corporations. DiVosta Homes, L.P. owns 100% of the capital stock of PH3 Corporation, a Michigan corporation.

PFCI owns 100% of the capital stock of Guaranteed Mortgage Corporation III, a Michigan corporation.

Radnor Homes, Inc. owns 25.6% and RN Acquisition 2 Corp. owns 74.4% of Pulte Homes Tennessee Limited
Partnership, a Nevada limited partnership.

Pulte Realty Holdings, Inc. owns 100% of the capital stock of Pulte RC, LLC, a Michigan limited liability company,
Pulte Realty Corporation, an Arizona corporation and 99% of Pulte International Caribbean I, Limited Partnership, a

Michigan limited partnership. Pulte RC, LLC owns 1% of Pulte International Caribbean II, Limited Partnership, a
Michigan limited partnership.

North American Buﬂders Indemnity Company owns 99.99% of the capital stock of Contractors Insurance Company of
North America, Inc,, a Risk Retention Group, a Hawaii Corporation.

PB Venture L.L.C. owns 100% of PC/BRE Venture L.L.C., a Delaware limited liability company.

PC/BRE Venture L.L.C. owns 100% of PC/BRE Development L.L.C., PC/BRE Whitney Oaks L.L.C., PC/BRE
Winfield L.L.C. and PC/BRE Springfield L.L.C.,, all Delaware limited liability companies.

PC/BRE Springfield L.L.C. owns 88% of Springfield Golf Resort, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company.

Marquette Title Insurance Company owns 100% of Pulte Services California, LLC, a Michigan limited liability
company.

Pulte Homes of Michigan, LLC owns 100% of the capital stock of Pulte IN-Corporation and Sean/Christopher Homes,
Inc., both Michigan corporations, Pulte Home Sciences, LLC, a Michigan limited liability company and 99% of Pulte
Homes of Michigan I Limited Partnership, 2 Michigan limited partnership. Pulte In-Corporation and Sean/Christopher
Homes, Inc. each own 50% of Pulte Homes of Indiana, LLC, an Indiana limited liability company.

Pulte Homes of Ohio, LLC owns 100% of the capital stock of Butterfield Properties, LLC, an Ohio limited liability
company.

PHC owns 100% of the capital stock or is sole member of the following subsidiaries:

Place of
Company Name Incorporation/Formation

Pulte Mortgage LLC (1).....ccurecseeersonmessseersersssassersesans . Delaware
Lexington Oaks Golf Club, Inc. . . Florida
Preserve I, INC. (2) .occvvcrrecrerrersssssissssssssssossssstsmsasnarssassnssrsssasans Michigan
Preserve I, INC. (2) c.ccceeceernerecseeenirnsoesanonsenesssssssssestsssosesessseneossascansans Michigan
TVM Corporation (3) Michigan
Pulte Homes of Minnesota Corporation .......ce.cwseessssesersssssusssosenssesenssass Minnesota
Puite Home Corporation of The Delaware Valley (4) .cocucrsivvcovmmcencocesosinns Michigan
PBW COIPOration (5) .......eceusmissiesensormsersmssassssesssssonsssusssssssssasessssssssonsassansassa Michigan
Wil COTPOTAtON (5) cvuverreriommsrnassescssaressesascsssssssasemsrsessssassasrasmsasessiasasssrasnsess Michigan
Hotmnesite Solutions COrporation.........cueesicsrraserrasronsserssrssasssssassocssansss Michigan
Pulte Homes of South Caroling, INC. .......ccveeerreermecncsrercssemrerssesrsesssssssscans Michigan
Pulte Lifestyle Communities, INC.......coocucrmersrnroessrremsecsorseeamesessssnssssassssss Michigan
Pulte Payroll Corporation......c.eeeeneee , Michigan
PHC Title Corporation (6) -...cvreererens . _ Michigan

73



PULTE HOMES, INC.
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT (continued)

Company Name

Pulte Land Development Corporation

Pulte Homes of Greater Kansas City, Inc. .......
PN, Inc. (7)

.....

PN, Inc. (7)
- PHT Title Corporation (8)

----------------------------------------------------------------

------

Frederick Holding Corp.
Lone Tree Golf Club, LLC
Pulte Michigan Holdings Corporation (9)

.............

...............

Chandler Natural Resources Corporation (10)
Edinburgh Realty Corporation

Pulte Homes of New York, Inc........

PH2 Corporation..

PHNE Business Trust (11)
Fox Glen Retreat, LL.C..........

---------------------------------------------------------------------------

Gatestone, L.L.C. .ccceevrrareveens

Pulte Development Corporation (12)

Pulte Services Corporation

Grand Place Hayward, LLC

Clairmont, L.L.C

Corte Bella Golf Club, LLC.....

JNN Properties, LLC

Pulte Development New Mexico, Inc. ....

Pulte Homes of New Mexico, Inc.

Pulte Realty 0f New YOIK, IiC. covcvcovvverssmsesossnssissssssesesssssessens crmsamesmansnsennans

Pulte Realty of South Jersey, Inc.......

Pulte Trades of North Carolina, LLC
Pulte Georgia Holdings, LLC (14)

........

...........................................................
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PULTE HOMES, INC.
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT (continued)

Pulte Mortgage LLC owns 100% of the capital stock of PCIC Corporation and Pulte Funding, Inc., both Michigan
corporations, Joliet Mortgage Reinsurance Company, a Vermont corporation, Del Webb Mortgage LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company, 22.2% of the capital stock of Hipotecaria Su Casita, S.A. de C.V., a Mexican
corporation, and 22.19% of Fideicomiso 102412, a Mexican business trust. Fideicomiso 102412 owns 55.15% of
Interesa, S.A. de C.V., Sociedad Operadora de Sociedados de Inversion, a Mexican corporation.

Preserve II, Inc. owns 99% and Preserve I, Inc. owas 1% of Pulte Communities NJ, Limited Partnership, a
Michigan partnership. Preserve I, Inc. also owns 99% of Pulte Homes of NI, Limited Partnership and 99% of
Pulte Homes of PA, Limited Partnership, both Michigan partnerships. Preserve I, Inc. also owns 100% of the

capital stock of HydroSource Acquisitions, Inc., a Michigan corporation, and Jersey Meadows, LLC, a New Jersey
limited liability company.

TVM Corporation owns 63% of PHM Title Agency L.L.C,, a Delaware limited liability company.

Pulte Home Corporation of The Delaware Valley owns 1% of Pulte Homes of NJ, Limited Partnershlp and 1% of
Pulte Homes of PA, Limited Partnership, both Michigan partnerships.

PBW Corporation owns 99% and Wil Corporation owns 1% of Wilben II Limited Partnership, a Maryland limited
partnership. PBW Corporation owns 5% and Wil Corporation owns 95% of Wilben, LLLP, a Maryland limited
partnership. PBW Cozporation and Wil Corporation each own 50% of One Willowbrook, LLC, a Maryland
limited liability company. Wil Corporation also owns 100% of Highlands One, H.D. Investments I, L.L.C., Bel
North, LLC, William’s Field at Perry Hall, L.L.C., Carr’s Grant, LLC, Harrison Hills, LLC, Campus Lakes, LLC,
August Woods, LLC and Lyons, LC, alt Maryland limited liability companies.

PHC Title Corporation owns 80% of Pulte Title Agency of Minnesota, L.L.C., a Minnesota limited liability
company, 99% of PHT Title Agency, L.P., a Texas limited partnership, 49% of Pulte Title Agency of Ohio, LLC,
an Ohio limited liability company and 49% of Pulte Title Agency of Michigan, L.L.C., a Michigan limited liability
company.

PN I, Inc,, owns .1% and PN 11, Inc. owns 99.9% of Devtex Land, L.P. and Pulte Homes of Texas, L.P., both
Texas limited partmerships. PN II, Inc. also owns 100% of the capital stock of Pulte Texas Holdings, Inc., a
Michigan corporation and 100% of Pratte Acquisition, LLC, a Michigan limited liability company. Pulte Homes
of Texas, L.P. owns 100% of PHT Operating Company LLC, a Michigan limited liability company. Pulte Homes
of Texas, L.P. owns 99.9% and PHT Operating Company LLC owns .1% of PHT Building Materials Limited
Partnership, 2 Michigan limited partnership. PNI, Inc. also owns 1% of Grayhaven Estates Limited, L.L.C,, a
Michigan limited liability company.

PHT Title Corporation owns 1% of PHT Title Agency, L.P., a Texas limited partriership.

Pulte Michigan Holdings Corporation owns 1% of Pulte Homes of Michigan I Limited Parinership, a Michigan
limited partnership.

Chandler Natural Resources Corporation owns 100% of Chandler DJ Basin LLC, a Michigan limited liability
company.

PHNE Business Trust owns 100% of Pulte Homes of New England LLC, PHS Virginia Holdings, LLC, and BMD
Development, LLC, all Michigan limited liability companies, 100% of GI Development Business Trust, a
Massachusetts business trust and 99% of PHS Virginia Limited Partnership, a Michigan limited partnership.

Pulte Homes of New England, LLC owns 100% of the capital stock of Coachman Development, LLC, Hilltop
Farms Development, LLC, Oceanside Village, LLC and South Natick Hills, LLC, all Michigan limited liability
companies. Pulte Homes of New England, LLC also owns 100% of Herring Pond Development Corporation and
MALDP Development Corporation, both Michigan corporations, and 99% of Willow Brook Associates Limited
Partnership, a Massachusetts limited partnership.

PHS Virginia Holdings, LLC owns 1% of PHS Virginia Limited Partnership, a Michigan limited partnership.

GI Development Business Trust owns 100% of the capital stock of Great Island Community, LLC, a Michigan
limited liability company. PHS Virginia Limited Partmership owns 100% of the capital stock of Pulte Home

_Sciences of Virginia, LLC, a Michigan limited liability company.
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PULTE HOMES, INC.
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT (continued)

12) Pulte Development Corporation owns 50% of PH Arizona LLC, a Michigan limited liability company. PH
Arizona LLC owns 100% of the capital stock of Pulte Arizona Services, Inc., a Michigan corporation. Pulte
Arizona Services, Inc. owns 100% of the capital stock of Dean Realty Company, Springfield Realty Corporation
and PQL Realty Corporation, all Michigan corporations, and Del Webb Community Management Co., an Arizona
Corporation. Dean Realty Company owns 100% of Pulte Real Estate Company, a Florida corporation.

13) Pulte Georgia Holdings, LLC, owns 100% of RCC Georgia Investor I, LLC, a Delaware limited liability
company.

PHC is a member or owns capital stock in the following entities:

Place of Percentage
Entity Name Formation Ownership
Spa L Builders LLC......cocuitrrevescsensscsissccmmsmsscsssssarsmsens California 38.60%
Fallsgrove Associates LLC. Maryland 35.36%
Chase Triple M, LLC Delaware 51.61%
Fieldstone Estates, L.L.C......... Arizona 50.00%
PH Arizona LLC cretsesaeraesbtas e trasaseeres s enaas srpssaarases Michigan 50.00%
Stetson Venture I, LL.C..... Arizona 50.00%

Del Webb owns 100% of the capital stock or is sole member of the following subsidiaries:

Place of
Company Name Incorporation/Formation
Del Webb’s Coventry Homes, Inc. (1). Arizona
Del Webb’s Spruce Creek Communities, Inc. (2) - Arizona
Sun City Homes, Inc. (3)......... Nevada
Del Webb Construction Services Co. (4)....cceceeerecraanae " Arizona
Del Webb Commercial Properties Corporation (5)......c.ceeurercsecssnsmnsavennes Arizona
New Mexico Asset Corporation (6) ....c...eeicesmrmieerssssaensissserseserssssssssnsassnnes Arizona
Del Webb Communities, Inc. (7) ...ovvesveeriensronns weerrnsssnsereonnrons Arizona
ASSEt ONE COIP. (8) voeveererrrermnacrsrerrsrsisonerensmosresstsssssssssssssssrsessorssrsasssssasosanes Arizona
ASSEL FIVE COIP eurermcevrievisecrssnianmssssssssssiasessssnssissssestasnsssorissssnssenes Arizona
Del Webb California Corp " Arizona
Del E. Webb Financial Corporatlon ................................... Arizona
Del Webb GOl COtp.....orvenneimmmisesisisismssisncsissssnssissastsisesessesisssnsussisnies Arizona
Del Webb Homes, Inc ................................. Arizona
Del Webb Purchasing Company of Illinois, Inc ........................................ Arizona
Del Webb Property COIp. .....cccowmmirmressrermorasirsrasesesorsansasersssssessassssesssmasensenss Arizona
Del Webb Title Company of Nevada 1T Nevada
Del Webb MidAtlantic Corp Arizona
DW Aviation Co....... . Arizona
DW Homebuilding Co Arizona
Mountain View Two, LLC.. resrstereseraerenerasrerasnsess s ettt sanae Arizona
Sun City Title Agency of Tlinois, InC. «..coveecurmeemrevccrncnns Arizona
TEITAVIEA COIP.-.ccvveriiirecsreorsenscossasisssrsssesansastesrarmssacs sens sesassasses asase sassasssss sesasn Arizona
Terravita Home Construction Co. . serresssssnsresistsesions Arizona
PH4 COIPOTation.........omisemmmemersrssisnemssionserssimsrsrsssssorsasssisssissorssrssaressasasssses Michigan
Del Webb Communities of Illinois, Inc () PR Arizona

Del Webb also owns 100% of Asset Seven Corp., an Arizona corporation, and 1% of New Mexico Asset Limited
Partnership, an Arizona limited partuership.
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PULTE HOMES, INC.
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT (continued)

Del Webb’s Coventry Homes, Inc. owns 1005 of the capital stock of Del Webb's Coventry Homes
Construction Co., Del Webb’s Coventry Homes of Nevada, Inc. and Del Webb communities of Virginia, Inc.,
all Arizona corporations and 50% of 56™ and Lone Mountain, L.L.C. an Arizona limited liability company.

Del Webb’s Spruce Creek Communities, Inc. owns 100% of the capital stock of Spruce Creek South Utilities,
Inc., a Florida corporation.

Sun City Homes, Inc. owns 100% of the capital stock of Marina Operations Corp., an Arizona corporation.

Del Webb Construction Services, Co. owns 100% of the capital stock of Del Webb Southwest Co., an
Arizona corporation and .1% of Del E. Webb Development Co., L.P., a Delaware limited partnership. Del
Webb Southwest Co. owns 100% of the capital stock of Del Webb Texas Title Agency Co., an Arizona
corporation and 1% of Del Webb Texas Limited Parmership, an Arizona limited partnership.

Del Webb Commercial Properties Corporation owns 100% of the capital stock of Del E. Webb Foothills
Corporation, an Arizona corporation.

New Mexico Asset Corporation owns 99% of New Mexico Asset Limited Partnership, an Arizona limited
partnership.

Del Webb Communities, Inc., owns 100% of the capital stock of Del Webb Limited Holding Co., Del Webb
Home Construction, Inc.,Thunderbird Lodge Holding Corp., Del Webb’s Contracting Services, Inc., Sun City
Title Agency Co., Sun State Insulation Co. Inc., Del Webb’s Sunflower of Tucson, Inc., all Arizona
corporations, and Sun City Sales Corporation, a Michigan corporation. Del Webb Communities, Inc. also
owns 99.9% of Del E. Webb Development Co. L.P., a Delaware limited partnership, and 50% of North Valley
Enterprises, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company. Del Webb Limited Holding Co. owns 99% of Del
Webb Texas Limited Partnership, an Arizona limited partnership.

Asset One Corp. owns 50% of Mountain View One LLC, an Arizona limited liability company.

Del Webb Communities of Iilinois, Inc. owns 100% of Anthem Arizona, LLC, an Arizona limited Hability
company.
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EXHIBIT 23
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

‘We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements (Form S-8 No. 3340102, Form S-8 No.
33-93944, Form S-8 No. 33-99218, Form S-8 No. 33-51019, Form S-8 No. 33-52047, Form S-8 No. 33-66284, Form
S-8 No. 33-66286, Form S-8 No. 33-66322, Form S-8 No. 33-102255 and Form S-3 No. 33-109029) of Pulte Homes,
Inc. and in the related Prospectuses of our report dated January 23, 2004, with respect to the consolidated financial
statements of Pulte Homes, Inc. included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the year ended December 31, 2003.

Detroit, Michigan
February 24, 2004
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EXHIBIT 31(a)
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S CERTIFICATION

Y, Richard J. Dugas, Jr., certify that:
1. Thave reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Pulte Homes, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misieading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of,
and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and we have:

a. * designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in
this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of
the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

c. disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the
case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financiat reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control
over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or
persons performing the equivalent function):

a. all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to
record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. any fraund, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 27,2004

Richard J. Dugay/ir. N /
President and Chief Executive Officer
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EXHIBIT 31(b)
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER’S CERTIFICATION

I, Roger A. Cregg, cetiify that:
1. Thave reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Pulte Homes, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not coutain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3, Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of,
and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and we have:

a. designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures
to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end
of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

¢. disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the
case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control
over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or
persons performing the equivalent function):

a. all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to
record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 27, 2004 | qu—v/’ P

Roger A. Cregg
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
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EXHIBIT 32(a)

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Pulte Homes, Inc. (the “Company™) on Form 10-K for the period ended December
31, 2003, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Richard J. Dugas, Jr.,

President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condmon and result of
operations of the Company.

Richard J. Dugas\fr. v/
President and Chief Executive Officer
February 27, 2004
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EXHIBIT 32(b)

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Arnual Report of Pulte Homes, Inc. (the “Company”} on Form 10-K for the period ended December
31, 2003, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Roger A. Cregg,
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted
pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and result of
operations of the Company.

Roger A. Cregg

Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
February 27, 2004
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Join our growing family
of satisfied customers.

Together, Pulte Homes, Del Webb and DiVosta form a family of builders that's dedicated to satisfying customers.
And thanks to our homeowners, we have been honored in return with 21 recent J.D. Power and Associates
Customer Satisfaction Awards, far more than any other homebuilder. Visit us online to find out more about who
we are and where we build. When you work with us, you'll find that we're not satisfied until you are.

DIiVOSTA

AND COMPANY

delwebb.com pulte.com divosta.com

Puite Homes ranked Highest in Customer Satisfaction With New Home Builders in Las Vegas, Four Years in a Row; Houston,
Minneapolis/St Paul, San Francisco Bay Area, Two Years in a Row; Phoenix, Two Years in a Row (Tied in 2002); Raleigh/Durham, Tucson;
Dallag/Ft Worth (in a tie) and Tampa Bay (in a tie). » Del Webb ranked Highest in Customer Satisfaction With New Home Builders in
Southern California (Tied Three Years in a Row); Sacramerto (in a tie). e DiVosta Homes ranked Highest in Customer Satisfaction With New Home
Builders in Palm Beach. » Pulte Homes ranked in the Top 3 for Customer Satisfaction With New Home Builders in Chicago, Two Years in a Row;
Austin, Charlotte, Philadelphia, and Washington D.C. « Del Webb ranked in the Top 3 for Customer Satisfaction
With New Home Builders in Chicago, Las Vegas and Phoenix, Three Years in a Row, and Tucson (in a tie).

= 6\ 1.D. Power and Assaciates 2000-2004 New Home Builder Customer Satisfaction Studies™. 2003 study based on responses from

71,312 buyers of newly constructed hames in 21 of the largest U.S. markets. For counties in each market, visit www.jdpower.com.

Pulte Homes, Inc. // 100 Bloomfield Hills Parkway // Bloomfield Hills, Michigan 48304 // www.pulte.com
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Letters and Documents
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TOWN OF BUCKEYE

May 10, 2005

Dale Bodiya

Program Manager

Water & Waste Management

Maricopa Department of Environmental Services
1001 N. Central Ave, Suite 595

Phoenix, Arizona 85004

Subject: Sundance MAG 208 AMENDMENT - BUCKEYE, ARIZONA
Letter of no objection.

Dear Mr. Bodiya:

The Town of Buckeye is requesting a letter of no objection associated with the Sundance
MAG 208 Amendment. The Sundance treatment facility is in the beginning stages of
planning for a service area that includes certain county properties. In order for the
process to proceed forward it is necessary that the County provide a letter of no objection.

We look forward to your assistance in facilitating the MAG approval process for this 208
Amendment.

Sincerely,
Town of Buckeye

Cs R %%%

Carroll Reynolds
Town Manager

Cc:  Michael Worlton, RBF Consulting

100 North Apache+ Buckeye, Arizona 85326 (623) 386-4691+ FAX (623) 386-7832
Page 1 of 1



August 4, 2005 JN 45-102159

Maricopa Association of Governments
302 North 1% Avenue, Suite 300
Phoenix, AZ 85003

Re: Town of Buckeye Proposed MAG 208 Amendment for the Sundance WWTP Expansion.
Attention: Julie Hoffman, Environmental Planning Program

Dear Julie Hoffman,

RBF Consufting is submitting a MAG 208 Water Quality Management Plan Amendment for the
expansion of the Sundance Wastewater Treatment Plant in the Town of Buckeye. The proposed
service area for the Sundance Wastewater Treatment Plant falls within 3 miles of the City of
Glendale’s municipal planning area. In accordance with the requirements of the Maricopa
Association of Governments and a request placed by RBF Consulting, we are submitting this letter,
which implies that the City of Glendale has no objections regarding the proposed sewer service area.

If you have any questions or comments, please feel free to contact me at 623-930-2702.
Sincerely,

L Tty

Chris Ochs
Assistant Utilities Director
City of Glendale

cc: Russel Fletcher

City Of Glendale
Utilities Department « 6210 West Myrtle Avenue, Suite 112 « Glendale, Arizona 85301-1700 » (623) 930-2700 « FAX (623) 915-3094



Maricopa County

Environmental Services .
Water and Waste Management Division

1001 N. Central Ave,, Suite 150 June 02, 2005

noenix, AZ 85004

Dhone: (602) 506-6666

ax: (602) 506-6925
DD: 602 506 6704

Maricopa Association of Governments
302 North 1™ Avenue, Suite 300

. WW.IA4ricopa.gov/ envsve Phoenix, AZ 85003

CC:

Attention: Ms. Lindy Bauer, Environmental Program Coordinator

Re: Town of Buckeye, Sundance Wastewater Treatment Plant Expansion
Clean Water Act, MAG 208 Amendment

Dear Ms. Bauer:

In a letter dated May 27, 2005, RBF Consulting submitted a proposed 208 Amendment for
expansion of the Town of Buckeye, Sundance Wastewater Treatment Plant to Maricopa County
Environmental Services Department (Department). The Facility is located at the northeast corner
of Dean Road and the Roosevelt Canal, in Township 01N, Range 03W, Section 13, NWY, SWY%,
NWY, in the Town of Buckeye.

The document was submitted to the Department because it is located within three miles of
unincorporated areas of Maricopa County.

Based on a review of the proposed 208 MAG 208 Amendment, Submittal #2, dated May, 2005,
the Department has determined that the proposed plant is acceptable and complies with the MAG
208 Review and Approval Process under the MAG 208 Areawide Water Quality Management
Plan. The proposed plant expansion is not in conflict with Maricopa County plans for the area.

Please note that the Department has not reviewed, nor approved, the design of the facilities as part
of the 208 review. Any technical issues that remain will need to be resolved during the design
phase of the project. Approval to Construct (ATC) and Approval of Construction (AOC) must be
obtained from this Department prior to start of construction and startup, respectively, of all
treatment, discharge, recharge, and reuse facilities, including all conveyance facilities and final
end user facilities.

If you have any questions or comments, please feel free to contact Mr. Kenneth James, PE, or
myself at 506-6666.

Sincerely,

WW FOE

Dale Bodiya, P.E.
Acting Manager, Water and Waste Management Division

Carroll Reynolds, Town Manager, Town of Buckeye, 100 N. Apache, Buckeye, AZ 85326
Michael Worlton, PE, RBF Consulting, 16605 N. 28™ Ave., Suite 100, Phoenix, AZ 85053-7550
File



February 17, 2005

Maricopa Association of Governments

.Brenda Day, Environmental Planning Program Manager

302 North 1* Avenue, Suite 300
Phoenix, AZ_ 25003

RE: PROPOSED MAG 208 AMENDMENT FOR THE TOWN OF BUCKEYE’S
SUNDANCE WWTP EXPANSION -

Dear Ms. Day:

RBF Consulting is submitting a MAG 208 Water Quality Management Plan Amendment for the
expansion of the Sundance Wastewater Treatment Plant in the Town of Buckeye. The proposed
service area for the Sundance Wastewater Treatment Plant falls within 3 miles of the City of
Goodyear. In accordance with the requirements of the Maricopa Association of Governments and a
request placed by RBF Consulting, we are submitting this letter, which confirms that the City of
Goodyear has no objections regarding the proposed sewer service area.

If you have any questions or cormments, please feel free to contact me at 623-932-3010.
Sincerely,
CITY OF GOODYEAR

Horllo 717 e

Charles McDowell
Water Management Director

CM:mp: Buckeye Susndence WWTP MAG 208 Amendment
cc: Grant 1. Anderson, Deputy City Manager

Ajay Kashi, RBF Consulting
File

Proud past. Vibrant future!

Water Management Deparfmeni
P.O. Box 5100 Goodyear, Arizona 85338
623-932-3010 Fax 623-932-2171 1- 800 872-1749 TDD 623-932-6500
www.goodyearaz.gov



yVerrado-DMB White Tank LLC Property south of I-10. NE Quarter of Section 6 Page 1 of

AJ ay Kashi - Verrado-DMB White Tank LLC Property south of I-10. NE Quarter
)f Section 6

vFrom: "Bob Kammerle" <BKammerle@dmbinc.com>.

To: "Mike Worlton (E-mail)" <mworlton@rbf.com>

rDate: 5/11/2005 5:08 PM

rSubject: Verrado-DMB White Tank LLC Property south of I-10. NE Quarter of Sectior
y 6

»CC: "Karrin Taylor @ Biskind Hunt Taylor" <karrint@biskindlaw.com>

4

4

Ppa:
Mike-

"This e-mail will confirm our conversation that we would like you to include the DMB White

*Tank LLC property that is South of I-10 in the MAG 208 Amendment application that you

rintend to file with Maricopa County on 5-13-05.

[
,-Lis our understanding that the 208 amendment will allow the Sundance plant capacity to

ncrease from 1.2 MGD to 2.4MGD. The additional plant capacity is currently under

“~onstruction.
v

»We will proceed with Arizona-American Water Company and the Arizona Corporation
»~Commission to exclude the NE Quarter of Section 6 from the current CC&N

4
,Thanks and let me know if you have further questions or need additional clarification.

“Robert F. Kammerle
“Director of Forward Planning
“523-388-4230 Office
:523-388-4271 Fax

» file://C:\Documents%20and%20Settings\AK ASHI\L ocal%20Settings\Temp\GW } 00001. HTM 5/11/200
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From: "H. David Stensel" <stensel@u.washington.edu>
To: "Jared Carr" <JCARR@rbf.com>

Date: 12/22/2004 5:33:08 PM

Subject: Re: Clarifier designs for Sundance Expansion
Jared,

the purpose of this email is to summarize our evaluation and my
recommendations for the secondary clarifier conceptual design for the
Sundance plant expansion, which includes converting the system from an SBR
process to the MLE process.

1. We have sized the clarifiers to handle an average flow condition of less
than or equal to 600 gpd/ft2 hydraulic application rate. This.will be
adequate for the 2:1 transient peak flow ratio. To minimize the impact of
solids loading at peak flows the final design in the SBR conversion should
allow excess flows to be step fed to a final stage of the aeration tank.

2, A rectangular clarifier configuration with 4 tanks can be provided as an
alternative to 4 circular clarifiers to reduce space requirements and to
reduce construction costs by using a common wall arrangement. These
clarifiers can be located next to the SBR tanks.

3. In the final design effluent weir boxes will have to be installed into

the SBR tanks to collect effluent from the different SBR tanks into a common
effluent line. The mixed liquor would then be directed to a common pipe or
channel located in the middle of the four clarifiers, with the inlet to two

- clarifiers on each side of this feed line. In this way the feed can be

directed to a selected number of clarifiers.

4. The clarifier return sludge would be directed to a common wet well and
pump station for return sludge feed to the MLE process.

5. Effluent from the clarifier arrangements would be collected at each end

of the two-clarifier modules and pumped to the appropriate polishing filters
installed at different locations per the initial SBR systems.

6. We have discussed the preference for gravity flow from the aeration tanks
(converted SBR tanks) to the clarifiers so as to prevent floc break up by
pumping. This can be accommodated by selecting the appropriate elevation the
clarifiers and some additional excavation below grade.

In summary | believe that a clarifier arrangement has been developed that
will accommodate a retrofit of the SBR system with consideration for site
constraints.

H David Stensel, Ph.D., P.E.

Department of Civil and Environmental Engineering
303 More Hall, Box 352700

University of Washington

Seattle, WA. 98195

TN; 206 543-9358 FX: 206 685-9185

CC: <rchristensen@rbf.com>
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Application ID: 34833

Applicant: Buckeye, Town Of

Place: Buckeye, Town Of - WWTP Buckeye

License Category: |APP, Individual Permit, Significant Amendment, No Public Hearing
Current Status: Substantive Review phase

ADEQ Staff Matthew T. Hodge; mh6@azdeq.gov; (602) 771-4743

Assigned:

Administrative completeness review done

22-MAR-05

Applicant response to suspension due to deficiencies in ACR phase

08-MAR-05

Inadequate response to Notice of Administrative Deficiencies (with 24-FEB-Q5
suspension)

Notification of administrative deficiencies with suspension 12-JAN-05
Receipt of license application 15-DEC-04




Agreement between the Town of Buckeye and Buckeye Water
Conservations and Drainage District (BWCDD)



“

| NOV-D4-04  02:15PM  FROM-Buus Gilbart PLLC, Attorneys at Law 480 429 3100 T-E23  P.002/008 =651

v

BEUs GILBERT
PLLO

ATTOQRNEYE AT LAW

430D NaRTH SCOTTE0ALE ROAD

BUITE 6000
SEOTTIA0ALE, ARIZONA ASA8(7630
WRITER'S DIRECT LINE {4801 428-3000
(480) 429-3 062 FAX 14801 429-310Q
' 43142-036
. 4 November 2004
VIA FACSIMILE
(480) 303-0338
Rache] Cantor
Meritage Corporation

8501 E. Princess Ste. 200
Scattsdale, AZ 85255

Re:  Signed Effluent Delivery and Acceptance Agyeement

Dear Rachel:

Per our discussion earlier today, attached please find a copy of the Effluent Delivery and
Acceptance Agreement,

You will gote that this agreement is dated November 19, 2002. The copy | am providing
you has been fully execunted by all parties including the Buckeye Water Conservations and
Drainage District, the Buckeye Irrigation Company and the Town of Buckeye. I do not have a
recorded copy, however I do not know that it was necessary to recard this agreement. I hope this
information proves useful, however if you have any questions regarding this agreeraent or need
additional infarmation please feel free to contact me at the number referenced above.

Thenk you,
BEUS GILBERT PLLC
%A. Zubia, AICP
Planning Consultant
FAZ:ich
Altachment

ce:  Paul E. Gilbert, Esq. (w/o attachment)

HMOBIE\Cliome3 142025 (Muprsocks Coanuities  uckeyrSungiediCemtespondcnodicamar 11-4.0¢ 428
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This Effluent Delivery and Acceptance Agreement (this “Agreement”) is entered into as
of the th day of November, 2002, by and among the TOWN OF BUCKEYE, an Arizona
municipal corporation (the “Town™), the BUCKEYE WATER CONSERVATION &
DRAINAGE DISTRICT, an irrigation district organized as an Arizona municipal corporation
(“BWCDD") and the BUCKEYE IRRIGATION COMPANY, a non-profit mutual irrigation
corporation organized under the laws of the Arizona territory (“BIC”) (BWCDD and BIC are
hereinafter sometimes referred to collectively as the “Buckeye Group”)

T B T B e T TG S SRR AU U P U DUMpS R Sy oy g 0F S PULSo O A U N

BEQ!TAL&

A. The Town provides sewer services to domestic and commercial users within an area
generally defined by Miller Road on the west, Dean Road on the east, Interstate 10 on the north
and Durango Road on the south (*Sundance Service Area”).

B. The Town owns and operates (or will own and operate) a wastewater treatment plant
that services the Sundance Service Area, (the "Sundance WWTP"), more particularly described
on Exhibit “A” hereto. The Town is the owner of the effluent generated by the Sundance
WWTP (the “Effluent™).

C. The Town, in its reasonable discretion, has identified certain priority uses for the
Effluent ("Priority Uses"). The amount of Effluent, if any, available after the Priority Uses is the
surplus effluent (the “Surplus Effluent”).

D. BWCDD is an irrigation and drainage district operated in accordance with Title 48,
Arizona Revised Statutes. BIC is the owner of irrigation canal rights of way within the
boundaries of BWCDD. BWCDD has agreed to accept Surplus Effluent from the Sundance

WWTE into its canal system for irrigation, agricultural and other lawful purposes and uses, in

accordance with the terms and ¢onditions of this Agreement.

E. A permit issued under the federal Clean Water Act's National Pollutant Discharge
Elimination Systemi (NPDES) has been or will be obtained by the Town to authorize the
discharge of Surplus Effluent into the BWCDD canal system and the Town will maintain or
cause to be maintained the NPDES Permit, as required, during the term hercof.

F. The Town, BWCDD and BIC dcsirc to enter into this Agreement to set forth the
terms and conditions for the delivery by the Town to BWCDD, and acceptance by BWCDD, of
Surplus Efflucnt.

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of
which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereto agree to the following:

B67200.3 L 17187200 o vemn mt ~e e m = o st oot =~ 2ot - 2 £ o < Eot St et 0 e et



AGREEMENT

1. Delivery_of Surplus Effluent. The Town agrees to deliver Surplus Effluent. to
BWCDD and BWCDD will accept all of the Surplus Effluent delivered by the Town in

accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. The Surplus Effluent will be
delivered by the Town at no cost to BWCDD, and the Surplus Effluent that is delivered to
BWCDD inr accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement will be accepted by
BWCDD without any payment from the Town to BWCDD. .

2. Quapntity of Surplus Effluent and Initial Delivery. There is no guaranteed minimum
amount of Surplus Effluent that will be delivered to BWCDD. However, the amount of Surplus

Effluent delivered to BWCDD will not exceed 7.2 million gallons per day without the express
‘written consent of BWCDD. There is no ggarantzed schedule for delivery of Surplus Effluent to
BWCDD. The Town will provide 'BWCDD written notice of the estimated initial delivery date
of Surplus Effluent, together with an estimate of the amount and flow rate of the Surplus
Effluent, at least sixty (60) days prior to the estimated initial delivery date of Surplus Effluent.

" 3. Quality of Surplus Effluent. Prior to delivery to BWCDD, the Surplus Effluent will
be treated by the Town to a minimum of Class A reclaimed water standards, as established by

A.A.C. RI8-11-304. In the event the Surplus Effluent delivered to BWCDD does not meet the
Class A reclaimed water standards, Town will, as soon as reasonably possible after discovering
that fact, notify BWCDD of the diminished quality of the Surplus Effluent. In such event, the
sole remedy of BWCDD will be to refuse acceptance of the Surplus Effluent. In the event
BWCDD refuses acceptance of the Surplus Effluent for any reason, however, the Buckeye
Group will allow disposal of the Surplus Effluent into the lateral ditch system utilized by
BWCDD to transport water to the Gila River ("Alternate Disposal”). Any permits, costs, or
expenses required for or directly resulting from the Altemate Disposal will be obtained or
provided by the Town, so long as the Surplus Effluent subject to the Altemate Disposal is not put
to beneficial use by BWCDD. Any land use rights over or across lands or interests in lands
awned by the Buckeye Group thal are required for the Alternate Disposal will be obtained by
BWCDD. BWCDD represents that the lateral ditch system utilized for the Alternate Disposal

will reasonably accommodate the transport of up to 7.2 mllhon gallons per day (i. . 24 houts) of

Surplus Effluént. ™~ T e e e

4. Delivery System. The Town will construct or cause to be constructed, at no cost or
expense to the Buckeye Group, an effluent delivery pipeline to transport the Surplus Effluent to
the Buckeye Group’s Buckeye Canal (the “Delivery System™), and a pipeline through, across or
under the Buckeye Canal for possible future Priority Uses of Effluent (the “Altemate System”).
The opcration, maintenance and any permits required for the Delivery System and the Alternate
System will remain the responsibility of the Town. The Alternate Systcm will extend to a point
immediately south of the Buckeye Canal and will be constructed in accordance with all
applicable governing standards and rules, including those of the BWCDD. The plans and
specifications for the Alternate System shall be subject to the reasonable pre-approval of the
BWCDD. The location of the Alternate System shall be subject to the reasonable approval by
BWCDD in its sole discretion. The Town will transpori Surplus Effluent, at its expense, to the
Delivery Point (as hereinafter defined). With respect to that portion of the Delivery System and

461200.3 11/18/2002 2



the Alternate System located on BWCDD land or interests in land, BWCDD hereby grants the
Town the necessary permits, licenses, or easements to construct, operate, and maintain the
Delivery System and the Alternate System across, under, and through such BWCDD lands or
interests in land, including but not limited to a license to cross the Buckeye Canal at or near
Dean Road with necessary delivery pipe. Any land use rights over, under or across lands or
interests in lands owned by the Buckeye Group that are granted to the Town by BWCDD
pursuant to this Section 4 will survive the termination of this Agreement if, and only if, the
subsequent use of such land use righis by the Town is limited to the transport and delivery of
effluent via pipeline over, under or across lands or interests in lands owned by the Buckeye
Group, and then to points of reuse or disposal other than the Buckeye Canal.

5. Delivery Point. The point to which the Surplus Effluent will be transported by the
Town for delivery-to-BWEDD into-the Buckeye-Group's-Buckeye-€anal ("Delivery- Point")-will -
be located generally in the vicinity of the intersection of Dean Road and the Buckeye Canal. The
exact location of the Delivery Point will be reasonably agreed upon by the parties at a date prior
to completion of construction of the Delivery System, but in no event later than April 30, 2003.

6. Permits and Approvals, It shall be the responsibility of the Town to obtain or cause
to be obtained any permits or approvals required to deliver the Surplus Effluent to BWCDD for
beneficial use, or for the operation of the Delivery System or the Alternate System. BWCDD
agrees not to oppose the Town’s efforts or applications to obtain any such permits or approvals
and to reasonably cooperate and assist, when necessary, in all such efforts. The BWCDD’s
consent to and cooperation with the issuance of permits will not be construed as a waiver of any
rights of BWCDD, including, without limitation, BWCDD’s position that the BWCDD canals
are not “waters of the United States” as defined by the federal Clean Water Act (33 US.C. §
1251, et seq., the “Clean Water Act”) and implementing regulations. If either BWCDD or BIC is
required to obtain any permits or approvals in order to place to beneficial use the Surplus
Effluent downstream of the Delivery Point, the Town agrees to assist BWCDD or BIC in
obtaining any such permits or approvals and reasonably cooperate and assist BWCDD or BIC,
when necessary, in all such efforts.

7.
title and interest in and to the Surplus Effluent upon actual physxcal dehvery of the Surplus
Effluent to the Delivery Point. Prior to deliver of Surplus Effluent to the Delivery Point,

BWCDD will have no responsibility for or ownership rights in the Surplus Effluent. Upon
delivery of the Surplus Effluent to the Delivery Point, the BWCDD will own the Surplus
Effluent and have the right to use or otherwise dlspose of Surplus Effluent delivered hereunder
for any legal purposc.

8. Measuring Device and Reports, The Town will install and maintain during the term

of this Agreement a water measuring device at the Delivery Point. The water measuring device
will accurately measure the amount of Surplus Effluent that is delivered to the Delivery Point
and will be of a typc reasonably acceptable to BWCDD. The Town will provide BWCDD
monthly a writtcn report of the amount of Surplus Effluent delivered to BWCDD during the
preceding calendar month. The Town also will provide, at BWCDD's request, copies of effluent
quality reports the Town periodically submits to relevant regulatory agencies.

4612003 11/18/2002 o 3
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9. Shutdowns. The Town has the right, in its sole discretion, to shut down all or part of
the Delivery System temporarily for purposes of routine maintenance and repair, and in the event
of emergency. In the event of routine repair and maintenance of the Delivery System, the Town
will give BWCDD reasonable notice no less than 48 hours prior to such shut down. In the event
of an emergency, the Town will give as much notice as is reasonable under the circumstances
prior to shutting down the affected portion of the Delivery System. BWCDD also has the right,
in its sole discretion, to shut down all or part of the Buckeye Canal temporarily for routine
maintenance and repair, and in the event of emergency, and may refuse to accept delivery of the
Surplus Effluent during such periods. However, BWCDD will then provide the Alternate
Disposal described in Section 3 above. . |

T Y

10. Duration: This Agreement will continue so long as the Sundance WWTP continues
to operate. Any interruption in opcrations resulting from force majeure conditions will not
terminate this Agreement.

11. Town Indemnity. The Town will indemnify and hold BWCDD harmless from and
against liability, claims, losses, damages, or injuries to any person or to property, and expenses
of investigating and defending against the same (including costs and reasonable attorneys fees),
arising from or in any way connected with, in whole or in part, the operation or maintenance of
the Sundance WWTP and the transporl of the Surplus Effluent to the Delivery Point, only to the
extent such liability, claims, losses, damages, or injuries, and such investigation and defensc
expenses are occutrences covered and paid under the Town's Municipal Risk Retention Pool and
only up to the then applicable policy limits, which limits currently are Twenty-five Thousand
Dollars ($25,000.00) per occurrence limited to a total of One Hundred Thousand Dollars
($100,000.00) per year.

12. BWCDD lndgmnity. BWCDD will indemnify and hold Town harmless from and
against liability, claims, losses, damages, or injuries to any person or to property, and expenses
of investigating and defending against the same (including costs and reasonable attorneys fees),

arising from or-in-any-way-connected-with;-in-whole-or-in-part;(a) the-use; in-any manner;-by - -

BWCDD of the Surplus Effluent after the Surplus Effluent has been delivered by the Town to the
Delivery Point; and (b) the construction, operation, and/or maintenance of all ditches, pipes,
conduits, gates, halding ponds, or other facilities used.by BWCDD for transporting and placing
to beneficial use the Surplus Effluent.

'13. Cooperation of Parties. Each of the parties will reasonably cooperate with and assist
one another in obtaining all licenses, permits, authorizations, approvals and consents in all
judicial and administrative proccedings required in or related to the performance of this
Agreement.

14. Force Majeure. If either party hereto is delayed or prevented from performing any act
required hereunder by reason of acts of God, strikes, lockouts, labor troubles, civil disorder,
inabilily to procure materials or other cause without fault and beyond the control of the party
obligated hereunder (financial inability cxcepted), performance of such acts will be excused for
the period of delay and the period for the performance of any such acts will be extended for a
period equivalent to the period of such delay.

B B T A e e R IR R
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15. Attorneys’ Fees. In the event of any action or suit brought by either party to enforce
the provisions of this Agreement, the prevailing party will be entitled to recover its costs and fees
(including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys® fees), the recovery of which is allowcd by
law. All such costs and fees will be awarded by the court and not by the jury.

16. Notices. All notices, demands, instructions, approvals or other communications
required or permitted to be given hereunder will be in writing and will become effective 48 hours
after such are deposited in the United States mail, postage prepaid, addressed as shown below, or
to such other address as either parly hereto may, from time to time, designate in writing:

For Town: Joc Blanton, Manager
Town of Buckeye
100 North Apache, Suite A
Buckeye, AZ 85326

With a copy to: Scott W. Ruby, Esq.

e e o siamnrm e e e e oo e USSR OSENERIA PLC e e e e

201 N. Central Avenue, Suite 3300
Phoenix, Arizona 85073-3300
Facsimile Number: 602.340.1538%

BWCDD and BIC: Jackie A. Meck, General Manager
Buckeye Water Conservation and Drainage District
205 Roosevelt Avenue
P.O.Box 1726
Buckeye, Arizona 85326-0160

With a copy to: Daniel L. Muchow, Esq.
Quarles & Brady Streich Lang LLP
Two North Central Avenue
Phoenix, Arizona 85004

17. Additional Documents. The parties will make, execute and deliver such other
documents and instruments as may be necessary or useful to fully implement the provisions of
this Agreement.

e B Lo g e vt P

18. Entire Aprecment: Arizona Law Governs. This Agreement constitutes the cnfice

agreement between the parties hereto and no party will be liable or bound to the other in any
manner by any agreements, warrantics, representations or guarantees except as specifically set
forth herein. This Agreement and the rights of the parties hereto will be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Arizona.

19. Amendments. Any amendment to this Agreement will be in writing and signed by
the party sought to be bound thereby.

461200.3 11/18/2002 S



20. Time of the Essence: Gender. Time is of thc essence of this Agreement. This
Agreement will apply to the parties hereto according to the context hereof and without regard to

'the number or gender of words or expressions used berein. _

e 4w A, - ~

21.No_Third Party Beneficiary. This Agreement will not create any third party

beneficiary rights to any person or entity who is not a party to this Agreement.

22. Compliance With Laws.

(a) The Town will, at its expense, comply with all applicable requirements of all
municipal, county, state and federal authorities now or hereafter in force pertaining to the
transport of the Surplus Effluent to the Delivery Point and the Town's other obligations
under this Agreement.

(b) BWCDD will, at its expense, comply with all applicable requirements of all
municipal, county, state and fedcral authorities now or hereafter in force pertaining to the
use of the Surplus Effluent after it is delivered to the Delivery Point.

23. Severability. It is understood and agreed by the parties hereto that if any part, term or
provision of this Agreement is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid,
illegal or in conflict with any law of the State of Arizona, the validity of the remaining portions
or provisions will not be affected, and the rights and obligations of the parties will be construed

-and enforced as if this  Agreement did not contain the particular part, term or.provision held tobe .. _ .

invalid.

24. Signature. The parties have executed this Agreement on the date first above written.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the dates below
written.

BUCKEYE WATER CONSERVATION AND
DRAINAGE DISTRICT, AN ARIZONA
MUNICIPAL CORPORATION

o Y

Its ,/rzﬁ /’//,r penrf
Date: /- J< J- 42 2

BUCKEYE IRRIGATION COMPANY, AN

ARIZONA NON-PROFIT CORPORAT[ON

N A A R e oon it e e e 4 S e R Fa s im0 g Yo

By: / lebon -/\&Q’lv\.

IS m/\l/lo

Date: A&waég 37 2002
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TOWN OF BUCKEYE, AN ARIZONA
MUNICIPAL CORPORATION

By

Alan Newberry, Vice Mayor
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Scott W. Ruby, Towif Attorney
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1 Introduction

11 Purpose of Study

The Town of Buckeye's eastern area is experiencing accelerated growth.
Numerous developments are currently being proposed, planned, and entitled
within this area. This master plan provides a foundation for the development of a
regional wastewater system that is capable of meeting the current and future
wastewater demands in this area. Specifically, this plan provides analysis and
recommendations for the development of the Town’s wastewater collection
system, wastewater treatment, and beneficial use of the Town’s wastewater
treatment plant effluent within the eastern portion of the Town.

1.2 Scope of Work

The scope of the East Buckeye Wastewater Master Plan includes an evaluation
of the wastewater demands generated within the study area, a determination of
the infrastructure required to service this area, and recommendations for reuse of
effluent. This plan also identifies treatment plants that may provide service
throughout the study area. A sewer system model was developed to analyze
various demand scenarios and to determine the appropriate infrastructure to
meet the demand conditions defined within this report.

in addition to identifying wastewater infrastructure throughout the study area, a
reclaimed water system has also been proposed. The reclaimed water plan
developed in this study will assist the Town of Buckeye in directing the effluent
produced at their wastewater treatment plants (WWTP), within the study area,
toward beneficial uses.

1.3 Background Information

Various sources of information were utilized in developing this master plan.
Background information was obtained from the Town of Buckeye Community
Development Department, Arizona Department of Water Resources (ADWR),
Arizona Department of Environmental Quality (ADEQ), Flood Control District of
Maricopa County, and the Maricopa Association of Governments (MAG). The
background information was analyzed and used in the development of this
master plan. Much of the background information is provided in the appendix of
this master plan.

1.4 Study Area

The study area analyzed for this project consists of over 39 square miles located
along the eastern boundary of the Town of Buckeye. The study area for the
project was divided into two: the main study area, and the exception area. A
detailed analysis was performed for the main study area south of Thomas Road.
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The area north of Thomas Road is considered an exception area for the study
and is addressed only conceptually within this master plan. A map showing the
study boundary of the project is provided in Exhibit 1 Study Area.
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2 Land Use and Growth Projections

21 Introduction

The analysis, results, and conclusions contained in this master plan are all based
on the growth projections discussed in this section. The purpose of this section
is to explain projected growth values used to calculate the wastewater demands
for the study. The following section provides an overview of the assumptions
made, the data used, and the level of detail analyzed in the design of the Town’s
collection system.

211 Growth Projections

The Town of Buckeye is currently experiencing rapid growth. From 1980 to 2000
the Town saw its population increase by over 92 percent. Looking at a moderate
growth projection scenario, the Town is anticipating a population increase of 110
percent by 2005 and 520 percent by 2015 (Town of Buckeye 2003). Commercial
and employment growth is anticipated to occur along with this population growth.

Due to the amount of growth and change currently being experienced by the
Town, and the anticipated future growth, the Town of Buckeye recommended
that this wastewater master plan be developed for the east Buckeye area. It is
important to note that the projections developed for this master plan should be
updated and the plan refined as growth continues within the area. These
projections provide an estimate, which is based on the best available data
obtained from the Town. Also, the projections outlined are only the Town’s best
estimate and may differ from the growth that actually occurs within the area.

21.2 Level of Detail

The growth and flow projections for this study were analyzed at a leve! of detalil
broken down to the quarter section (160 acres). This level of detail is appropriate
for the scope of this master planning study.

2.1.3 Data Sources

In developing the flow projections for this study, existing data sources were
researched. The data analyzed consisted of the following:

1. Land use maps developed and refined by the Town of Buckeye
Community Development Department

2. Planned and proposed development information

3. Existing development and parcel maps

This information was collected from the Town of Buckeye, developers, and the
Maricopa County Assessor's Map. Each of the data sources, and its usage in

computing the growth projections is described in greater detail within this
Section.
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The Town of Buckeye provided the land use data in a GIS format. This data

consists of multiple overlapping shapefiles for various portions of the study area.
In order to utilize this data, it was necessary to refine it by merging it into a single
shapefile. The Town then reviewed the refined land use map for the east
Buckeye study area. While refinements were made to the data, some small
inconsistencies may exist within the final calculations, due to the quality of the
data provided. It is assumed that these inconsistencies will have a negligible
impact on the overall study.

2.2 Land Use

The majority of the information utilized for the development of the wastewater
flow projections was based on the Town of Buckeye Land Use District Map. The
Town of Buckeye developed this map, which outlines where the Town has
planned different types of growth. The information provided by the Land Use
District Map was used to compute the flow projections, for all areas within the
study boundary, where specific development information was not available. The
land use map for the study area is shown in Exhibit 2 Land Use and
Developments.

2.21 Land Use Categories

The land use categories within the east Buckeye wastewater study area consist
of the following: Commercial Center, General Commerce, Planned Community,
Planned Residential, Rural Residential, and Special Use. The Town of Buckeye
defines each of these categories as follows:

Commercial Center (CC): The Commercial Center Land Use District is designed
to accommodate a variety of commerce and specialized development, including
commercial uses, which comprise the central business district of Buckeye.

General Commerce (GC): The General Commerce Land Use District is designed
to accommodate general commercial and employment uses and compatible
industrial uses to which public services are available.

Planned Community (PC): The Planned Community Land Use District is
designed to accommodate all land uses approved as part of a community master
plan, where specific uses, public services, densities, and design criteria have
been identified and adopted.

Planned Residential (PR): The Planned Residential Land Use District is designed
to accommodate all subdivided residential developments to which public services
are available.

Rural Residential (RR): The Rural Residential Land Use District is designed to
accommodate low-density residential development in outlying areas where all
public services may not be available.
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Special Use (SU): The Special Use Land Use District is designed to
accommodate uses in natural hazard or floodplain areas or those under public
ownership where development may not possible because of flooding or other
constraints or if development is possible, the Town as a public purpose sponsors
it.

The allowable density for each land use category was identified. Detailed
distinctions between densities in the different land use categories were not
considered. The densities used for the analysis of each category were
established by Town staff, and are described in Table 1 Land Use Densities.

Table 1 Land Use Densities

Land Use Density
Planned Community| 4 du/ac
Planned Residential| 4 du/ac

Rural Residential | 1 du/ac

23 Developments

In addition to the Land Use District Map developed by the Town, information
about various developments located within the study area was gathered.
Research was performed to identify where significant existing and proposed
developments are located within the study area. Due to the rate of growth that is
currently projected within the study area, it is likely that not all planned
developments were specifically identified.

The planned and proposed development information for the area was obtained
through discussions with the Town of Buckeye and developers of property within
the study area. The planned and proposed development information was
finalized as of December 16, 2003. While additional development will occur and
other developments may exist, no further modifications were made to the study
calculations after this date. Proposed developments identified as part of this
study are outlined in Table 2 Planned Development Summary.
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Blue Horizons 2,225 26
Buckeye/Perryville 280
Jackrabbit Trails 343
Jackrabbit/Broadway 228
Lewis Industrial Warehouse 109
Newport 640
Paloma Vista 650 16
Parkman Ranch 633
Ryland 1,068
Southwest Ranch 1,560 131

Vista de Montana

Arroyo Seco
Beautiful Arizona Estates
Camelback Garden Farms
Litchfield Farms
Litchfield Heights
Pasqueletti Mountain Ranch

24 Assumptions

In order to compute the projected growth within the study area, it was necessary
to make various assumptions. Throughout the majority of the study area,
projected growth was based on the Land Use Map developed by the Town of
Buckeye. In areas of known development, growth projections were based on the
planned development summary shown above. Throughout the majority of the
study area, the gross acreage, rather than net acreage, was used to calculate the
area for each quarter section, except as noted within Section 2.5.1, North of RID.

25 Growth Projections

Build-out growth projections were determined for each quarter section in the
study area. The number of residential dwelling units, commercial acres, and
Special Use acres (see Section 2.2.1, Land Use Categories) were summarized
for each quarter section. These growth projections are shown in Exhibit 3
Growth Projections.

The method for determining growth varied based on the region where growth
was being projected. For the majority of the study area, the growth projections
were determined based on the area of each specific land use type within each
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quarter section. Special considerations were made for determining the growth

projections within the region of the study area north of the Roosevelt Irrigation

District (RID) canal, and the region in the proposed Southwest Ranch WWTP

service area. The method for projecting growth in these regions is discussed
below.

2.5.1 North of RID

A detailed analysis was performed to determine the existing developed acreage
and additional land available for development within the study area north of the
RID (East Buckeye — North Study Area). The additional information obtained
from this analysis was utilized to determine the growth occurring within the area.

Within the East Buckeye- North Study Area, each section was individually
evaluated to determine the potential amount of growth. Each section was
studied to identify the areas where significant existing developments or land
subdivisions had already occurred. Within these areas, the wastewater demand
was calculated as described in Section 3.2.2 Existing Development Areas. in
addition, within areas where the land has already been platted, the projected
number of dwelling units was utilized.

In addition, each section was evaluated to determine the developable acreage
within the section. For example the acreage from the |-10 freeway, as well as
other existing roadways was subtracted from the developable acreage. The
growth projections for the study area are shown in Exhibit 3 Growth Projections.
A detailed breakdown of the growth projections within the East Buckeye- North
Study area is provided in Appendix A-2 East Buckeye-North Growth Information.

2.5.2 Southwest Ranch

A sewer master plan had been recently developed and submitted to the Town for
the Southwest Ranch service area. Based on the Southwest Ranch Sewer
Master Plan, a density of 3 du/ac was utilized for the Planned Community and
Planned Residential land uses. In order to maintain consistency between the
wastewater flows projected within this study and the Southwest Ranch Sewer
Master Plan, a density of 3 du/ac was utilized in this study, for the Planned
Community and Planned Residential land uses within the Southwest Ranch
service area.
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3 Flow Projections

3.1 Introduction

The flow projections determined in this study were critical in determining the
sizing of the sewer infrastructure. The assumptions that were made in
determining the flow projections, along with a summary of the flows for each area
of the study are provided within this section.

3.2 Assumptions

3.21 Wastewater Generation Factors

In order to determine the wastewater flow that is anticipated to be generated
within the study area, it was necessary to determine demand factors. For this
study, two sets of demand factors were determined. These demand factors
include factors used for wastewater collection system design, and demand
factors for sizing the treatment plants.

The demand factors that were utilized for the design of the wastewater collection
system included a demand of 320 gallons per dwelling unit per day for residential
developments, and 1,500 gallons per acre per day for commercial land use
types. In addition, a demand of 350 gallons per acre per day was utilized for all
Special Use land use types within the study area. The demand factors utilized
for this study are summarized in Table 3 Wastewater Collection System Demand
Factors.

Table 3 Wastewater Collection System Demand Factors

Land Use Flow Unit
Residential 320 Gallons/dwelling unit/day
Commercial 1,500 Gallons/acre/day
Special Use 350 Gallons/acre/day

3.2.2 Existing Development Areas

Various portions of the study area contain significant existing developments.
Based on discussions with the Town of Buckeye, and for the purposes of this
study, it was assumed that 10% of the existing homes would eventually be
connected to the wastewater system. The wastewater flow projections include a
wastewater demand for 10% of the homes within those areas where significant
existing development has occurred.
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The locations within the study area where significant existing development has
occurred were determined from aerial photos of the area. For the portion of the
study area not located within the East Buckeye- North Study Area, the areas of
significant development can be seen within Exhibit 2 Land Use and
Developments.

3.2.3  Wastewater Collection System Sizing

The wastewater collection system was sized in order to adequately convey the
projected peak flows through the system, without exceeding 90% of the full-
flowing capacity. The full flowing capacities of all sewer lines within the study
were calculated using a Manning’s n value of 0.013.

3.24 Wastewater Treatment Plant Sizing

The WWTPs within the study area were sized based on the Maricopa County
requirement of a combined residential and commercial flow of 350 gallons per
dwelling unit per day. In addition, an anticipated actual WWTP capacity was also
provided. The anticipated actual capacity was based on a unit flow of 220
gallons per dwelling unit per day. These flow factors are described in greater
detail within Section 6.1.1, Demands.

3.3 Flow Summary

Using the demands outlined within Section 3.2.1, Wastewater Generation
Factors and the growth projections outiined within Section 2.5, Growth
Projections, the average day demands at build out were computed for each
quarter section within the study area. These are the flow demands that were
utilized in designing the wastewater collection system. These demands can be
seen in Exhibit 4 Buildout Average Day Flows. The demands are also
summarized within Table 4 Buildout Flows.

Table 4 Buildout Flows

Area Avg Day Flow (MGDﬂ
East Buckeye- North 6.19
Southwest Ranch 13.25
East Buckeye 4.64
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4 Wastewater Design Criteria

4.1 Introduction

One of the key elements in developing this wastewater master plan was the
determination of the design criteria that would be utilized for the development of
the sewer model and master plan. The following section outlines the design
criteria utilized for the development of this master plan.

4.2 Velocity

For the development of this master plan, the minimum full flowing velocity for
each pipe segment was 2 (two) feet per second. The maximum full flowing
velocity was not allowed to exceed 10 (ten) feet per second.

4.3 Minimum Slopes

In order to ensure that a minimum velocity of 2 (two) feet per second is
maintained, the minimum slope for each diameter pipe was determined. The
minimum pipe slopes are listed in Table 5 Sanitary Sewer Minimum Slopes. In
addition, in order to maintain the constructibility of the sewer lines, the minimum
allowable slope within this study was limited to 0.0007 feet/feet.

Table 5 Sanitary Sewer Minimum Slopes

Diameter (in)| Slope (ft/ft)
8 0.00400
10 0.00240
12 0.00190
15 0.00140
18 0.00110
21 0.00092
24 0.00077
27 0.0007
30 0.0007
33 0.0007
36 0.0007
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Peaking Factors

The demand placed on a wastewater collection system will vary depending on
the time of day and the day of the week. In order to ensure that the system is
capable of handling the various demands placed upon it, peaking factors are
used to increase the average day flow to a peak flow. The peaking factors used
within this study, are those factors outlined by ADEQ in Title 18, Chapter 9, Part
E, Section D of the Arizona Revised Statutes. These factors are summarized in
Table 6 ADEQ Peaking Factors.

Table 6 ADEQ Peaking Factors

Upstream Population Peaking Factor
100 3.62
200 3.14
300 2.90
400 2.74
500 2.64
600 2.56
700 2.50
800 2.46
900 2.42
1,000 2.38
1,001 t0 10,000  |PF=(6.330 x p***") + 1.094
10,001 to 100,000 |PF=(6.177 x p°***) + 1.128
More than 100,000 |PF=(4.500 x p?'"*) + 0.945

PF = Peaking Factor p = Upstream Population

4.5 Full Flow Design

The wastewater collection system designed for this master plan was based off of
a full flowing pipe calculated using the Manning’s equation. For the purposes of
this study, all pipes were calculated using a Manning’s n value of 0.013. In
addition, the pipes were sized such that the peak flow (see Section 4.4, Peaking
Factors) would not exceed 90% of the full flow of the pipe.
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5 Wastewater Collection System

Utilizing the buildout demands outlined within Section 3, Flow Projections and the
design criteria outlined within Section 4, Wastewater Design Criteria a
wastewater collection system was designed to convey the ultimate wastewater
flows to the various WWTPs located within the study area. This section outlines
the data that was analyzed, the assumptions that were made, and the collection
system that was designed to meet the buildout system demands.

5.1 Topography

One key piece of information in determining the conceptual alignment of the
sewer collection system was the topography within the area. This study uses the
existing grades to determine the manhole elevations and sewer line inverts. The
existing ground surface data is described in greater detail within this section.

5.1.1 Existing Grade

Within the main study area, the existing grade tends to fall to the southeast, north
of the Buckeye Irrigation District canal, and to the southwest, south of the canal.
The existing ground surface elevation was utilized to establish the manhole rim
elevations, and all invert depths are measured from the existing ground surface.
The 10-foot contours within the study area are shown in Exhibit 5 Study Area
Contours.

51.2 Data Source

The topography data was purchased from the Maricopa County Flood Control
District for the main study area. The data obtained was the 2001 Digital Terrain
Model (DTM). This data provides information on the study area at a 10-foot
interval, with an accuracy of plus or minus 5-feet.

5.2 Physical Constraints

In addition to the topography, there are several other physical constraints within
the East Buckeye Wastewater Master Plan study area that must be considered.
The physical constraints that were considered include irrigation canals, railroad
lines, the APS effluent line, and the Buckeye waterlogged area. Each of these
constraints are discussed in greater detail below.

One area that will require particular attention is the area near the Buckeye
Irrigation District (BID) canal. The Union Pacific Railroad and the APS effluent
line both run paralle! to the canal. One of the goals in determining the sewer
alignments was to minimize the sewer line crossings in this area.
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5.2.1 Irrigation Canals

Within the project study area are two main irrigation canals. These two canals,
the Buckeye Irrigation District (BID) canal and the Roosevelt Irrigation District
(RID) canal, intersect the study area from east to west. The location of these two
canals was a major consideration in determining the location of the sewer
collection lines. The locations of the irrigation canals are shown in Exhibit 6
Physical Constraints. :

5.2.2 Railroad

Just north of the BID canal is the Union Pacific Railroad. The railroad poses
another physical obstacle that must be considered in determining the alignment
of the sewer lines. Since it will be necessary to bore under the railroad, railroad
crossings were minimized. The location of the railroad within the study area is
shown in Exhibit 6 Physical Constraints.

5.2.3 Effluent Line

In addition to the irrigation canals and the railroad, there is also a large diameter
effluent line that runs through the study area. South of the railroad and north of
the BID canal, is the effluent line that runs from the 91% Avenue wastewater
treatment plant in Tolleson to the Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station
(PVNGS). Within the study area, the effluent line has a diameter of 96-inches.
The crown of the effluent line is located at a depth approximately 6 to 7 feet
below ground. As part of the conceptual alignment, one main effluent crossing
was identified in Dean Road. The general location of the effluent line within the
study area is shown in Exhibit 6 Physical Constraints.

5.2.4 Waterlogged Area

South of the BID canal, within the study boundary, exists the Buckeye
waterlogged area, as defined by ADWR. The location of the waterlogged area is
shown on Exhibit 6 Physical Constraints. Waterlogging occurs where high
groundwater levels create land use problems if they are not addressed. In
December 2000, Errol L. Montgomery & Associates Inc, a hydrogeology-
consulting firm, published a study confirming that waterlogged conditions within
this area continue (Arizona State Senate).

The waterlogged area is an important consideration in determining the alignment
of the sewer mains, since high groundwater levels within the area may preclude
the location of various alignments. While determining the extent of waterlogging
within the area is beyond the scope of this study, it is important to recognize the
concern that exists with development south of the BID canal.

Date: May 26, 2004 18

H:APDATAWS101817\Adminreports\MasterPlan\FinahEBWWMP-Final-5-26-04.doc s = &



Exhibit 6
Physical Constraints

D Study Boundary

@ Waterlogged Area
— 96-Inch Effluent Line
~——— Streets

—— Railroad

— Canals & Rivers
0 1 2
[ — ]
16305 N 23th AVENUE

Miles
PHOERIX. ARIZONA 85053-7550

I CONSULTING % PLANNING R DESIGN N GONSTRUCTION

§02.467.2200 = FAX302.467 2201 » wwRBF com
= = -
| ] y21/04

Van Bufen St

S
. —
; | Béardsley Canal
| ——
a =7 [
.;,\‘Thomas Rd_4 . !
e R
| }
1 R |
' 1 T
{ ' ' L}
: ’ R R
. ..McDowell.Rd-- i s
1 e
= W 2

T o =4
[ | | i— 1
= ]
I
H i
1——_.
: !
t H :
; 1 ]
| ] /
i RooseveltCanal

s
'

e e
~ j \_'L_{“ |

i
D 1T~ —
Lower I?uckeye-A———n———
1

O
(o
S )
-g/GiIa River
A@

|

Rd . !"'

rport

N
L TuthihRd

NN
N
w .

N




Town of Buckeye

East Buckeye Wastewater Master Plan
May 2004

Section 5 Wastewater Collection System

5.3 Assumptions

In designing the wastewater collection system, it was necessary to make various
assumptions. This section outlines the assumptions that were made for this
portion of the study.

5.3.1 Study Time Frame

The collection system developed as part of this wastewater master plan was
designed for the ultimate buildout time frame. This is the time when each of the
parcels shown in Exhibit 2 Land Use and Developments, have been developed
according to the land use designated by the Town.

It is beyond the scope of this study to evaluate the ownership of each parcel, and
the feasibility of constructing sewer mains within each parcel. It is assumed that
land will be available for the defined sewer collection system when development
occurs. Since this master plan is primarily focused on the buildout demand
conditions, it is beyond the scope of this study to consider the scheduling or
actual time of construction of proposed or future developments located within the
study boundary.

The land use, development, and physical features information was based on data
researched and analyzed through December 2003. No changes to the study
based on new data have been made after this time.

5.3.2 Level of Detail

The wastewater collection system designed for this study consisted of the main
sewer trunk lines. The sewer lines were located at a square mile interval. The
manholes were placed at a minimum depth of 14.0 feet. This depth was
provided to allow sufficient fall to serve the interior collection systems designed
within each section. It is important to note that while this sewer master plan
provides guidance as to the sizing and conceptual alignments of the wastewater
infrastructure, a detailed engineering analysis must be performed before
undertaking any project outlined within this study.

533 Sewer Main Alighments

Sewer line alignments were located within the existing road alignments. If a road
did not exist within the area, then the section line boundaries were typically
followed.

5.34 Wastewater Treatment Plants

One of the main assumptions required in the development of the conceptual
sewer main alignments is the service area for treatment plants that will be
receiving the wastewater flows. Based on discussions with Town Staff, and for
the purposes of this study, all flow north of the RID canal generated within the
study boundary will ultimately be served by the Sundance WWTP. The
Southwest Ranch WWTP will serve the eastern half of the study area south of
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the RID and north or the railroad. The remaining areas will be served by a future

WWTP to be located within the southwest portion of the study area. For the
purposes of this study, this WWTP has been conceptually located, and will be
referred to as the East Buckeye WWTP. It is important to note that the actual
location of the treatment plant may differ from our assumed location.

Another important consideration with the proposed location of the East Buckeye
WWTP is the potential that exists for conveying the East Buckeye flows to the
Town’s existing WWTP located South of Beloat on 7™ Street.

56.3.5 Waterlogged Area

The sewer lines that were identified within the waterlogged area were based on
the location of the mile streets and the projected demands from the Town’s Land
Use Map (see Exhibit 2 Land Use and Developments). While these lines have
been conceptually located for this study, it may be necessary to relocate them
based on actual field conditions within the waterlogged area. For the purposes of
this study, the waterlogged area is shown; however, the extent of its impact on
the sewer lines is not considered.

5.4 Hydraulic Model

As part of this master plan, a computer hydraulic model was developed in order
to analyze the buildout sewer system. The sewer modeling system that was
utilized for this study was H20Map Sewer GIS® developed by MWH Soft, Inc.
The buildout sewer system was modeled to evaluate the peak flow conditions
within the system.

The sewer model was used as a planning tool to ensure that the recommended
sewer infrastructure would be properily sized to convey the peak wastewater
flows. Additionally, the model was used to evaluate various sewer alignments.

5.4.1 Assumptions

In developing a computer model of the sewer system, various assumptions were
made. This section outlines those assumptions and the role they played in the
development of the model.

One of the key assumptions in setting up the sewer model was the determination
of the wastewater generation factors. The design factors used for the sewer
sizing were described within Section 3.2.1, Wastewater Generation Factors. The
demands were distributed throughout the study area as shown in Exhibit 4
Buildout Average Day Flows.

As described earlier within this report, the peak flow condition was modeled for
the buildout condition. The peak flow was computed using the ADEQ peaking
factors as described within Section 4.4, Peaking Factors.
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5.5 Buildout Sewer System

The buildout sewer system was designed to convey the peak wastewater flows to
the designated treatment plants. The sewer lines were designed to be at a
sufficient depth such that the smaller interior sewer lines would be served by the
main sewer infrastructure.

While considerations were taken to ensure that the interior sewer lines can be
served by the main infrastructure shown in this report, due to the level of detail
for this study, additional factors may exist that were not considered. For
example, the Jackrabbit Trails development located within the East Buckeye-
North Study Area is anticipated to flow under a Maricopa County Flood Control
District canal to reach the main trunk line. While this situation was considered,
and the design tried to provide adequate depth, the contour data being utilized
has a vertical accuracy of +/- 5-feet which indicates additional study is required to
ensure that this development can adequately connect to the main sewer
infrastructure. It is strongly recommended that a detailed engineering analysis
be performed before undertaking any design project.

5.5.1 Alignments

Utilizing the information that was researched in Section 5.2, Physical Constraints,
and the assumptions that were outlined within Section 5.3, Assumptions, the
sewer main alignments were determined. These alignments were identified
within major road alignments, as well as the section line boundaries.

The goal of these alignments was to identify where sewer service will be
provided throughout the area, while taking advantage of the existing grade and
minimizing the need for lift stations. Based on discussions with Town Staff, a
bypass line has been identified for the Sundance WWTP. In addition to the
sewer main alignments, the WWTP anticipated to serve each sewer line is also
identified.

The buildout sewer alignments and sizes are shown in Exhibit 7 Buildout Sewer
System. The buildout sewer system results showing the manhole that is planned
to serve each quarter section, along with manhole depths is provided for the East
Buckeye- North Study Area in Exhibit 8 North Area Sewer System Results and
for the remainder of the study area within Exhibit 9 East Buckeye Sewer System
Results. Detailed results from the sewer system analysis are provided in
Appendix C Model Results.

5.5.2 Bypass Line

Based on discussions with Town staff, a bypass line was provided at the
Sundance WWTP in order to bypass flows south to the proposed WWTP. This
bypass line was sized to convey an average day flow of 3.3 MGD. This is the
amount of actual flow projected within the East Buckeye- North Study Area and
exception area minus the excess capacity at the Sundance WWTP.
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Section 5 Wastewater Collection System

It is important to note that by including this bypass line, all infrastructure directly
downstream of the bypass line must be upsized to convey an addition 3.3 MGD
of flow. This significantly increased the size of many of the sewer lines directly
downstream of the bypass line. The difference in size for each sewer line
impacted by the Sundance flow bypass is shown in Table 7 Sundance Bypass
Upsizing. The pipe ids listed in the table are shown in Exhibit 7 Buildout Sewer
System.

Table 7 Sundance Bypass Upsizing

Sundance Bypass| No Bypass
Pipe ID 3.3NGD Flow
Diameter (in) Diameter (in)
P-BYP1 18 Not Required
P-256 18 12
P-257 18 12
P-258 21 12
P-259 21 15
P-232 30 24
P-237 30 24
P-236 30 24
P-220 42 36
P-221 48 42
pP-234 48 42
P-265 48 42
P-251 48 42
P-250 48 42
P-231 48 42

An additional consideration with the Sundance WWTP bypass line, is its starting
depth. Information was unknown as to the depth of the Roosevelt Irrigation
- District Canal. For the purposes of this study, the bypass line was designed to
cross under the canal at a depth of approximately 15-feet.

5.5.3 Lift Stations

The sewer system designed for this master plan, is a primarily gravity flow
system. One location near the southern boundary of the sewer system in Beloat
Rd has been identified as requiring a lift station. Due to the flat grade in the area
and the minimum amount of wastewater that is projected to be generated, a lift
station was identified as necessary if sewer service is provided within this area.
The proposed location of this lift station is shown in Exhibit 7 Buildout Sewer
System.
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554 Southwest Ranch Sewer Area

A large portion of the study area is identified as being included within the
Southwest Ranch MAG208 service area. While it is anticipated that this area will
be provided sewer service by a WWTP constructed within the Southwest Ranch
development. It is important to note that the developers of Southwest Ranch are
currently analyzing the feasibility of constructing a bypass line from their
development to the existing Town of Buckeye WWTP. The sizing and capacity of
this sewer line along with the area that will be served by the sewer line is
currently being studied. At the present time, no decision has been made to
construct the bypass line to serve their development in place of the WWTP.

55.5 Recommendations for Further Study

Throughout the development of this master plan, various areas were identified
where further study would be necessary. It was beyond the scope of this master
plan to perform an in depth analysis of these items, however they should be
considered before undertaking design projects within the area.

5.5.5.1 RID Alignment

In order to provide sewer service within the East Buckeye- North study area, the
optimal alignment for conveying wastewater to the Sundance WWTP followed
the RID canal. While a preliminary analysis of this alignment has been
performed for this study, it is recommended that a detailed feasibility analysis be
performed. This detailed analysis should address the issues of a specific sewer
alignment, easements that may be required, and a detailed analysis of utility
conflicts within the area.

5.5.5.2 Railroad Crossing

In order to convey the wastewater flows to the proposed WWTP located south of
the BID canal, it will be necessary to cross the Union Pacific Railroad, BID canal,
and APS effluent line. Within this area exists many critical utilities such as fiber
optic lines and a petroleum gas line. For the purposes of this study, the crossing
was identified as a gravity flow crossing within Dean Road.

While the crossing identified as part of this study was shown as a gravity
crossing, it will be necessary to perform an in depth study to ensure that this
crossing is feasible, as well as to identify the existing elevations and sizes of the
fiber optic lines, petroleum gas line, APS effluent line, and any requirements for
crossing under the railroad and BID canal. It is strongly recommended that an
analysis be performed to determine the feasibility for crossing this area with a
gravity sewer line, and also the necessary depths for this crossing.

5.56.6.3 Waterlogged Area

As described within Section 5.3.5, Waterlogged Area, the area south of the BID
canal has been identified as waterlogged by the Arizona Department of Water
Resources. Due to the potential for high groundwater within this area, it is
recommended that additional study be performed in order to determine the extent
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of the potential impact of the waterlogged area on the proposed sewer
alignments. It is also recommended that this study address any special

considerations for constructing sewer lines within the area.
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6 Wastewater Treatment

One of the controlling factors in developing this sewer system master plan is
determining the location and quantity of treatment plants to be located throughout
the study area. Within the study area, two WWTP have currently been proposed.
These WWTP’s include the Southwest Ranch WWTP and the Blue Horizons
WWTP. There are no existing WWTPs currently within the study area however,
the Sundance WWTP is located just outside of the study area, north of the RID
canal, and the Town of Buckeye WWTP is located approximately one mile west
of the study area south of Beloat Road. The existing and proposed treatment
plants located near the study area are shown in Exhibit 10 Existing and Proposed
WWTPs.

6.1 Assumptions

In order to determine the location and sizing of the treatment plants that would
serve the East Buckeye study area, it was necessary to make various
assumptions. This section explains the assumptions that were made, as well as
the role that they played in determining sewer treatment options within the study
area.

6.1.1 Demands

The Arizona Department of Environmental Quality (ADEQ) has developed a
standard design factor for treatment plants of 350 gallons per dwelling unit per
day (gal/du/day), as described in Section 3.2.1, Wastewater Generation Factors.
This wastewater generation factor represents the average day residential and
commercial flow summarized per dwelling unit. For the purposes of this study,
the proposed treatment plant capacity was determined by multiplying the ADEQ
factor of 350 gal/du/day by the number of dwelling units located within the service
area. As described in greater detail within Section 3.2.2, Existing Development
Areas, in areas where a significant amount of existing development has already
occurred, only 10% of these dwelling units were included within the capacity
calculations. ' :

An additional consideration for sizing the treatment plants, was projecting the
actual amount of wastewater that they would actually treat. Based on an
analysis of existing treatment plants within the area (see Appendix B WWTP
Flow Data) a conservative wastewater generation factor of 220 gal/du/day was
selected to represent the projected amount of wastewater that would actually be
treated at each treatment plant. The wastewater generation factors utilized for
treatment plant sizing are summarized in Table 8 Wastewater Treatment Plant
Sizing Factors.
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Table 8 Wastewater Treatment Plant Sizing Factors

Description Demand Unit
ADEQ Design Factor| 350 |gal/du/day
Actual Use Factor 220 |gal/du/day

6.2 Existing WWTPs

Near the study area is the Sundance WWTP. The Sundance WWTP is located
east of Dean Road and north of the RID canal. The Sundance WWTP was
designed to serve 3.6 MGD at buildout. As described in greater detail within
Section 6.4, Recommended WWTP Service Areas, the Sundance WWTP is
proposed to serve the portion of the study area located north of the RID canal,
including the exception area. The existing MAG-208 service area for this WWTP
is shown in Exhibit 11 MAG-208 Service Areas

6.3 Proposed WWTPs

Within the study area, two WWTPs have been proposed. These treatment plants
include the Southwest Ranch WWTP located near Tuthill Road and the Union
Pacific railroad, and the Blue Horizons WWTP located just south of the RID canal
west of Jackrabbit Trail. The Southwest Ranch WWTP is proposed to serve 5.0
MGD at buildout, while the Blue Horizons WWTP is proposed to serve
approximately 2.0 MGD. The existing MAG-208 service area for the Blue
Horizons WWTP, and the proposed MAG-208 service are for the Southwest
Ranch WWTP are shown in Exhibit 11 MAG-208 Service Areas.

6.4 Recommended WWTP Service Areas

It was the goal of Town staff as well as this study to minimize the number of
treatment plants that would be constructed within the service area. Based on
discussions with Town staff, and the analysis performed for this study, it has
been proposed that the study area be served through three WWTPs. These
treatment plants include the Sundance WWTP to serve the area north of the RID;
the Southwest Ranch WWTP to serve the area north of the Union Pacific
railroad, south of the RID canal, and approximately east of Airport Road; and the
proposed East Buckeye WWTP to serve the remainder of the study area. It is
important to note that it may be possible to serve the proposed East Buckeye
WWTP service area through the existing Buckeye WWTP. The proposed service
areas for each of these treatment plants is shown in Exhibit 12 Proposed WWTP
Service Areas.

The Rancho Sonora area, the existing homes west of the Sundance WWTP
bounded by Watson Rd on the west, Dean Rd on the east, Durango St on the
north, and Lower Buckeye Rd on the south, may connect to the Sundance
WWTP in the future. The area is currently served by individual septic systems.
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However, the homeowners have expressed an interest in sewering and

connecting to the Sundance WWTP. The buildout flows for the Sundance
WWTP are shown in Table 9 Sundance WWTP Flow Summary.

While the Blue Horizons WWTP had been proposed within the study area, it is
recommended that the area that would have been served by this WWTP be
served at the Sundance WWTP. This will help the Town maintain their goal of
consolidating treatment plants and minimizing the number of small treatment
plants scattered throughout their Town.

6.5 WWTP Flows

Utilizing the demand factors that were described in Section 6.1.1, Demands, the
wastewater flows that were projected to be generated for each treatment plant
were computed. Two calculations were performed to determine the WWTP
sizing. A design size for each WWTP was computed using the ADEQ factor of
350 gal/du/day, and an actual constructed WWTP size was computed using the
design factor of 220 gal/du/day. The number of contributing dwelling units and
the projected WWTP capacity required for each proposed treatment plant was
computed and the treatment plant flows are summarized in Table 9 Sundance
WWTP Flow Summary; Table 10 Southwest Ranch WWTP Capacity; and Table

11 East Buckeye WWTP Capacity.

Table 9 Sundance WWTP Flow Summary

Design Sizing Proposed Actual Sizin
. Design . : Actual
Landuse D‘Gﬁllltlgg Demand Des(lgn d‘l;otal Landuse Dvl\jzlilt:g Demand Act(ual J)Otal
(gal/du/day) ap (gal/du/day) ap
Future DU | 12,607 350 4,412,608 Future DU | 12,607 220 2,773,639
Exist DU 720 35 25,200 Exist DU 720 22 15,840
Rancho Rancho
Sonora 476 35 16,660 Sonora 476 22 10,472
Subtotal 13,803 4,454,468 Subtotal | 13,803 2,799,951
Exception Exception
Future DU 2,919 350 1,021,549 Future DU 2,919 220 642,116
Exception Exception
Exist DU 908 35 31,780 Exist DU 908 22 19,976
Subtotal 3,827 1,053,329 Subtotal 3,827 662,092
Sundance Design Capacity 3,600,000 Sundance Design Capacity 2,262,857
Excess Sundance Capacity -201,600 Excess Sundance Capacity -126,720
Total Capacity 8,906,196 Total Capacity 5,598,180
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Table 10 Southwest Ranch WWTP Capacity

Design Sizing Proposed Actual Sizing

Design
Demand
(gal/du/day)

. Acutal Actual
Dwelling Demand Total
(gal/du/day)| (gpd)

11,347 350 3,871,450 || 11,347 220 2,496,340
Total Capacity 3,971,450 Total Capacity 2,496,340l

Dwelling
Units

Design
Total (gpd)| Units

The flows for the proposed East Buckeye WWTP are outlined in Table 11 East
Buckeye WWTP Capacity. It is important to note that these flows do not include
any additional capacity to treat the wastewater that may be bypassed from the
Sundance WWTP (see Section 5.5.2, Bypass Line). These flows only consider
the flows generated within the proposed East Buckeye WWTP area shown in
Exhibit 12 Proposed WWTP Service Areas.

Table 11 East Buckeye WWTP Capacity

Design Sizin Proposed Actual Sizing

Demand | Total [PWeling periny | “Totar
(gal/du/day)| (gpd) (gal/du/day)| (gpd)

23564 | 350  [8,247,451) 23564 | 220  |5.184,112
Total Capacity [8,247,451| Total Capacity 5,184,112

Dwelling
Units

6.6 Sundance WWTP Recommendations

Due to the large amount of growth that is occurring within the study area north of
the RID canal, a specific series of recommendations were formulated to address
the wastewater that is generated within this area. This section describes these
recommendations explaining the Sundance WWTP sizing, initial treatment plant
participants, and methods for implementing these recommendations.

6.6.1 Sundance WWTP Sizing

As described in Section 6.2, Existing WWTPs the Sundance WWTP has a design
capacity of 3.6 MGD. Based on an analysis of the current number of homes
constructed within various phases of Sundance, it appears that there will be
approximately 201,600 gallons per day (gpd) of excess capacity (when assuming
350 gpdud) or 126,720 gpd of excess capacity (when assuming 220 gpdud) at
the treatment plant, due to fewer lots being developed than originally projected.
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Thls section outlines three development scenarios for the Sundance WWTP.
These scenarios include the buildout design size, the actual construction size,
and the initial improvement size.

6.6.1.1 Buildout Design Size

As described in Section 6.1.1, Demands, two demand factors were used in
computing the size of the treatment plants. The ADEQ requires the treatment
plants to be designed to serve 350 gallons per dwelling unit per day. Based on
the research performed for this study, it was calculated that the Sundance
WWTP would need to be designed to serve a buildout capacity of 8.9 MGD. This
would allow the Sundance WWTP to serve the Sundance development and its
designated outparcels, as well as the East Buckeye Master Plan study area north
of the RID including the exception area.

Based on discussions with Town staff, it is recommended that the Sundance
WWTP MAG-208 application be amended, and the WWTP design revised to
provide service to these areas. In order to serve this additional flow, it will be
necessary to acquire additional land in the vicinity of the Sundance WWTP.
Negotiations are currently taking place with Buckeye Land Management (BLM),
the owners of the land within the area, to acquire the additional land (see Section
8.3, East Buckeye- North Study Area Cost Analysis). It is important to note that
while the WWTP must be designed to accommodate 8.9 MGD, the actual
constructed size and amount of flow that it will ultimately treat may be
significantly smaller.

6.6.1.2 Actual Construction Size

While the ADEQ requires WWTPs to be designed to meet a demand of 350
gallons per dwelling unit per day, the WWTPs are typically constructed in phases
as developments necessitates. This allows the developer to conserve capital,
and also helps ensure that the treatment plant is appropriately sized to treat the
flows that will be generated within its service area.

As described in Section 6.1.1, Demands, a conservative per dwelling unit
demand factor of 220 gallons per dwelling unit per day was used. As shown in
Table 9 Sundance WWTP Flow Summary the anticipated constructed buildout
size for the Sundance WWTP is 6.9 MGD. It is important to note that this size
was based on an analysis of historical flow patterns at various other WWTPs
within the Phoenix Metropolitan Area, as well as future growth projections for the
study area. It is recommended that the amount and type of growth within the
area be reevaluated at a minimum five-year interval to ensure that the Sundance
WWTP adequately serves the proposed service area.

6.6.1.3 Initial Improvement Size

While the buildout sizing of the Sundance WWTP is described in detail within this
section, an important consideration is the initial sizing of the WWTP. Located
within the East Buckeye- North Study Area, are six developments, which are in
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These developments include: Blue

Horizons, Jackrabbit Trails, Paloma Vista, Parkman Ranch, Vista de Montana,
and Arroyo Seco.

Based on discussions with Town staff, it has been recommended that these
developments be provided sewer service at the Sundance WWTP. In order to
serve these developments, it will be necessary to increase the size of the
Sundance WWTP. The Sundance WWTP would need to be designed to treat
5.5 MGD based on the ADEQ standards. However, it is anticipated that the
addition of these developments would ultimately require treatment capacity of 3.5
MGD at the Sundance WWTP. A breakdown of these wastewater flows is

provided in Table 12 Sundance WWTP Initial Development Flows.

Table 12 Sundance WWTP Initial Development Flows

Design Sizing Proposed Actual
Development Units | Demand Total Development Units | Demand Total

Blue Horizons 2,225 350 778,750 Blue Horizons 2,225 220 489,500

Jackrabbit Trails | 343 350 120,050 Jackrabbit Trails | 343 220 75,460
Paloma Vista 650 350 227,500 Paloma Vista 650 220 143,000
Parkman Ranch | 633 350 221,550 Parkman Ranch | 633 220 139,260
Vista de Montana 1,100 350 385,000 | Vista de Montana |1,100 220 242,000
Arroyo Seco 950 350 332,500 Arroyo Seco 950 220 209,000
Subtotal 5,901 - 2,065,350 Subtotal 5,901 - 1,298,220
Sundance Design Capacity 3,600,000 Sundance Design Capacity 2,262,857
Excess Sundance Capacity -201,600 Excess Sundance Capacity -126,720
Total Capacity 5,463,750 Total Capacity 3,434,357
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7 Reclaimed Water System

Being located in the desert southwest, the Town of Buckeye recognizes that
water is a finite resource and must be conserved. In order to better utilize their
existing water resources, Buckeye is striving to identify potential uses for their
wastewater effluent. This section provides a conceptual overview of a potential
system that will allow the Town to put their effluent to beneficial use.

Two potential categories of uses exist for the Town’s effluent. These two
categories include direct reuse, and recharge and recovery. Direct reuse has
been utilized within the Town of Buckeye to satisfy water demands such as golif
course irrigation. In order to directly reuse water, it must be sufficiently treated.
The potential uses for reclaimed water are described in Section 7.1, Potential
Reclaimed Water Uses.

By directly reusing effluent, the Town can reduce the amount of potable water
used within their system. It is important to note that various private water
companies are located within the master plan study area. While directly reusing
effluent within these areas would provide a conservation benefit, it will not directly
benefit the Town of Buckeye’s water system. The private water company service
areas are shown in Exhibit 13 Water Companies.

When considering directly reusing effluent, it is beneficial to provide adequate
flow to supply the peak demands. In evaluating the turf irrigation demand, it is
important to note that the demand can vary significantly depending on the time of
year. According to the City of Phoenix Design Standards Manual, turf water
demands can vary by a factor of 10 between the summer and winter demand
conditions. During those times of the year when the effluent cannot be utilized
through direct reuse, it will be necessary for an alternative form of disposal to be
utilized.

Recharging effluent provides a dual benefit as a method for disposing of effluent
and also receiving recharge credits from the Arizona Department of Water
Resources. Due to the fact that it will be necessary to recharge the effluent
during a portion of the year, for the purposes of this master plan, only a recharge
program is being recommended. Before undertaking any recharge project within
the Town, it is recommended that a detailed study be performed identifying the
quantity and quality of effluent that will be produced, the quantity of effluent that
must be recharged, as well as the soil conditions for accepting recharge in each
location. Additionally, with the waterlogged area located south of the BID canal
(see Exhibit 6 Physical Constraints), it would not be feasible or beneficial to
recharge water within this area.
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71 Potential Reclaimed Water Uses

The potential uses for reclaimed water vary depending on the class of effluent
that is discharged from the Town’s WWTP’s. Each class of effluent may be used
for its designated potential uses, and any potential uses for classes lower than
itself. The potential uses for effluent are as follows:

Class A effluent is suitable for irrigation of food crops, recreational
impoundments, residential landscape irrigation, school ground Ilandscape
irrigation, open access landscape irrigation, toilet and urinal flushing, fire
protection systems, spray irrigation of an orchard or vineyard, commercial closed
loop air conditioning systems, vehicle and equipment washing as well as those
uses approved for Class B and Class C effluent.

Class B effluent is suitable for recharge, irrigation of an orchard, irrigation of golf
courses, restricted access landscape irrigation, landscape impoundment, dust
control, construction water, milking animal pasture irrigation and livestock
watering, and street cleaning as well as those uses approved for Class C
effluent.

Class C effluent can be used for pasture or livestock watering for non-dairy
animals; irrigation of sod farms; irrigation of fiber, forage, seed or other similar
crops and silviculture.

The recommendations outlined in this reclaimed water master plan are based on
the assumption that the Town of Buckeye will discharge Class A effluent from the
wastewater treatment plants located within the master plan study area.

7.2 Recharge Assumptions

In order to develop a conceptual plan for recharge, it was necessary to make
various assumptions. These assumptions are summarized within this section.

In order to recharge effluent, it is necessary to construct recharge wells or
basins. Many different designs of recharge wells may be available. Recharge
wells require a site-specific design that considers the soils, aquifer, effluent
makeup, depth of well, and various other parameters. For the purposes of this
recharge master plan, it was necessary to make various simplifying assumptions
regarding the recharge well. These assumptions were made to provide an
overview of what may be necessary in the area in terms of effluent recharge, and
in no way are meant to serve as a recommendation on the ideal type of recharge
system for the East Buckeye Sewer Wastewater Master Plan study area. It is
recommended that a site-specific recharge study be performed before
undertaking any recharge project in the area.
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For the purposes of this master plan, it was assumed that the recharge wells
would be designed and equipped similar to a potable water well, only the design
and construction will be such that the effluent will be recharged into the ground
rather than extracted. A simplifying assumption was that the recharge well could
recharge 50% what a groundwater well could extract. For the purposes of this
study, it was assumed that the recharge wells could recharge 500gpm. Due to
the potential differences in soils throughout the special planning areas, it is
important to note that the actual performance of any recharge well may differ
considerably from the standard recharge well parameters assumed for this study.
Therefore more or less recharge wells may be required.

This recharge master plan also assumes that the ground in the areas where the
recharge wells will be located will be conducive to the recharge of effluent.

7.21 Effluent Generation

An important consideration in determining reclaimed water usage, is
understanding the quantity of effluent that will be generated. As described in
Section 6.1.1, Demands, a proposed actual demand of 220 gallons per dwelling
unit per day was utilized. It is important to note that based on the ADWR Third
Management Plan, greater conservation methods will be required in the future.
These conservation methods may have some effect on the actual amount of
wastewater treated at each WWTP. For the purposes of this study, it was
assumed that 220 gallons of effluent would be produced for each dwelling unit.
The effluent produced at each WWTP is summarized in Table 13 WWTP Effluent
Production.

Table 13 WWTP Effluent Production

WWTP Effluent (MGD)
Sundance 5.6
Southwest Ranch 2.5
East Buckeye 5.2

7.3 Recharge Plan

As part of this recharge plan, the quantity of recharge wells that would be
required for each WWTP service area were computed. It is important to note that
while injection wells are described for this analysis, it may also be possible to
recharge the water through percolation basins. The actual method of recharging
effluent should be determined based on a site specific analysis. An important
consideration when developing a recharge plan is identifying locations to
recharge the effluent. The number of recharge wells that would be required to
recharge the effluent generated at each treatment plant, based on the
assumptions outlined in Section 7.2, Recharge Assumptions is summarized in
Table 14 Recharge Wells.
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Table 14 Recharge Wells

WWTP Effluent (MGD) |Effluent (gpm) [Recharge Wells
Sundance 5.6 3,880 8
Southwest Ranch 2.5 1,734 4
East Buckeye 5.2 3,600 7

It is also recommended that a detailed site-specific study be performed to
determine the best location for each recharge well along with the potential
quantity of effluent that can be recharged in each location. It is recommended
that a recharge program be pursued in order to take advantage of the Town's
effluent as a potential water resource.

7.4 Existing Sundance Effluent Disposal

Due to the intensity of development in the East Buckeye- North Study Area, the
existing method for utilizing the effluent generated at the Sundance WWTP is
discussed. At the present time, a 20-inch low-pressure effluent line has been
designed to convey effluent from the Sundance WWTP to the BID canal. The
effluent line was designed to convey 7.2 MGD or two times the design flow from
the Sundance WWTP. Based on calculations for the effluent line, it is estimated
that the effluent line can convey 10.46 MGD (see Appendix F Sundance Effluent
Line).

The proposed actual build-out flow from the Sundance WWTP is estimated at 5.6
MGD (see Section 6.6.1, Sundance WWTP Sizing). Assuming the effluent line
must be capable of conveying two times the capacity of the plant, the effluent line
would need to convey 11.2 MGD at build-out. Since the Sundance effluent line
was designed as a pressurized line, it is estimated that 11.2 MGD could be
conveyed through the line by adding an additional 7psi of pressure to the line
(see Appendix F Sundance Effluent Line). It is important to note that a detailed
analysis of the effluent line should be prepared before increasing the flows in the
effluent line beyond its design capacity.
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8 Probable Costs

In order to assist the Town in planning for the future, planning level cost
estimates were developed for each of the improvements outlined in this master
plan. These cost estimates are meant to serve as a planning level guide only.
Before beginning any project recommended in this master plan, it is
recommended that a detailed cost analysis be performed for the project.

8.1 Cost Estimate Background
The cost estimates that are provided in this Section and within this master plan in
general have been developed as general planning level costs. It is

recommended that a detailed cost analysis be performed as part of the design of
each of these projects. The costs were computed based on similar construction
projects completed within the area. All costs are provided as present day costs.
The construction costs for each sewer line identified within this project were
computed based on a cost per linear foot. In addition to the construction costs,
mobilization & contingency were included at 20%, engineering at 12%,
construction management at 5% legal fees at 4% and permits/fees at 2%. A total
pipe cost per foot was computed from these factors. These costs are shown in
Table 15 Sewer Pipe Costs. Manhole costs of $3,800 each were added to these
costs, assuming a 500-foot spacing. It is important to note that an additional cost
of $175,000 was added to pipe P-237 to take into consideration the costs of
crossing the Union Pacific Railroad, APS effluent line, and BID canal. An
additional cost of $75,000 was added to pipe P-BYP1 (Sundance bypass line) to
take into consideration the cost of crossing the RID canal.

Table 15 Sewer Pipe Costs

Const | Mob + Cont [Engineering| Const Mgmt | Legal | Permits/Fees| Total

Diameter| Cost Cost

($/ft) 20% 12% 5% 4% 2% ($/5t)

8 30 6.00 4.32 1.80 1.44 0.72 44,28

10 33 6.60 4.75 1.98 1.58 0.79 48.71
12 35 7.00 5.04 2.10 1.68 0.84 51.66
15 39 7.80 5.62 2.34 1.87 0.94 57.56
18 50 10.00 7.20 3.00 240 1.20 73.80
21 75 15.00 10.80 4.50 3.60 1.80 110.70
24 93 18.60 13.39 5.58 4.46 2.23 137.27
27 110 22.00 15.84 6.60 5.28 2.64 162.36
30 120 24.00 17.28 7.20 5.76 2.88 17712
33 140 28.00 20.16 8.40 6.72 3.36 206.64
36 160 32.00 23.04 9.60 7.68 3.84 236.16
42 180 36.00 25.92 10.80 8.64 4.32 265.68
48 200 40.00 28.80 12.00 9.60 4.80 295.20
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In addition to the sewer pipe costs, planning level costs were calculated for each
WWTP. For the Sundance WWTP expansion, the additional capacity required at
the treatment plant was included. The WWTP costs were computed assuming 5
acres of land would be required for each 1,000,000 gallons of flow treated. A
land cost of $30,000 per acre was assumed for this study. The costs of the
treatment plants were computed using a cost formula developed by the U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency. The cost formula utilized is shown in Equation
1 WWTP Cost Estimate Formula. The result provided by the cost formula was
multiplied by a factor of 1.41 to bring the costs to present day costs.

Equation 1 WWTP Cost Estimate Formula

C =11,400x Q°"
C : Cost(1,0008)
1<0<100mgd

8.2 Cost Summary

Utilizing the cost information that was outlined in Section 8.1, Cost Estimate
Background, the costs for each sewer line were computed. The costs for each
sewer pipe are provided in Appendix D Pipeline Costs. These costs were
summarized for each treatment plant service area. The cost summary is shown
in Table 16 Wastewater Infrastructure Cost Summary. In addition, the
wastewater treatment plant costs are summarized and shown in Table 17 WWTP
Cost Summary. Due to the intensity of the development occurring north of the
RID canal, a more detailed breakdown of the costs for this area is provided. This
analysis is described in Section 8.3, East Buckeye- North Study Area Cost
Analysis.

Table 16 Wastewater Infrastructure Cost Summary

Area Pipes WWTP Total
East Buckeye-North 8,154,567 54,202,542 62,357,109
Southwest Ranch 4,476,972 44,212 116 48,689,088
Proposed East Buckeye 13,274,824 74,355,683 87,630,508
Total $25,906,363 $172,770,341 $198,676,705
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Table 17 WWTP Cost Summary

WWTP Flow Plant Land Total $/gal |
Sundance 5.30 53,407,542 795,000 | $54,202,542 | $10.23
Southwest Ranch 4.00 43,612,116 600,000 |$44,212,116| $11.05
East Buckeye 8.20 73,125,683 | 1,230,000 |$74,355,683 | $9.07
Total $172,770,341
8.3 East Buckeye- North Study Area Cost Analysis

Due to the intense development occurring within the East Buckeye- North study
area, a cost analysis was performed in greater detail for this area. This cost
differs slightly from the cost analysis described earlier in this Section. The
detailed North Study Area cost analysis estimates the costs associated with
construction, engineering, easements, construction management, and permits.
The cost estimate per pipe is shown in Appendix E-1 North Area Pipe Costs. In
addition, the cost estimates were further broken down to reflect the cost
responsibilities for each quarter section shown within the East Buckeye-North
study area. The quarter section id’s are shown in Exhibit 8 North Area Sewer
System Results, while the cost responsibilities are outlined in Appendix E-2 North
Area Cost Breakdown.

In addition to the cost breakdowns, an additional cost exhibit has been prepared
outlining the locations and costs of anticipated easements within the East
Buckeye- North Study Area. This information is included in Appendix E-3 North
Area Easement Costs.

It is important to note that the costs outlined within this section are provided as
present day costs. These costs should be adjusted to account for inflation as
well as market changes when evaluating the costs of these projects at a future
date.

8.3.1 Financing and Reimbursement

8.3.1.1 Sewer Line Expansion Financing

The new sewer mainlines that will serve the East Buckeye-North Sewer Service
Area, (“EBNSSA”) as shown in Exhibit 8 North Area Sewer System Results, will
be developed over time and as needed by Initial Developers and Secondary
Developers (each as defined below and collectively referred to as “Developers”)
within the EBNSSA. The new sewer mainlines will be developed in locations and
at sizes as generally depicted Exhibit 8 North Area Sewer System Results. At
the sole discretion and request of the individual Developers, the Town of
Buckeye (“Town”) will cooperate to facilitate the Developers’ financing of the
sewer line improvements and other eligible improvements within the EBNSSA by
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approving the use of Special Taxing Districts (i.e. Improvement Districts and/or

Community Facilities Districts (“Districts”).

8.3.1.2 Sundance Wastewater Treatment Plant Future Management and
Expansion Financing

Buckeye Land Management (“BLM"), the master developer of the Sundance
development, is currently responsible for managing the expansion of the
Sundance Waste Water Treatment Plant (“SWWTP”) to its current planned
capacity of 3.6 MGD. The Sundance development, as currently planned, upon
build-out, may utilize all of the current capacity and currently planned expansion
capacity of the SWWTP. The SWWTP will require significant capacity expansion
to accommodate the development of other properties within the EBNSSA beyond
BLM'’s current capacity and original planned expansion capacity. In order to
accommodate the development of additional properties within the EBNSSA,
BLM’s two currently-planned 1.2 MGD expansions of the SWWTP will be
modified to increase the total capacity of the SWWTP to 7.2 MGD (9.1 MGD
using high-rate treatment methods). Additional land area north and east of the
SWWTP will be acquired as soon as possible to accommodate the expansion of
the SWWTP. As the future SWWTP expansions are intended to benefit a much
larger service area than that originally intended, it is recommended that the
supervision and management of the SWWTP expansions be transferred from
BLM to the Town. [BLM has indicated that it supports transfer of this function to
the Town.] The incremental increase of the SWWTP expansion will be subject to
agreement among the Town and the Initial Developers. The Town, BLM and the
Initial Developers will agree upon an allocation of current and future SWWTP
capacity, as expanded from time to time, to accommodate the reasonable needs
of BLM and the Initial Developers.

Within the Sundance development, homebuilders now pay approximately $2,200
per house, at building permit issuance, as a wastewater treatment fee. These
funds are utilized to pay for the existing SWWTP improvements and for the
currently planned future expansion of the SWWTP. In its new role as the entity
responsible for managing the completion of the SWWTP, the Town and the
Developers within EBNSSA and within the Sundance development will meet and
agree on an equitable system by which Developers pay to the Town, in a manner
similar to the current process for homebuilders in the Sundance development,
wastewater treatment fees that will be used to incrementally expand the SWWTP
in order to serve the various developments within the proposed and expanded
208 service area.

8.3.1.3 Future SWWTP Treatment

The Town will institute a fee payable at issuance of the building permit to pay for
the expansion of the SWWTP. The Town will be responsible for ensuring that
the SWWTP is adequately designed, constructed, and operated such that
treatment capacity is readily available for those developments located within the
SWWTP service area.
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8.3.1.4 Reimbursement Agreement

The Town will enter into a reimbursement agreement with the Initial Developers,
to reimburse them for oversizing of the sewer line improvements. The
reimbursement agreement between the Town and the Initial Developers will be
established pursuant to existing Town ordinances. The reimbursement
agreement will provide reimbursement to the Initial Developers at the earlier of

the Secondary Developers receiving preliminary plat approval, final plat approvali,
or issuance of a building permit.

8.31.5 Easement Acquisition

At the request of the Town and with the agreement of the Initial Developers, the
alignment of the proposed sewer line infrastructure was planned to utilize an
alignment north of the north side of the Roosevelt Irrigation District canal (the
“‘RID-North Alignment”). It was also agreed that additional land north and east of
the SWWTP (the “SWWTP Expansion Area”) would be needed to facilitate the
proposed expansion of the SWWTP. Since neither the Town nor the parties
likely to be designated as the Initial Developers owns or controls all of the
Proposed RID-North Alignment and the SWWTP Expansion Area, the Town
agrees to utilize any of its powers to acquire any necessary easements within the
RID-North Alignment and/or the SWWTP Expansion Area. All costs associated
with the acquisition of the RID-North Alignment and/or the SWWTP Expansion
Area, including all costs of the Town to acquire property and/or easements, will
be paid for by the Initial Developers and those costs, as with all others, will be
subject to the Reimbursement Agreement. The RID-North Alignment is shown in
detail in Appendix E-3 North Area Easement Costs.

8.4 Reclaimed Costs

In order to assist the Town in planning for the future, planning level cost
estimates were developed for the improvements outlined in this master plan.
These cost estimates are meant to serve as a planning level guide only. Before
beginning any project recommended in this master plan, it is recommended that
a detailed cost analysis be performed for the project. The cost estimates
prepared for the recharge master plan were developed to provide a planning
level overview for the recommendations outlined in this section.

For the reclaimed master plan, the cost estimates are based on the cost to equip
and construct an injection recharge well. For the purposes here, it was assumed
that a recharge well would cost approximately double the cost of a potable water
well. A value of $500,000 per recharge well was assumed. This value does not
include the costs for additional piping to transfer the water from the transmission
mains to the recharge site. The recharge costs are summarized inTable 18
Reclaimed Cost Summary.
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Table 18 Reclaimed Cost Summary

WWTP Recharge Wells Costs
Sundance 8 4,000,000
Southwest Ranch 4 2,000,000
East Buckeye 7 3,500,000
Total $9,500,000
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East Buckeye- North Action Plan

As discussed throughout this report, due to the large amount of development that
is occurring within the East Buckeye- North area, additional study was performed
in this area. This section outlines various actions that should be undertaken in
order to ensure that development within the East Buckeye- North Study Area
proceeds as planned.

Items that should be undertaken immediately include:

Acquire easements/right-of-Way along the RID alignhment for sewer
collector line (see Appendix E-3 North Area Easement Costs).

Prepare MAG208 application for sewer service areas (see Exhibit 12
Proposed WWTP Service Areas). It is recommended that an individual
MAG208 application be prepared for each service area, such that the
application can be prepared for each area as required. This will avoid any
delays that may arise if issues need to be resolved in other service areas.
Reserve or acquire additional land area for the Sundance WWTP.

Begin design of sewer collector line following RID alignment (see Exhibit 8
North Area Sewer System Results).

Additional actions include:

Design Sundance WWTP expansion.
Apply for Aquifer Protection Permit for expanded Sundance WWTP.

Update National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit
for Sundance WWTP.

Develop an effluent reuse/disposal plan.
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East Buckeye-North Growth Information

Notes

155.34 acres owned by Buckeye HS District shown as Low Denstty; 19.39 Acres owned by MCFCD not shown.

120.0 acres owned by Buckeye HS District shown as Low Density.

101.15 Acres owned by MCFCD not shown.

117.02 Acres owned by MCFCD not shown.

135.64 Acres ownéd by the Litchfield School District.

Service Area Undeveloped Medium Density Residential Undeveloped Low Density Residential Existing (Probable) Resldential Lots | ~ . Commercial Land TOTALS
Acerage ADU': @ 4.0 DUIAC! Future Flows g 320 Gal/DU | Acerage | DU's g 1.0 DU/AC ] Future Flows @ 320 Gal/DU | Lots | Future Flows g 1/10x320 Gal | Acerage | Future Flow @ 1,500/AC | Future DU's Flows
1 13.050 52.200 16,704 0.000 - - ] - - 52 16,704.00
2 151.880 607.560 194,419 0.000 - - - 608 194,419.20
3 0.000 - 48.785 48.785 15,614.40 - . - 0 15,614.40
4 0.000 - 12.870 12.970 4,539.50 25 800.00 - 25 5,339.50
5A 159.000 636.000 203,520 0.000 - - - 636 203,520.00
58 159.000 636.000 203,520 0.000 - - - 636 203,520.00
6A 153.54 614.160 196,531 0.000 - - - 614 196,531.20
68 1563.54 614.160 196,531 0.000 - - - 614 196,531.20
7 153.540 614.160. 196,531 0.000 - - - 614 196,531.20
8 153.540 614.160) 196,531 0.000 - - - 614 196,531.20
9A 74.132 296.528 94,889 55.320 55.320 17,702.40 - - 297 112,591.36 |
98 0.000 - 0.000 - - 84.711 127,066.50 0 127,066.50
10A 37.569 150.356 48,114 ] 120.000 120.000 38,400.00 - R - 150 86,513.82
108 i 0.000 - 0.000 - - 45.097 67,645.50 0 67,645.50
10C 150.542 602.168| 192,694 0.000 - - ’ - 602 192,693.76
10D 143,722 574.888 183,964 0.000 - - - 57_5| 183,964.16
11 144.000 602.000) 192,640 0.000 - - 7.000 10,500.00 602 203,140.00
12 87.430 364.000 116,480 0.000 - - 4.000 6,000.00 364 122,480.00
134 150.870 620.000 201,280 0.000 - - 7.000 10,500.00 628 211,780.00
138 150.890 630.000 201,600 0.000 - - 7.000 10,500.00 630 212,100.00
14A 21.920 95.000 30,400 0.000 - - 18.934 28,401.00 95 68,801.00
14B 56.740 248.000 79,360 0.000] - - - 248 79,360.00
15A 0.000 - 0.000 - - ]-129.180 193,785.00 0 193,785.00
158 0.000 - 0.000 - - . 135.910 203,865.00 0 203,865.00
16A 0.000 - 0.000 - 63 2,016.00 68.327 102,490.50 63 104,506.50
168 85.141 340.564 108,980 0.000 - 40 1,280.00 - 381 110,260.48
16C 0.000 - 0.000 - 126 4,032.00 - 126 4,032.00
16D 119.001 476.004 152,321 0.000 - 21 672.00 §. - - 497 152,993.28
17 0.000 - 0.000 - - 1 25.070 37,605.00 0 37,605.00
18 158.370 630.000 201,600 0.000 - - - 630 201,600.00
19 117.960 470.000 150,400 0.000: - - - 470 150,400.00
20A 153.430 633.000 202,560 0.000 - - - 633 202,560.00
20B 0.000 - 0.000 - 101 3,232.00 16.220 24,330.00 101 27,562.00
21A 0.000 - 0.000 - 70 2,240.00 71.053 106,579.50 70 108,819.50
218 0.000 - 0.000 - 66 2,112.00 48.929 73,393.50 66 75,505.50
22A 143.800 650.000 208,000 0.000 - - 16.000 24,000.00 650 232,000.00
28 0.000 - 0.000 - 80 2,560.00. 52.794 79,191.00 80 81,751.00
23A 147.614 590.456 188,946 0.000 - - 8.998 13,497.00 590 202,442.92
238 0.000 - 0.000 - 128 4,096.00 - - 128 4,096.00
Exception # 1 614,987.00
Exception # 2 394,954.00
Totals 3,040.251 12,370 3,958,516 237 237 76,256 720 23,040 746 1,119,350 13,090 6,187,103
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Summary of Average Flows
250

230 -
210 -
190
170
150
130
110
90
70
50 : . : -

Ave Flow (gpupd)

Months

-=- Anthem LIPSCO ~~ Saddlebrook -+ Johnson Ultilities
—--Sun City West — Sun City — Pima Utility Co. —- Sundance




Anthem
Month/Year Number of Services Total Monthly Sewage Flow Average Flow (gal/day/du)

Jan-02 2996 16520000 178
Feb-02 3062 14236000 166
Mar-02 3168 16736000 170
Apr-02 3205 16218000 169
May-02 3221 16745000 168
Jun-02 3234 17652000 182
Jul-02 3294 17468000 171
Aug-02 3329 19581000 190
Sep-02 3442 19470000 189
Oct-02 3708 21167000 184
Nov-02 3869 24443000 211
Dec-02 4107 20334000 160
Total 2136

Average 178



Johnson Utilities
Month/Year Number of Services Total Monthly Sewage Flow Average Flow (gal/day/du)

January-02 910 4355000 154
February-02 945 4426000 167
March-02 1031 5111000 160
April-02 v 1088 5744000 176
May-02 1137 6395000 181
June-02 1161 5853000 168
July-02 1248 5918000 153
August-02 1411 7348000 168
September-02 1505 6683000 148
October-02 1670 7099000 137
November-02 1748 6964000 133
December-02 1947 7798000 129
Total 1875

Average 156



Litchfield Park Service

Month/Year Number of Services Total Monthly Sewage Flow Average Flow (gal/day/du)
January-02 6122 43529000 229
February-02 6255 40066000 229
March-02 6358 40587000 206
April-02 6581 46236000 234
May-02 6795 39218000 186
June-02 7063 38218000 180
July-02 7566 38975000 166
August-02 7735 34360000 143
September-02 8115 49162000 202
October-02 8342 48990000 189
November-02 8469 51156000 201
December-02 8822 52784000 193
Total 2360

Average 197



Pima Utility Co.

Month/Year Number of Services Total Monthly Sewage Flow Average Flow (gal/day/du)
January-02 8454 30320000 116
February-02 8473 30502000 129
March-02 8493 34170000 130
April-02 8515 30712000 120
May-02 8533 26523000 100
June-02 8552 23612000 92
July-02 8572 23083000 87
August-02 8598 22956000 86
September-02 8623 23856000 92
October-02 8645 27225000 102
November-02 8673 30639000 118
December-02 8698 29514000 109
Total 1281

Average 107



Saddlebrooke Utility Co.

Month/Year Number of Services Total Monthly Sewage Flow Average Flow (gal/day/du)
January-02 3142 11713000 120
February-02 3162 10922000 123
March-02 3180 12258000 124
April-02 3191 11139000 116
May-02 3205 - 9693000 98
June-02 3223 8648000 89
July-02 3245 8939000 89
August-02 3267 8919000 88
September-02 3288 8872000 90
October-02 3307 10190000 99
November-02 3340 11251000 112
December-02 3359 11738000 113
Total 1263

Average 105



Sun City
Month/Year  Number of Services Total Monthly Sewage Flow Average Flow (gal/day/du)

January-02 21144 143349000 219
February-02 21144 128837000 218
March-02 21144 145174000 221
April-02 21144 117033000 185
May-02 21144 98875000 151
June-02 21144 104436000 165
July-02 21149 118147000 180
August-02 21150 108715000 166
September-02 21150 126404000 199
October-02 21150 115018000 175
November-02 21150 93886000 148
December-02 21150 112378000 171
Total 2198

Average 183



Sun City West
Month/Year Number of Services Total Monthly Sewage Flow Average Flow (gal/day/du)

January-02 14925 86364000 187
February-02 14925 79340000 190
March-02 14926 87739000 190
April-02 14926 80218000 179
May-02 14926 72362000 156
June-02 14926 63966000 143
July-02 14927 60661000 131
August-02 14927 59719000 129
September-02 14927 60908000 136
October-02 14927 69189000 150
November-02 14927 72955000 163
December-02 14928 75945000 164
Total 1917

Average 160



Sundance Wastewater Treatment Plant

Average Daily Flow per Month (Dec 02 - Sep 03)
(based on the weighted number of units closed and average monthly flows at the plant)

Dec 225.15
Jan 136.8
Feb 167.9
Mar 153.91
Apr 151.05
May 148.42
Jun 163.52
Jul 134.15
Aug 144.14
Sep 120.15
Total 1,545
Average 155
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East Buckeyé Wastewater Master Plan

Mahole Results

ID Elevation (ft) | Load {mgd) Grade (ft)
MH-1 1,004.55 0.004 981.052
MH-10 1,029.72 0.407 1,016.16
MH-102 900.00 0.326 887.56
MH-103 910.00 0.375 897.289
MH-107 927.00 0.358 914.691
MH-11 1,011.99 0.424 994.046
MH-113 900.00 0.278 882.571
MH-114 930.00 0.137 914.479
MH-115 920.00 0 901.54
MH-116 900.00 0.322 891.805
MH-117 955.00 0.156 940.247
MH-118 973.00 0.149 960.658
MH-119 970.00 0.047 954.636
MH-12 1,083.62 0.109 1,068.80
MH-120 950.00 0.141 937.617
MH-122 931.00 0.157 918.34
MH-123 988.00 0.021 975.468
MH-125 990.00 0.108 977.62
MH-126 972.00 0.27 959.51
MH-127 955.00 0.083 942.418
MH-128 940.00 0.095 927.426
MH-129 980.00 0.346 967.63
MH-13 1,033.03 0.138 1,018.21
MH-130 961.00 0.309 948.507
MH-131 944.00 0.345 931.315
MH-14 1,086.31 0.615 1,071.93
MH-15 1,053.54 0.314 1,040.25
MH-16 999.36 0.194 975.911
MH-17 1,057.01 0.531 1,043.64
MH-18 1,047.78 0.24 1,033.61
MH-19 1,008.10 0.038 987.71
MH-2 1,016.44 0.393 1,002.93
MH-20 1,003.87 0.122 986.094
MH-201 864.93 0.424 847.35
MH-203 879.30 0.052 858.965
MH-204 874.60 0.305 856.633
MH-205 906.86 0.371 891.015
MH-206 874.55 0 860.248
MH-207 858.98 0.091 854.5
MH-208 849.23 0.417 835.198
MH-21 1,008.90 0.197 992.687
MH-210 874.65 0.082 859.946
MH-211 884.63 0.226 870.144
MH-212 881.86 0.345 861.675
MH-213 862.16 0.366 844.1
MH-214 945.59 0.413 923.929
MH-215 899.99 0.19 880.726
MH-216 869.15 0.08 838.768
MH-217 862.90 0.071 835.344




East Buckeye Wastewater Master Plan

Mahole Results

ID Elevation (ft) | Load (mgd) Grade (ft)
MH-218 861.90 0.275 842.397
MH-219 876.71 0.465 862.402

MH-22 1,028.79 0.197 1,013.59
MH-221 884.10 0 863.089
MH-222 961.03 0.308 946.489
MH-223 870.93 0.149 853.144
MH-224 993.86 0.104 977.477
MH-225 874.82 0.59 860.615
MH-230 902.27 0.167 889.104
MH-231 909.31 0 883.543
MH-232 938.38 0.413 924.062
MH-233 933.23 0 918.778
MH-234 909.18 0.479 895.042

MH-24 1,002.38 0 984.132

MH-26 1,055.33 0.398 1,039.63
MH-262 857.08 0.452 840.609
MH-265 854.58 0.103 837.001
MH-266 860.33 0.078 845.618
MH-267 867.34 0.083 824.532
MH-268 872.51 0.009 849.521
MH-269 880.80 0.403 864.57
MH-270 882.58 0.445 868.255
MH-271 864.66 0.685 847.803
MH-272 936.19 0.199 920.42
MH-273 968.64 0.363 953.438
MH-274 921.17 0.408 899.742
MH-275 898.53 0.106 885.251
MH-276 904.21 0.228 885.98

MH-28 1,031.82 0.184 1,019.44

MH-3 1,044.72 0 1,031.87

MH-30 1,072.56 0.207 1,058.26

MH-31 - 1,104.19 0.263 1,089.76

MH-32 1,008.08 0 994.778

MH-33 1,129.56 0.395 1,114.97

MH-36 1,003.45 0.016 979.382

MH-4 1,015.62 0.23 1,003.62
MH-5 1,010.73 0 996

MH-53 919.75 0.152 907.214
MH-6 1,006.96 0.202 989.825
MH-64 902.13 0.464 880.266
MH-7 1,001.85 0 974.115

MH-78 1,005.02 0 977.143

MH-80 1,005.08 0.203 982.324

MH-82 1,007.90 0.15 991.67

MH-9 1,000.76 0.017 974.876
SUN-BYP 1,003.26 3.3 988.362




East Buckeye Wastewater Master Plan Pipe Results

. . Length Peak Flow | Avg Flow | Velocity Full Flow
ID FromID | TolID |Diam (in) () Slope (mgd) (mgd) (ft's) d/D q/Q (mgd)
1 MH-7  |SUN-WTP 36 761.833 | 0.000709 9.904 6.188 2.834 0.715 0.861 11.508
10 MH-21 MH-1 12 675.691 | 0.011011 2.128 1.165 5.387 0.727 0.879 2423
11 MH-22 MH-21 12 2,614.81 | 0.007997 1.797 0.968 4.581 0.722 0.87 2.065
12 MH-18 MH-22 12 2,645.21 | 0.007602 1.462 0.771 4.324 0.632 0.726 2.013
13 MH-17 MH-18 12 2,508.19 | 0.003999 1.045 0.531 3.124 0.626 0.715 1.46
14 MH-80 MH-1 30 1,586.62 | 0.0008 6.587 3.992 2671 0.726 0.876 7.52
15 MH-24 MH-80 27 1,343.45 | 0.001303 6.29 3.789 3.172 0.721 0.868 7.244
16 MH-20 MH-24 27 1,510.74 | 0.001297 6.29 3.789 3.167 0.722 0.87 7.229
17 MH-19 MH-20 27 1,341.02 | 0.001201 6.087 3.667 3.052 0.725 0.875 6.954
18 MH-11 MH-19 18 1,033.02 | 0.005605 3.047 1.727 4.66 0.557 0.598 5.096
19 MH-13 MH-11 15 2,587.37 | 0.009299 2.358 1.303 5.288 0.549 0.584 4.037
2 MH-9 MH-7 36 1,073.35 | 0.000699 9.904 6.188 2.818 0.719 0.867 11.426
20 MH-26 MH-13 15 2,647.37 | 0.008099 2.128 1.165 4.893 0.538 0.565 3.767
21 MH-12 MH-26 12 2,638.84 | 0.011001 1.455 0.767 4.988 0.559 0.601 2.422
22 MH-6 MH-19 24 2,748.93 | 0.000771 3.329 1.902 2.236 0.688 0.818 4.071
23 MH-82 MH-6 21 1,540.59 | 0.001097 3.008 1.7 2.469 0.731 0.885 3.401
24 MH-5 MH-82 18 1,466.44 | 0.003 2.759 1.55 3.573 0.64 0.74 3.729
25 MH-4 MH-5 15 1,371.17 | 0.005404 2.759 1.55 4.389 0.739 0.897 3.077
26 MH-28 MH-4 15 2,657.68 | 0.005998 2.384 1.32 4.465 0.638 0.735 3.242
27 MH-3 MH-28 15 1,569.31 | 0.008004 2.079 1.136 4.845 0.532 0.555 3.745
28 MH-15 MH-3 15 1,048.15 | 0.007995 2.079 1.136 4.845 0.532 0.555 3.743
29 MH-30 MH-15 12 2,647.64 | 0.0067 1.55 0.822 4.152 0.689 0.82 1.89
3 MH-32 MH-9 12 700.752 | 0.003996 0.824 0.407 2.961 0.538 0.565 1.459
30 MH-14 MH-30 12 2,626.82 | 0.005231 1.191 0.615 3.576 0.624 0.713 1.67
31 MH-31 MH-12 12 2,651.64 | 0.007901 1.268 0.658 4.256 0.568 0.618 2.052
32 MH-33 MH-31 12 2,643.03 | 0.009599 0.803 0.395 4.076 0412 0.355 2.262
4 MH-10 MH-32 12 2,587.39 | 0.008302 0.824 0.407 3.895 0.435 0.392 2.104
5 MH-16 MH-9 36 1,628.31 [ 0.0007 9.27 5.764 2.786 0.684 0.811 11.437
6 MH-78 MH-16 33 1,159.25 | 0.000897 8.98 5.57 3.014 0.725 0.875 10.266
7 MH-2 MH-78 12 2,263.97 | 0.005 0.799 0.393 3.201 0.494 0.49 1.633
8 MH-36 MH-78 30 1,664.97 | 0.001303 8.389 5.177 3.407 0.725 0.874 9.596
9 MH-1 MH-36 30 1,290.37 | 0.001294 8.365 5.161 3.398 0.725 0.875 9.563
P-101 MH-107 | MH-103 15 2,662.66 | 0.006441 2.444 1.358 4.62 0.633 0.728 3.36
P-102 MH-103 | MH-102 18 1,724.36 | 0.005567 3.0566 1.733 4.648 0.56 0.602 5.079
P-105 MH-102 | MH-113 24 5,358.74 | 0.000836 3.583 2.059 2.341 0.705 0.845 4.239
P-107 MH-53 | MH-113 12 2,598.22 | 0.009191 1.351 0.708 4.574 0.564 0.61 2.213
P-108 MH-114 | MH-115 18 1,388.20 | 0.001563 1.526 0.808 2.43 0.539 0.567 2.691
P-109 | MH-115 | MH-116 18 1,892.97 | 0.004997 1.526 0.808 3.739 0.387 0.317 4.812
P-110 | MH-116 [SWR-WTF 24 280.735 | 0.000784 2.068 1.13 2.024 0.502 0.504 4.104
P-113 MH-119 [ MH-120 8 2,592.51 | 0.006584 0.171 0.068 2.389 0.354 0.269 0.635
P-116 MH-123 | MH-119 8 2,645.76 | 0.007873 0.065 0.021 1.933 0.207 0.094 0.695
P-117 | MH-118 | MH-117 8 2,592.51 | 0.007803 0.337 0.149 3.048 0.492 0.487 0.692
P-118 | MH-117 | MH-122 10 2,707.70 | 0.007962 0.636 0.305 3.6 0.501 0.502 1.267
P-119 MH-125 | MH-126 8 2,617.29 | 0.006877 0.254 0.108 2.703 0.435 0.391 0.649
P-120 MH-126 | MH-127 12 2,642.21 | 0.006457 0.772 0.378 3.487 0.45 0.416 1.855
P-121 MH-127 | MH-128 12 2,638.26 | 0.005648 0.92 0.461 3.469 0.518 0.53 1.735
P-123 MH-129 | MH-130 10 2,617.03 | 0.00726 0.713 0.346 3.572 0.552 0.59 1.21
P-124 MH-130 | MH-131 12 2,641.26 | 0.006398 1.263 0.655 3.917 0.607 0.684 1.847
P-125 | MH-131 | MH-107 15 2,630.05 | 0.006331 1.85 1 4.311 0.532 0.555 3.331
P-126 MH-122 | MH-114 15 2,519.96 | 0.001401 0.922 0.462 2.054 0.552 0.588 1.567
P-127 MH-120 | MH-114 8 2,711.49 | 0.008305 0.455 0.209 3.355 0.58 0.638 0.714
P-128 | MH-128 | MH-53 12 2,683.34 | 0.007509 1.088 0.556 4.023 0.526 0.544 2.001
P-139 MH-64 BWR-WTF 33 2,549.02 | 0.000745 5.857 3.509 2.573 0.573 0.626 9.357
P-140 MH-113 | MH-64 30 2,340.66 | 0.000825 5.132 3.045 2.579 0.601 0.672 7.633
pP-214 MH-203 | MH-204 24 2,492.87 | 0.000923 3.388 1.936 2415 0.652 0.761 4.453
P-215 | MH-211 | MH-212 10 2,476.17 | 0.002399 0.488 0.226 2.136 0.617 0.702 0.695
P-216 MH-212 | MH-203 21 2,787.63 | 0.000918 2.549 1.419 2.233 0.688 0.819 3.112
P-217 MH-204 | MH-223 24 2,717.41 | 0.001299 3.877 2.241 2.842 0.637 0.734 5.284
P-220 MH-201 | MH-213 42 2,820.21 | 0.001 17.161 11.138 3.707 0.697 0.832 20.618
P-221 MH-213 | MH-218 48 2,488.89 | 0.000699| 17.686 11.504 3.297 0.627 0.719 24.613




East Buckeye Wastewater Master Plan Pipe Resuits

. . Length Peak Flow | Avg Flow | Velocity Full Flow
ID From 1D To 1D [ Diam (in) () Slope (mad) (mgd) (ftis) d/D q/Q (mgd)
P-223 MH-221 | MH-212 18 1,305.89 | 0.001103 1.595 0.848 2.145 0.62 0.705 2.26
P-227 MH-219 | MH-203 15 2,823.98 | 0.001399 0.927 0.465 2.057 0.554 0.592 1.566
P-229 MH-232 | MH-233 12 2,513.24 | 0.002001 0.835 0.413 2.265 0.682 0.808 1.033
P-231 MH-208 |[EB-WWTP 48 2,879.07 { 0.000698{ 20.173 13.245 3.378 0.689 0.82 24.596
P-232 MH-231 | MH-215 30 1,369.29 | 0.001599 9.436 5.875 3.784 0.733 0.888 10.63
P-233 MH-266 | MH-217 8 2,597.66 | 0.004 0.192 0.078 2.058 0.433 0.389 0.495
P-234 MH-218 | MH-262 48 2,638.41 | 0.000701 18.081 11.779 3.313 0.637 0.733 24.65
P-235 MH-225 | MH-223 15 2,779.77 | 0.001399 1.147 0.59 2.156 0.636 0.732 1.566
P-236 MH-206 | MH-201 30 2,709.76 | 0.003698 | 11.182 7.049 5.502 0.611 0.692 16.164
P-237 MH-215 | MH-206 30 2,598.85 | 0.008004| 11.182 7.049 7.379 0.482 0.47 23.78
P-238 MH-233 | MH-234 12 2,636.77 | 0.009 0.835 0.413 4.022 0.428 0.381 2.19
P-239 MH-234 | MH-230 15 1,218.84 | 0.004997 1.669 0.892 3.842 0.538 0.564 2.959
P-242 MH-216 | MH-267 8 2,616.75 | 0.004001 0.381 0.171 2.421 0.657 0.768 0.495
P-243 MH-217 | MH-267 8 2,688.34 | 0.003999 0.337 0.149 2.359 0.605 0.681 0.495
P-244 MH-210 | MH-268 8 2,610.79 | 0.003999 0.201 0.082 2.081 0.443 0.406 0.495
P-245 MH-268 | MH-216 8 2,719.38 | 0.004001 0.22 0.091 2.129 0.467 0.444 0.495
P-247 MH-269 | MH-221 18 1,346.08 | 0.001099 1.595 0.848 2.143 0.62 0.706 2.257
P-249 MH-270 | MH-269 15 2,635.86 | 0.0014 0.891 0.445 2.039 0.54 0.569 1.566
P-250 MH-265 | MH-208 48 2,663.00 | 0.000702| 19.579 12.828 3.369 0.673 0.794 24668
P-251 MH-207 | MH-265 48 2,621.30 { 0.000698 | 19.432 12.725 3.354 0.671 0.79 24.596
P-252 MH-223 | MH-271 24 2,563.47 | 0.002001 5.036 2.98 3.559 0.657 0.768 6.558
P-253 MH-271 | MH-201 33 2,614.10 | 0.000497 6.084 3.665 2.211 0.674 0.796 7.643
P-254 MH-222 | MH-272 8 2,594.65 | 0.010001 0.642 0.308 3.874 0.688 0.819 0.783
P-255 MH-272 | MH-205 10 2,669.47 | 0.011002 1.002 0.507 4.533 0.601 0.673 1.489
P-256 MH-224 | MH-273 18 2,641.52 | 0.009101 5.685 3.404 6.413 0.725 0.875 6.494
P-257 MH-273 | MH-214 18 2,659.56 | 0.010998 6.253 3.767 7.045 0.726 0.876 7.139
P-258 MH-214 | MH-274 21 2,636.18 | 0.009199 6.897 4.18 6.855 0.617 0.7 9.848
P-259 MH-274 | MH-231 21 1,291.63 | 0.009205 7.484 4.588 6.967 0.652 0.76 9.852
P-260 MH-275 | MH-215 18 2,641.98 | 0.001101 1.823 0.984 2.202 0.681 0.807 2.259
P-261 MH-205 | MH-275 15 2,572.17 | 0.0022 1.646 0.878 2.774 0.7 0.838 1.964
P-262 MH-230 | MH-276 18 2,659.49 | 0.001102 1.947 1.059 2.225 0.716 0.862 2.259
P-263 MH-276 | MH-231 21 2,605.13 | 0.000917 2.329 1.287 2.195 0.646 0.749 3.1
P-265 MH-262 | MH-207 48 2,660.02 { 0.000699 | 18.727 12.231 3.337 0.652 0.761 24.616
P-270 MH-267 { WW-1 12 275.904 | 0.001921 0.817 0.403 2.217 0.682 0.808 1.012
P-BYP1 | SUN-BYP| MH-224 18 1,309.30 | 0.008302 5.511 3.3 6.13 0.734 0.889 6.202
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East Buckeye Wastewater Master Plan Pipe Costs

ID Diam (in) | Length (ft) | Pipe Cost | Manhole Cost | Total Cost
1 36 762 179,914 5,790 $185,704
2 36 1,073 253,483 8,157 $261,641
3 12 701 36,201 5,326 $41,527
4 12 2,587 133,665 19,664 $153,329
5 36 1,628 384,542 12,375 $396,917
6 33 1,159 239,547 8,810 $248,358
7 12 2,264 116,957 17,206 $134,163
8 30 1,665 294,899 12,654 $307,553
9 30 1,290 228,550 9,807 $238,357
10 12 676 34,906 5,135 $40,041
11 12 2,615 135,081 19,873 $154,954
12 12 2,645 136,652 20,104 $156,755
13 12 2,508 129,573 19,082 $148,635
14 30 1,587 281,023 12,058 $293,081
15 27 1,343 218,122 10,210 $228,333
16 27 1,511 245,283 11,482 $256,765
17 27 1,341 217,728 10,192 $227,920
18 18 1,033 76,237 7,851 $84,088
19 15 2,587 148,939 19,664 $168,603
20 15 2,647 152,393 20,120 $172,513
21 12 2,639 136,322 20,055 $156,378
22 24 2,749 377,340 20,892 $398,232
23 21 1,541 170,543 11,708 $182,251
24 18 1,466 108,223 11,145 $119,368
25 15 1,371 78,930 10,421 $89,351
26 15 2,658 162,987 20,198 $173,185
27 15 1,569 90,336 11,927 $102,262
28 15 1,048 60,335 7,966 $68,301
29 12 2,648 136,777 20,122 $156,899
30 12 2,627 135,702 19,964 $155,665
31 12 2,652 136,984 20,152 $157,136
32 12 2,643 136,539 20,087 $156,626
P-101 15 2,663 153,273 20,236 $173,509
P-102 18 1,724 127,258 13,105 $140,363
P-105 24 5,359 735,583 40,726 $776,309
P-107 12 2,598 134,224 19,746 $153,971
P-108 18 1,388 102,449 10,550 $113,000
P-109 18 1,893 139,701 14,387 $154,088
P-110 24 281 38,536 2,134 $40,670
P-113 8 2,593 114,796 19,703 $134,499
P-116 8 2,646 117,154 20,108 $137,262
P-117 8 2,593 114,796 19,703 $134,499
P-118 10 2,708 131,887 20,579 $152,465
P-119 8 2,617 115,893 19,891 $135,785
P-120 12 2,642 136,497 20,081 $156,577
P-121 12 2,638 136,293 20,051 $156,343
P-123 10 2,617 127,470 19,889 $147,360
P-124 12 2,641 136,447 20,074 $156,521
P-125 15 2,630 151,396 19,988 $171,384




East Buckeye Wastewater Master Plan Pipe Costs

ID Diam (in) | Length (ft) | Pipe Cost | Manhole Cost | Total Cost
P-126 15 2,520 145,059 19,152 $164,211
P-127 8 2,711 120,085 20,607 $140,672
P-128 12 2,683 138,622 20,393 $159,015
P-139 33 2,549 526,728 19,373 $546,101
P-140 30 2,341 414,578 17,789 $432,367
P-214 24 2,493 342,191 18,946 $361,136
P-215 10 2,476 120,609 18,819 $139,428
P-216 21 2,788 308,591 21,186 $329,777
P-217 24 2,717 373,013 20,652 $393,666
P-220 42 2,820 749,273 21,434 $770,706
P-221 48 2,489 734,720 18,916 $753,635
P-223 18 1,306 96,375 9,925 $106,299
P-227 15 2,824 162,560 21,462 $184,022
P-229 12 2,513 129,834 19,101 $148,934
P-231 48 2,879 849,902 21,881 $871,783
P-232 30 1,369 242,529 10,407 $252,936
P-233 8 2,598 115,024 19,742 $134,766
P-234 48 2,638 778,858 20,052 $798,910
P-235 15 2,780 160,015 21,126 $181,141
P-236 30 2,710 479,953 20,594 $500,547
P-237 30 2,599 460,308 19,751 $655,059
P-238 12 2,637 136,216 20,039 $156,255
P-239 15 1,219 70,161 9,263 $79,424
P-242 8 2,617 115,870 19,887 $135,757
P-243 8 2,688 119,040 20,431 $139,471
P-244 8 2,611 115,606 19,842 $135,448
P-245 8 2,719 120,414 20,667 $141,081
P-247 18 1,346 99,341 10,230 $109,571
P-249 15 2,636 151,731 20,033 $171,763
P-250 48 2,663 786,117 20,239 $806,356
P-251 48 2,621 773,809 19,922 $793,731
P-252 24 2,563 351,882 19,482 $371,365
P-253 33 2,614 540,177 19,867 $560,044
P-254 8 2,595 114,891 19,719 $134,610
P-255 10 2,669 130,025 20,288 $150,313
P-256 18 2,642 194,944 20,076 $215,020
P-257 18 2,660 196,276 20,213 $216,488
P-258 21 2,636 291,825 20,035 $311,860
P-259 21 1,292 142,984 9,816 $152,800
P-260 18 2,642 194,978 20,079 $215,057
P-261 15 2,572 148,064 19,548 $167,613
P-262 18 2,659 196,270 20,212 $216,483
P-263 21 2,605 288,387 19,799 $308,186
P-265 48 2,660 785,238 20,216 $805,454
P-270 12 276 14,253 2,097 $16,350

P-BYP1 18 1,309 96,627 9,951 $181,577
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East Buckeye-North Sewsr Infrastructure Co;t Breakdown

General Information Pipe Information Manhole Information Sewer Easement Information .

Pipe ID Section # |Pipe Diameter |Pipe Langth (FT) |Pipa/MH Depth (AVE) [Pipe GostLF |Total Pipe Cost [Manholes/Section [Manhole Gost (EA) (1) [Total Manhole Cast Easementt{IWTP Area (8q.ft) | EasementGost JMob. + Conting. @ 20% J[Sub-Total Cast __ |Engineacing @ 12% Womt @ 5% JLegal @ 4% |Permite/Fess @ 2% atal Gost
1 36" 762.00 30,66 Ts 16000 121,920.00 2 3,800.00 7,600.00 67,023.02 92,290.70 44,362.14 266,172.84 31,940.14 13.300.64 | § _ 10,646.91 ] ¢ 5,323.48 327,392.59
2 36" 1,073.00 28.96 160.00 171,680.00 3 [ 3,800.00 | § 11,400.00 62,148.16 | ¢ 113,118.02 9,239.60 355,437.62 42,652.51 | ¢ 17.771.88 1§ 14.217.50 | § 7.108.75 o7,18827
3 12 701.00 20.94 3500 $  24,535.00 2 3,800.00 | ¢ 7,600,00 [ - 6,427.00 38,562.00 46274 1,02610 | $__ 1,542.48 | § 771.24 4743128
2 12 2,587.00 13.92 360018 90,545.00 7 3,800.00 26,600.00 [ 5 23,429.00 140,574.00 16,860.88 | § 7.028.70 5,622.96 | ¢ 2,811.48 172,908.02
5 36 1,628.00 26.67 160.00 260,460.00 5 3,800.00 19,000,00 6,837.52 119,575.27 79.611.05 478,868.32 57,463.9 23,942.32 | $_ 18,154.85 9,577.33 589,005.57
6 37 1,159.00 27.69 $ 14000 162,260.00 3 [ 3,600.00 11,400.00 64,185.42 68,363,32 £2,406,66 314,451,99 374N 15,722.60 | §_ 12,578.08 6,280.04 386,775.95
7 12 2.264.00 21.94 [ 35.00 78,240,00 ® 3,800.00 22,800,00 3 20,406,00 122,448.00 14,693.76 6,122.40 4,897,982 2.448.96 150,611.04
8 30" 1,865.00 27.88 120.00|$ _ 199,600.00 5 ~3,800.00 19,000.00 02,840.40 127,841.23 €9,328.25 415,969.48 | § 20,9163 20,798.47 | $_ 16,639.78 8,319.39 511,042.46
s 30 1,280.00 25.6 12000 |$ _ 154,800.00 a 3,800.00 15,200.00 66,048.00 90,948.10 52,189.62 3M3,137.72 37,576.50 15,656.89 | $_ 12,525.51 | 3 6,262.76 385,169.39
10 1z 676,00 21,13 35.00 23,660.00 2 [ 3,800.00 7,600.00 - 6,262.00 37,512.00 45014 1,875.60 | §__ 1,500.48 | 750.24 48,139.76

: 11 1 2,615.00 16.43 35.00 91,525.00 7 3,800.00 26,600.00 3 23,625.00 141,750.00 | § 17,010.00 7,087.50 5,670.00 2,835.00 174,352.50
12 17 2,645.00 15.36 35.00| 8 92,575.00 7 3,800.00 26,600.00 3 23,835,00 ~143,010.00 17,161.00 7,150.50 5,720.40 2,360.20 175,902.30
13 120 2,508.00 144 35.00 87,750.00 7 : 3,600.00 26,600.00 - 22,876.00 137,256.00 16,470.2 ~6,862.80 5,490.24 2,745.12 168,824.88
14 30 1,587.00 24.94 120.00 190,440.00 2 3,800.00 15,200.00 79,159.56 109,002.71 62,028.54 377,571.28 45,308.5 16,678.56 | $_ 15,102.85 7,551.43 464,412.85
5 27 1,343.00 2222 110.00 147,730.00 a 3,800.00 15,200.00 50,662.92] § 2,183.38 49,022.68 294,136.08 35,266.38 14,706.80 ] 8 11,765.44 | § 5,882.72 361,787.35
16 27 1,511.00 19.64 110.00 166,210,00 2 3,800.00 | ¢ 15,200.00 59,352.08 81,727.81 52,627.56 315,765.38 | ¢ 37,891.85 15,786.27 | § _ 12,630.62 8,315.31 388,391.41
17 2r 1,341.00 20.71 110.00 147,510.00 4 3,800,00 | ¢ 15,200.00 55,544.22 76,484.39 47,836.86 287,033.27 | § 31,4435 14,351.86 | $_ 11,481.33 5,740.87 353,050.92
18 18 1,033.00 204 50.00 51,650.00 3 3,800.00 11,400.00 - 12,610.00 75,660.00 907920 3,763.00 3,026.40 1,513.20 93,061.80
19 15 2,587.00 17.15 39.00 100,893.00 7 3,800.00 26,600.00 [ 5 25,498.60 152,991,680 18,358.98 7,649.58 6,119.66 | 4 3,059.83 186,179.67
20 15" 2.647.00 15.94 39.00| § _ 103,233.00 7 [ 3,800.00 26,600.00 [ - 25,956.60 |1 $ 155,799.60 18,685.95 7,789.98 6,231.85 3,115.99 191,633.51
2 12 2,639.00 15.88 35.00 92,365.00 7 3,800.00 ~26,600.00 3 23,793.00 §] § 142,758.00 17,1309 7.137.90 5,710.32 2,855.16 175,592.34
22 24 2,749.00 20.27 93.00 255,657.00 7 [ 3,800.00 26,600.,00 111,442.46 | § 153,459.02 87,143.20 522,059.23 62,743.11 26,142.96 | $_ 20,914.37 70,457.18 643,116.85
23 21 1,541.00 18.01 75.00 115,575.00 r 3,800.00 15,200.00 55,506.52 | $ 76,432.89 | 41,441.58 248,649.47 2983734 12,432.47 9,945.98 | S 4,972.99 305,838.85
24 18 1,466.00 6.6 500008 79,300.00 1 3,800.00 15,200.00 48,671.20 | § 67,020.24 31,104.05 186,624.29 22,394.01 9,331.24 7,464.97 | S 3,732.49 229,547.88
25 15 1,371.00 14.31 39.00 53,469.00 ! 3,800.00 | ¢ 15,200.00 13,733.80 82,402.80 9,888.34 4,120.14 3,296.11 1,648.06 101,355.44
% 15 2,658.00 13.05 [ 39.00 103,662.00 7 3,800.00 26,600.00 26,052.40 156,314.40 18,757.33 7,815.12 68,2525 3,126.29 192,266.71
27 15 1,569.00 13.35 39.00 61,191.00 4 3,800.00 | § 15,200.00 15.276.20 |1 ¢ 91,669.20 11,000.30 4,583.46 3,666.77 | & 1,633.38 || § 112,753.12
26 15" 1,048.00 13.74 39.00 40,872.00 3 3,800.00 11,400.00 10,454.40 62,726.40 7,527.47 3,136.32 2,509.06 1,254.53 77,453.47
29 12" 2,648.00 14.48 35.00 92,680.00 7 3,800.00 26,600.00 23,856.00 143,136.00 § $ 1717632 7,156.80 5,725.44 2,862.72 176,057.28
30 1z 2,627.00 15 35.00 91,945.00 7 S 3,800.00 26,600.00 [ 23,709.00 142,254.90 | § 17,070.48 7.112.70 5,690.16 2,845.08 174,972.42
31 1z 2,652.00 15.19 35.00 92,820.00 7 [ 3,800,00 | § 26,600.00 [ 23,864,00 143,304.00 | ¢ 17,196.48 7,165.20 5,732.16 2,866.08 176,263.92
32 12 2,643.00 15 35.00 92,505.00 7 [ 3,800.00 | § 26,600.00 23.821.00 142,526.00 | § 17.151.42 7.146.30 5,717.04 | § 2,858.52 175,798.98

Sub-Totals 59,233.00 $ 3,634,507.00 $ 611,800.00 928,443.73 | $ 1,278,467.09 | § 1,104,954.82 |} § 6,629,728.90 | § 79556747 $ 331,486.45 | $ 265,189.16 $ 132,594.58 {1 § 8,154,566.55

Other Improvements

(1) Add $3,400.00 per manhole if Savereisen coating is required.
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East Buckeye-North Sewer Infrastructure Cost Breakdown - Exception Area S lit, No Lift Station

Pipe/MH # 4 Cost

Service Area | Total DU's | Comm. Acerage | Gallons/Day: % of Total Pipe/MH#1% | Pipe/MH # 1 Cost PipeH #2 % | Pipe/H # 2 Cost PipeMH#3% | Pipe/MH # 3 Cost Pipe/MH #4 %

1 52 0.000 16,704 0.0027 0.00271 § 883.90 0.0027} $ 1,180.33
2 608 0.000 194,419 0.0314 0.0314] $ 10,287.76 0.0314] $ 13,737.90
3 0 0.000 15,614 0.0025 0.0025] $ 826.24 0.0025] $ 1,103.33
4 25 0.000, 5,340 0.0009 0.0009] $ 282.54 0.0009] $ 377.30

5A 636 0.000 203,520 0.0329 0.0329] $ 10,769.33 0.0329] $ 14,380.97 0.5000] $ 23,715.63 0.5000| $ 86.453.01

5B 636 0.000 203,520 0.0329 0.0329§ $ 10,769.33 0.0329] § 14,380.97 0.5000} $ 23,71563 0.5000] $ 86,453.01
B6A 614 0.000 196,531 0.0318, 0.0318] $ 10,399.51 0.0318] $ 13,887.13
68 614 0.000 196,531 0.0318 0.0318] $ 10,389.51 0.0318] $ 13,887.13
7 614 0.000 196,531 0.03183 0.0318] $ 10,399.51 0.0318| $ 13,887.13
8 614 0.000 196,531 0.0318, 0.0318] $ 10,399.51 0.0318] $ 13,887.13
9A 297 0.000 112,591 0.0182 0.0182] $ 5,957.81 0.0182] $ 7,955.84
9B 0 84.711 127,067 0.0205 0.0205] $ 6,723.77 0.0205] $ 8,978.67
10A 150 0.000 86,514 0.0140 0.0140f $ 4,577.91 0.0140] $ 6,113.18
108 0 45.097 67,646 0.0109 0.0109] $ 3,679.48 0.0109} $ 4,779.91
10C 602 0.000 192,694 0.0311 0.0311] $ 10,196.45 0.0311] $ 13,615.98
10D 575 0.000 183,964 0.0297 0.0297} $ 9,734.52 0.0297| $ 12,999.13
11 602 7.000 203,140 0.0328 0.0328] $ 10,749.22 0.0328] $ 14,354.12
12 364 4.000 122,480 0.0198 0.0198{ § 6,481.07 0.0198] $ 8,654.59
13A 629 7.000 211,780 0.0342 0.03421 $ 11,206.41° 0.0342] $ 14,964.63
138 630 7.000 212,100 0.0343 0.0343] $ 11,223.34 0.0343} $ 14,987.24
14A 95 18.934 58,801 0.0095 0.0095] ¢ 3,111.47 0.0095} "~ 4,154.95
148 248 0.000 79,360 0.0128] 0.0128% 3 4,199.36 0.0128] $ 5,607.67
16A 0 129.190 193,785 0.0313 0.0313] § 10,254 20 0.0313] $ 13,693.08
158 0 135.910 203,865 0.0329 0.0329] $ 10,787.58 0.0329] § 14,405.35
16A 63 68.327 104,507 0.0169 0.0169§ $ 5,530.00 0.0169] $ 7,384.56
16B 381 0.000 110,260 0.0178| 0.0178] $ 5,834.47 0.0178] $ 7,791.14
16C 126 0.000 4,032 0.0007| 0.0007] $ 213.356 0.0007{ $ 284.91
16D 497 0.000 152,993 0.0247 0.0247{ $ 8,09569 0.0247] § 10,810.69
17 0 25.070 37,605 0.0061 0.0061| $ 1,989.88 0.0061} $ 2,657.22
18 630 0.000 201,600 0.0326 0.0326] $ 10,667.73 0.0326] $ 14,245.30
19 470 0.000 150,400 0.0243 0.0243] $ 7,958.47 0.0243] $ 10,627.45
20A 633 0.000 202,560 0.0327| 0.0327] $ 10,718.53 0.0327] $ 14,313.14
208 101 16.220 27,562 - 0.0045 0.00451 $ 1,458 .45 0.0045] $ 1,947.56
21A 70 71.053 108,820 0.0176 0.0176] § 5,758.22 0.0176] $ 7,689.32
218 66 48.929 75,506 0.0122 0.0122] $ 3,905.40 0.0122] $ 5,335.31
22A 650 16.000 232,000 0.0375 0.0375] $ 12,276.36 0.0375] $ 16,393.40
228 80 62.794 81,751 0.0132 0.0132] $ 4,325.88 0.0132] $ 5,776.63
23A 580 8.998 202,443 0.0327 0.0327} $ 10,712.33 0.0327] $ 14,304.86
238 128 0.000 4,096 0.0007| 0.0007] $ 216.74 0.0007] $ 289.43
EX# 1 614,987 0.0994 0.0994]| § 32,542.24 0.0994] $ 43,455.73
EX#2 39_4&54 0.0638] 0.0638 LT 20,899.12 0.0638] $ 27,907.93

TOTALS | 13090] 746.233] _ 6,187,103.28 | 100%" 100%] § 27,3925 | 100%] $ 437,188.27 100%] § "47,431.26 | 100%] $ 172,906.02

6,187,103 6,187,103 407,040 407,040



PipeMH#5% | Pipe/MH#5 Cost | PipeMH#6% | PipeMH#6 Cost | PipeMH#7 % | Pipe/lMH#7 Cost | PipeMH#8% | PipeMH#8 Cosl | PipeMH#9% | Pipe/MH#9 Cost | Pipe/MH # 10 % | PipeMH # 10 Cost

0.033734] $ 19,869.31
0.002709] $ 1,595.77 0.002804] $ 1,084.46 0.0030[ 1,543.50
0.000926] $ 545.69 0.000959( $ 370.84 0.0010[ $ 527.82 0.0010 | § 398.54
0.034100] $ 20,085.16 0.035291] § 13,649.55 0.5000] § 75,305.52
0.034100] $ 20,085.16 0.035291[ § 13,649.55 0.5000] $ 75,305.52
0.034100] $ 20,085.16 0.035291] § 13,649.55 0.0380] $ 19,427.37 0.0381 [ $ 14,668 99 0.1689] § 7,793.39
0.034100] $ 20,085.16 0.035291] § 13,649.55 0.0380] $ 19,427.37 0.0381 ] $ 14,668.99 0.1689 $ 7,793.39
0.019536] § 11,506.65 0.020218] § 7,819.73 0.0218[ § 11,129.81 0.0218 | $ 8,403.76 0.0968 $ 4,464.78
0.022047| $ 12,985.98 0.022817 $ 8,825.07 0.0245| § 12,560.69 0.0246| $ 9,484.18 0.1092]'$ 5,038.79
0.015011] $ 8,841.58 0.015535] $ 6,008.59 0.0167] 8,652.02 0.0168 [ $ 6,457.35 0.0744] $ 3,430.69
0.011737| $ 6.913.26 0.012147] § 4,698.14 0.0131] % 6.686.85 ~0.0131[ § 5,049.03 0.0581 § 2.682.46
0.033434] $ 19,692.98 0.034602( § 13,383.03 0.0372] § 19,048.04 0.0373 | % 14,382.56 0.1656] § 7,641.22
0.031920] § 18,800.83 0.033034 § 12,776.14 0.0355] § 18,185.10 0.0357 | § 13,730.99 0.1581] § 7,295.05
0.035247| $ 20,760.56 0.036477] 14,108.55 0.0392] $ 20,080.66 0.0394 [ $ 15,162.26
0.021251] $ 12,517.25 0.021993 § 8,506.52 0.0237] 12,107.31 00237 § 9,141.84
0.036746] $ 21,643.56 0.038029] $ 14,708.62 0.0409] $ 20,934.74 0.04101 $ 15,807.15
0.036801] $ 21,676.26 0.038086] $ 14,730.84 0.0410 § 20,966.37 0.0411]§ 15,831.03
0.010203] $ £,009.36 0.070559 4,083.87 0.0114] § 5,812.66 00114 | $ 4,388.88
0.013770] $ 8,110.46 0.014250] $ 5,511.74 0.0153] § 7,844.84 00154 | $ 5,923.39
0.033624] $ 19,804.50 0.034797] $ 13,458.82 0.0374] $ 19,155.91 0.0376 | $ 14,464.01
0.035373| $ 20,834.66 0.036608| $ 14,158.90 0.0394] $ 20,152.33 0.0395 | § 15,216.38
0.018133] $ 10,680.39 0.018766/ § 7,258.22 0.0202] $ 10,330.61 0.0203 | § 7,800.31
0.019131] $ 11,268.43 0.019799| $ 7,657.85 0.0213 $ 10,899.40 00214 $ 8,229.79
0.000700] $ 412.06 0.000724 $ 280.03 0.0008] 398.57 0.0008 | $ 300.95
0.026546] $ 15,635.65 0.027473| $ 10,625.74 0.0296] $ 15,123.59 0.0296 | $ 11,419.34
0.006525] $ 3,843.17 0.006753] $ 2,611.76 0.0073 $ 3,717.30 0.0073 | $ 2,806.82
0.034980] $ 20,603.18 0.036201] § 14,001.59 0.0389[ § 19,928.43 0.0391 [ § 15,047.32
0.026096] $ 15,370.63 0.027007] $ 10,445.63 0.0291] $ 14,867.24 0.0291 | § 11,025.78
0.035146] $ 20,701.29 0.036373] $ 14,068.27 0.0391] $ 20,023.33 0.0393[ $ 15,118.97
0.004782| $ 2,816.79 0.004949( § 1,914.25 0.0053[ 2,724.54 0.0053] § 2,065721
0.018881] $ 11,121.17 0.019540] § 7,557.77 0.0210] § 10,756.95 0.0211] % 8,122.23
0.013101] § 7,716.53 0.013558] § 5,244.03 0.0146] $ 7.463.82 0.0146 [ $ 5,635.69
0.040254] $ 23,710.01 0.041660] $ 16,112.94 0.0448 $ 22,933.51 0.0450 | $ 17,316.36
0.014185] $ 8,354.81 0.014680] $ 5,677.80 0.0158[ $ 8,081.20 0.0158 | § 6,101.85
0.035126] $ 20,689.32 0.036352| § 14,060.14 0.0391] § 20,011.75 0.0392 | § 15,110.24
0.000711] $ 418.60 0.000736] $ 284.48 0.0008[ $ 404.90 0.0008 | § 305.72
0.106706] $ 62,850.63 0.110432[ § 42,712.29 0.1188[ 60,792.29 01192 | 45,902.31

L 0.068528] $ 40,363.63 0070921 § 27,430.48 0.0763] $ 39,041.73 0.0765 | $ 29,479.16_

r 100%] $ 589,005.57 | 100%] $ 386,775.95 ] 100%] $ 150,611.04 | 100%) $ 511,642.46 | 100%] $ 385,159.39 | 100%] $ 46,139.76 |
5,763,359 5,568,940 393,062 5,175,878 5,160,263 1,163,538



Pipe/MH # 11 % | PipeH# 11 Cost | Pipe/MH # 12 % | Pipe/MH # 12 Cost | PipeMH # 13 % | Pipe/MH # 13 Cost | Pipe/MH # 14 % | Pipe/MH # 14 Cost | Pipe/MH # 15 % | Pipe/MH # 15 Cost | Pipe/MH # 16 % | PipeMH # 16 Cost
0.2032 § 35,434.83
0.1164] $ 20,300.37 0.1461| $ 25,705.02
0.1314] $ 22,910.25 0.1649 $ 29,000.75
0.0895] $ 15,598.57 0.1123[ § 19,761.44 0.1630] $ 27,515.50
0.0700] § 12,196.57 0.0878] $ 15,443.71 0.1274] $ 21,514.45
0.1993[ $ 34,742.93 0.2501| § 43,992.69 0.3630] $ 61,285.68
0.1902] $ 33,168.98 0.2388] § 41,999.69 0.3466] $ 58,509.26
0.0509] § 23,636.10
0.0307] § 14,251.00 0.0323] § 11,697.16 | § 0.0323 [ § 12,557.31
0.0531] $ 24,641.39 0.0559( § 20,22554 | $ 0.0559 | § 21,712.83
0.0531| § 24,678.62 0.0560( 5 20,256.10 | $ 0.0560 | $ 21,745.64
0.0147] § 6.841.72 0.0755] 561565 % 00755 | 3 6,028.60
0.0199] § 9,233.83 0.0209] $ 7,579.09 | § 00209 | § 8,136.41
0.0486| $ 22,547 61 0.0512[ $ 18,506.97 | § 00512 | § 19,867.88
0.0511] $ 23,720.45 0.0538] $ 19,469.64 | § 0.0538 | $ 20,901.34
0.0262] $ 12,159.72 0.0276] 9,980.64 [ $ 0.0276 | $ 10,714.57
0.0276] $ 12,829.22 0.0291] § 10,530.16 | $ 0.0291 | $ 11,304.50
0.0010] $ 469.14 0.0011] § 385.07 | $ 0.0011 | $ 413.38
0.0383] $ 17,801.34 0.0404] 14,61126 1 § 0.0404 | 3 15,685.70
0.0094| $ 4,375.48 0.0099] § 350138 | 0.0099 [ § 3,855.47
0.0505 $ 23,456.91 0.0532] § 19,253.32 | $ 0.0532 | § 20,669.12
0.0377] $ 17,499.60 0.0397] § 14,363.59 | 0.0397 | $ 15,419.82
0.0507} $ 23,568.61 0.0535] $ 19,34501] $ 0.0535 | § 20,767.54
0.0069] § 3,206.94 0.0073] § 2,63224 | § 0.0073 | $ 2,825.80
0.0273] § 12,661.55 0.0287] $ 10,392.54 | $ 0.0287 | § 11,156.76
0.0189] § 8,785.35 0.0199[ § 7,21097 | $ 0.0199 | § 7,741.23
0.0581] § 26,994.06 0.0612] § 22,156.60 | $ 0.0612 | $ 23,765.89
0.0205] $ 9,512.03 0.0216] § 7,807.43 | $ 0.0216 | $ 8,361.55
0.0507] $ 23,554.99 0.0534[ 3 19,333.82 | § 0.0534 | § 20,755.54
0.0010 $ 476,58 0.0011] § 391.18 | § 0.0011 | $ 419.94
0.1541 $ 71,556.03 0.1623[ 58,732.86 | 0.1623 | $ 63,051.78
— 0.0990[§ 4595437 0.1043] § 37,7119.13 | § 01043 | §__ 4049281
100%] $ 174,352.50 | 100%] § 175,902.30 | 100%)] § 168,624.86 | 100%] $  464,412.65 | 100%] $ 361,787.35 ] 100%] S 388,391.41 ]
967,006 770,475 530,817 3,991,386 3,788,246 3,788,246




Pipe/MH # 17 % | Pipe/MH # 17 Cost_| Pipe/MH # 18 % | Pipe/MH # 18 Cost | PipeMH # 19 % | Pipe/MH # 19 Cost_| Pipe/MH # 20 % | Pipe/MH # 20 Cost | Pipe/MH# 21 % | Pipe/MH # 21 Cost_| Pipe/MH # 22 % | Pipe/MH # 22 Cost

0.0578] § 20,396.59 0.1227 | § 11,415.78
0.0579] $ 20,427.41 0.1229 | § 11,433.03
0.0160] 3 5 663.14 0.03471 | 3,769.61 0.0451 | § 8,494.95
0.0216] $ 7,643.18 0.0460 | $ 4,277.82 0.0609 | $ 11,465.09 ;
0.0529] $ 18,663.49 0.1122| $ 10,445.78 0.1488 | $ 27,996.00 0.1664 | $ 31,892.66
0.0556| $ 19,634.29 0.1181 ] $ 10,989.13 0.1565 | $ 29,452.25 0.1751 | $ 33,551.61
0.0285] $ 10,065.05 0.0605 | $ 5,633.31 0.0802 } $ 15,097.99 0.0898 | § 17,199.43 0.1363 | § 23,933.00
0.0301] § 10,619.22 0.0639 | $ 5,943.48 0.0846 | $ 15,929.27 00947 | $ 18,146.40 0.1438 | § 25,250.72
0.0011] § 388.32 0.0023 | $ 217.34 0.0031]$ 582.50 0.0035 | $ 663.58 0.0053 | $ 923.37
0.0417} $ 14,734.82 0.0886 | $ 8,246.94 0.1175 | $ 22,102.85 01314 § 25,179.26 0.1995 [ § 35,036.95
0.0103] $ 3,621.75
0.0550] $ 19,416.15 0.1060| $ 68,176.22
0.0410[ § 14,485.06 0.0791] $ 50,861.63
0.0553| $ 19,508.61 0.1065] $ 68,500.87
0.0075] $ 2,654.50 0.0145} $ 9,320.80
0.0207] $ 10,480.44 0.0572) $ 36,800.11
0.0206] $ 7,271.95 0.0397) $ 25,534.13
0.0633] $ 22,343.98 0.1220] $ 78,456.77
0.0223[ § 7,873.46 0.0430} $ 27,646.20
0.0552| § 19,497.33 0.1065| $ 68,461.28
0.0011] $ 394.49 0.0022] $ 1,385.17
0.1678] § 59,029.56 0.3234] $ 207,973.67
0.1077) § 38,038.13 02288 21,289.58 0.3032 | § 57,068.77 03392 | $ 65,000.57 05151 | $ 90,448.30 —

— 100%] § 353,050.92 | 100%] $ 93,061.80 | 100%) $ 166,179.67 | 100%] $ 191,633.51 | 100%] § 175,592.34 | “100%] § 643,116.85 |

3,665,766 1,726,437 1,302,557 1,164,396 766,746 1,901,724




Pipe/MH # 23 % | Pipe/MH # 23 Cost | Pipe/MH #24 % | Pipe/MH # 24 Cost | Pipe/MH # 25 % | Pipe/MH # 25 Cost | Pipe/MH # 26 % | Pipe/MH # 26 Cost | Pipe/MA # 27 % | Pipe/MH # 27 Cost | Pipe/MH # 28 % | PipeMH # 28 Cost

0.0885] $ 27,055.77 _

0.1191] $ 36,438.94 0.1307 | $ 30,003.55 0.1307 $ 13,047.88

0.0162] $ 2,958.19 0.0178 | § 2,082.53 0.0178] $ 1,802.62

0.0640] § 19,575.77 0.0702 | $ 16,118.54 0.0702] $ 717,04 0.0825 | § 15,855.06

0.0444] $ 13,582.84 0.0487 | $ 11,184.01 0.0487] $ 4,038.23 0.0572 | $ 11,001.19

0.1365] $ 41,734.97 0.1497 | § 34,364.25 0.1497] $ 15,173.32 0.1758 | § 33,802.53 02044 | $ 23,041.71 02044 | $ 15,766.73

0.0481] § 14,706.36 0.0528 | § 12,100.10 0.0528] $ 5,346.70 0.0620 | 11,911.16 0.0720 | $ 8,119.32 00720 | $ 5,555.80

0.1191] $ 36,417.88 0.1306 | $ 29,986.21 0.1306} $ 13,240.22 0.1534 ] § 29,496.04 0.1783] § 20,106.17 01783 $ 13,758.03

0.0024] $ 736.84 0.0026] § 606.71 0.0026] $ 267.89 0.0031 | $ 596.79 0.0036 | 406.81 0.0036 | $ 278.36

0.3617] 110,631.30 0.3968 | $ 91,002.97 0.3968] $ 40,221.54 0.4660 | $ 89,603.94 05417 8 61,079.11 05417 | $ 41,794.54
— — _— —

100%] § 305,638.85 | 700%] § 229,547.88 | 100%] § 101,355.44 | 100%] § 192,266.71 ] 100%] $ 112,753.12 100%] § 77153.47

1,700,124 1,549,724 1,549,724 1,319,602 1,135,277 1,135,277



Pipe/H # 29 % { Pipe/MH # 29 Cost Pipe/MH # 30 % Pipe/MH # 30 Cost Pipe/MH # 31 % Pipe/MH # 31 Cost Pipe/MH # 32 % | Pipe/MH # 32 Cost

0.1675 29,527.07
0.2324 40,970.64
0.2464| § 43,384.57
0.0050{ § 877.79
0.7486} $ 131,794.91 1.0000} $ 174,972.42
0.6000{ $ 106,766.21 1.0000} $
100%]| $ 176,057.28 | 100%]| § 174,972.42 | 100%] $ 176,263.92 | 100§|-$
821,526 614,987 658,208 394,954




PipelMHIEsmtIEn_nglMal. Total Cost / Service Area Total WWTP Cost Easement Refund [{Total Pipe/MH/WWTP Cost
$ 206422 1S 133,632.00 | § 119,57527 [ § 16,120.96
$ 43,804.97 11 $ 1,555,353.60 | $ 88,383.32 11 $ 1,510,865.24
$ 6,153.30JF $ 124915.20 [ $ 218,789.33 I $ (87,720.83)]
$ 2,502.72[1' $ 42,716.00 [ $ 109,002.71 [I § (63,783.99)}
$ 13531894 1 $ 1,628,160.00 $ 1,763,478.94
$ 135,318.94 |1 § 1,628,160.00 $ 1,763,478.94
$ 133,326.88 [1 § 1,572,249.60 $ 1,705,576.48 |
$ 133,326.88 |1 $ 1,572,249.60 $ 1,705,576.48
$ 99,911.11]] § 1,572,249.60 $ 1,672,160.71
$ 13534594 |1 $ 1,572,249.60 $ 1,707,595.54
$ 103,243.76 || $ 900,730.88 $ 1,003,974.64
$ 116,517.15 ]| § 1,016,532.00 $ 1,133,049.15
$ 106,846.83 [ $ 692,111.36 $ 798,958.19
$ 83,543.86 ] $ 541,164.00 $ 624,707.86
$ 237,981.56 [ $ 1,541,550.08 $ 1,779,531.64
$ 227,200.29 |} § 1,471,713.28 $ 1,698,913.57
$ 118,851.48 [} § 1,625,120.00 | $ 82,183.38 I $ 1,661,788.09
$ 95,914.06 [] $ 979,840.00 | $ 158,212.21 I § 917,541.85
$ 197,657.23 [ $ 1,694,240.00 $ 1,891,897.23
$ 197,955.89 |1 § 1,696,800.00 $ 1,894,755.89
63,374.74 J| § 470,408.00 533,782.74

3 85,532.89 || $ 634,880.00 3 720,412.89 Project Acres| DU | Comm JDUJAC]| Flow/ Day Total Cost” _ |Cost/ Ga
$ 240,750.91 |1 $ 1,550,280.00 $ 1,791,030.91 |Blue Horizons 558.19] 2225] 25.00f 3.9861] 749,500.00| $ 6,365983.07|$% 8.49
$ 253,273.91 41 § 1,630,920.00 $ 1,884,193.91 {Vista De Montana | 276.33] 1100 0.00] 3.9807] 352,000.00}% 3,105173.96|% 8.82
$ 153,767.80 || $ 836,052.00 $ 989,819.80 {Jackrabbit Trails 78.66] 343 0.00] 4.3605{ 138,161.00] % 1,25419563 1% 9.08
$ 191,761.10 |1 $ $82,083.84 $ 1,073,844.94 JParkman Ranch | 153.43] 633 0.00] 4.1257| 202,560.00 | $ 194680454 |$ 9.61
$ 593257 § $ 32,256.00 $ 38,188.57 jPaloma Vista 159.78) 650] 16.00] 4.0681] 232,000.00] $ 2,302,36340|% 9.92
$ 266,080.46 |} $ 1,223,946.24 $ 1,490,026.70 JArroyo Seco 290] 950 0.00] 3.2759] 394,954.00] % 4,022320911% 10.18
$ 33,070.21 ] $ 300,840.00 | $ 130,440.17 [I $ 203,470.05 [Totals 1516.4| 5901] 41.00] 3.8915| 1,674,221.00 | $ 14,974,520.59
$ 245,465.28 || $ 1,612,800.00 | $ 23,018.85 [[ § 1,835,246.43
$ 210,180.66 )1 § 1,203,200.00 { $ 14345313 1 § 1,269,927.53 [Total Cost" includes all costs for all development within that 1/4 section or that Service Area. Actual costs may vary.
$ 326,324.54 || $ 1,620,480.00 $ 1,946,804.54
$ 44402431 8 220,496.00 $ 264,898.43
$ 191,163.48 [| $ 870,556.00 $ 1,061,719.48
$ 132,640.69 || $ 604,044.00 $ 736,684.69
$ 446,363.40 | $ 1,856,000.00 $ 2,302,363.40
$ 157,287.30 |1 $ 654,008.00 s 811,295.30
$ 432,880.73 [} § 1,619,543.36 $ 2,052,424.09
$ 8758.42 1's 32,768.00 $ 41,526.42
$ 1,489,990.12 [ § — 4,919,896.00 $ 6,409,886.12
$ _ _ 862,688.91 | $ 3,159,632.00 $ 4,022,320.91

o 8,154,566.55 ||'§  49,496,626.24 | 1,073,05837 ]| 56,575,334.42
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East Buckeye-North Roosevelt Irrigation District (SeWer Alignment) Property Owners Information

Property # APN Curent Owner Current Owner’'s Address Project ? | Size Sq. Ft. | Size Ac. | Linear ' of Sewer | Ave. Sewer Depth (Ft) | Easement Area Needed (Sq. Ft.) { Cost/Acre | Total Cost

1 504-21-008-K_|Buckeye Land LLC 8501 E. Princess Dr., Suite 200, Scottsdale, AZ 95260 Sundance 673,612.00 15.4640 229 30.86 14,109 $60,000 | $ 19,434.15

2 504-21-008-L |Buckeye Land LLC 8501 E. Princess Dr., Suite 200, Scottsdale, AZ 95260 Sundance 672,044.00 15.4280 533 30.86 32,921 $60,000 | § 45,346.35

3 504-21-008-M_|Buckeye Land LLC " |8501 E. Princess Dr., Suite 200, Scottsdale, AZ 95260 Sundance 453,765.00 10.4170 354 |. 28.96 20,509 $60,000 | § 28,249.16

4 504-21-008-N_|Buckeye Land LLC 8501 E. Princess Dr., Suite 200, Scottsdale, AZ 95260 Sundance 621,557.57 14.2690 719 28.96 41,639 $60,000 57,354.36

5 504-21-005 _ [Van Leeuwen Properties Limited Partnership |Route 1, 1802 S. Alrport Road, Buckeye, AZ 85236 405,108.00 9.3000 814 26.67 43,419 $60,000 | § 50,805.45

6 504-21-006 Van Leeuwen Properties Limited Partnership [Route 1, 1802 S. Airport Road, Buckeye, AZ 85236 163,350.00 3.7500 814 26.67 43,419 $60,000 | § 59,805.45

7 504-21-003-J__|Van Leeuwen Properties Limited Partnership |Route 1, 1802 S. Aiport Road, Buckeye, AZ 85236 3,195,910.00 73.3680 1,169 27.69 64,185 $60,000 | § 88,409.67

8 502-46-009-B_|S & J Investments LLC 7436 E. Stetson Dr., Suite 190, Scottsdale, AZ 85251 2,125,516.00 48.7951 1,665 27.88 92,840 $60,000 | 3 127,879.34

) 502-46-008-Y _[Layne P. Davis 20626 W. Yuma Rd., Buckeye, AZ 85326 56,142.18 1.2888 194 25.60 9,907 $60,000 | ¢ 13,646.28

10 502-46-008-N_|Prestige Developments Inc. 8600 W. Clearwater, Kennewick, WA 99336 39,390.29 0.9043 194 25.60 9,907 $60,000 | § 13,646.28

11 502-46-109 __ |Sigfredo & Agueda Rodriguez 18912A W. Indian School Rd., Litchfield Park, AZ 85340 73,301.00 1.6828 194 25.60 9,907 $60,000 | § 13,646.28

12 502-46-008-T |George E. Busse & Edwin Smith 1428 S. 205th Avenue, Buckeye, AZ 85326 63,123.96 1.4491 194 25.60 9,907 $60,000 | $ 13,646.28

13 502-46-008-Z |Jesse E. Johnson & Kimberly S. Hinton 1417 S. 205th Avenue, Buckeye, AZ 85326 63,402.00 1.4555 258 25.60 13,210 $60,000 [ § 18,195.04

14 502-46-008-H_|Rigoberto Navamo 416 N, Citrus Rd., Unit 51, Buckeye, AZ 85326 53,662.47 1.2319 258 25.60 13,210 $60,000 | § 18,195.04

15 502-46-003__ |George A. & Patricia Rovey 19300 W. Yuma Rd., Buckeye, AZ 85326 564,973.00 12.9700 1,587 24.94 79,160 $60,000 | §  109,035.21

16 502-35-007 ___|AMILLC 4041 E. Thomas Rd., Suite 200, Phoenix, AZ 85018 Blue Horizons 6,577,56000 | 151.0000 1,343 22.22 50,663 "$60,000 | § 82,207.88

17 502-35-010 __ |AMILLC 4041 E. Thomas Rd., Suite 200, Phoenix, AZ 85018 Blue Horizons 3,982,691.00 91.4300 2,852 20.18 115,107 $60,000 158,549.20

18 502-36-019 | Dietrich Family Limited Partnership 1401 N. 24th Street, Suite 4, Phoenix, AZ 85008 1,002,040.00 | 25.0700 2,749 20.27 111,444 $60,000 | § 153,504.77

19 502-36-017-J |First American Title Insurance Company 4801 E. Washington St., Suite 110, Phoenix, AZ 85034 | Vista De Montana 850,291.00 19.5200 509 18.01 18,317 $60,000 | $ 25,230.37

20 502-36-018-K |First American Title Insurance Company 4801 E. Washington St., Suite 110, Phoenix, AZ 85034 | Vista De Montana 828,076.00 19.0100 1,032 18.01 37,190 $60,000 | § 51,225.30

21 502-36-018-L_ |First American Tille Insurance Company 4801 E. Washington St,, Suite 110, Phoenix, AZ 85034 | Vista De Montana 918,245.00 21.0800 1,466 16.60 48,671 $60,000 | § 67,040.29

Sub Total
SWWTP Expansion
Property # APN Curent Owner ) Current Owner's Address Project ? | Size Sq. Ft. | Size Ac. Expansion Area Needed (Sq. Ft.) | Cost/Acre | Total Cost

1 -_|504-21-008-K_|Buckeye Land LLC 8501 E. Princess Dr., Suite 200, Scottsdale, AZ 95260 Sundance 673,612.00 15.4640 ' 20,000 $60,000 | $ 27,548.21

2 504-21-008-L_ [Buckeye Land LLC 8501 E. Princess Dr., Suite 200, Scottsdale, AZ 95260 Sundance 672,044,00 15.4280 20,000 $60,000 | $ 27,548.21

Sub Total I ] I ‘ - — 40,000 | $ 55,096.42
[GRAND TOTAL | T | T ] 928,662 | 1% 1,279,148.51 |




EAST BUCKEYE SEWER MASTER PLAN

v N o .

<
RIGHEERER *{«“EF“\S A

3

AN,
248¢

1/




Town of Buckeye

East Buckeye Wastewater Master Plan
May 2004

Appendix

Appendix F Sundance Effluent Line

Date: May 26, 2004
H:APDATA\4510181\Admin\reports\MasterPian\Fina\EBWWMP-Final-5-26-04.doc



Sundance Effluent Line
Worksheet for Pressure Pipe

Project Description

Worksheet Sundance Effluent Line
Flow Element Pressure Pipe
Method Hazen-Williams Formula
Soive For Discharge
Input Data

Pressure at 1 0.00 psi

Pressure at 2 0.00 psi

Elevation at 1 1,007.33 ft

Elevation at 2 892.00 ft

Length 13,926.00 ft

C Coefficient 130.0

Diameter 20 in

Results

Discharge 10.46 mgd
Headloss 115.33 ft
Energy Grade at 1 1,008.18 ft
Energy Grade at 2 892.85 ft
Hydraulic Grade at 1 1,007.33 ft
Hydraulic Grade at 2 892.00 ft

Flow Area 22 f#
Wetted Perimeter 5.24 ft
Velocity 7.41 ft/s
Velocity Head 0.85 ft
Friction Slope 0.008282 fi/ft

Project Engineer: Computer Services
h:\...\calcs\sewenisundance effluent line.fm2 RBF Consuliting FlowMaster v6.1 [6140]

04/28/04 05:20:38 PM © Haestad Methods, Inc. 37 Brookside Road Waterbury, CT 06708 USA (203) 755-1666 Page 1 of 1



Sundance Effluent Line Buildout
Worksheet for Pressure Pipe

Project Description

Worksheet Sundance Effluent Line at Buildout
Flow Element Pressure Pipe
Method Hazen-Williams Formula
Solve For Discharge
Input Data

Pressure at 1 7.00 psi

Pressure at 2 0.00 psi

Elevation at 1 1,007.33 ft

Elevation at 2 892.00 ft

Length 13,926.00 ft

C Coefficient 130.0

Diameter 20 in

Results

Discharge 11.22 mgd
Headloss 131.48 ft
Energy Grade at 1 1,024.46 ft
Energy Grade at 2 892.98 ft
Hydraulic Grade at 1 1,023.48 ft
Hydraulic Grade at 2 892.00 ft

Flow Area 2.2 ft?
Wetted Perimeter 524 ft
Velocity 7.96 ft/s
Velocity Head 0.98 ft
Friction Slope 0.009441 ft/ft

h:\...\calcs\sewer\sundance effluent line.fm2

04/28/04 05:39:55 PM © Haestad Methods, Inc.

RBF Consulting

37 Brookside Road Waterbury, CT 06708 USA

Project Engineer: Computer Services

(203) 755-1666

FlowMaster v6.1 [6140]

Page 1 of 1
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PUBLIC HEARING ON THE
AG 208 WA'EEl]l_

GEMEN
PISN AMEND NT FOR THE
EXPAt‘{JsmN OFsTHEKOWN

BUCKEYE SUNDANCE
WAST! A;ERTREATMENT
Tuesdoa December 13, 2005
MAG Ofﬁce Sulte 200 - Cholta

Room 302 North 1st Avenue
Phoeni Anzonaasoo

The Maticopa Assouatlon of -

Governments AG) will con-
duct a I\j)ublm earmg on the
Draft mend-
ment for the %(pansmn of
Tow Buckeye
Sundance Wastewater Treat
ment -Plant. The purpose of
the hearing is to rec?‘we
! fic comments on the
amendment.
The Sundance- Wastewater
Freatment Plant is ldenhﬁed
n the current MAG 2
or a capacﬁl of 3 6 m| Ilon
llons_ pef gd). The
wou o i mcrease ul-
tmate capacnty to 8.9 mgd.
{ water from the ex-
panded faC|I|ty would be-dis-
posed of th rough reuse, ‘re-
. char e an rizona Pollu-
mnt Discharge . Elimination
System Permlt dlscharge fo
hetBuckeye lrngatlon Dis-
Tic
following consideration of
comments recelved lt is an-
tlcmated that the MAG Wa.
ter Quality Advisory Commlt
tee-will make a recommenda-
tion to the MAG Nwanage
ment Committee. On January
11, , the MAG -

:I

-
B
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o
b=
Z
:.n

e nage
ment COn‘l( mittee is anticipat-

e a recommenda-
tlon to .the MAG Regional
Council, 1t is anticipated tha
~the M Regional  Counci
will take'action on the draft
glan amendment on January

e ft document. will be
. avallable for Rubllc review at
th from 8:00

. :OD p.

throu h Frida b innin

Thursday, October 27, 2005.

Copies will aiso be available
for review .at the Glen ale
Public Libra
_Brown streer |t¥ofMesaLl

andrxhuemx Central Pubhc Liv
| 5 rth Central

are welcome at' the hearing,
or may be submltted in writ-
\3( 00 p n Decem-
b r 13, 2005 to MAG staff at
the address below.
Con act “Person: Julie

302 North 1st Avenue, Suite
300 Phoemx Arlzonads

5788 chober 29, 2005
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AFFIDAVIT OF PUBLICATION

THE ARIZONA REPUBLIC

STATE OF ARIZONA
COUNTY OF MARICOPA S8

Diana Chavez, being first duly sworn, upon oath deposes
and says: That she is a legal advertising representative of the
Arizona Business Gazette, a newspaper of general
circulation in the county of Maricopa, State of Arizona,
published at Phoenix, Arizona, by Phoenix Newspapers Inc.,
which also publishes The Arizona Republic, and that the
copy hereto attached is a true copy of the advertisement
published in the said paper on the dates as indicated.

The Arizona Republic

October 29, 2005

WNC
\

Sworn to before me this
3157 day of
October A.D. 2005

ST I SN IS S
OFFICIALSEAL
RILYN GREENWOOD J A
OTARYPUBLIC-ARIZONA U (|  Notary Public

MARICOPA COUNTY
yComm Expires May 23, 2007

SIS



MARICOPA

ﬁ & ASSOCIATION of

GOVERNIMENTS

302 North 1st Avenue, Suite 300 4 Phoenix, Arizona 85003
Phone (602) 254-6300 a Fax (602) 254-6480
E-mail: mag@mag. maricopa.gov 4 Web site: www. mag. maricopa.gov

November 1, 2005

TO: Interested Parties for Water Quality

FROM: Julie Hoffman, Environmental Planner

SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING ON THE DRAFT MAG 208 WATER QUALITY MANAGEMENT
PLAN AMENDMENT FOR THE EXPANSION OF THE TOWN OF BUCKEYE
SUNDANCE WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT

Public Hearing

December 13, 2005 at 3:00 p.m.
MAG Office, Cholla Room

302 North 1* Avenue, Second Floor
Phoenix, Arizona 85003

The Maricopa Association of Governments (MAG) will conduct a public hearing on the Draft MAG 208
Water Quality Management Plan Amendment for the Expansion of the Town of Buckeye Sundance

Wastewater Treatment Plant. The purpose of the hearing is to receive public comments on the draft plan
amendment.

The Sundance Wastewater Treatment Plant is identified in the current MAG 208 Plan for a capacity of
3.6 million gallons per day (mgd). The expansion would increase ultimate capacity to 8.9 mgd. Reclaimed
water from the expanded facility would be disposed of through, reuse, recharge and an Arizona Pollutant
Discharge Elimination System Permit discharge to the Buckeye Irrigation District Canal.

For your information and convenience, a copy of the public hearing notice is enclosed. The draft document
is available for public review at the MAG Office, third floor from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Monday through
Friday. Copies are also available for review at the Glendale Public Library, 5959 West Brown Street; City
of Mesa Library, 64 East First Street; and Phoenix Central Public Library, 1221 North Central Avenue. For

further information or to submit written comments on the draft amendment prior to the hearing, please
contact me at (602) 254-6300. '

A Voluntary Association of Local Governments in Maricopa County

City of Apache Junction 4 City of Avondale 4 Town of Buckeye 4 Town of Carefree 4 Town of Cave Creek 4 City of Chandler 4 City of El Mirage 4 Fort McDowell Yavapai Nation & Town of Fountain Hills 4 Town of Gila Bend
Gila River Indian Community 4 Town of Gilbert A City of Glendale 4 City of Goodyear 4 Town of Guadalupe 4 City of Litchfield Park a4 Maricopa County 4 City of Mesa & Town of Paradise Valley 4 City of Peoria 4 City of Phoenix
Town of Queen Creek & Salt River Pima-Maricopa Indian Community 4 City of Scottsdale 4 City of Surprise 4 City of Tempe 4 City of Tolleson 4 Town of Wickenburg 4 Town of Youngtown & Arizona Department of Transportation



PUBLIC HEARING ON THE DRAFT MAG 208 WATER QUALITY MANAGEMENT PLAN
AMENDMENT FOR THE EXPANSION OF THE TOWN OF BUCKEYE SUNDANCE
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT

Tuesday, December 13, 2005 at 3:00 p.m.
MAG Office, Suite 200 - Cholla Room
302 North 1* Avenue
Phoenix, Arizona 85003

The Maricopa Association of Governments (MAG) will conduct a public hearing on the Draft MAG 208
Plan Amendment for the Expansion of the Town of Buckeye Sundance Wastewater Treatment Plant. The
purpose of the hearing is to receive public comments on the draft amendment.

The Sundance Wastewater Treatment Plant is identified in the current MAG 208 Plan for a capacity of
3.6 million gallons per day (mgd). The expansion would increase ultimate capacity to 8.9 mgd. Reclaimed
water from the expanded facility would be disposed of through, reuse, recharge and an Arizona Pollutant
Discharge Elimination System Permit discharge to the Buckeye Irrigation District Canal.

Following consideration of comments received, it is anticipated that the MAG Water Quality Advisory
Committee will make a recommendation to the MAG Management Committee. On January 11, 2006, the
MAG Management Committee is anticipated to make a recommendation to the MAG Regional Council.
It is anticipated that the MAG Regional Council will take action on the draft plan amendment on
January 25, 2006.

The draft document will be available for public review at the MAG Office from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.
Monday through Friday beginning Thursday, October 27, 2005. Copies will also be available for review
at the Glendale Public Library, 5959 West Brown Street; City of Mesa Library, 64 East First Street; and
Phoenix Central Public Library, 1221 North Central Avenue. Public comments are welcome at the hearing,
or may be submitted in writing by 3:00 p.m. on December 13, 2005 to MAG staff at the address below.

Contact Person: Julie Hoffman
302 North 1* Avenue, Suite 300
Phoenix, Arizona 85003
Fax: (602) 254-6490
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The Public Hearing was taken on December 13,
2005, commencing at 3:00 p.m., at the offices of the
Maricopa Association of Governments, 302 North 1lst

Avenue, Suite 200, Phoenix, Arizona, before

. JANET HAUCK, RPR, a Certified Reporter, Certificate

No. 50522, for the State of Arizona.

Committee Members Present:

Roger Klingler, City of Scottsdale, Chair
Greg Stack, City of Avondale

Lucky Roberts, Town of Buckeye

Chris Ochs, City of Glendale

Rich Williams, Sr., City of Surprise

David McNeil, City of Tempe

Dale Bodiya, Maricopa County

John Boyer, Arizona Public Service Company
Eugene Jensen, Citizen Representative
David Iwanski, City of Goodyear

Committee Members Attending
by Teleghone Conference Call:

Jacgueline Strong, City of Chandler
Bill Haney., City of Mesa

Others Present:

Ron Frey, Kennedy/Jenks Consultants
Peter Chan, CSA Engineering

John Dannan, Pulte Homes

Matt Cox, Lennar Homes

Paul Gilbert, Beus Gilbert

Felipe Zubia, Beus Gilbert

Jim Condit, JF Properties

Michael Worlton, RBF Consulting
Dianne Barker, Citizen

~Julie Hoffman, Maricopa Association of Governments

Ann Wimmer, Maricopa Association of Governments

GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES, L.L.C.
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MR. KLINGLER: Thank you. Now, our next item
is Item 5, our public hearing. I would like to open
the Public Héaring on the Draft MAG 208 Plan Amendment
for the Exﬁansion of the Town of Buckeye Sundance
Wastewater Treatment Plant.

We will begin with a briefing on the draft
amendment, and following the briefing, hearing

participants are invited to make comments for the

public record. A court reporter is present to provide
an official record of the hearing. Written comments
are also welcome. For those wishing to speak on the

draft amendment, please fill out a yellow card and hand |
it to MAG staff.

Michael Worlton of RBF Consulting will
provide a briefing on the Draft Buckeye 208 Amendment.

Michael?

MR. WORLTON: Thank you. This is a map of
the,éxisting service area for the Sundance Wastewater
Treatmenﬁ Plant. You can see that I-10 is the road to

the north. The plant is down in the southern area. We

~have a blowup, actually, of a larger scale map here

showing the expanded service area. In the pink we show
the Verrado service area proposed. We also show in the

vellow the existing Sundance, and the plant is the

GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES, L.L.C.
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purple dot at the bottom. The expanded Sundance area
that we're proposing is indicated by the boundary line
that's orange. If you look, actually, to the south,
the south boundary, there is the RID canal. It's kind
of the south boundary of that area.

Here's the proposed site plan. Currently,
the existing plant is 1.2 million gallons per day.

It's a sequencing batch reactor. The existing 208
allows for two additional 1.2 mgd expansions to that
which brings us to 3.6 mgd sequencing batch reactors.
An additional clarifier for éach of those is
anticipated to be constructed and bringing the total to
7.2, and also, a conversion to an MLE, Modified
Ludzack-Ettinger process. And then a final phase will
bring the total from 7.2 to 8.9 mgd.

This is a schematic of the existing plant and|
the sequencing batch reactor. We don't have plans to
go beyond it. As I mentioned, we have 1.2 mgd
existing. The existing 208 Amendment is for 3.6. We
don't anticipate needing to expand anything under this
amendment for several years.

So, this is kind of what we have in place and
what we will see in the next two phases ~-- or not next
two phases, but next two expansions of the existing

phase, and then the next phase will go to a MLE

GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES, L.L.C.
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process. So, that's a schematic of what's currently
being done.

In summary, the treatment process, the
concept is to convert SBR to MLE because we're finding
the MLE technology to be more efficient. We will
maintain all the minimum setbacks as required for odor
and noise. Also, I didn't discuss this, but the plan
is to discharge effluent to the Buckeye Irrigation
District Canal and also to golf courses on-site which I
think I have slides.

The plant will be served by gravity flows.
There will be one 1lift station that's going to service
that plant, but in general, it will be served by
gravity flow. And I mentioned that there will be a
golf courée that we are reuéing the water on cﬁrrently.
It was just recéntly that we started bringing water to
the Buckeye Irrigation District Canal.

It's just kind of a summary of the permits
which you will find in the MAG 208 Amendment we
submitted that we are operating under and also will be

obtaining for future construction. That's the end. If

"you have any questions, I'll be happy to answer them at

this time.
MR. KLINGLER: Michael, at this time, we

would invite public comments.

GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES, L.L.C.
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Julie, did we get any cards for anyone
wishing to speak at this time?

Okay, then any guestions from the committee
at this point?

Thank you, Michael.

MR. WORLTON: Thank you.

MR. KLINGLER: At this time, we would like to
close the public hearing and request the court reporter
to end the transcription. Thank you very much.

(The public hearing portion of the

proceedings adjourned at 3:14 p.m.)

* * *

GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES, L.L.C.
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STATE OF ARIZONA )

COUNTY OF MARICOPA )

I, JANET HAUCK, a Certified Reporter,
Certificaté No. 50522, in the State of Arizona, do
hereby certify that the foregoing pages constitute a
full, true, and accurate transcript of all proceedings
had in the foregoing matter, all done to the best of my

skill and ability.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that I am not related to
nor employed by any of the parties hereto, and have no

interest in the outcome hereof.

WITNESS my hand this 12th day of January,

2006.

______ ’- M_@QZM

Jan Hauck, RPR
ona Certified
Reporter No. 50522

GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES, L.L.C.




